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From the Chairman
The pedagogy for most of us is teacher-centric learning where deconstructed and reconstructed information 

is presented to students categorized in the pre-defined age groups, within standardized classroom settings.

In an important sense, pedagogy is the overarching concept; that is integral to a nation’s culture, social 
structure, growth and development. From this point of view, pedagogy can be defined by curriculum, or the content 
of what is being taught; methodology, or the way in which teaching is done; and the techniques for developing 
cognitive and affective skills of learners, a pre-requisite for being successful in the society, that education is 
designed to promote. 

Stephen Heppel (2005) observed that - ‘Educators and systems spent the 20th century perfecting the 19th century 
model of schooling.’  It is only in the 21st century that terms like innovation, leadership, creativity, problem solving, 
decision making, collaboration, etc., got synonymous with global education. How one teaches must reflect how the 
students learn. It must also reflect the world the students are an integral part of. The world today is rapidly changing, 
adapting and evolving. The transforming pedagogy must emphasise the learning in the 21st  century. Transforming 
pedagogy is complex for the learner as well as the school as a whole - staff, students, parents and others involved 
in the education system. The real issue here is not just learning, but continuous and comprehensive evaluation and 
assessment. Most of the educators admit that they have never taught in the same way twice - not even if it was 
continuing the same chapter, the next day. Some methods of teaching don't work, others don't work well, a few 
techniques inspire different thoughts in similar target audience. So the change of style becomes imperative for a 
teacher depending on the perspective of the student/s. That is one reason why the need for different pedagogies 
arises. It can be as simple as teachers abandoning lesson plans and suggesting ‘learning goals’.

Today’s learners have information at a click of the button and advancement of technology has touched 
everyone right from village classrooms to smart board sessions. The technological wonders like computers, 
calculators, laptops, i-Pads, i-Pods, audio players, digital cameras, etc., are not tools but toys for the kids of this era.  
The emerging times will see connectivity by way of broadband, wi-fi, mobile and IP-TV, E-content for schools 
sector by way of Open Education Resources (OER), Free and open source software, communities driven open 
access publishing and many more.

Today a query does not get noted by a learner to be answered by a teacher. S/he tries to find solutions 
first. The traditional approach surely has transformed.  The pedagogies cannot remain locked in old patterns of 
thinking. The most appropriate pedagogy for the 21st  century needs to focus on life skills, co-curricular activities, 
attitudes, values etc., not only to support learning and teaching in the physical space, but in the virtual space too. 
The education has to be holistic more than being information centric learning and teaching.

The Central Board of Secondary Education has consistently been striving to establish new benchmarks in 
Secondary Education through various reforms in the education system of the country. In one of its moves to 
strengthen the implementation of Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) scheme in all of its affiliated 
schools and to promote co-curricular activities, CBSE has planned a comprehensive nation-wide yearly calendar 
detailing the training workshops for CCE and Formative Assessment (FA) for teachers and Inter-School Games 
and Sports Competitions for students for the year 2012-13. The calendar details the dates and venues for both 
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CCE and FA Training Workshops and Inter-School Games and Sports Competitions and can be accessed on 
CBSE Academic website (www.cbseacademic.in). All Principals and Heads of Institutions are requested to 
adhere to the calendar for CCE and FA Training Workshops and Inter-School Games and Sports Competitions 
schedule to ensure maximum participation. It is an honour and privilege that the Ministry of  Youth Affairs and 
Sports, Government of India has recognised CBSE as the National Sports Promotional Organisation (NSPO). 

Our planet earth has beautiful and diverse forms of life and we must assume responsibility for wildlife 
conservation and encourage the present generation to seek solutions through education. Our students should be 
reminded that they can make a difference. To encourage the students in this regard, WWF India and TRAFFIC 
India are conducting their 5th edition of the wild life quiz - ‘Wild Wisdom’ and CBSE has associated itself with 
them for the online quiz from this year onwards.

The CBSE’s examination reforms are responding to the demands of the stakeholders. The Board used to 
make available Blue Prints, Sample Question Papers and Marking Schemes in all major subjects for classes IX 
and X. However, it has been noticed that a large section of students and examiners punctiliously follow these 
documents in the letter and not in the spirit, which results in precluding the much advocated open ended approach 
and diversity in expression, style and content. In order to address the issue, CBSE decided to discontinue the 
practice of providing Blue Prints, Sample Question Papers and Marking Schemes in classes IX and X w.e.f., 
Summative Assessment II of 2012-13.  

It is a widely acknowledged fact that research and analytical skills, ability to apply concepts, solve application 
based problems in Mathematics and Science, comprehend and analyse written text and effective communication 
are the skills which ensure success in Higher Studies and professional life. These dimensions of the 21st century 
life skills will greatly assist learners in acquiring higher order thinking skills such as problem solving and decision 
making. It is in this connection that the Board has initiated a Problem Solving Assessment (CBSE-PSA) for 
students of classes IX and XI from the second term of this session 2012-13. The PSA is scheduled to be held on 
16 February 2013.

Keeping in line with the theme ‘Transforming Pedagogy’, the Board has also decided to conduct the 19th 
National Annual Sahodaya Conference at Indore on the theme: 'New Pedagogies and Enabling Technologies for 
Teaching and Learning'. The sub themes will dwell on the topics like Teacher Effectiveness, Education Quality 
and Economic Growth, Twenty First Century Learning, Education 3.0., Transformational Pedagogies and Leveraging 
Technology for Learning.

The Sahodaya Schools Complex is a group of neighbourhood schools voluntarily coming to share their 
innovative practices including curriculum design, evaluation and pedagogy. The conference is expected to facilitate 
a vibrant synergy of ideas aimed at excellence in education. The traditional wisdom of the teaching-learning 
strategies need to be fostered with transformative pedagogies of going beyond the boundaries of the classroom. 
As we all agree it is time for schools to share, collaborate, connect with new pedagogies and enabling technologies 
for teaching and learning.

VINEET JOSHI
Chairman,  

Central Board of Secondary Education
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vè;{k dh vksj ls
geesa ls T;knkrj yksxksa ds fy, ^f'k{k.k 'kkL=* ,d f'k{kd dsafær izoh.krk gS] tgka [kafMr rFkk iqufufeZr 

tkudkfj;ka ekudhÑr d{kk lek;kstu ds Hkhrj] iwoZ–fu/kkZfjr vk;q–lewgksa esa oxhZÑr fd, x, Nk=ksa ds le{k 
izLrqr dh tkrh gSaaA

fdUrq fof'k"V vFkZ esa ^f'k{k.k 'kkL=* ,d ,slh O;kid vo/kkj.kk gS] tks ns'k dh laLÑfr] lkekftd 
lajpuk] o`f) ,oa fodkl ds fy, vfuok;Z gSA bl n`f"Vdks.k ls ^f'k{k.k 'kkL=* dks ikB~;p;kZ ;k fl[kkbZ tkus 
okyh fo"k;oLrq( iz.kkyh ;k og rjhdk ftlesa f'k{k.k fd;k tk jgk gS rFkk og rduhd tks Nk=ksa ds HkkokRed 
,oa KkukRed dkS'kyksa dk fodkl djrk gS] lkFk gh ftls lekt esa lQyrk fnykus okyh vfuok;Z f'k{kk dks 
fodflr djus ds fy, gh vfHkdfYir fd;k x;k gS] bu lcds ek/;e ls ifjHkkf"kr fd;k tk ldrk gSA

LVhQu gSIiy us ¼2005 esa½ crk;k fd ^f'k{kdksa rFkk f'k{kk ra=* us 19oha lnh dh fo|ky;h f'k{kk ds <kaps 
esa lq/kkj ykus ds fy,] iwjh 20oha lnh gh yxk nh vkSj 21oha lnh esa vkdj uokpkj] jpukRedrk] usr`Ro] leL;k 
lek/kku] fu.kZ; {kerk] lg;ksx bR;kfn tSls in vkt dh oSf'od f'k{kk ds i;kZ; cu x, gSaA dksbZ f'k{kd dSls 
i<+krk gS] bls Nk=ksa }kjk xzg.k fd, x, Kku esa ifjyf{kr gksuk pkfg,A lkFk gh ml Kku esa og lalkj Hkh 
fn[kuk pkfg, ftldk vfHkUu fgLlk os Nk= gksrs gSaA vkt dh nqfu;k rsth ls cny jgh gS] ,d#i gks jgh gS 
vkSj fodflr gks jgh gSA ,sls esa 21oha lnh esa :ikarfjr ^f'k{k.k 'kkL=* dks f'k{kk ij tksj nsuk pkfg,A lh[kus 
okyksa ds lkFk–lkFk iwjs fo|ky; ftlesa lgdehZ] Nk=] vfHkHkkod rFkk f'k{k.k ra= ls lac) vU; lHkh O;fDr 
'kkfey gksrs gSa] mu lcds fy, tfVy gSA ;gka oLrqr% okLrfod eqík vf/kxe ugha gS cfYd lrr ,oa O;kid 
ewY;kadu rFkk vkdyu gSA T;knkrj f'k{kd ;g ekurs gSa fd mUgksaus dHkh Hkh vius i<+kus ds rjhds dks nqgjk;k 
ugha gS] ;gka rd fd vxys fnu ;fn leku v/;k; dks i<+kuk gks] rc HkhA leku fo|kfFkZ;ksa ;k lewgksa ij f'k{k.k 
ds dqN rjhds dk;Z gh ugha djrs] dqN vPNh rjg ls dk;Z ugha djrs rFkk dqN rduhd mUgha fo|kfFkZ;ksa esa 
vyx–vyx fopkj mRiUu djrs gSaA blfy, fo|kfFkZ;ksa ds n`f"Vdks.k ds vk/kkj ij f'k{kdksa ds fy, viuh 'kSyh esa 
ifjorZu djuk vfuok;Z gks tkrk gSA fofo/k f'k{k.k 'kkL=ksa ds mRiUu gksus dk Hkh ;gh ,d dkj.k gSA ;s ifjorZu 
mrus gh lgt gks ldrs gSa ftruk fd f'k{kdksa dh ikB;kstuk ,oa lq>kfor ^'kSf{kd y{;ksa* dks NksM+ nsukA

tgka vkt ds Nk= cVu nckrs gh tkudkfj;ka izkIr dj ysrs gSa ogha izkS|ksfxd fodkl us xzkeh.k d{kkvksa 
ls ysdj LekVZ cksMZ l= rd ds lHkh Nk=ksa dks lh/ks izHkkfor fd;k gSA dEI;wVj] dSYdqysVj] ySiVkWi] vkbZ–iSM] 
vkbZ–iksM] vkWfM;ks–Iys;j] fMft+Vy dSejk bR;kfn tSls izkS|ksfxd peRdkj bl ;qx ds cPpksa ds fy, ,d midj.k 
Hkj ugha gS cfYd f[kykSus gSaA vkxs vkus okys le; esa Hkys gh ge czkWMcSaM] okbZ–QkbZ] eksckby vkSj IP-TV tSls 
:iksa dh rdZlaxrrk le>saxs] eqDr 'kSf{kd lalk/kuksa ¼OER½( fu%'kqYd ,oa eqDr lzksr lkW¶Vos;j] leqnk;ksa }kjk 
lapkfyr fu%'kqYd mi;ksx ds izdk'kuksa vkSj vU; dbZ :iksa esa fo|ky;h {ks= ds fy, bZ–lkexzh dh lkFkZdrk 
ns[ksaxsA
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vkt ds nkSj esa ,d Nk= fdlh iz'u dk mÙkj tkuus ds fy, f'k{kd ij fuHkZj ugha jgrkA og rks 
Lo;a dh lek/kku <wa<us dk iz;kl djrk gSA fuf'pr rkSj ij ikjaifjd i)fr;ka cny xbZ gSaA ,sls esa ^f'k{k.k* 
Hkh iqjkus fopkjksa dh ckuxh vks<+s ugha jg ldrk gSA 21oha lnh esa loksZi;qDr f'k{kk dks thou–dkS'kyksa] ikB~; 
lgxkeh–fØ;kvksa O;ogkjksa] ewY;ksa bR;kfn tSls fo"k;ksa ij Hkh /;ku dsafær djus dh vko';drk gS] vFkkZr~ u 
flQZ HkkSfrd fo"k;ksa esa gh f'k{k.k ,oa vf/kxeu dk leFkZu fd;k tk, cfYd ;FkkFkZijd fo"k;ksa dks Hkh egRo 
fn;k tk,A blhfy, vc f'k{k.k dks T;knk ls T;knk lwpuk dsafær f'k{k.k ,oa vf/kxe cukus ds ctk, mls 
iw.kZrkoknh cuk;k x;k gSA

dsUæh; ek/;fed f'k{kk cksMZ us ns'k dh f'k{kk iz.kkyh esa ¼fo'ks"kdj ek/;fed f'k{kk ds {ks= esa½ fofHkUu 
lq/ kkjksa ds ek/;e ls u, ekun.M LFkkfir djus ds fujarj iz;kl fd, gSaA blds bUgha iz;klksa esa ls ,d gS blls 
lac) fo|ky;ksa esa lrr ,oa O;kid ewY;kadu ¼CCE½ dk n`<+rkiwoZd dk;kZUo;u rFkk ikB~; lgxkeh–fØ;kvksa 
dks izksRlkgu feyuk( CBSE us ,d ns'kO;kih foLr`r okf"kZd C;kSjksa okys dSysaMj dh ;kstuk cukbZ gS] ftlesa o"kZ 
2012–13 esa f'k{kdksa ds fy, vk;ksftr gksus okys lrr ,oa O;kid ewY;kadu ¼CCE½ rFkk jpukRed vkdyu 
¼FA½ dh izf'k{k.k dk;Z'kkykvksa rFkk Nk=ksa ds fy, vk;ksftr gksus okyh varj–fo|ky;h [ksy–dwn ,oa ØhM+k 
izfr;ksfxrk ds C;kSjs fn, gksaxsA ;g dSysaMj CCE ,oa FA dh izf'k{k.k dk;Z'kkykvksa vkSj varj fo|ky;h [ksy–dwn 
,oa ØhM+k izfr;ksfxrkvksa bu nksuksa dh frfFk;ksa ,oa LFkkuksa dk fooj.k nsrk gS vkSj bls CBSE ds osclkbV ¼www.
cbseacademic.in½ ij ns[kk tk ldrk gSA lHkh laLFkkuksa ds iz/kkukpk;ks± ,oa izeq[kksa ls vuqjks/k gS fd os CCE 
vkSj FA ds izf'k{k.k dk;Z'kkykvksa vkSj varj–fo|ky;h [ksy–dwn ,oa ØhM+k izfr;ksfxrkvksa esa vf/kd ls vf/ kd 
Hkkxhnkjh lqfuf'pr djus ds fy, dSysaMj dk ikyu djsaA ;g gekjs fy, lEeku dh ckr gS fd Þ;qok ,oa [ksy 
ea=ky;] Hkkjr ljdkjß us dsUæh; ek/;fed f'k{kk cksMZ dks ^jk"Vªh; [ksy izpkj laxBu* ¼NSPO½ ds :i esa 
ekU;rk iznku dh gSA

gekjh /kjrh ij thou ds fofo/k ,oa lqanj #i gSa vkSj gesa oU;–tho laj{k.k dh ftEesnkjh le>us rFkk 
orZeku ih<+h dks f'k{kk ds ek/;e ls ^lek/kku ryk'kus* ds fy, izksRlkfgr djuk pkfg,A gesa Nk=ksa dks ;g ;kn 
fnykuk pkfg, fd os gh cnyko yk ldrs gSaA bl laca/k esa Nk=ksa dks izksRlkfgr djus ds fy, WWF India vkSj 
TRAFFIC India vius 5osa laLdj.k ds oU;–thou iz'uksÙkjh ^oU;–Kku* dk vk;kstu dj jgs gSa( rFkk CBSE us 
bl o"kZ ls vkWuykbu iz'uksÙkjh ds fy, muds lkFk [kqn dks lac) fd;k gSA

dsUæh; ek/;fed f'k{kk cksMZ dk ijh{kk lq/kkj vius lk>hnkjksa dh ekaxksa dk yxkrkj fujkdj.k djrs jgs 
gSaA bl lanHkZ esa cksMZ }kjk d{kk IX ,oa X ds lHkh izeq[k fo"k;ksa esa CywfizaV] uewuk iz'u i= ,oa vadu ;kstukvksa 
dks miyC/k djok;k tkrk FkkA ijUrq fiNys dqN le; esa ;g ns[kk x;k fd Nk=ksa ,oa ijh{kdksa ds ,d cM+s oxZ 
us i= esa bu nLrkostksa dk foLrkjiwoZd vuqdj.k fd;k gS fdUrq vkRek ls ugha( ftldk ifj.kke] rF;ksa 'kSfy;ksa 
,oa fopkjksa dh vfHkO;fDr rFkk vR;f/kd [kqyh ppkZvksa ij jksd dk yx tkuk gqvkA blh Øe esa bl eqís ds 
lek/kku ds fy, CBSE us 2012–13 ds d{kk IX ,oa X ds ;ksxkRed ewY;kadu II ds lanHkZ esa Cyw–fizaV] uewuk 
iz'u i= ,oa vadu ;kstukvksa dks miyC/k u djkus dk QSlyk fd;k gSA
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;g ,d O;kid :i ls LohÑr rF; gS fd vuqla/kku ,oa fo'ys"k.kkRed ;ksX;rk] vo/kkj.kkvksa ds mi;ksx 
dh ;ksX;rk] foKku ,oa xf.kr esa vuqiz;ksx vk/kkfjr leL;kvksa ds lek/kku dh ;ksX;rk] fyf[kr vorj.k dks 
le>us rFkk fo'ys"k.k djus dh {kerk ,oa izHkko'kkyh laizs"k.k {kerk ;s lHkh ,slh ;ksX;rk,a gSa tks mPpLrjh; 
v/;;u ,oa O;kolkf;d thou esa lQyrk dks lqfuf'pr djrs gSaA 21oha lnh ds thou–dkS'kyksa ds ;s vk;ke 
Nk=ksa dks leL;k lek/kku ,oa fu.kZ; ysus tSls mPpLrjh; fparu dkS'kyksa dks vftZr djus esa lgk;rk djsaxsA 
bl lanHkZ esa cksMZ us 2012–13 ds bl l= ds nwljs VeZ ls d{kk IX ,oa XI ds Nk=ksa ds fy, leL;k lek/kku 
vkdyu ¼CBSE–PSA½ dh 'kq:vkr dh gSA PSA ijh{kk ds fy, 16 Qjojh 2013 dh frfFk r; dh xbZ gSA

^:ikarfjr f'k{k.k 'kkL=* bl fo"k; dks /;ku esa j[krs gq, cksMZ us Þf'k{k.k ,oa vf/kxeß ds fy, u, f'k{k.k 
'kkL= ,oa ykHkdkjh izkS|ksfxfd;kaß bl fo"k; ij bankSj esa 19oka jk"Vªh; lgksn;k lEesyu vk;ksftr djus dk 
fu.kZ; fy;k gSA lkFk gh blls lacaf/kr mifo"k;ksa tSls f'k{kd dh izHkko'khyrk] f'k{kk dh xq.kork ,oa vkfFkZd 
fodkl] bDdhloha lnh dk f'k{k.k] 3-0- ¼Education 3.0½ f'k{kk] f'k{kk ds fy, ifjorZudkjh f'k{k.k 'kkL= ,oa 
ykHkdkjh izkS|ksfxdh tSls fo"k;ksa ij Hkh /;ku dsafær djuk gksxkA

lgksn;k fo|ky; ifjlj] lehiLFk fo|ky;ksa ¼neighbourhood schools½ dk ,d ,slk lewg gS tks LosPNk 
ls vius ikB;Øe dh vfHkdYiuk lfgr u, rjhdksa] v/;kiu ,oa ewY;kadu dks ,d–nwljs ds lkFk lk>k djrs 
gSaA bl lEesyu esa f'k{kk ds {ks= esa mRÑ"Vrk ds mís'; ls fopkjksa esa ,d thoar rkyesy fcBkrs gq, fujarj 
vkxs c<+us ds fy, izksRlkfgr fd;k tkrk gSA oLrqr% f'k{k.k–vf/kxe uhfr;ksa ds ikjaifjd Kku ds fy, d{kk 
dh lhekvksa ls ijs tkdj cnyrs gq, f'k{k.k dks izksRlkfgr djus dh vko';drk gSA ge lHkh ;g tkurs gSa fd 
;g fo|ky;ksa ds fy, ,slk volj gksrk gS tgka os ,d–nwljs ds lkFk ^f'k{k.k ,oa vf/kxe* ds fy, u, f'k{k.k 
,oa ykHkdkjh izkS|ksfxfd;ksa dks ,d–nwljs ds lkFk tksM+rs gSa] fQj mUgsa vkil esa lk>k djrs gSa rFkk ,d–nwljs 
dk Hkjiwj lg;ksx djrs gSaA

¼fouhr tks'kh½
vè;{k

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk cksMZ
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Feedback Forum

Respected Sir,

We appreciate the efforts taken by the CBSE to publish the quarterly bulletin CENBOSEC. We feel proud 
to be a part of this system which believes in ‘Innovations in Teaching Learning Process’.

Thanking you,

With regards,

Dr. Mallikarjun Karimungi 
Principal 

Saraswati International School 
Valsad, Gujarat

Dear Sir,

Season’s Greetings.

The CENBOSEC quarterly magazine is a unique effort on your part to encourage all CBSE schools to continue 
towards excellence in education. It helps a lot to know about the programs and activities of various schools 
and also other important details regarding CBSE programs, notices and circulars which are very essential. I 
would like to thank the team behind this magazine for their hardwork.

Best regards,

Timsi Rai 
Headmistress 

Advanced Academy 
Indore

Dear Sir, 

As a senior citizen, an innovator, an author of many books on inventions/innovations, crusader of innovation 
movement in India, I take the opportunity to congratulate and compliment the Advisory Committee of 
CENBOSEC for giving importance to Innovations in Education. Innovation has many dimensions and forms. 
Innovation could be a product or a technique or a process or a system or a methodology or a practice, etc.

On introduction of innovative practices in teaching, the schools will help to produce a large number of 
knowledge seekers and thinkers. Professional education may turn them into ‘knowledge leaders’. The 21st 
Century is the century of knowledge. Therefore, the country needs a large number of ‘knowledge leaders’ in 
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different areas for rapid economic development and growth as well as social change for betterment of the 
common people. 

I sincerely wish all success in your efforts to bringing effective innovations in education and making students 
innovative for obvious advantages.

Lakshman Prasad 
Founder President, C.B. Gupta Saraswati Vidyapeeth,  

(A Charitable Rural Educational Institute), Aligarh

Respected Sir,

We express our sincere thanks and deep sense of gratitude for your kind blessings and able guidance for the 
spectacular performance of Class X and Class XII students in Board examinations and in various professional 
Entrance Test - 2012. Delhi Public School, Ranchi has bagged 1st position in Ranchi City and State of 
Jharkhand due to the significant results of the students of Class X and XII.

We would like to propose to host “Formative Assessment Training Workshop” for teachers and Mentoring 
Session with the Principals of all the CBSE affiliated Schools of CBSE Patna Region at DPS Ranchi.

Looking forward to your presence in our school

with kind regards,

J Mohanty 
Principal 

Delhi Public School, Ranchi

Respected Sir,

Thanks for the invitation for the launch of Centre for Assessment, Evaluation and Research in joint collaboration 
with the Pearson Charitable Foundation on 9 August 2012. I send my best wishes and blessings for this 
ennobling service of creating a center of excellence that will share its expertise globally.

With warmest regards,

Dr. (Mrs.) Y. G. Parthasarathy 
Dean and Director 

Padma Seshadri Bala Bhawan Sr. Secondary School 
Chennai

Respected Sir,

We would like to convey our heartfelt thanks to CBSE for organizing Training Workshops for our students 
and teachers of Mass Media Studies in August and September, 2012.

It was really heartening to learn that our request was taken up on priority and our school was given the chance 
to visit MASSCO MEDIA, Noida for a 2-day Workshop on 3 and 4 August 2012.
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The initiative of involving school students and teachers in ‘Documentary Making’ is going to help the students 
in a big way and is going to reap long term benefits.

We assure you to extend our maximum possible cooperation for all such projects in the future too. We again 
express our gratitude to you and your team for helping us out and look forward to be associated with CBSE 
for many more projects to come.

Thanks and kind regards,

Vandana Kapoor 
Principal 

D.A.V. Public School 
MausamVihar, Delhi

Respected Sir,

I convey the gratitude of children, staff and myself for gracing the occasion of the 40th Anniversary Celebration 
of Mount Carmel. Your words were gracious and educative. However, it was our privilege to have shared the 
vision of Mount Carmel with you.

With kindest regards,

Dr. V. K. Williams 
Principal 

Mount Carmel School, Delhi

Respected Sir,

Thank you for giving time in spite of your extremely busy schedule. I truly appreciate it. I was happy to get 
the information on new courses and the training for Mass Media Studies teachers and students. I shared this 
with the respective teachers and the students of my school. They are eager and enthusiastic about the whole 
concept initiated by CBSE.

I genuinely admire the zeal with which every one works at CBSE. My best wishes to all who are working so 
hard to change the entire educational milieu in the country.

Warm regards,

Kalpana Chaudhary 
Instructional Mentor 
Raipur, Chhattisgarh 

Education is the most powerful weapon which 
you can use to change the world.

 – Nelson Mandela
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Ms. Anita Makkar*

From the ancient traditional ‘Gurukuls’ and ‘Paathshalas’, we have come a long way to ‘smart- classrooms’ with a 
world of information just a click away. Children are becoming more and more self reliant. At the same time we need 
to inculcate a desire to learn, a desire to experiment and a desire to create. This makes it even more imperative to bring 
about changes in the pedagogy. This can be done only by a teacher who is committed and progressive. A continuous 
dialogue between the teacher and the taught has to be ensured. Students have to be encouraged to observe and research, 
with an aim to making learning more experiential and encouraging them to think ‘out of the box.’ Consequently, 
new strategies are devised for effective teaching in classrooms, which have been quite helpful in making learning more 
effective and joyful. Some of them are :

 GROUP LEARNING - Students are divided into heterogeneous groups where shy and reticent students come 
together with the bright and outgoing ones. This ensures a dual benefit.

 RECIPROCAL TEACHING - It is a structured instructional activity that takes place in the form of a dialogue 
between teachers and students regarding segments of text.

 GRAPHIC ORGANIZERS – Graphic Organizers aid easy comprehension of concepts by organizing details 
at one glance, e.g.: a poem taught in the class deals with rhyme scheme, literary devices, expressions, symbols 
etc., a graphic organizer creates a branched visual of all these and more details, which are comprehensible at a 
single glance.

 FUSSING WITH DEFINITIONS - The teacher selects a definition.  Students are asked to select two words 
from the definition, that they feel are the most important and write the definition in their own words.  

 PEER EDITING –Planned group activities are organized, providing a platform for expression and critical 
analysis of students’ views and opinions.   

 DRAMATISATION– The teachers convert lessons into situational presentations, encouraging the students to 
play various roles and create their own situations.

 FIELD TRIPS - Students are taken on regular visits to the places of historical interest like – Humayun’s Tomb, 
Qutub Minar, Delhi Darshan and Heritage Walks to provide them a ‘hands on’ experience. These are followed 
by filling planned questionnaires to develop a keen sensibility and sensitivity towards our Cultural Heritage.

 INTERDISCIPLINARY LINKS – Teachers devise projects for students, ensuring that they work across different 
disciplines, linking together various aspects of the project, wherever applicable.

* Principal, DAV Public School, Gurgaon
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 CLASS PRESENTATIONS – The students become facilitators, who prepare presentations that may be through 
charts and posters, through Power Point and other ICT tools.  This has been a great success, both, for the ‘teacher’ 
and the ‘taught’.

 ICT (Information and Communication Technology) – It is an irrefutable fact that use of ICT in classrooms 
has helped in conceptualizing and understanding, especially in Science, Social Science, Mathematics and other 
subjects through visuals and animations. 

 WIKI CLASSROOMS - Teachers use Information and Communication Technology for effective transaction of 
curriculum not only in the classrooms but have gone a step ahead by creating Wiki Classes to remain connected 
with the students 24X7.

Despite all the advantages, ICT needs to be used judiciously and prudently to ensure fruitful and rewarding 
outcomes.

Teachers may be given the freedom to explore and experiment with new and similar strategies to modify them 
or customize them to suit the age group, class and subject taught by them.  In this direction, various workshops, both 
in-house and with external experts are arranged for teacher empowerment.

www.tagxedo.com
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Ms. Seetha Kiran*

Descartes said, “I think, therefore, I am.” The existence of life and life forms and man’s capacity to think 
presupposes an evolving need to change and adapt to one’s circumstances. Thus, learning, unlearning and re- 
learning are an intrinsic part of man’s journey from a one celled amoeba to, perhaps, at some future time, a highly 
evolved ‘superman’.

Education is a dynamic force which contributes to a country’s progress and development in a layered 
manner. A system of education, which is flexible and sensitive to generational challenges, can provide a nourishing 
environment to young talent and give the necessary thrust to a country’s policy of national growth. In a country 
like India, with its diverse cultural and linguistic bases, the challenges posed by huge population figures and 
consequent economic strain, the education system needs to be constantly reviewed and revamped to forestall flaws 
which could hinder progress. Thus, the National Council of Educational Research and Training (NCERT) realises 
that every curriculum has an expiry date and needs to be evaluated at regular intervals.

The new curriculum framework has to ensure the realisation of the new ‘Panchsheel’ which would duly 
emphasize learner centred education, woman centred family, human centred development, knowledge centred 
society and innovation centred India.

The 'National Curriculum for Elementary and Secondary Education: A Framework' brought out by the NCERT 
in 1988 incorporated socio cultural, political and economic considerations by including some important pedagogical 
concerns such as equality of educational opportunity, preservation of cultural heritage, constitutional obligations, 
strengthening of national identity and unity, character building and inculcation of values, a global perspective, 
protection of environment and conservation of natural resources as well as the observance of small family norm. 
The pedagogical issues highlighted in the National Policy on Education (1986) such as evolving a child centred 
approach, minimum levels of learning, facilitating creative expression and developing scientific temper as well as 
developing an interface between education and the world of work were also reflected in the Framework. Emphasis 
was also laid on Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation and utilization of media and educational technology.

Equality of access to education and opportunity is essential to the development of a nation. However, special 
requirements of the first generation learners, physically, mentally and visually challenged pupils as well as pupils 
from disadvantaged sections of society need to be considered in curriculum development. Besides, strengthening 
of national identity and preserving cultural heritage also needs to be stressed. It is here that education has to 
play its dual role of being conservative and dynamic- bringing about a fine synthesis between change oriented 
technologies and the country’s continuity of cultural tradition.

* Principal, D.A.V. Public School, Hyderabad
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Responding to the impact of globalization implies addressing new curricular concerns such as promoting 
consensus on a common core of universal values. Along with expansion of global frontiers, education has to equip 
our children to use and harness the enormous power afforded by the emergence of super developed information 
and communication technologies. The curriculum needs to be constantly revised and updated to include knowledge 
of the latest developments in the communication system, space technology, biotechnology, genetic engineering, 
latest health issues and energy development. At the same time, it needs to shear off irrelevant and obsolete portions 
of information. Here the teacher gets to play the exciting role of co-learner in a learning environment which is 
thrilling and focused.

The Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation is essential to the attainment of educational goals. With a 
view to providing feedback for further improvement, some kind of assessment or evaluation becomes necessary. 
Participatory and transparent evaluation can encourage learners to turn into self motivated, lifelong learners, and 
continuous orientation of teachers to ensure alignment of teaching methodologies with national goals are some 
of the core practices to be adhered to.

A successful education does not envisage as its end highly paid jobs and a lavish life style. Its goals encompass 
much more than that. Perhaps Antoine de Saint Exupery summed it up best when he wrote the following lines:

“If you want to build a ship,

don’t drum up the people

to gather wood, divide the work

and give orders. 

Instead, teach them to yearn

for the vast and endless sea.” 

Education is the ability to listen to almost 
anything without losing your temper or your 
self-confidence.

 – Robert Frost
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Vigyan Ratna Lakshman Prasad*
Teaching is a continuous process of learning and it has a rippling effect. The students learn in various ways-

through experiences, making and doing things, experimentation, reading, discussion, asking, listening, thinking and 
reflecting. The children may learn and remember many facts, but they may not understand them or be able to relate 
them to the world around them. 

To enrich the learning and teaching process, it may be improvised by means of introducing new technological 
devices available in market. They are in easy reach of affluent schools only. But 90% schools in India are generally starving 
for funds and as such they cannot afford to take advantage of modern educational aids and appliances for the benefit 
of their students. Therefore, the teachers will now have to learn new teaching methodology for keeping pace with the 
changing need of students for facing competitive environment. After giving a very serious thought to the problem, 
the following innovative teaching practices, techniques and methodologies may be introduced to make teaching and 
learning more effective and interesting.
1. Participating  Teaching  Methodology

Before starting teaching, the teacher instructs the students to be very careful and attentive in teaching session. The 
teacher usually stops the teaching session about 15 minutes before schedule time. The questions asked by the students 
are replied by students. In case, a student finds difficulty in explaining and answering the question the teacher comes 
to the students rescue and respond to the unanswered questions. This technique helps to generate self confidence. Thus, 
students face their classmates and respond to the questions fully or partly to the best of their knowledge and ability.
2. Relevant Current Affairs  Teaching Practice

Under this method, the teacher teaches a lesson and connects it with some relevant current affairs/matters/
happenings. This makes the lesson more interesting and instructive besides making the students aware of current affairs.
If a teacher is teaching about space exploration s/he can connect it with an example of Mrs. Sunita Williams who has 
recently gone into Space for scientific.
3. Applauding /Appreciating  Technique

A teacher encourages the students to answer questions/queries with confidence. Under this system when a 
student gives a correct answer to a question asked by the teacher, s/he will be encouraged not only by the teacher but 
also by all classmates.
4. Presentation Methodology

Under this system the students are asked by the teacher to prepare a lesson individually and make a presentation. 
One week is given to the students to prepare the lesson by consulting books in library/ discussions methods / interactions 
with his/her teachers /parents/friends, etc. By and large every student gets a chance to make presentation on lesson 
assigned to him/her.

In view of this the school can setup a “Bank of Creative and Innovative Ideas” to collect ideas from students, teachers, 
staff, etc., for obvious advantages. For receiving the ideas, a “Special Box”can be kept in Reception Hall or any other place 
for students, teachers to write their creative and innovative ideas on a piece of paper and drop it in this Special Box.

On introduction of innovative practices in teaching, the schools will help to produce a large number of knowledge 
seekers and thinkers. Professional education may turn them into ‘knowledge leaders’. The 21st century is the century 
of knowledge. Therefore, the country needs a large number of knowledge leaders in different areas for rapid economic 
development and growth as well as social change for betterment of the common people.

* Founder President,“C.B. Gupta Saraswati Vidyapeeth, (A Charitable Rural Educational Institute), Aligarh
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Danielle Lobo*

Pedagogy simply put is the art or science of teaching or education; instructional methods. Beginning with 
simple instruction and moving towards complex ones is how the process of teaching has been carried out, where 
the ultimate goal is that of learning.

The basic art of teaching or education however must change. We have stepped into the 21st century with 
our eyes wide open and therefore we see and understand the need for change not only within  ourselves and others 
but also with the things that we do; pedagogy being one of them.

Students of today live and breathe technology. Therefore understanding their full educational potentialities is 
vital and then putting new technologies into educational practices should be the essence of good and transformed 
pedagogy.

Understanding that the students of today function best with a screen, be it of any kind, it’s time we incorporate 
these new strategies to build more creative students and teachers. We need to welcome in the keypad, mouse and 
the cursor. We need to welcome in the personalised computer-the laptop.

Conversely transformed pedagogy is based on an understanding what students want and how they learn.

Summed up best in the words of the well known educator, philosopher and theorist Paulo Freire: "Education 
either functions as an instrument which is used to facilitate integration of the younger generation into the logic 
of the present system and bring about conformity or it becomes the practice of freedom, the means by which 
men and women deal critically and creatively with reality and discover how to participate in the transformation 
of their world."

Transforming Pedagogy is about transforming world; transforming new from old and moving ahead.

* Counsellor, Queen Mary’s School, Rohini, Delhi
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Transforming Pedagogy

Smt. C. Rama Devi*

Change is the only constant and education, an ongoing process. Today's classrooms are undergoing a sea-
change. The days of the traditional chalk and talk teaching method, concepts of the teacher and the taught are 
outdated. Media and technology are omnipresent and their influence, far reaching. “The digital generation who 
has been online since birth is as comfortable in the Web 2.0 world as they are in the physical world. Marc Prensky, 
American writer and speaker on learning and education states that - "Today's students have mastered a large variety 
of tools that we will never master with the same level of skill. From computers to calculators to MP3 players to camera 
phones, these tools are like extensions of their brains.” Classrooms are no longer confined to the four walls; rather, the 
world has become the classroom. 

Today’s students are born and live in a digital world. Marc Prensky calls them ‘digital natives’. They are 
members of an increasingly complex and globalised society and have access to both technology and information. 
They are producers and consumers of content and have regular opportunities for interaction, collaboration and 
informal learning. Having the capabilities and confidence to interact with these technologies is critical to success 
in all aspects of life in the 21st Century. Young people need to develop creative and critical thinking, problem 
solving, decision making, communication, collaboration, negotiation and self direction skills. They also need the 
ability to find, select, structure and evaluate information efficiently and effectively.

The challenge for our schools is to create engaging learning environments with opportunities that stimulate, 
extend and deepen student learning, and embed the use of the technologies that students use so universally in 
their daily lives. 

“The 21st Century learning model is an exciting and inspiring model of learning, where creativity, innovative 
thinking and the application of knowledge are the hallmarks of success. The integration of digital technology 
with pedagogy is an essential element of this model, and where it is being implemented effectively it is engaging 
both students and teachers and facilitating a customized and student-interest-based approach to learning. Hope 
can overcome fear when barriers are torn down, by allowing students to take ownership of their learning and if 
teachers are willing to change from the role of information giver to facilitator.” 

The purpose of education is to enable individuals to reach their full potential as human beings, individually 
and as members of a society; this means that individuals should receive an education which will enable them to 
think and act intelligently and purposefully. Transforming pedagogy is based on the premise of continual change 
and will help us to prepare the citizens of tomorrow for the inevitable changes they must meet.

* Senior Principal, Bharatiya Vidya Bhavan’s Public School (Vidyashram), Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad
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Ms. Sharmila Chatterjee*

The word pedagogy and education are complementary. We cannot enumerate on the topic ‘Transforming 
Pedagogy’ without reflecting on the history and legacy of Indian education system which continues to influence 
our pedagogical practices for over six decades since Independence.

When we refer to 21st century pedagogy or teaching learning practices, we have to consider several aspects 
such as appreciating the core objectives of education, the curriculum framework, how evaluation and assessment 
strategies work, the kind of technology and infrastructure involved and how leadership and policy facilitate 
attaining educational goals.

“There is no single best way to teach, because there is no single best way to learn.” Chris Dede, Harvard 
University.

As progressive thinkers and educators we need to ask ourselves some basic questions if we plan to transform 
pedagogy to make it more relevant for the coming gennext learners.

In the contemporary age globalisation has enabled rapid advancements in technology, we have entered 
the knowledge age where social networking technologies are impacting the fabric of economy, business, media 
and communication and political framework. Knowledge is now not just confined in textbooks, it is accessible 
anytime and anywhere.

A relevant education system for the 21st century learners must have two essential domains (a) it must ensure 
that the schooling experience is relevant to the life each student chooses to pursue and the skills required to live 
in today’s world, it must focus on enhancing the learners’ awareness, sense of responsibility towards humanity, 
and be active contributors as change agents (b) it must enhance the learners’ secular and global consciousness and 
foster respect for diversity. The other skills that are essential for achieving these outcomes include collaborative 
teamwork, problem-solving, effective communication, creative and critical thinking and all essential life skills.

Subsequently the need arises for transforming the pedagogy wherein the curriculum may be based on 
research, reflection and analysis and foster integration, inter connectedness and global perspective characterised 
by creativity and innovation.

* Principal, Delhi Public School, Vasundhara, Ghaziabad
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Ms. S. Varalakshmi*
“Matha Pitha Guru Devatha” says our ancient scriptures. As can be seen from this, the role of teacher in 

our lives, occupies a prominent place, next only to parents and it is no secret that through parents and teacher, 
one is led to godliness or higher things in life. One comes across many lessons in life, from different sources and 
as Vedas say, “Let noble thoughts come from all sides.” We will have many teachers-Time, Nature, Experience, all 
coming in that category, apart from teachers in the real sense.
Traditional Teaching 

The age-old Gurukul School of thought stressed the importance of study through selfless service and 
sacrifice on the part of the Sishya (pupil), and to seek the knowledge in strict, spartan surroundings, with all 
humility and hard work .The core concept here is that learner has to undergo penance like practice, with patience 
and perseverance and acquire the required ‘Gnana’, knowledge so that this remains ever with them.
Good Teacher

Whatever may be the period, time frame, all of us have to bear in mind, that teaching is not just making students 
mug up, or learning, still further, transferring knowledge only. It is imparting education, mentoring, counselling, 
developing character, inculcating values, instigating the spark to learn, in the wards, guiding and navigating 
through the thick and thin, all blended nicely in right proportions, to bring up the students in a brilliant way.
Teaching through Technology 

Today technology has taken all our lives by storm and inventions have invaded all walks of life. Powerful 
gadgets have penetrated every point and the impact of these devices on the Institution of Teaching, cannot be 
overlooked. What we see today is problem of plenty and information glut and overdose of options. There is every 
chance that persons will get caught in the labyrinths and lose their way, rather come back confused as to what to 
do with billions and billions of bytes of data.
Transforming Roles 

Since the persons can easily be led astray by abundant scrap available, lured by wrong and worst things, in 
the new set up, teachers have to train them to sift good from the bad and to harness the unbridled and unlimited 
power of the technology, in positive and productive way. There is no arguing on the point that superior scientific 
developments like graphics, storage in different formats, editing, inserting pictures, videos, animations, music files, 
interactive features, have made understanding much better and have done away with laborious manual methods. 
Making excellent and elegant use of Powerful Packages such as Microsoft Word, Excel, Power Point, Publisher, 
Adobe Photoshop, art of teaching can be augmented in great ways. Graphical representations such as Videos, 
Animations, Pictures and Audio aids for languages, lyrics and so on, instantly and impressively impact the students 
and the lessons or methods.

Teachers must try to develop the all-round abilities of the wards- communication skills, interpersonal skills, 
personality development, analytical skills, mental abilities, intelligence quotient and more importantly emotional 
quotient. It is essential to inculcate integrity, values, develop discipline, cultivate good character and streamline the 
spirits while sharpening their skills. In short teachers must strive sincerely to transform their pupils into conscious 
citizens, brilliant beings and illustrious icons.

* Principal, Padmavathi Vidyalaya, Nellore DIST., Andhra Pradesh
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Transforming Pedagogy
From Books, Talk and Chalk to Cyber Infrastructuring

Ms. Madhu Sharma*
Education is a systematic, deliberate and planned effort of the development of human potential to the 

maximum; the harmonious fruition of physical, mental, emotional and spiritual possibilities inherent in the 
human being, developing him/her from an egocentric, self-centered individual into an integrated personality 
functioning as a responsible citizen of the world. Therefore, the authentic education addresses the “whole child”, 
“the whole person”.

Change is the law of nature.  Students need to remain adaptive to a fast-changing environment.  Jobs, 
skills, scientific ideas and technology are all in a state of flux.  It is important to remain open-minded about new 
skills and the best way to do that is to retain the state of receptivity and cognitive flexibility. The need of the hour 
is to develop ‘Competent Student’, ‘Information Literate Person’, an individual having skills to be successful in 
whatever s/he intends to do in later life, possessing ‘IT Skills’ and ‘Information Handling Skills.’

Future learning landscapes have to be carefully planned.  
Education relevant for the future must be humanizing education, enhancing the learners’ humility, improving 

their competence as managers of their own lives, member of both local and global society, effective participants 
in the work force and active contributors to a changing environment.  Its aim should be to enable them to pursue 
wisdom, enhance communal and global consciousness and foster responsible citizenship. Education should help 
to transform the world by empowering people to become agents of change themselves.

Collaborative team work, problem solving, communicating, making connections, creating and expressing 
oneself in a variety of ways, will be future skills, tapping into the incredible potential of web 2.0 technologies.

As members of the open culture of web 2.0, are finding new ways to contribute, communicate to the kids 
and collaborate using a variety of tools that empower them to develop and share ideas. Present generation is 
digital generation who has been online since birth. Today’s students have mastered a large variety of tools, from 
computers to calculators to MP3 players to camera phones, these tools are like extensions of their brains.

Cyber infrastructure is an emerging vehicle for 21st century learning and teaching. Schools need to develop 
cyber infastructure to provide to teachers, students and administrators unprecedented access to educational resources, 
mentors, experts and online educational activities and virtual environments. Moreover, the new cyberstructure will 
make it possible to collect and analyze data continually from millions of educational activities worldwide over a 
period of time, enabling new advances in the sciences of learning and providing systematic ways of measuring 
progress at all levels.

Educators need to rethink, renew and modernize the entire education system by transforming pedagogical 
ethos into an effective learning environment to keep pace with time.

Sa’ vidya’ ya’ vimuktaye

Education is that which liberates and enlightens.

* Principal, Rukmani Birla Modern High School, Jaipur
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Mrs. Rajkumari Kachru*

When teaching students, according to today’s standards, teachers need to understand their subject matter 
deeply so that they can help students relate one idea to another and give up all misconceptions. Teachers are 
required to have the knack of seeing how ideas can be connected to everyday life. The aim of education should 
now be, to provide education which makes students share their experiences and identify their social problems 
leading to transformation of curriculum as per the social needs.

In the classrooms, teachers should be ensuring authentic and meaningful development of educating both 
the heads and the hearts of the students and to continue pursuing them in becoming thoughtful, committed and 
active citizens of this nation.

Research has shown that guided enquiry, collaborative learning, mentoring and apprenticeship are more 
effective pedagogical strategies. To include these into school settings is quite difficult. The teachers of secondary 
schools need to acquire knowledge, skills and attributes that fully engage students and support active learning. 
Interactive - education is one solution to enhance learning and teaching by the use of interactive white boards 
which will keep children well motivated. This  will enhance  their  learning.

In order to achieve success in the proper planning of classroom instruction, it is very important for the 
teacher to plan what he wants his students to learn. It should be presented in an interesting way to the class 
followed by making students search for the answers. The following educational transformations need to be 
achieved in the classrooms:

1. Help students gain literacy.
2. Help students to enjoy their learning experiences.
3. Help students to develop skills and values they need in life.
4. Help students to develop broader understanding of new information.

In order to attain  the  above  purposes,  teachers  need  to  master  two  types  of  knowledge:

	 •	 Deep		knowledge		of		the		subject			matter.
	 •	 Knowledge		of		curricular		development.

In short, success in education is possible only if  the society’s education system transforms its objectives and 
curricular pedagogies that can help students attain skills through which they are able to  deal with the  day  to  day  
problems of life in an effective way. Teachers, students and parents should also understand the new strategies.

* Principal, Gaurav Memorial International School, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh
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Ms. Babita Agarwal Srinivas*

Today the education has acquired a whole new perspective. Rapid structural changes, profound technical 
innovations and the globalization of the economy affect human life more and more thoroughly throughout the 
world. Such an outlook calls for courageous renewal on the part of educators. Education which we are a part of 
is undergoing the most dramatic transformation of all times. Educators are called to embrace the opportunities 
presented by challenges of our times, to redefine and describe what it means to be a learner in the Digital Age. 
Change is to be welcomed and managed. Wherever possible, change is desirable as it is effective.

These are at the heart of pedagogy but there is far too much of an emphasis on just measuring learning 
with narrow statistical tools.

Times are changing. So are the definitions, methods, systems and technology. Technology has become 
a part of education not only as a discipline but also as a tool. Values education is the need of the hour and has 
become indispensable to turn students into wholesome beings. CBSE has taken this much needed initiative by 
incorporating Values Based Questions in the curriculum.

In the emerging scenario students are to be made independent enquirers, creative thinkers, reflective learners, 
team workers, self-managers and effective participators.The teacher today is an awakener, a facilitator, a mentor 
and a guide to impressionable young minds. It is but given that teachers should cause learning. However in order 
to do this effectively:

	 •	 Teachers	must	constantly	review	and	reflect	on	their	practice.

	 •	 Teachers	should	collaborate	and	discuss	their	practice	with	other	professionals	and	students.	Professional	
collaboration would enhance teacher strengths instead of enforcing minimum competencies. It would 
foster innovation which would be motivating for teachers and this would result in better learning 
for students.

	 •	 Teachers	should	be	constantly	creative,	innovative	and	should	have	fun	with	their	teaching.

Holistic development to make the students well-adjusted global citizens is the need of the hour. Isolated 
individual excellence is not enough.

“Children must be taught how to think, not what to think.” – Margaret Mead

* Principal, Lakshmipat Singhania Academy, Churu, Rajasthan
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Critical thinking, problem solving, innovation and creativity are some of the dimensions added to today’s 
learning goals and outcomes. Therefore educational strategy in schools today is to develop innovative teaching 
and learning. This includes :

 o Developing capable leaders, teachers and support staff who are skilled in the application of 
contemporary pedagogies to the fullest benefit of learners.

 o Assisting with the efficient and secure management of learning resources and data to ensure their 
maximum and efficient utilization; and

 o Engaging the community through the development of a culture of interconnected communication 
and learning.

Inclusive Education was never much emphasized as it is today. Still there are areas where this light of 
trasformation is not reached or even if it has reached it is not burning brightly under the shadow of ignorance 
and unawareness. Drawing such section of society into the mainstream will nurture socially aware and conscious 
students who will grow into compassionate human beings giving their utmost to the society and the nation.

The mind of the child is always on the alert, restless 
and eager to receive firsthand knowledge from 
mother nature. Children should be surrounded 
with the things of nature which have their own 
educational value. Their minds should be allowed 
to stumble upon and surprised at everything that 
happens in today's life.

 – Rabindranath Tagore
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Transforming Pedagogy

P. C. Verma*

Pedagogy takes place according to the need and requirement of the situation, time and circumstances of 
the society.

In the ancient time as needs and requirements were limited so accordingly pedagogy also remained different 
as compared to the modern time. At that time sources of education were only family members, ashrams and gurukuls. 
Even the pupils used to learn in peer groups under the shade of trees as there was no formal schooling. Teachers 
were given the higher status than that of God. Pupils were devoid of all luxurious and materialistic things as 
compared to the child of present time. Pupils followed the path of elders as a mark of respect and teachers were 
satisfied as their main motive was to make the child well versed and hone the skills of the child in his particular 
field. Pupils could leave their Guru only after attaining their education.

Today students come under the influence of many teachers during their lifetime.

The school education is undergoing transformation in the teaching learning process. The challenge of 
changing the traditional system of examination and evaluation has emerged as a major focus. Now-a-days 
education aims at making children capable of becoming responsible, productive and useful members of a society. 
Knowledge, skills and attitudes are built through learning experiences and opportunities created for learning in 
school. Now-a-days the aim of education simultaneously reflects the current needs and aspiration of a society as 
well as its lasting values and human ideals.

Today in the era of computer and internet a child is able to get any type of knowledge from any part of 
the world with just one click of the mouse. The child is not only getting lot of knowledge but at the same time 
stuffing his mind with a lot of unwanted and undesired material. Thus the child gets deviated from his objective 
of getting education. Moreover child is getting ready-made material which is hampering his thinking power and 
his imagination.

With the modern concept of education we should inculcate such virtues, manners, responsibilities and 
moral values, among students so that they may build a world free of all the evils. They along with the help of their 
educators can create a culture where child is involved in self learning, creativity and at the same time grooming 
his talent.

* Principal, D A V Public School, Hamirpur, Himachal Pradesh
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Transforming Pedagogy

G.K. Udgata*
Once upon a time two disciples were getting trained in Gurukul by a saint. After completion of their course 

(Siksha) the saint wanted to see them off. When the sun set, the saint lit his lantern and escorted the disciples for 
a distance. When it became completely dark, the saint blew off his lantern and expressed his desire to go back to 
his hut from that point by allowing the disciples to take the lead. The disciples were surprised at his desire and 
asked, "You gave us company with your own lantern when it was less required. But when it is absolute dark, you 
are leaving us all alone and suggesting us to move on our own!" The saint smiled at them and said, "I have shown 
you the path till this point. Now, try to find your own path by lighting your own knowledge with the knowledge 
that I gave to you".

Teaching is not communication of facts or transfer of knowledge to the pupils but to make the pupils 
understand the underlying concepts. Ordinary teachers think inside four walls, play the role of translators or 
idea communicators and show path to follow. But extraordinary teachers are those who teach their pupils how 
to discover new path. It is less important to ‘help the child stand and walk’ but it is more important to make him 
learn ‘how to walk on his own’. Let the students be taught that ‘success is a journey not a destination’. Let the 
students be wise enough to choose those paths which will lead them to success.

The present age is an age of fast change. It is obvious and expected as, this planet itself came into existence 
because of fast internal changes in the system. But whatever may be the change, the originality is never lost.

We are talking of ‘Transformation’ which means a complete change in pedagogy. This is possible only if we 
start thinking of the process afresh with no reference point.
Paradigm shift 

Education is no longer defined in terms of what a teacher will teach but rather in terms of what a student 
will learn. If the teachers are to be responsible for what a student learns then it is essential that teachers understand 
‘what’ a student knows before new learning begins and ‘how’ best to build on what each student already knows. 

"Education is a process that changes the learner." - George Leonard. Thus focus of teaching learning should be 
on the process and not on the product. The goal / product will be attained once the process is right.

Our mission is not instruction but rather that of producing learners with whatever policy that works on 
them.

There is a shift from ‘instruction paradigm’, in which an instructor transfers knowledge to students, to a 
‘learning paradigm’, in which a teacher’s role is that of a facilitator. The role of teachers has changed from“guide 
on the side” instead of a “sage on the stage”.

Like research in the field of Science, Medicine, Arts, Humanities, a lot of research is being done to find ways 
and means to internalize the concepts in the students. When the era changes, the learners change, subsequently 
the type of teachers changed. How can the traditional approach of teaching remain same? The education need 
to be learner centered. The child should be in focus not 'the course'. That course/ subject has to be taught to the 
learner which s/he can grasp and digest. The learning abilities are to be tested before suggesting a particular course 
to a particular student.
* Principal, DAVBORL Public School, Bina, Madhya Pradesh
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Can a teacher think of teaching classes without a reference / prescribed book by simply knowing the 
curriculum? Seems next to impossible! But this can bring a transformation. A regular and traditional approach 
may bring a change but not transformation. 
Stretching limits

Limit is like an elastic domain, if stretched up to a permissible extent, provides a better space to work. Many 
a time teachers and students complain about the limitations. But innovative thoughts and planned activities do 
provide more space, within the limit, which in turn add to quality of outcome. Creative activities, educational 
games, edu-ventures are some of the tested processes which enhance the learners’ ability and keep the interest of 
learning intact.
Multi-Sensory learning (MSL)

A study says that children cannot be attentive for more than 10 minutes at a stretch. It means our methods 
of teaching should be such that we should be able to retain their attention immediately after 10 minutes. This is 
a challenge! There are no tested and proven methods to do so. And if at all they are there, they do not work all 
the time in all the situations. Thus methods are to be continuously devised to bind the attention of the students 
for longer period of time. More attentive the students are, more will be their level of understanding and more 
will be the retention level.

Multi Sensory learning (MSL) is a natural way to teach students. People of all ages gather information 
through their senses. MSL theory suggests that the more sensory pathways used and the more intensely they are 
used, the more efficiently and effectively information is retained. (Montessori, 1967, Orton, 1937).

Human beings learn through different modalities and learning styles. Each person uses multiple "learning 
channels / pathways," and each person has strengths in terms of which learning style works best. It is essential that 
the teacher identifies the strengths and talents of the learners to help them to improve acquisition of information. 
Moreover, it is important for a teacher to make a student use as many channels as possible to best learn, understand 
and gain new information.

There are eight different intelligences which are used as channels of information. They are linguistic, logical/
mathematical, musical, visual-spatial, interpersonal, intrapersonal, bodily-kinesthetic and environmental. With 
the more modes being used to learn new information the more effectively and completely the material is acquired 
by the learner. All eight types of intelligences can be triggered by using both the "left brain" (for verbal, auditory, 
sequential, and logical) and "right brain" (for creative, artistic, visual, spatial, and emotional) of the learner. Effective 
teachers select and use the most appropriate approach for the learning task and the learners’ situation.

In addition to delivering oral lessons to the learners the following methods may be useful in classrooms:
a. Making actions by waving hands, legs and other body parts (Kinaesthetic).
b. At times passing some objects/ teaching aids which they can feel with their hands.
c. Using audio visual aids.
d. Making students blind folded and telling them to identify objects by smell and touch.
The need of the hour is excellence and excellence is seldom defined. Thus the process of innovation needs 

to be ongoing which will lead us towards the path of success.
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Giving Wings to Students – Transforming Pedagogy

Satbir Singh*

It would be injustice meted out to the students if they are forced to bank on the teaching and learning the 
way it was done in the past. There is a dire need to transform pedagogy. In the real sense, a teacher needs to be 
more than a traditional teacher.

We now acknowledge there is no need to put that information into learners as they easily obtain requisite 
knowledge and the teacher’s job is only to bring it to the surface while acting as a facilitator, guide and friend. 
The transformation of pedagogy is feasible if we, the teachers, start preparing our lessons for teaching and go 
beyond as well.

A teacher therefore needs to be a reflective teacher i.e. we must be able to crystallize our perceptions 
on teaching more and more coherently, with developed frameworks and to evaluate ourselves more and more 
systematically. After having a teaching session, a teacher needs to reflect on the whole process and go for some 
improvement wherever, the teacher thought and felt teaching had fallen flat. The concept, being reflective, need 
not to be confined to one’s own teaching. It can go beyond it.Teachers may invite one another to observe them 
so that they are sensitized to multiple teaching strategies.

Learner centered perspective must prevail in a classroom. It means a teacher has to perceive the students 
as having intrinsic knowledge. Learners are to be involved in decision making which motivates them. Here they 
have to speak, write, listen and talk instead of focussing on end product.

We test students and try to trap the students or worse still, reinforce what students don’t know. It is very 
easy for us to set tasks which are beyond the abilities of students, but which give us an upper hand because we care 
to assure ourselves that we know better than them. But this approach must be replaced by ‘bias for best’, i.e., give 
students a chance to demonstrate their best so that they can gain confidence and this newly gained confidence 
can demand them to move further.

It is high time we addressed these key issues. Standing water stinks but moving water is always clear and 
fresh.

* Principal, Dundlod Public School, Jhuunjhunu, Rajasthan
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Transformation Pedagogy

Mrs. Anita Nanda*

Rapid structural changes, profound technical innovations and the globalization of the economy affect human 
life more and more throughout the world. Therefore pedagogy needs to transform into innovative teaching and 
learning through leadership and management practices.

Teaching is an educational framework focused on exponentially drawing out students' unique human 
potential. In the present scenario the transformation is required to make the teaching learning process child 
oriented, more effective and global. The traditional rote learning methods and pen paper test must replace activity 
oriented, ICT oriented instructions.

Increasing cultural and linguistic diversity call for much broader view of literacy than portrayed by traditional 
language based approaches, for example, multiliteracies can overcome the limitations of traditional approach. 
The use of multiliteracies approach to pedagogy will enable students to achieve ‘twin goal’ for literacy learning, 
i.e., creative access to the evolving language of work place and community critical engagement necessary for the 
students to design their social futures. The fundamental mission of education is to ensure that all students benefit 
from learning in such a way that allows them to participate fully in public, community and economic life.

Multiliteracies create different kinds of pedagogy in which language and other modes of learning are 
dynamic representational resources, constantly being remade by their users as they work to achieve their various 
cultural purposes and cross cultural, community and national boundaries. Transforming Pedagogy is a teaching 
and learning process which needs to work on the four Principles of leadership, resources, infrastructure promotion 
and professional learning. The desired change in these four areas can bring improvement in institutions and in 
its products. The new strategies should be designed and should be shared among teachers for the improvement 
of their schools. 

An effective school requires a transformation in pedagogy focusing on development in the three areas, i.e.,  
Learning Philosophy, Techniques and Strategies.

To sum up we may say that schools must remain aware of new pedagogical strategies and enable their staff 
to attend workshops for it from time to time.

* Principal, Lala Jagat Narain, D.A.V Model School, Kabir Nagar, Jalandhar
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Transforming Pedagogy

Dr. S. V. Sharma*

Changing Pedagogy is associated with efforts to transform changes in teaching and learning which are not 
confined to alteration in classroom dynamics they have wider implications from teaching to learning.The purpose 
is not to transform knowledge, but to create environments and experience that bring students to discover and 
construct knowledge for themselves. We conceived a changed implementation model which implores teachers 
to create a sense of urgency as part of their first step in modernizing an organization with the arrival of modern 
teaching learning facilities in all primary schools and secondary schools.

The modern education comprises of social parameter, economical change and traditional approach. Today’s 
learner needs a link education with life. Complete education is under transformation. The use of Information 
and Communication Technology (ICT) as a learning tool has long been acclaimed as a catalyst for education 
transformation and promises transformation in supporting teaching and learning. Using ICT involves more than 
pedagogical awareness alone. Organizational and cultural change, information and digital literacy are essential skills 
for personalized learning. The internet has greatly broaden the scope of learners. Information sources beyond the 
curriculum has thus given them more latitude to pursue their personal interests. This is where teacher’s pedagogy 
should come into play.

We can atleast begin by opening up small spaces for experimentation and innovation within our great 
education machine. The good lessons can be gradually assimilated and the reconfigured spaces must be expanded. 
We have opportunities to reaffirm the forgotten tradition of participatory production of knowledge. Participation 
can be carefully boundless and the proportion of production significantly becomes greater than that of reproduction, 
the change to reinvent the world have never looked so good.

* Principal, Vidya Bal Bhawan Sr. Sec School, Mayur Vihar, New Delhi
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Every Child is an Opportunity for the Nation
Let’s Transform Pedagogy

Dinesh Jindal*

“If we teach today’s students as we taught yesterday’s. We rob them of tomorrow.”

 – John Dewey (1859-1952)

It is being constantly felt that new methodologies and models of teaching and learning are required to meet 
the needs of the twenty first century learners who craves for choice and autonomy to avail greater opportunities in 
their career. The E-learning approach is also becoming obsolete because it complements and replicates traditional 
models.

We require to have individual learner empowerment through methods that focus on collaborative, practical 
and research based approach. Such approaches might become pebbles on the road to a new portrait of education, 
forming a VIBGYOR of knowledge sharing, experiments, fusion of different strategies, collection and assimilation, 
interpretation of data, networking and connectivity with global learners.

Transformation in pedagogy should address the following:

1. Prepackaged learning material should be replaced with dynamic research, based on analytical and dynamic 
study material, having cross-curriculum approach.

2. Teaching should include constant and comprehensive assessment.

3. Deadlines should be replaced with “Achievement dates”.

4. Students should be treated as active producers of knowledge rather than passive consumers of facts and 
figures.

5. The control of learning should shift from teacher to student.

6. The students should be empowered to self assess, contribute, communicate and collaborate in teaching 
learning process.

7. More and more community based sharing and content creation should be applied in the formal learning 
institutions (schools, colleges).

8. Physical, geographic, institutional and community boundaries should be turned into porous membranes, 
where thought process can easily navigate in and out and  develop analytical and comparative thinking.

* Director, Rawal Public School, Ballabhgarh (Faridabad)
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While transforming pedagogy the teachers need to revisit their conceptualization of teaching, strive 
to integrate technologies and methodologies that are appropriate and relevant to the requirement of today’s 
generation. 

The pedagogy should be transformed so as to lead to an interdependence of ideas, individuals, organizations, 
communities, history, research and information networks, all complemented with technology. This interdependence 
will be congruent with the world that link minds, communities and ideas in synchronization with promotion of 
personalized, collaborative and creative knowledge creation.  Pedagogy in process of transformation should also 
include resources, scaffolds, learning tasks and media rich flexible approach.

I conclude that new technology coupled with a paradigm of learning tools focused on knowledge creation and 
student participation would offer the potential for radical transformation in pedagogy, allowing learners to access 
peers and experts. The teacher centric pedagogy will give way to learner directed activity and content creation.

Transforming Pedagogy is complex for both the individual as well as the school as a whole (staff, students 
and parents) the school development is a complex and multifaceted process, the pedagogy needs to spread 
its colours across three levels: 1. Teaching and learning going in the school 2. Techniques being adopted, and 
3. Academic environment of the school.

www.design4school.com
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Dinesh Pratap Singh*

Till 20th century, education had been seen as a tool for passing knowledge, skills and wisdom from past 
generation to the next generation. However, with the tremendous change in the technology and the rapid flow 
of information, teachers may be the first generation in human history to face the mammoth task of preparing 
today’s child to cope with the learning society of the 21st century.

“The principle task of education is to create men and women who are capable of doing new things, not 
simply repeating what other generation has done.”

We find the complete prescription of 21st century skills  provided by UNESCO. The key being the concept 
of 4C’s-Critical thinking, Communication, Collaboration and Creativity. NCF 2005 and CBSE have readily 
done it by introducing CCE up to the Secondary level. As per the teacher’s manual of CBSE in Continuous 
and Comprehensive Evaluation the continuous aspect of CCE takes care of “continual” and periodicity aspect of 
evaluation. While the “comprehensive” component of CCE takes care of the assessment of all round development 
of the child’s personality, it includes assessments in Scholastic and Co-scholastic aspects of the pupil’s growth. 
Scholastic aspect includes subject specific areas whereas Co-scholastic aspect includes life skills, co-curricular 
activities, attitude and values.

This is an age of information and communication technology. The use of ICT not only makes learning 
comprehensive and simple but also helps to display more information in a lesser time. The use of interactive 
learning solutions (Smart Board) brings diversity in the classroom teaching, displays more information to learners 
and enhances students learning. ICT empowers learners by allowing them to choose the place, pace and style of 
learning. It also makes learning a collaborative process. It is possible that the school children in the next 10 years 
are not going to carry heavy bags. Instead, they will carry a paper thin glass piece like a digital device. They will 
take down notes, take audio recordings of the lectures or even video on their digital devices. Digital education 
makes it easier for people to gain new knowledge. But even as we provide education to students today, we have 
very little knowledge of what the students will require twenty years from now. 

The question, therefore, that needs to be addressed is – What do our children need to learn today to be 
prepared for tomorrow?  For this we must have to accept and welcome the transformation in the pedagogy of 
schooling which focuses on equipping students for knowledge economy. Our students must have the ability to 
seek, synthesize and critically think about the over expanding volume of information that is now available in the 
world. Choice will finely decide the future overview.

* Head Master, L K Singhania Education Centre, Nagaur, Rajasthan
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Transforming Pedagogy

Mrs. Vinita Kumar Tomar*

Pedagogy, derived from French and Latin adaptations of the Greek, literally means a man having oversight 
of a child or an attendant leading a boy or school. This meaning is now obsolete and inappropriate in modern 
times. The limitations of literal meaning of term have encouraged leading contemporary writers to invent broader 
terms such as andragogy for adult education. 

Modern day usage of the term is more applicable and is defined broadly as a discipline that extends to the 
consideration of the development of health and body fitness, social and moral welfare, ethics and aesthetics, as well 
as to the institutional focus that serves to facilitate pedagogic aim. Transforming pedagogy provides the catalyst 
for schools to develop a pedagogical plan to support student outcomes through teaching. 

It is rightly quoted,“The vocation of being an educator is about to undergo the most dramatic transformation all 
the time and we are not only going to witness it. We are going to be a part of it.”

This age is a digital age. As rapid structural changes, profound technical innovations have taken place; a 
need has been felt for renewal in education also. 

Interactive whiteboards have taken the place of traditional blackboards in classroom teaching. To mark real 
improvement in education, conferences, workshops and seminars are designed to support teachers’ pedagogical 
development. Information technology has affected education vastly as it is based on the process of transmitting 
and applying knowledge in other confronted situations.

To teach language and communication skill, many exciting opportunities are provided through speech, 
debates, gestures, writing, drawing or actions and  audio-visual material. Activity oriented learning is providing 
the students a platform to exhibit their inner potential to the fullest.

Transforming pedagogy is a spontaneous process that is essential to growth and has brought betterment, 
effectiveness and efficiency. Project based learning has made the students dynamic and enlightened individuals. 
Project work contains a wide series of exercises for reinforcement of knowledge that provides students with the 
caliber of judgment to participate intelligently in civic life and understand their importance in real life. Unlike 
ancient times students have competencies for self learning. Learning by doing and outdoor activities has widened 
the students’ outlook. It makes them modern, secular Indian citizens with a scientific temper, ready to face any 
global challenge.

The greatest innovation in the field of education is CCE scheme that has brought a tremendous change 
that is far better than traditional classroom teaching. It facilitates and equips teachers with new methodologies 
and tools of assessing a child as a whole.

It is a principle of nature that either change yourself according to existing environment or nature will destroy 
you.This is also true in the context of education. If we do not make amendments in our teaching methods and 
strategies, the progress of students as well as teachers will get stagnated.

* Headmistress, Dyal Singh Public School, Panipat
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K. Gomathinayagam*

Since the age of Gurukul, the ways of imparting knowledge have undergone various changes. Once, learning 
‘shasthras’ was a privilege enjoyed by people who possessed high social status in the society and rest of the common 
folks were doomed to be in darkness. On the contrary, now, a kid from the slum has the right to get education. 
Kudos to RTE act!

Corporal punishment was considered as a magic wand used by the teachers to tame the taught. It was a 
history now! It is widely accepted that physical punishment does not have any positive impact on students; it 
rather discourages them causing nothing but humiliation. The modern pedagogy has created a friendly relation 
between the teacher and the learner, as a result the child willingly comes forward to learn the new things.

In the 21st century, variety of audio visual aids, high tech laboratory facilities and multi media aids and 
satellite communications have become a part of modern pedagogy making the learning activity a productive 
initiative. Modern education involves the students in various academic activities like project works, field studies, 
viva-voce, hands on practice in the labs, quiz, language games, debates,  book reviews and so on and these 
activities are carefully monitored by teachers and the performance of the students are evaluated accordingly. 
This kind of evaluation certainly discourages rote method of learning. Those who understand the concept well 
and perform all the activities creatively score good grades and certainly the modern pedagogy prepares the 
pupil for the same.

The purpose of education is not only to make a student academically successful but also preparing a 
responsible citizen of the nation. It should make a student a better human being,  a person who is very much 
concerned about the welfare of people across the world. It is a challenging goal but not impossible to achieve. 
The recent changes in the pedagogy aim at achieving these goals. The modern educators are keen to accept the 
so called under achievers into their fold and educate them.

Economically weaker section of students, kids with special needs, children with disabilities are educated 
with other children so called normal. They are absorbed and assimilated in the big family.  Over pampered children 
become obstinate, tempered, selfish, bully and unruly. Such students are also accepted in the school and they find 
the opportunity to relearn how to get along with others and become tolerant and downsize their inflated egos. A 
novel experiment of this kind may be seen in the satellite schools of Rishi Valley, Madanapalle, Andhra Pradesh 
where in a village set up, children of mixed group are being actively helped to learn in multigrade, multi level pattern. 
Here, the teachers are more attentive, imaginative, patient, dedicated and foresee the next step of action.

Problems like students behaving in aggressive way, using drugs, involving in petty quarrels, harassing fellow 
students in the form of ragging still go on. It is the duty of teachers, parents and well wishers of the children to 
show concern and guide them appropriately.

* PGT (English), Aadharshila Vidyapeeth, Pitampura, New Delhi
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A Teacher becomes a Student; a Student becomes a Teacher

Subrata Kumar Nayak*
The woods are lovely, dark, and deep.

But I have promises to keep,
And miles to go before I sleep,
And miles to go before I sleep.

 -Robert Frost
How deep, penetrating, profound and unfathomable lines of Frost are! What perfection these words have 

when we look back and contemplate on the way we have walked through knowledge, learning and facilitating! I 
have replaced the word “teaching” with “facilitating” as it is our new-age role that we have to play as a facilitator 
and not as a teacher. We have crossed a long way and of course, in the words of Frost, we have “miles to go”.
Miles to Go...

From Vedic system of education, where the Guru was the centre of education to our present Modern system 
of education, we have witnessed tremendous metamorphosis and with it we have marched along a long path and 
still, yet to cover a long distance.  Along with this, we have altered our vision, perspective and outlook. A close 
analysis would mirror the fact that in almost all systems of education teachers have been the centre of knowledge. 
Now the moment has arrived to take some more steps towards and change our role from a teacher to a facilitator, 
who will join hands with the learner to quench the thirst of knowledge; a motivator, who will give the chalk to 
the learner to write his/her own thoughts and an inspiration, who will say, “I am your friend.”
Approach Towards Learning…

From black and green boards to e-boards, pens to pen-drives, smart students to smart classes, from marks 
to grades we can pride ourselves for shaking our hands with the technology in shaping our future generation. But 
apart from modifying ourselves with external equipment, we have to enter into the heart and soul of a learner as 
a friend, philosopher and a motivator. I never go to my class to teach but to learn with my co-learners. I never 
say, “Today I will teach you” rather I say, “Today we will learn.”
Let them Grow and Fly…

Children are like plants. Let them grow on their own. We like the gardener have to nurture them. They 
are birds. Let them fly and touch their own horizon. What we need is to observe individual learners, assess their 
needs and provide appropriate climate and resources to foster a positive learning atmosphere. 
Altering Positions…

In simple terms, it makes the learning atmosphere from being passive from just one source to more active 
sources. Let the learners be the teachers of their own. Let them think the class as their own study room and 
let them be the owner of the class, let them use the board, let them hold the chalk or marker, let them stand in 
front and share their views and opinions. Knowledge is not to be gulped but to inculcate. Being a true facilitator, 
a teacher’s work is to introduce the topic in the class, relate it with reality and life and letting other learners to 
participate in the procedure, the facilitator being herself/himself as the learner. Every moment of life teaches us 
a lot. Learning never stops.

* TGT (English), Delhi Public School, Murshidabad, West Bengal
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Ms. Rina Krishnan*

In the 20th century, our teaching focused on “Mechanics” through chalk and talks, repeated practice, follow 
a process, memorize and recollect with reasonable success for India and for what we are now.  This method helped 
India produce a lot of brilliant students who made a mark in the fields they chose.

This method helps students with strong capabilities to grasp through “auditory” method of teaching supported 
by chalk and talk. This accounted for probably 20% of a class. We called these students as the brighter ones of the 
class. Psychology calls them as people with strong “Left Brain” capabilities.

Technology can be an enabler for these students within the classroom learning process. ICT integration 
in learning has been evolving in India for the past 5 years. Multimedia content based classroom learning systems 
have become popular and are being adopted extensively to support teachers communicate a concept. While at the 
same time, it does not involve or engage students into the teaching learning process. The teacher’s role in such a 
teaching learning process also gets compromised as the concepts are taught using attractive visual cues and voice 
overs.

What needs to transform?

Getting students involved into the teaching learning process has been a challenge that teachers have faced 
for decades. Technology can help achieve this with effective implementation and involvement of teachers. 

Integrating technology into the teaching learning process definitely requires a change, I would rather call 
it a transformation in the way we teach and learn. I would broadly classify them under the following heads:

	 •	 Teaching	and	Learning

	 •	 Managing	the	class

	 •	 Experiencing	the	concepts

Learning by doing is one of the best ways to understand concepts especially for STEM (Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics) subjects. Students need to explore concepts on their own; they need to explore and 
learn with the variables behind these concepts. Teachers today face difficulty in providing such an environment 
to play with variables as it is more time consuming. Students are given pre-built simulation activities on a device 
and they can be allowed to manipulate variables to infer cause and effect.

* TGT, (Biology), Kendriya Vidyalaya, Noida, Uttar Pradesh
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Managing the Class

Giving technology into the hands of children can be dangerous and students might misuse it. Hence, it 
is extremely important that teachers should have control of the student devices and they should have limited 
applications which don’t distract them. It also enables the teachers with the tools to monitor these devices centrally 
in the class.

These tools if effectively used by teachers will enable to manage the class better and will facilitate one to 
one student learning. 

Teaching students this way require the teacher and the student to “transform” the teaching learning process. 
The transformation cannot happen suddenly but will happen gradually.

This requires a gradual change in the way teachers transform their pedagogical approach. This is little hard 
to achieve but not impossible. A clear thinking mind and minimal resistance to adapt to changes is all that is 
required to make this transformation happen.

“We need to be the change we wish to see in the world.”

 – Mahatma Gandhi

Do not train a child to learn by force or harshness; 
but direct them to it by what amuses their minds, 
so that you may be better able to discover with 
accuracy the peculiar bent of the genius of 
each.

 – Plato
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Transforming Pedagogy

Ms. Inderjeet Kaur*

The ancient journey of pedagogy at one time stood for a long time with greater involvement of schools and 
educational institutions. The concepts then centred around ‘Going to School for Education’. But the pedagogical 
journey did not pause here. The services through print media and electronic media, entertainment sources, internet, 
distance education, the government and non-government institutions’ efforts and all educational efforts at indiviual 
and group levels have prepared a large planetary ground with two major mottos viz.  ‘Education for All’ and 
‘Education at every doorstep’. The learners are given as much as possible the opportunities to grab pedagogical 
benefits at their grassroot levels.

Today the rapidly transforming mankind’s think-tank at global level does also involve the new ideas and 
innovations in the field of pedagogy. The paradigms are fast transforming at all levels of education. Interestingly 
the course of transformation through the man’s growing capacity accelerates when it meets a new challenge in 
an emerged situation. The old and orthodox model of pedagogy has been replaced by pupil centred and easy to 
access pedagogy.

At present the ‘Educational Technology’ plays a vital role as a catalyst for pedagogical change. Now 
differently abled persons may also get opportunity in learning through a specific method and materials. The 
‘Computer Revolution’ has raised the graph line of transforming pedagogy to a peak height further triggered 
by introduction of internet services. Now the teachers and their authority hold discussions with concerned 
members and seek advice on effective ways to support teachers’ pedagogical development and sort out the 
problems in vogue. Such tendency is observable not only at school or college levels but in higher academic 
institutions to generate interactive and collaborative pedagogies. The teachers undergo training on effective use 
of the technology for the benefit of the pupils. Different indoor and outdoor activities are now instrumental in 
converting boring classes to active, interesting and educationally interesting classes at pre-primary and primary 
levels. The introduction of mid-day meal is also a tool to attract and invite a large number of beneficiaries 
particularly from poor section.

The ‘Adult Education’ systems have helped the illiterate farmers to get full benefit from their field 
products and through the pecuniary education they ably protect themselves from any sort of economic 
exploitations. These are the few facts and examples succinctly mentioned which mirrors the crux of the 
transforming pedagogy. Thus the transforming pedagogy is a non-measureable long and multi-dimensional 
chain of actions and reactions which runs purely towards welfare and multiple developments of the society 
as well as the nation.

* Teacher, Coast Guard Public School, Campbell Bay, Great Nicobar Island, Andaman and Nicobar Islands
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Environmental and Sustainability Education in School

Ms. Rachna Arora*

Environmental education is the need of the hour. The fight to save the planet Earth can only be successful 
when it is fought at the grass root level. In our classrooms, we are ‘educating’ the future generations. As teachers 
and educators our aim is not only to ensure that our students score good marks and move on to the next class, but 
also to leave no stone unturned to ensure that we are inculcating the right values in them to make them the citizens 
of the world. The best way to teach is by example. At the school level it is essential to inculcate the love for the 
‘Mother Earth’ in the students and to teach them about how natural environment functions and particularly, how 
human beings can manage their behavior and ecosystems in order to live sustainably. If we can develop sustainable 
schools, our children will imbibe environment friendly practices, ensuring a cleaner, greener earth. The task of 
creating a sustainable school and imparting environment education may sound daunting, but it requires only some 
changes in our approach and perspective. Taking the first step is difficult, the rest would be easy.

Schools should have a holistic approach to education; something that requires schools to “do” as well as 
teach. It should prepare learners for the new challenges that will be a part of their future such as climate change 
and international competition for resources. We need to link schools to the local community and the wider world, 
develop learners’ worldview to recognize the complex, interrelated nature of their world. Schools need to build the 
skills that will enable learners to think critically, think laterally, link ideas and concepts and make informed decisions. 
Instructors should teach across disciplines, linking the methods and content of natural and Social Sciences, Arts, 
Mathematics and Humanities to help learners fully understand and address complex environmental issues.

Topics like climate change, natural resources and their management, sources of energy, etc., can be easily 
integrated in all subjects. For example, for a chosen topic, extempore, creative writing, etc., can be conducted in 
the language subjects; interpreting or drawing of graph, etc., can be done in Mathematics; while map pointing or 
making of models can be a part of Science or Social Science.

The school should pave the way for learning by having a sustainable environment. Adopting strategies 
to minimize carbon footprint, waste segregation, recycling and reducing waste generation, etc., will inspire the 
students to follow an environmental friendly lifestyle. This includes maximizing the learning opportunities created 
by the school’s management of its resources, including the management of water, energy, waste, transport, products 
and materials.

Every opportunity of celebrating life on earth should be exploited and celebrated as a festival, whether it 
is the occasion of the Earth Day, Earth Hour, Water Conservation Day, etc.

*  TGT (Physics), Cambridge School, Noida, Uttar Pradesh
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Students should be imparted an in depth knowledge of the area/ state they reside in including the resources, 
culture, food, flora and fauna, etc. Field trips and excursions should not be a yearly affair, but a part of the day to 
day learning experiences. Hands on learning should be conducted not only in the Science labs, but should be a 
part of the learning process.  Students should be involved in projects like recycling of paper, vermi composting, 
preparing compost with garden waste, maintaining an organic farm/garden, etc.

Dignity of labor, respect for people of all strata of the society without any discrimination on the basis of caste, 
religion or gender should be a part of the essence of the students. Schools should maximize every opportunity to 
develop students’ capacity to support an ecologically sustainable world and excite learners to become even more 
resourceful so that they will continue to learn outside the formal school day. 

When the students will perceive that taking care of Earth and its resources is relevant to their own lives 
and future well-being their dedication will be 100% towards conserving it. 

Thus our education system should aim to produce students who understand the importance of caring for 
the environment and minimizing society’s impact on the environment, in order to secure a better quality of life 
for present and future generations.

Educationists should build the capacities of the 
spirit of inquiry, creativity, entrepreneurial and 
moral leadership among students and become 
their role model.

 – Abdul Kalam
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Transforming Pedagogy

Lalit Krishan Trivedi*

The fact is that today’s solutions cannot address tomorrow’s problem, as the pace, acceleration and explosion of 
knowledge is at a phenomenal rate and its assimilation altogether needs a different platform in which “Transforming 
Pedagogy” in the classrooms and schools is of paramount importance.

Since change is the only constant in all spheres and domains a great deal of metamorphosis has taken place, 
why then education and its process remain unchanged and that too when ‘Knowledge Explosion’ is at its highest 
acceleration. In such a scenario the classrooms, the pedagogy and the facilitators have to undergo major changes 
and adjust their gears accordingly. The transformed pedagogy, the teachers behaviour and role and the work place 
all need a dramatic and drastic transformation.

The pedagogies that integrate Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) can engage 
students to enhance achievement, create new learning avenues and extend interaction with local and global 
communities. 

Pedagogies need to address the issues which, previously were at the backstage, but the future hails them, as 
the dominant domain, apart from ICT integration. The pedagogies need to build the skills apart from the 3R’s 
(Reading, (W)riting, (A)rithmetic to 7Cs’ namely, 

 1. Critical Thinking and Problem Solving 

 2. Communication (Information and Media) 

 3. Collaboration (Team Work and Leadership)

 4. Creativity and Innovation 

 5. Computing and ICT Literacy 

 6. Career and Self Reliance 

 7. Cross-Cultural Understanding,

OR     3Rs’ x 7Cs’ = MODERN CHILD

* Principal, Sarti Devi Raja Ram Public School, Shamli, Uttar Pradesh
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f'k{kk dk egRo o f'k{kk&i)fr esa lqèkkj

MkW- mfeZyk 'kekZ*
^f'k{kk thou iFk esa ml nhid ds leku gS tks euq"; dh vKkurk dks nwj djds Kku dk izdk'k QSykrh gSA f'k{kk 

tgk¡ [kqn ds fodkl ds lacaèk esa ,d t:jh gS] ogh viuh {kerk dk ewY;kadu djus vkSj viuh {kerk dks fodflr djus 
dk lkèku ;k ekè;e Hkh gSA ekufld vkSj vkè;kfRed {kerk ds fodkl dh lgwfy;r Hkh f'k{kk ls feyrh gSA viuh HkkSfrd 
{kerkvksa dks tkuus ds fy, [kqn dks tkuus dk vFkZ gh vkè;kfRed tkxj.k gSA ;kfu ge bl rjg vkè;kfRed mUufr djrs 
gSa] ij vkè;kfRed mUufr ds fy, ekufld {kerk dk fodkl Hkh csgn t:jh gSA bl izdkj dgk tk ldrk gS fd HkkSfrd] 
vkè;kfRed rFkk ekufld bu rhuksa ds fodkl dk ekxZ o lkèku gS& ^^f'k{kk**A

èkeZ] vFkZ] dke vkSj eks{k bu pkjksa iq:"kkFkks± esa larqyu LFkkfir djds thus dh dyk dk fodkl djus dk uke gS 
^f'k{kk*A fdUrq izxfr vkSj fodkl ds dbZ pj.k ikj dj ysus ds ckn Hkh Hkkjr dh ,d eq[; leL;k fuj{kjrk gS ftlds 
dkj.k ijaijkxr dqjhfr;ka fudy ugha ik jgh gSaA yksx vius vfèkdkjksa vkSj dÙkZO;ksa ds izfr lpsr ugha gSA f'k{kk ds vHkko 
us euq"; dh lksp dks ladh.kZ dj fn;k gSA ,sls esa vko';drk gS ^lk{kjrk&vfHk;ku* dks rst djus dhA D;ksafd vius }
kjk fd, x,] LoÑr nks"kksa dk Qy fuf'pr #i ls Lo;a gh Hkqxruk iM+rk gS] vr% fu;e vkSj vkpkj ds izfr lpsr jguk 
vko';d gSA

vkReÑrkuka fg nks"kk.kka 
fu;ekuqHkforO;a QyekReuSoAA

f'k{kk dk okLrfod vFkZ vkSj mís'; O;fDr dks O;kogkfjd cukuk gS u fd f'kf{kr gksus ds uke ij ^vga vkSj xoZ dk 
gkFkh* mlds eu vkSj efLrd ij ck¡èk nsukA gekjs ns'k esa Lora=rk izkfIr ds ckn ls tks f'k{kk uhfr vkSj i)fr pyh vk jgh 
gS] og Ms< lkS lky iqjkuh gSA mlus ,d mRiknd e'khu dk dke gh vfèkd fd;k gS bl ckr dk è;ku ugha j[kk fd bl 
ns'k dh viuh lhek,¡ vkSj vko';drk,¡ D;k gS\ blds fuokfl;ksa dks fdl izdkj dh O;kogkfjd f'k{kk dh t:jr gS\

f'k{kk uhfr vkSj i)fr ,slh gksuh pkfg, tks jkstxkjksUeq[kh gksus ds lkFk ;qokvksa ds thou ls lekIr gksrs thou ewY;ksa 
dks laHkky ldsA vkt ds fo|kFkhZ ds eu esa xq: ds izfr og Hkkouk ugha feyrh ftlds vkèkkj ij dchj us xq# dks xksfcan 
ls Hkh c<+dj ekuk FkkA mUgsa fo|kFkhZ thou dh ikourk ls ifjfpr djkuk vko';d gS! f'k{kk dk <k¡pk ,slk gks ftlls 
Nk=ksa esa ekufld fodkl ls gh f'k"Vkpkj] fou;'khyrk vkSj ikjLifjd izse o lg;ksx Hkko tSls xq.k tkx`r gks ldsaA

blfy, vko';d gS fd Nk= dÙkZO; ijk;.k cusaA izse] lknxh] deZfu"B] deZ;ksx] vuq'kklu] bZekunkjh vkSj lR; 
dks ozr dh laKk ns] vius ozrikyu esa fufeÙk n`<+ izfrK gks tk,A bu lcds fy, vko';d gS f'k{kk uhfr esa ifjorZu rFkk 
uSfrd vkSj pkfjf=d f'k{kk ij fo'ks"k cyA

f'k{kk uhfr e'khu dh Hkk¡fr lk{kjksa dh iafDr u [kM+h u djsa cfYd lqf'kf{krksa dk fuekZ.k djsA

thou ewY;ksa dh LFkkiuk dj] uo mieku rS;kj djsaA 
nqfu;k ur&eLrd gks ftlls] ,sls f'k{kkfon~ rS;kj djsaA

* çèkkukpk;kZ] vokZphu Hkkjrh Hkou] lh-lS- Ldwy] foosd fogkj] fnYyh 
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* eq[; vè;kfidk] fefMy foax] fnYyh ifCyd Ldwy] jkuhiqj] gfj}kj

f'k{k.k 'kkL= dk cnyrk Lo:i 
¼fo|k foghuk% i'kqfHk% lekuk%½

Jherh mek ik.Ms;*

jk"Vªdfo eSfFkyh'kj.k xqIr us uSfrd ewY;ksa] jk"VªHkfDr o thou lacaèkh viuh vusd jpukvksa ls gesa tkxzr djus dh 

dksf'k'k dh FkhA muds }kjk fy[kh ;s iafDr;ka f'k{kk o f'k{k.k ds ewy dks Li"V dj jgh gS&

f'k{kk crkrh gS rq>s] D;k èkeZ vkSj vèkeZ gS 

f'k{kk trkrh gS rq>s] D;k deZ vkSj vdeZ gS] 

f'k{kk fl[kkrh gS rq>s] dSls NqVs lalkj ls] 

f'k{kk i<+krh gS rq>s] dSls feysa HkaMkj lsA

bl dlkSVh ij u vkt dh f'k{kk [kjh mrj jgh gS vkSj u f'k{k.k 'kkL=A vkt lapkj ØkfUr vius pje ij 

gSA dEI;wVj] eksckby] QSDl] bUVjusV vius ik¡o ns'k ds dkSu&dksus esa ilkj pqdk gSA ge ?kj cSBs iyksa esa cgqr 

ls rF;ksa dh tkudkjh izkIr dj ldrs gSa] ysfdu dgha u dgha f'k{kk vkSj f'k{k.k vius ewy mís'; dks [kks cSBk gSA 

vkt ml Nk= dks cqf)eku ekuk tkrk gS ftls vfèkdkfèkd rF;ksa dh tkudkjh gks pkgs mlesa vU; vko';d ewY; 

gksa ;k u gksaA

f'k{k.k dk mís'; Nk=ksa esa 'kkjhfjd ;ksX;rk] ekufld ;ksX;rk o vkè;kfRed mUufr jgk gSA buds lkFk&lkFk ikB~; 

lgxkeh dk;ks± tSls Hkk"k.k] dfork ikB vkfn f'k{kk ds vko';d igyw gksus pkfg,A okLrfodrk ;g gS fd vkt fo|kfFkZ;ksa 

esa l`tukRedrk o ekSfyd lksp dk vHkko gks x;k gSA viokn Lo:i gh ,d nks mnkgj.k ;=&r= fn[kkbZ nsrs gSaA vkt 

f'k{k.k 'kkL= ds Lo:i dks cnyus dh ije vko';drk gSA f'k{k.k o f'k{kk dk Lo:i ,slk gks tks Nk=ksa esa lgu'khyrk] 

{kek] n;k] ijksidkj] vifjxzg] èkS;Z] leiZ.k Hkko] lkEiznkf;d ln~Hkko o lkSgknZ dh Hkkouk txk,A ^[kkvks ih;ks ekSt djks* 

ls Åij mBdj R;kx dh Hkkouk ds egÙo dks Hkh le>saA ,sls esa gesa ,sls f'k{kdksa dh vko';drk gS tks f'k{k.k esa n{k gksa 

ftuesa f'k{k.k dk ,IVhV~;wM gks rFkk euksfoKku dk Kku gksA

Hkkjr laizHkqrklEiUu] yksdrU=kRed x.kjkT; gSA iztkrU= ;k yksdra= dh lQyrk dh vko';d 'krks± esa loZizFke 

'krZ ;g gS fd ns'k ds fuoklh f'kf{kr gksa] D;ksafd iztkrU= dh okLrfod 'kfDr;k¡ mldh turk esa fufgr gksrh gSaA ftl 

ns'k ds fuoklh f'kf{kr ugha gksrs] ml ns'k dh fLFkfr ml Hkou dh Hkk¡fr gksrh gS ftldh uhao detksj gksrh gSA ftl 

izdkj detksj uhao okyk Hkou fVdkÅ ugha gksrk mlh izdkj ,slk yksdra= tgk¡ dh turk iw.kZ:is.k f'kf{kr ugha gksrh] 

lQy ugha gks ldrkA
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^^f'k{k.k&'kkL= dk cnyrk Lo:i**

eksgu yky 'kekZ*
^^cPpksa dh lgh f'k{kk vkSj ykyu&ikyu ns'k dk Hkfo"; r; djrs gSaA Hkfo"; dk cpiu l¡okjuk ifjokj vkSj 

jk"Vª dh lkewfgd ftEesnkjh gSA** &ia- tokgj yky usg: dk fopkj

f'k{kk dk vkyksfdr js[kkadu

f'k{kk futhZo ;k Bgjh gqbZ oLrq ugha gS] cfYd viuh fofoèkrkvksa ds lkFk fodkl dh ltho èkkjk dk uke gSA 
orZeku ;qx lwpuk Økafr dk ;qx gSA lEiw.kZ ;qx dks] mldh gj èkM+du dks f'k{kk viuh eqB~Bh esa ckaèk ysuk pkgrh gSA 
ifjorZuh; ldkjkRedrk dks èofur djus] mls vkyksfdr djus esa vge Hkwfedk f'k{kk ,ao f'k{kk uhfr gh fuHkkrh gSA

lexz :i ls jk"Vªh; ikB~;p;kZ dh :ijs[kk ¼2005½ ds ifjizs{; esa ns'k dh ckSf)d tM+ksa dks 'kfDr'kkyh cukus esa 
f'k{kk ,oa f'k{kk O;oLFkk egRoiw.kZ ;ksxnku nsrh gSA dykdkj] fon~oku] lektlqèkkjd] ns'kHkDr] oSKkfud] dfo] ys[kd] 
fpard] fopkjd ;s lHkh f'k{kk dh èkzqoh; vkHkk gSA f'k{kk lnSo laosnu'khyrk dh ijkdk"Bk dks js[kkafdr djrh gSA ikB~;Øe] 
f'k{k.k&O;oLFkk] vko';d miyC/k vuqdwy lk/kuksa dh lgt miyCèkrk f'k{kk ds LFkk;h vkèkkj LrEHk gSA

f'k{kk dk lefUor Lo:i

f'k{kk gekjs fopkj ,oa deZ dh dlkSVh ij [kjk mrjus dh izfrc)rk nksgjkrh gSA jpukRedrk dks mRlkfgr djrs 
gq, Js"B ifj.kke ds fy, okrkoj.k dk l`tu djrh gSA f'k{kk ds ekè;e ls gh thou dh lexzrk dks] iw.kZrk dks le>k 
tk ldrk gSA D;ksa] D;k] dSls] dc] fdruk] fdl fy, tSls iz'uksa dks tue nsuk] muds lekèkku dkjd izsj.kknk;h mÙkj 
[kkstuk] lUrq"V gksuk] fo'okl dks n`<+ cukuk vkfn rF; f'k{kk vkSj ikB~;Øe ij gh fuHkZj djrs gSaA

O;fDrRo ,oa pfj= fuekZ.k 'kCn dh O;kidrk dks le>uk gS rks f'k{kk o f'k{k.k ds okaNuh; fcanqvksa ij xEHkhjrk ls 
fopkj djuk gksxk] la;qDr :i ls fparu djuk gksxk] fu.kZ; djuk gksxk fd lEiw.kZ ÅtkZ ds lkFk Nk=fgr] lektfgr] 
jk"Vªfgr ,oa lEiw.kZ ekuork dh j{kk dh opuc)rk dk fuokZg dSls djsa\ flQZ ckrksa ls ;k {kf.kr fopkjksa ls f'k{kk dh 
egRrk dks mldh 'kqfprk dks mldh izHkkfork dks vk¡duk pqukSrh ls Hkjk gSA

orZeku f'k{k.k O;oLFkk ij n`f"Vikr

vkt ,slk vuqHko fd;k tk jgk gS fd gekjk lksp izfriy ,d u, :i esa lekfgr gksus dks vkrqj gSA f'k{kk ds fy, 
tks miyCèk lkèku lkexzh gS mls vkSj vfèkd ÅtkZoku cukus ds iz;klksa dh vko';drk gSA ge f'k{kk vkSj f'k{k.k esa deh 
;k nks"kksa ij n`f"Vikr djsa vkSj mu dfe;ksa ;k nks"kksa dks ldkjkRed ifj.kke dh vksj dSls eksM+sa bl ij Hkh fopkj djsaA 
miyCèk Kku ij vkèkkfjr u, fodYiksa dh [kkst djuh gksxh] u, Kku] u, fparu] u, ifj.kkeksa ij eaFku djuk gksxkA

f'k{kk o f'k{k.k dh orZeku O;oLFkk esa Js"Brk] vkèkqfudrk] oSKkfud n`f"Vdks.k dks LFkku nsuk gksxkA LoLFk lksp] 
LoLFk iz;kl lnSo lkFkZd ifj.kke dh vksj ys tkrs gSaA vkt dk fo|kFkhZ izfrHkk vkSj Å¡pkbZ dh ifjHkk"kk dks Hkyh&Hkk¡fr 

* ihthVh] fgUnh] ek:fr ,dsMeh] jryke] eè; izns'k 
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le>us yxk gSA mldh n`f"V esa lEHko 'kCn gh lkFkZd izrhr gksus yxk gSA f'k{kkfon~] euh"kh] fo}oku] f'k{kk dh v{k; 
iw¡th dks vkSj vfèkd le`) cukus ds ln~iz;klksa esa tqVs jgsaA Kku] foKku] lektfoKku] i;kZoj.k] dyk] laLÑfr dk 
iks"k.k djus o mudh j{kk djus dh fn'kk esa lHkh dks ltx jguk gksxkA

f'k{k.k esa fn'kkcksèk ,oa ;qx dh vkdka{kk

f'k{kk o f'k{k.k esa vc gesa rduhdh ,oa O;kogkfjd Kku dks LFkku nsuk gksxkA Økafrdkjh lksp o xEHkhj fparu 
ds lkFk Nk=fgr dks lEcy nsuk gksxkA rHkh ge f'k{kk ds u, Lo:i dks izkIr dj ldrs gSaA

f'k{k.k 'kkL=ksa esa vkt leh{kkRed fparu dh vko';drk gSA le; ds lkFk cgqr dqN lqèkkjkRed fopkj èkkjk 
vkSj xq.koRrkiw.kZ ifj.kkeksa ij è;ku nsuk gksxkA T;ksa dk R;ksa vFkok ;gh Js"B gS ij gekjk Bgjuk ikB~;p;kZ ij vk?kkr 
dj ldrk gSA blfy, gesa f'k{kk dh] f'k{k.k dh] lkèku dh lkexzh dh vkSj O;oLFkk dh xEHkhjrk ls leh{kk djus dh 
vko';drk gSA uwru ifjos'k ls] rwru Kku ls uwru iz;ksxksa ls ,oa uwru ifj.kkeksa ls lk{kkRdkj djuk gksxkA

gesa ikB~;Øe esa] f'k{kk&O;oLFkk esa vc thou ewY;ksa dks lekfgr djuk gksxkA rHkh ge f'k{kk ds 'kh"kZ dks izkIr 
djus esa l{ke gksaxsA f'k{kk dh ml dsUæh; Hkkouk dks le>uk gksxkA iw.kZ ÅtkZ ds lkFk mlls tqM+uk gksxk vkSj leiZ.k 
Hkkouk dks LFkku nsuk gksxkA f'k{kk] f'k{k.k] ikB~;Øe] ikB~;p;kZ] O;oLFkk] lkèku] lkexzh o vko';d èku dh iwfrZ ls gh 
f'k{kk txr dk izR;sd ik;nku l'kDr gksxk] LFkk;h gksxk] ifjiDo gksxkA lkFk gh uohurkvksa ls iw.kZ gksxkA

f'k{kk vkSj f'k{k.k esa f'k{kdh; Hkwfedk

f'k{kk vkSj f'k{kd unh ds nks èkkjs dh Hkk¡fr gS ftuds eè; fo|kFkhZ dh lok±xh.k fodkl dh lqjlfjrk lrr 
izokfgr gksrh jgrh gSA vr% f'k{kk dh lqxaèk] mldk vkyksd] mldh ped iw.kZr% f'k{k.k ij fuHkZj djrh gSA fo"k;xr 
ikB~;Øe ,oa f'k{kd dk fo"k; Kku f'k{kk dh lQyrk dks js[kkafdr djrs gSaA f'k{kd dk O;fDrRo Hkh f'k{kk dh iw.kZrk 
dks cy iznku djrk gSA vr% f'k{k.k dh egRoiw.kZ èkwfj gS& lq;ksX;] n{k] fo"k;Kku ds eeZK] O;fDrRo ds èkuh] eq[kj] 
izfrek lEiUu f'k{kdA vr% f'k{kdksa dk p;u cgqr lksp le> dj iwjh lkoèkkuh cjrrs gq, djuk gksxkA tjk lh pwd 
ls f'k{kk] f'k{k.k ,oa f'k{k.k ds ifj.kke izHkkfor gks ldrs gSaA y{; izkfIr esa vojksèk mRiUu dj ldrs gSaA

gesa vc f'k{kk ds {ks= esa cgqr xEHkhjrk ls fopkj djus dh vko';drk gSA vr% f'k{kk uhfr dk fuèkkZj.k djus] 
ikB~;Øe rS;kj djus] fo"k;xr f'k{kkfonksa dk ijke'kZ ysus] f'k{kdksa ds p;u esa iwjh lkoèkkuh vkSj xEHkhjrk cjruh gksxhA 
f'k{kdksa esa O;kolkf;d n{krk esa o`f) djus ds fy, le;&le; ij dk;Z'kkykvksa dk vk;kstu djuk gksxkA jk"Vªh; f'k{kk 
uhfr dks xq.koRrkiw.kZ] ifj.kkeewyd Js"Brk dks izkIr djus ;ksX; cukus esa f'k{kd egRoiw.kZ vkèkkj gSA gesa f'k{kk] f'k{k.k] 
Nk= ,oa f'k{k.k ds {ks= dks xEHkhjrk iwoZd vè;;u djuk gksxk rHkh f'k{kk dh xfjek Hkyh&Hkk¡fr fl) dj ik,¡xsaA mldh 
j{kk dj ik,¡xsA

Þf'k{kk gh laLdkj gS] f'k{kk ey; cgkj gS] 
thou dh xq.koRrk dk f'k{kk dh vkèkkj gS] 
f'k{kk] f'k{k.k] f'k{kd dh f=os.kh dks lkèksa] 
fl) djsa ekuo Å¡pkbZ ekuork dks ck¡èksaAß
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Today’s classrooms are nothing like they used to be. Gone are the days of the traditional chalk and blackboard. 
Now students live and breathe Information and Communication Technology (ICT) and thrive on its functionality, 
portability and adaptability. But we still follow the traditional pen and paper based teacher centered education 
system. We use theories of learning from a predominantly physical era and force them to work in a digital era.

To ensure that students are engaged and motivated learners, we need a new pedagogy, a new view of learning, 
a new view of knowledge or interaction. We need to deliver the research driven lessons instead of text book driven.
Our teaching has to be relevant in order to be critical without silencing the students’ voices. We need to come out 
of these time based schools into outcome based education system. 

And this is possible with transforming pedagogy. Good pedagogy is about teaching strategies that 
achieve positive learning outcomes and require teachers to fully understand their students and how they 
learn best.

To mobilize transformational opportunities, teachers need to break free of their traditional and 
institutionalized way of thinking, to think more creatively and to innovate more fitting solutions to the educational 
needs for the future. Teachers should be able to read just the schedule, and easily add new activities to help 
everyone (or just one group) catch up. The time invested in making these changes is extremely important to 
students’ learning outcomes.

Besides this, technology needs to be integrated especially into the curriculum- as a priority not as a separate 
subject or as a once in a while project, but as a tool to promote and extend students’ learning on a daily basis. 
It will offer teachers new instructional opportunities – from whole class instructions to small group learning 
environments as well as change from passive learning to more engaged learning. The new social technologies have 
a particular significance in developing transforming pedagogies within all these learning communities. Students 
become content creators, contributors, evaluators, communicators and collaborators both with and beyond their 
school, experiencing participatory membership in a global learning community.

Dear teachers, what are you thinking about? Throw off the bowlines. Sail away from safe harbor. Catch 
the trade winds in your sails. Explore, Dream, Discover. Otherwise twenty years from now, we will be more 
disappointed by the things we didn’t do than by the ones we did do. After all…

“It is what teachers think , what teachers do and what teachers are, at the level of classroom that ultimately 
shapes the kind of learning that young people get.”

Paramjit Kaur
Principal, 

B.C.M Arya Model Sr. Sec. School, 
Ludhiana, Punjab



What other Principals say…
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The 21st century seems quite different than the 20th in the capabilities people need for work, citizenship and 
self-actualization. In response, society’s educational systems must transform their objectives, curricula, pedagogies, 
and assessments to help all students attain the sophisticated outcomes requisite for a prosperous, attractive lifestyle 
based on effective contributions in work and citizenship.

The 21st century skill sets and key development areas for students are the following:

Learning and Innovation Skills

•	 Critical	Thinking	and	Problem	Solving
•	 Creativity	and	Innovation
•	 Oral	and	Written	Communications
Knowledge, Information, Media and Technology Literacy Skills
•	 Content	Mastery
•	 Information	Literacy
•	 Media	Literacy
•	 ICT	Literacy
Life Skills
•	 Flexibility	and	Adaptability
•	 Initiative	and	Self-Direction
•	 Teamwork	and	Collaboration
•	 Social	and	Cross-Cultural	Skills
•	 Leadership	and	Responsibility
Citizenship Skills
•	 Valuing	of	Diversity
•	 Global	Awareness
•	 Ecological	and	Environmental	Awareness

•	 Values,	Ethics	and	Professionalism

Researches show that effective instruction in 21st century needs to take on an integrated approach, helping 
students understand how to access, evaluate, synthesize, and contribute to information. The focus is on providing 
opportunities for applying these skills across content areas and for a competency-based approach to learning. The 
teaching and learning opportunities support innovative pedagogies to integrate the use of technologies, inquiry 
and problem-based approaches and higher order thinking skills.

Cisco report suggested that the ‘different’ approaches that are needed for education in the 21st Century 
will not come from within traditional educational systems, but rather from sectors that are able to innovate and 
focus on student needs free from the constraints of entrenched systems (Cisco, 2010, p. 19).
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Simply providing more schools, more classes and more teachers will not meet the changing needs of 
learners, nor will the current preference for identifying ‘best practice’ and replicating it. It is time to be ‘different’ 
(Cisco, 2010, p. 21).

The opportunity for students to learn through their own discoveries has been an important aspect of theory 
in education for many decades. Exploring and making sense of the world are powerful learning experiences. 
Bruner (1977, p. 20) stated that an important ingredient of meaningful learning is ‘a sense of excitement about 
discovery – discovery of regularities about previously unrecognized relations and similarities between ideas, with 
a resulting sense of self-confidence in one’s abilities’.

The social context of learning is another well researched area of education. There is general agreement that 
learning with others contributes to effective understanding. A particularly important value of learning together 
is the opportunity for students to engage in talking about their experiences. 

Vygotsky (1978) studied the connections between language and thought and suggested that children develop 
intellectual function through internalizing social communications. Dewey (1916) suggested that thinking and 
learning together is the only way that individual learning can be fully realized active facilitation and authentic, 
hands-on activities can lead to higher levels of student participation and engagement, which are prerequisites for 
better outcomes in the long term.

K. Uma
Principal 

Maharishi Vidya Mandir Polachery,   
Chennai



Education today is under countless constrains and challenges, some of which are that knowledge is 
making a prodigious leap forward. The gap between scientific and technological discoveries and inventions 
and their large scale application in human life is constantly as also rapidly diminishing. An urgent question 
demands the attention of every educator: How well does today’s schooling prepare students for the 21st 
century?

This question deserves an answer based not on what worked in the past but on what is a relevant 
schooling experience today. We have to delineate a conceptual framework for understanding the challenges 
and opportunities involved in such a transformation of schooling and evolve an innovative strategy by which 
new pedagogies based on emerging immersive media can aid all students in attaining sophisticated 21st 
century understandings and performances.

Dr. S.S. Khokhar
Principal 

BSF Senior Secondary School,  
Jammu
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With the rapid industrialization, corporatization and multi-cultural work environs becoming the demands 
of the day, education cannot be left out of the purview.

The fast growing economies and markets have once again posed some very serious questions in front of us. 
Compounded to this are the researches and startling facts, being discovered. One such survey has revealed that 
about 95% of our graduates and 85% of our technical graduates lack skills that not just hinder their success in 
international environs but also make them un-employable.

Today’s child is the policy maker of the future and so it is but natural that the education world sits and 
takes into consideration the responsibility of preparing students with GLOBAL attitudes and aptitudes. They 
must know the multicultural ethos to survive and remain in the competition.

As educationists it is our onerous responsibility to realize this vision and we at JMPS have been working 
tirelessly to realize this vision of our Founders.

Unlike, many of our contemporaries who believe that it is Academics alone that matters we at JMPS have 
initiated systems like IAYP and British Council connecting classroom concept and the ISA Awards etc. which 
for one will make the young minds more socially responsible, creative and active as well as adventurous and on 
the other hand initiate a life-long yearning and realization of understanding of International culture and life 
styles, thoughts of youngsters across the globe on issues affecting the international community like old-age; drug-
addiction; violence; terrorism; inter-faith conflicts; values etc.

With this VISION of our Founders in mind we set out on this wonderful journey of exploring, discovering 
and understanding to create a just, loving and caring world where there is a place for everyone and no one lives 
a life of deprivation or leaves this mortal world yearning for love and care. 

Trilok Singh Bist
Principal

Jodhamal Public School, Jammu


Welcome aboard to the 21st century. Today we stand poised on the threshold of a new era of knowledge 
that is emerging from the womb of modern technology and awareness and we the stakeholders, need to adjust 
our sails to face the sweeping winds of changes i.e. the changing pedagogies in education.

 Our society today is in a state of flux and the new cultural invasion through electronic media is bringing 
profound changes in the values and attitudes of the young generation.

The techno savvy youth is here and their thirst for knowledge is boundless that needs to be quenched 
through the latest strategies in education. The talisman of success,- “ Give the best to get the best”.

My training programme on “Strategic Leadership for 21st Century Schools" at I.I.M. Ahmedabad came 
as a blessing in disguise. The experience at I.I.M. was very enriching and the brainstorming session, was really 
rewarding.

Attending this programme in one of the most prestigious institutions, was a dream come true for me. 
Every day spent there was stupendous. The heterogeneous ideas put forth by other school Principals altogether, 
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painted a glorious picture and my mind was already painting a picturesque image of what I intend to introduce 
in my school, after this programme. Amidst the flow of thoughts during the programme, my mind was already 
set. The blinkered vision of yesteryears was getting replaced with a techno vision for the technology students. The 
realization dawned clean and clear that there was no room for a lackadaisical attitude and the school now needs 
to provide an innovative environment to harness the minds of the learners and to adopt and stay abreast with the 
latest trends in the field of technology.

As stakeholders, teachers- let's welcome the new pedagogy with an open heart and embark upon this new 
era by reconstructing the present routine and extinguish the previous mode of teaching.

So the digital learning is here to take the educational world with a storm. Let's brave ourselves to create an 
appropriate environment for the digital natives- and open new opportunities for them and make the education of 
21st century relevant and real life and project based education. Let's pledge to “RE-IMAGINE, RECONSTRUCT, 
REFLECT, RECHARGE OURSELVES TO BRING ABOUT AN EDUCATIONAL REVOLUTION”.

Mrs. Raj Rani
Principal

Rainbow English Sr. Sec. School, Janakpuri, New Delhi


Time is round but sometimes it is shapeless as we know that time is transient. Everyone has to mould 
according to the time and situation. Earlier the parameters of education was not so innovative but totally based 
on the curriculum.

Updation is the key factor to any teacher. A teacher must be innovative, creative and make sure that by 
giving education to a student s/he becomes a psychologist. As Dr. Radhakrishnan said; “A teacher is like a candle.” 
On the contrary, now-a-days teacher will have to convert their selves into an electronic candle who will provide 
the knowledge to the students through technological means so to create their interest and discard the obsolete 
means of education.

In this transforming age there is a greater need for securing education and the whole humanity through 
technological means.

Transforming means rapid age in which we will have to nullify all the old systems and restructure the new 
methods with latest information.

Pedagogy means powerful efforts with strong determination and we must be adamant to get goal with 
orientation and yardsticks.

In the end, I would like to emphasize that if we want to change the educational strategy, the first daring 
step should be to transform ourselves.

Ms. Hitesh Paulastya
Principal

M. R. Sr.Sec. School, Jhajjar, Haryana
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Academic performance is concerned with the quantity and quality of learning attained in a subject or 
group of subjects after a long period of instruction. Excessive stress hampers students’ performance. Academic 
achievement is an attained ability or degree of competence in school task, usually measured by standardized tests 
and expressed in grades or marks. Studies reveal that lack of memory and concentration seriously interferes with 
academic performance.

Yoga is a way of life characterized by health and harmony, the science of yoga is a powerful stream of 
knowledge, which enables the practitioners to achieve radiant physical health, serene mind, spiritual upliftment 
and creates the ability for harmonious social living.

Daily meditation is recommended as part of an integrated brain longevity strategy to delay, even prevent 
cognitive decline. Meditation and memory improvement are highly interlinked. Research shows that regular 
practice of meditation brings changes in the physical structure of the brain. This leads to significant memory 
improvement. Meditation helps to increase memory and sharpens focus and intelligence.

Research reveals that the cortex in our brain is responsible for higher mental functions. Meditation improves 
the blood flow in the brain, which increases the size of the blood vessels and the blood flow in that region. 
Meditation clears the mind and helps to remain focused, alert and refreshed throughout the day. It helps us to be 
in a more receptive frame of mind, which helps in memory improvement and concentration.

Meditation is a mental discipline by which one attempts to get beyond the reflexive thinking mind into a 
deeper state of relaxation or awareness.

After the implementation of the meditation it has been found that the students actively participate in the 
learning process and their level of interaction also increase.

Ms. Mirash Kareem 
Principal, 

PGP International School, 
Namakkal, Tamil Nadu



The impulse to improve upon current approaches to teaching is present in every teacher’s mind. I am no 
different. The onus, to bring about an improvement, I feel, is on me. While in the UK, to complete an MA in 
education studies, I was a student in Bangor University, in Wales. One day, as I was waiting for one of my tutors, 
I realised that I was in the wrong classroom. Soon, some students came in and with them, their tutor. All of them 
were in track suits and I was a bit disconcerted.

They greeted me and perhaps, thinking me to be one of them the class began. Maybe, they might have 
thought that I was interested in the course, whatever it could be. As the lesson progressed, I understood that 
they were studying problem solving skills. They were doing so, through sports. It was a gripping lesson and I 
understood that they were also making models of the games that they may have devised. My curiosity was now 
roused and at the end of the lesson I approached the tutor. Imagine my surprise when he informed me that I was 
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in the Department of Education and I had just witnessed a lesson on “outbound activities”, which was a part of 
the Teachers’ Training Program for sports teachers.

This was a novel idea for me. We are not always convinced about the importance of these activities and 
think that children learn only in a stuffy classroom. Human progress is a natural process and we learnt to solve 
our problems when nature created these for us. Even today, children can learn through tasks that are given to 
them through outbound activities. This should begin with the children at the primary level.

According to Bornhauser, an expert on the processes of the human brain, 'Success in learning is guaranteed 
if you manage to avoid stress and brain fatigue by allowing the individual --- oriented periods of relaxation in a 
fear free and stimulating environment.’  The school in Switzerland, set up by Bornhauser believes in this dictum 
and prescribes outbound activities regularly as part of the curriculum. The children are allowed to learn at their own 
pace while setting individual goals and targets. This setting of goals by the pupil is sure to inspire to reach them. 
This seems a far better idea than the goal setting used in mainstream schools where the pupils suffer from a lot of 
stress as they are under a lot of pressure. Let's look at it this way. In spite of teaching a whole lot of information, 
if we haven’t taught the child goal setting or made him, realise his goals and strategise in order to reach his goals, 
we haven’t really taught him anything of significance. This is where outbound activities may prove to be the link 
between learning hypotheses and then to use it to solve problems. Children of Primaria, the school set up by 
Bornhauser, go to a circus training school every two weeks to prepare and train. A courageous step indeed, taken 
to transform pedagogy.

Shri Rabindranath Tagore always realised the importance of the great outdoors and encouraged a learning 
environment where the student was free to interact with nature. As Vygotsky (1978) pointed out the child’s 
“cultural “development occurs on two levels. The first is the social level and later, on the "individual" level. 
First, he says it occurs between people which is termed interpsychological and then inside the child which is 
intrapsychological. So to quote Vygoytsky (1978) "All the higher functions originate as actual relationships 
between individuals."

This belief that cognitive ability is a socio cultural construct and it emerges as the child interacts with the 
environment is central to the belief of outward bound activities. Educators think about reducing memory tasks 
or, agonise about reducing teacher talk, but a stress on these activities does all that without dramatic changes in 
the curriculum.

The NCERT also lays down, in its guidelines that the “aesthetic sensibility” and “experiencing” are the main 
aspects which will help to encourage the child’s creativity. One can say that it is not just creativity but a larger 
goal which is met by “experiences” . This is problem solving. Outbound Activities can help in creating experiences 
which inspire effortless learning. Transforming pedagogy is a cheerful side effect.

Ms. Anuradha B. Shanker 
Principal, 

Shrishli Vidyashram, Vellore, Tamil Nadu
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‘Pedagogy’ is the practice of teaching framed and informed body of knowledge.  This knowledge comprises 
experience, evidence, understanding moral purpose and shared transparent values.   Pedagogy in transformation 
has to go beyond the specific skills of the teacher to embrace the wider purposes and beliefs that surround and 
impact upon all teaching settings.  A holistic concept of pedagogy has to be evolved with parents, teachers and 
children as central to the educational process.  Children have to be viewed as strong and rich personalities with a 
natural curiosity to be explored in various settings of school and community.  Children should be encouraged for 
the development of all their languages:  expressive, communicative, symbolic, cognitive, ethical, logical, imaginative 
and educational. 

Teachers should be able and willing to scrutinize and evaluate their own and other’s practice in the light 
of relevant theories, values and evidences.  It is generally accepted now that good teaching requires strategic 
decisions informed by evidence.  In transformational pedagogy the role of teacher is to identify each child’s 
interest, organize the learning activities around its immediate and proximate use and then step by step move the 
process in the desired direction.

We believe transformational pedagogy is a science with an artistic strategy and if it crafted properly the 
student community will become life long learners.

We believe that the pedagogical practice applied with the above stated principles will definitely result in the 
holistic learning and student community in future will become life long learners and lead the nation sensibly with 
integrity, knowledge and leadership quality. We would like to reiterate that pedagogy as the science with application 
of art and craft would benefit not only the student community in particular but also the society in general.

R. Ganesh Iyer 
Vice-Principal, 

RMK Residential Senior Secondary School, Chennai



Transforming pedagogy (instructional strategies) is the need of the hour considering the changing political, 
economic, social and technological scenario of the world in which we live. The pressure of being more responsive 
to students' needs and being more concerned about how well they are prepared to assume future societal roles 
makes it important to modify the existing setup of teaching and learning.

Faculty are already feeling the pressure to lecture less, to make learning environments more interactive, 
to integrate technology into the learning experience and to use collaborative learning strategies wherever 
appropriate. 

1. Lecture : For many years, the lecture method was the most widely used instructional strategy in 
classrooms. Used in conjunction with active teaching strategies, the traditional lecture can be an effective way to 
achieve instructional goals. The advantages of the lecture approach are that it provides a way to communicate a 

What other teachers say…
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large amount of information to many listeners, maximizes instructor control and is non- threatening to students. 
The disadvantages are that lecturing minimizes feedback from students, assumes an unrealistic level of student 
understanding and comprehension, and often disengages students from the learning process causing information 
to be quickly forgotten. 

The following changes can help make the lecture approach more effective
	 •	 Focus	on	one	topic	because	one		cannot	cover	everything	in	one	lecture	
	 •	 Prepare	an	outline	that	includes	5-9	major	points	you	want	to	cover	in	one	lecture	
	 •	 Organize	points	for	clarity	
	 •	 Select	appropriate	examples	or	illustrations	
	 •	 Present	more	than	one	side	of	an	issue	and	be	sensitive	to	others'	perspectives	
	 •	 Repeat	points	when	necessary	
	 •	 Be	aware	of	your	audience	-	notice	their	feedback	
	 •	 Be	enthusiastic	-	your	students	must	be	excited	by	your	topic.

2. Discussion: There are a variety of ways to stimulate discussion. For example, some faculty begin a lesson 
with a whole group discussion to refresh students’ memories about the assigned reading. Other faculty find it 
helpful to have students list critical points on emerging issues or generate a set of questions stemming from the 
assigned reading.

The following strategies can also be used to help improvise group discussions
	 •	 A	successful	class	discussion	must	essentially	involve	adequate	planning	on	the	part	of	the	instructor	

and preparation on the part of the students.
	 •	 Instructors	should	communicate	this	commitment	to	the	students	on	the	first	day	of	class	by	clearly	

stating the course objectives. 
	 •	 Just	 as	 the	 instructor	 carefully	 plans	 the	 learning	 experience,	 the	 students	must	 complete	 and	

comprehend the assigned reading and show up for class on time, ready to learn.

3. Cooperative Learning : Cooperative Learning is a systematic pedagogical strategy that encourages small 
groups of students to work together for the achievement of a common goal.

When integrating cooperative or collaborative learning strategies into a course, the following planning and 
preparation may prove helpful :

	 •	 Understanding	how	 to	 form	groups,	 ensuring	 positive	 interdependence,	maintaining	 individual	
accountability, resolving group conflict, developing appropriate assignments and grading criteria, and 
managing active learning environments must be ensured to enhance the achievement of a successful 
cooperative learning experience.

4. Case Method : The other method of instructional strategy is the case method that enables students to 
actively discuss issues and problems inherent in real-life experiences and practical application of ideas. It can 
highlight fundamental dilemmas or critical issues. It provides an opportunity for students to apply what they 
learn in the classroom to real-life experiences. 
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The following techniques can help make the case study approach more effective :

	 •	 Collect	course	content	cases	from	a	variety	of	sources.
	 •	 The	faculty	may	 then	transform	current	events	or	problems	reported	 through	print	or	broadcast	

media into critical learning experiences leading to finding solutions to critical social problems.
	 •	 The	teacher	may	use	cooperative	learning	or	role	playing	environments	to	stimulate	critical	thinking	

and awareness of different perspectives. 

5. Integrating Technology : Today, we realize that computer literacy is an important part of a student's 
education. Integrating technology into a course curriculum when appropriate is proving to be valuable for 
enhancing and extending the learning experience for both faculty and students. Many teachers have found 
electronic mail to be a useful way to promote student-student or faculty-student communication between 
class meetings. Others include list serves or on-line notes as well as using educational software, smart class 
modules and whiteboards.

	 •	 Currently,	students	come	with	varying	degrees	of	computer	 literacy.	Faculty	who	use	technology	
regularly  often  provide some basic skill level instruction during the first week of class though in 
the future it might decline.

6. Distance Learning: Distance learning is not a new concept. We have all experienced learning 
outside of a structured classroom setting through television, correspondence courses, etc. Distance learning 
or distance education as a teaching pedagogy, however, is an important topic of discussion today. Distance 
learning is defined as 'any form of teaching and learning in which the teacher and learner are not in the 
same place at the same time'.

	 •	 Obviously,	information	technology	has	broadened	our	concept	of	the	learning	environment.	It	has	
made it possible for learning experiences to be extended beyond the confines of the traditional 
classroom.

	 •	 Distance	 learning	 technologies	 take	many	 forms	 such	 as	 computer	 simulations,	 interactive	
collaboration/discussion and the creation of virtual learning environments connecting regions or 
nations.

	 •	 Components	of	technology	such	as	e-mail,	list	serves	and	interactive	software	have	also	been	useful	
additions to the distance learning educational setting.

7. Project Based Learning (PBL): Project based learning is a unique pedagogical strategy that helps students 
go through an extended process of inquiry in response to a complex question, problem, or challenge. While 
allowing for some degree of student “voice and choice”, projects are carefully planned, managed and assessed to 
help students learn key academic content, practice 21st Century Skills (such as collaboration, communication and 
critical thinking) and create presentations.

Geeta Mehra 
Teacher,  

Shri Ram Ashram Public School,  Amritsar
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 Pedagogy is the way in which teachers accompany learners in their growth and development. Pedagogy is 
the art and science of teaching that cannot be reduced to methodology.

Integral Pedagogy is addressed first to teachers for it is especially in their daily interaction with students 
in the learning process that the goals and objectives of true education is realized.

How a teacher relates to students, how a teacher conceives of learning, how a teacher engages students in 
the quest for truth, and what a teacher expects of students, a teachers own integrity and ideals, all of these have 
significant formative effects upon student growth.

Teacher training is often counter producer to a pedagogy which encourages student activity in learning 
fosters human growth in excellence and promotes formation of character and values along with the transmission 
of knowledge and skill as integral dimensions of the learning process.

In integral pedagogy, it is the teacher’s primary role to facilitate the growing relationship of the learner with 
truth, particularly in the matter being studied under the guiding influence of the teacher.

The teacher lays the foundation and provides the opportunities for the continual interplay of the students 
experience, reflection, action to occur.

In the Integral Pedagogy Model (IPM) the learning experience is expected to move beyond rote knowledge 
to the development of more complex learning skills of understanding, application, analysis, synthesis and evaluation 
(Bloom’s Taxonomy).

But if learning would stop here, it would not be integral.

For it would lack the component of Reflection, wherein students are impelled to consider the  significance 
of what they study and to integrate that meaning as responsible learners who grow as persons of competence, 
conscience and compassion.

Mahendra Kothari 
Sr. Lecturer,  

Campion School,  
Bhopal



“Pedagogy” is a word that contains all those activities a teacher undertakes in the classroom in the act of 
teaching, educating and instructing. It also involves the strategies of instruction she evolves for herself and practices, 
to effectively transact the curriculum at hand.

Generating the love for English as the language of communication by citing examples and encouraging 
the students to use the language is a devisable approach. The creative writing that is expected from the student 
at the senior levels does not take place because the student has not been trained to use the language creatively 
under the rigid dictums of right and wrong that the English teachers give at the middle school classes. I think 
that beyond the rules of grammar and syntax, all writing by the student is either very good or acceptable, if it 
answers the question, but never wrong.
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As far as handling prose and poetry are concerned, what I practice is to make the student inquisitive about 
the author of the content at hand by citing his / her other works and generating a general understanding about 
the style of writing that the author undertakes. I have also found that interspersing the content with the lucid 
examples from what the students find appealing is very good to enhance retention. 

Connecting with the previously read content is also an effective time tested technique that every teacher 
must practice. I call it ‘connecting the dots’. For this the teacher herself is required to be well read, to have ready 
references at hand and to have devised her own techniques to make her teaching interesting enough for the 
students to look forward to her classes. Trust me it can be done.

Another practice that I have carried out with my students is ‘word of the day’. Each day one word is 
introduced for the students to find the meaning and the students do take initiative to check the meanings- at least 
a few if not all the students. And the number of such enterprising students is on the rise. It is very rewarding to 
see students making an effort to check the meanings of the given words as well as very challenging to find the 
next word for them!

Another manner in which pedagogical practices undertaken by the teachers can be improved is by taking 
regular classes with each other, i.e., at least once in a week the entire faculty sits together  and one topic / skill is 
picked up to be discussed and the finer points of handling it in the classroom are highlighted. 

CBSE has also incorporated the long reading texts in classes IX, X, XI, XII to encourage the students 
to read more. This is a good initiative by the Board; it is now in the hands of the English teacher to make it 
meaningful.

Shivani Gupta 
Head Mistress, 

Aadharshila Vidyapeeth Pitampura, New Delhi



Teaching is a special task which is not owned by all who claim to be teachers. I indeed presume that it 
should be latent in oneself. The teachers should be on their bay to analyze “the call” to the teaching profession. 
Perhaps the teacher does this very consciously time after time; the purpose of call to this noble art fetches its 
attitude of success in the field of education. I ascertain that teaching can never be compared to any art because 
it is noble by itself. 

Teachers mustn’t take the job to be as simple as any other profession available in the world. We are directly 
dealing with the human beings who are full of emotions and feelings. Our role is neither with mere vegetation 
nor with any five sense living creatures. Our role is with the six sensed living creatures who can rationalize. We 
channelize the rationality to distinguish between the right and the wrong. 

Why do some students dislike some particular subjects?
Why do some students feel averted to sit in the class confined?

Teaching without gentle preparation can never reap you success. The teacher should make the class lively. 
Preparing only the content would bore their psyche. Hence, the teacher should also be humorous and should be 
an artist. Some time the content must be enacted. The classroom remains witness to the empowered interest. 
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Teaching should not be merely lip based. Neither it should be superficial. Rather the teacher should teach 
any concept that should have an origin from the heart. This involves love, affection, orientation, concern and 
determination to enrich the horizon of the children’s minds. The children / the students love equally the subject 
and the teachers. 

As teachers, we ought to be thoughtful of every student in the class. Then the learning and the teaching 
will be successful.

Mr. A. Dhanaraj  
St. Francis School, Jettihundi,  

Mysore 



The word ‘pedagogy’ means study of teaching methods as set by the pupil’s background knowledge and 
experience situation and environment, as well as learning goals. Now let’s understand the word prodigy. A child 
prodigy is someone who at an early age develops one or more skills at level far beyond the norm for their age. The 
giftedness of prodigies is determined by the degree of their talent relative to their ages. Earlier such a prodigy 
or ‘wonder child’ was very rare. We could count them on our finger tips, but today every child is a prodigy with 
exceptional skills. So to quench the thirst of knowledge of such students the pedagogy should also undergo 
transformation. The same stereotype of teaching is not in par with today’s child.

  Today’s child is an e-student, so different learning pedagogies are adapted. Research has shown that 
ability of technology has a landmark influence on teaching and learning. Active learning where students 
receive, participate, and do, is also recognized in a large scale. Another effective teaching is Peer instruction 
where students think through arguments and develop to assess their understanding of the concepts even before 
they leave the classroom. But the need of the hour is holistic development. Life- skills is the most important 
and necessary segment under co-scholastic areas. It is essential to promote positive behavior in individuals 
to help them deal with challenges in their everyday life. The education that is imparted should enable the 
child to take positive action for self-growth and promote healthy and positive social relationships. To teach 
language, particularly English more effectively the language teacher has to inculcate the habit of learning 
more and more languages. It helps them to know the real essence of a story, as English language is flexible 
and has adopted many words from different languages. So to improve language teaching the knowledge of 
many languages is a must. The more languages you know the more effective it will be. To teach today’s child 
a teacher must be equipped with knowledge in all areas. Teachers must regularly interact with the students 
and try to bring out the best in them. 

By elaborating the meaning of the phrase “Transforming Pedagogy” we have conducted various programmes, 
field trips, excursions for our children to expose them to deal with different types of challenges.

Ms. Lakshmi Hemalatha. G 
PGT (English)  

Bhashyam Blooms,  
Guntur, Andhra Pradesh
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Transition from kindergarten to primary school means a transition from one institute to another.  Both 
institutions are important for the children’s basic education.  It is a decisive stage of their lives, during which the 
foundation for learning is laid.

Early Transition

A successful transition helps the child move in proper direction.  Currently, educational transition is defined 
as the process of change that children make from one place or phase of education to another over time.  Changes 
of relationship, teaching style, environment, space, time contexts for learning, combine at moments of transition 
making intense and accelerated demands.  Change can bring excitement of new beginnings, the anticipation of 
meeting new people and making new friends, and the opportunity to learn new things. Being autonomous is the 
key to success. 

Getting acquainted with Primary Education

A monthly plan is established according to the requirements and in agreement with appropriate primary 
teaching.  As the children start learning to settle in their new environment, they should be trained for continuous 
and comprehensive assessments by teachers.

If children’s emotional well-being is significant for continuity of learning, it is also likely that better provision 
for transitions will result in fewer difficulties in later schooling. Parent- Teacher interaction helps the child to 
overcome his/her anxiety; together they create a better environment for the child.

This bridging of gap is helpful and important.

Changes of environment, resources, curriculum, institutional culture, pedagogical approaches and styles 
of classroom interaction, all carry a potential to have an impact on how children respond during the first major 
educational transition. 

Resilience in Early Childhood

Time for socialization or culturalisation is a central element in children’s integration into a new educational 
setting that is appropriately supported by parents and teachers, so that integration into the group is successfully 
achieved.  The implication is also a necessary element for the transition to primary school.  In terms of educational 
transitions the caring relationship promotes a sense of self-worth and support the development of self-esteem, 
self-efficacy, autonomy and optimism, which are all critical features of resilience. Resilience is collection of qualities 
like competence, problem-solving skills, critical thinking autonomy and sense of purpose, etc., therefore setting 
well in their first year at school ‘sets them up for later’.

Harshamanek 
(H.O.D Primary Section)  

The New Tulip International School,  
Bopal, Ahmedabad, Gujarat



What is ‘Transforming Pedagogy’ in the real sense? It just means the way we teachers are imparting 
knowledge and skills to our students. The next question which arises is ‘Are we teachers really preparing a student 
to face the outside world? And, what are we teaching our students in schools? That two and two makes four and 
that Paris is the capital of France.
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We have a good curriculum in CBSE. The only thing what we teachers have to do is to correlate the textual 
knowledge with creativity among our students. Our students are good and creative enough to innovate new things. 
We teachers have to understand their potential, encourage and motivate them than their talents. For example, we 
have a student. Talented student, but at the same time very shy. When encouraged and motivated to participate 
in the various programs, the student is up with his best ideas on a project. This is just an example for one of the 
students. And we have tremendous talent among all the students. So, the first and foremost thing, every teacher 
can do is to speak with the students and identify his/her talent by encouraging and motivating them to achieve 
their goals.

Mohammed Ghouse 
Lecturer in English  

Amara Jyothi Public School, Bengaluru



A newly appointed teacher came out of the class in disappointed. She was a bit nervous and depressed. 
“What happened?” asked a colleague. The students were unruly and undisciplined in my class. I could not take the 
class according to the plan- answered the lady. This type of situation is faced not only by a new teacher; it’s quite 
universal to all teachers. Most of the teachers are demotivated because of discipline deficiency. Classroom discipline 
plays a key role to all our professional skills and abilities. The great end of education is to discipline rather than to 
furnish the mind: to train it to the use of its own powers, rather than fill it with accumulation of others.

SOME PRACTICAL HINTS FOR TEACHERS ON CLASSROOM DISCIPLINE

	 •	 Start	by	being	firm	with	students:	you	can	relax	later,

	 •	 ensure	silence	before	you	start	speaking	to	the	class,	

	 •	 know	and	use	the	students’	names,	

	 •	 prepare	lessons	thoroughly	and	structure	them	firmly,

	 •	 start	the	lesson	with	a	‘bang’	and	sustain	interest	and	curiosity,	

	 •	 make	sure	your	instructions	are	clear	and	language	is	of	appropriate	level,

	 •	 look	at	the	class	when	speaking	and	learn	how	to	scan	the	students,

	 •	 make	tasks	appropriate	(to	pupils’	age,	ability	and	cultural	background),

	 •	 anticipate	discipline	problems	and	act	quickly,

	 •	 clarify	fixed	rules	and	standards	and	be	consistent	in	applying	them,

	 •	 be	warm	and	friendly	to	the	students,	treat	them	with	respect,	and	

	 •	 non	verbal	communication	should	co-ordinate	with	the	verbal	communication.

There is no doubt that there exists such a quality as ‘charismatic authority’; that some teachers possess it 
while others do not; and that the possessors of this quality find it much easier to control the class. But the good 
news is that the classes of teachers who do not possess natural authority can be equally disciplined: we just have 
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to work harder. One more thing is that although the immediate responsibility for the maintenance of classroom 
discipline in most situations is the teacher’s, the ultimate goal is to reach the point where learners take on or at 
least share this responsibility. The ability to self-discipline is to some extent a function of the maturity of the 
learner, but can be fostered by the teacher. It will undoubtedly help in classroom discipline and promote learning. 
So it’s we, the teachers who hold the key to diffuse discipline in classrooms and it is only possible through our 
successive attempts.

Bijaya Kumar Sahoo 
Teacher 

Aditya Birla Public School, Kurnool



Pressure, extra work, anecdotal records, frequent changes, activities, too much data to be maintained, etc., 
were the common words and phrases that buzzed the teachers and students’ talk with the advent of CCE. But 
one should agree that things take time to settle, be it passengers in a plane, bubbles in a soda can or CCE in our 
education system.

In yesteryears, experience in teaching was regarded so worthy that a teacher was so proud that she had 
memorized the books and is ever ready to give lectures but thanks to the technology, growing awareness and 
changes in teaching-learning process that has actually made the quote meaningful and true –“Learning starts from 
womb and continues till tomb”. CCE has actually ignited the dead learning spirit among the teachers and given 
students exposure. One could not deny the fact that competitive spirit among the intellectual scholars have come 
down but higher is the achievement that those who were/ are not good in academics have got an opportunity to 
excel in their area of expertise.

It’s high time that with change of learning process, evaluation criteria and curriculum, the word “TEACHER” 
undergoes a change per se, may be “Facilitator” is a better choice. A teacher’s job as assumed was – I know, I teach 
and a facilitator’s job is – I know, I share, I learn.

•	 Role	Play	an	inanimate	object	(for	speaking	skill)	: In this activity, children are required to identify 
themselves with the key characteristics of an inanimate object and are given ten minutes time to think 
about the same. After that the facilitator will give a demonstration identifying herself/himself with 
any non-living object. Then the students will be called one by one to deliver the prepared text in First 
Person of the object they identified themselves with (for one minute) giving reasons for how they are 
like that (object). 

•	 Twist	the	Head	(reading,	writing	skills)		: These days, most of the students get to read the Newspapers from 
school specially the children edition like HT Pace or NIE. It can be used as a classroom resource to do 
this activity. In it, students are required to choose a piece of news and go through it thoroughly. Then they 
need to twist the head i.e. the headline either using antonyms or swapping the subject and object of the 
Headline. E.g. : “Sonia Appreciated the Ideas of  New Youth Icon, ABC” may become “Sonia criticized the 
ideas of New Youth Icon ABC” or “New Youth Icon, ABC appreciated the Ideas of Sonia”  or something 
else. Then the students are required to reframe the news article according to the new Headline that they 
have formed. They can make it funny, cheesy, emotional, witty, sarcastic or even humorous depending on 
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their taste and creativity but it is very important for the facilitator to present a demonstration first and give 
two three different examples so that the students don’t have any grey areas of doubt. Those who are good 
in arts/sketching may be encouraged to present the same in cartoon strip and further add -ons can be done 
keeping in view the diversity of class population.

I have very elatedly mentioned the two activities because such activities have given confidence even to those 
students who prefer to remain quiet or passive in the class.

Mrs. Priya Handa 
TGT-English 

Bosco Public School, PaschimVihar, New Delhi



Language is a habit and hence teaching of language should not at all be confined to the examination point 
of view. On the contrary study of language should provide ample chance for exploration of human life from 
various angles. In other words it should be a search for one’s own identity in the back drop of a world view. It 
should help the student become a balanced individual capable of maintaining stability at the odd moments of 
challenges offered by life.

A new morality and sensibility need to be evolved and the language teachers should happily take up the 
responsibility. It is not merely the quality of pronunciation or the accent that a language teacher should concentrate 
upon as most of us do these days. Teaching and learning of languages in schools and colleges should transform 
into a sublime process through which the student understand and redefine himself and in turn it should lead to 
the establishment of ‘a brave new world’(The Tempest –William Shakespeare) of finer ideals.

Jayasree N 
PGT (English) 

Jawahar Navodaya Vidyalaya Mysore,  
Karnataka



Our new system of Formative Assessment and Summative Assessment allows to judge students in all 
aspects. It allows a total personality development of a student, be it mental, physical, or emotional. Because of 
many parameters, this system never puts a stress on scoring.

In the field of Co-Scholastic studies, CBSE has given independence to schools with certain guidelines.

In the field of Work-Experience, students are inclined towards computers. So schools have great responsibility 
to introduce the subject matter, which students will find useful, which will keep them updated to the recent 
practices and develop their thinking skill, visual perception and decision making-capability.

Mr. Alpana Pande 
PRT, Computer Science,  

Bhavan’s B.P. Vidya Mandir, Nagpur, Maharashtra
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“Teach me to walk and I shall run, teach me to look and I shall see, teach me to hear and I shall listen, teach me to 
sing and I shall rejoice, for your instructions are imprinted in my mind. And your shared experience I shall keep what I 
have learnt I shall treasure and by learning to fly I shall soar!”

These lines may remain the same for a child, but we, their mentors have to change with time and circumstances, 
to provide our students the environment, knowledge, skill and confidence. The four pillars of education, namely 
learning to know, learning to do, learning to live together and learning to be, have been expounded to elucidate a 
broad and encompassing view of learning that would go beyond an instrumental view of education and emphasize 
the development of the complete person and promote excellence at all levels of education. We are free to analyze 
them in the light of our own needs and in the light of our own cultural heritage. We may even rearrange the 
position of these pillars in their interrelationships. Learning to know is a basic instinct. The inquisitive nature turns 
into questions and his own responses. These have been changing with the changing social, cultural and scientific 
atmosphere and this change into learning to learn.

This is best promoted when the learning process joins abstractions with concreteness and joins theory with 
practice. This learning should be an adventure. This is seen very clearly in children’s activities of learning. Even 
to be able to stand up firmly implies an adventure on the part of the child, for there is an exposure to hazard and 
risk.  The present day child wants to do it differently, schools can provide them with computers, smart classes, 
exposure to outdoor trips, visits, etc. This change of pedagogy has made the present day child confident.The area 
which needs our attention in the present scenario is learning to live together and this implies, at one level, gradual 
discovery of the other and, on another level of experience, of shared purposes. This type of learning enables one to 
discover the spirit of mutuality and solidarity. In the Indian heritage it is recognized that the real road to progress 
lies through sacrifice and that sacrifice involves a continuous chain of mutuality. It is through this that we can 
contribute rightly to the living and survival of ourselves and others.

I remember the instance when I attended an NCERT workshop conducted for the present English core 
text book. When it was introduced some of the members raised a question as to why poverty has been depicted 
in the chapters and poems again and again. The answer given by the spokesperson from NCERT was really 
overwhelming. He said that the child should know that this is also a part of our life and society and should learn 
to help such people and to give a helping hand in eradicating child labour, etc. This is how we can transform our 
pedagogy. A moment of thinking and acting upon it should be given and rewarded. Summing up my views, we 
must facilitate the quest of knowledge. We need to be role models, generate critical thinking and stretch their 
imagination. A teacher may desist from giving answers; ask open ended questions which can have multiple answers. 
It liberates creativity, integrates spiritual values with basic life skills like tolerance, honesty, respect for elders, a 
sharing attitude, positive outlook, decision-making, etc.

Mrs. Renu Satija 
PGT (English)  

Vidya Bal Bhawan Sr. Sec. School,  
Mayur Vihar, New Delhi
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The new grading system - Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) was implemented in our school 
for Classes IX and X from the academic year 2009-10. CCE was one of the major outcomes of the reforms brought 
about in the Secondary Education sector by the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Govt. of India 
and adopted by all the Central Board of Secondary Education affiliated schools in the country. Expected to bring 
about continuity in evaluation and assessment of broad based learning and behavioral outcomes, the new scheme 
was ushered in amidst a stream of doubts about its every aspect.

The implications following introduction of CCE may be classified as short term and long term implications, 
and both need to be considered separately. The short term implications are primarily the fallout of a ‘disruptive 
shift’ which naturally caused ripples as it demanded a paradigm shift in the mindset of the students, parents and 
teachers, to implement CCE vis-à-vis the traditional evaluation process.

In retrospect, one notices that the key element of Change Management depended on how effectively we were 
able to involve, inform and interact with all the stakeholders; followed by implementation of systematic processes 
aided with technology/ infrastructure inputs. The transition process hence overwhelmingly focused on addressing 
and allying the fears of the various stakeholders– parents, teachers and students through series of Orientation 
Workshops/ Interactive Meetings as well as through informal modes of communication. This effectively meant 
to manage the ‘Un-learning and Re-learning’ process carefully so that they were not only passively receptive but 
eager to receive the ‘new system’, with more anticipation and less apprehension; with more faith and less doubt; 
with willingness to adapt and overcome and not reject with contempt and disapproval.

The introduction of the Digi School and Smart Boards to engage the students better in the creative and 
interactive learning process helped tremendously. This is a considerable capital investment and is thus a tall order 
for most schools. Its shortfall can however be minimized by Re-Orientation/ Capacity Building Workshops 
regularly organized to equip the teachers to meet the challenges posed by CCE. After-all, the success of the system 
is largely defined by the spirit with which it is taken by its primary implementer that is the teachers!

One of the key concerns or fears raised was the potential threat of ‘Subjectivity’ and ‘Vindictiveness’ that 
could creep in the CCE mode. 

The other oft raised issue was the fear that the CCE would destroy the competitive spirit among students, 
but then, it is time to realize that the very intent of CCE is to wean off the students from the rat race and the 
pressures thereof, to a system that encourages learning for the love of learning!

It will be revealed if the Schools could be transformed as Facilitation Centers, and Teachers as facilitators, able 
to orient students towards learning the concepts through various modes of creative thinking and application.

To conclude, let’s wait and watch, scene by scene, act by act, to see how the CCE play unfolds – as a ludicrous 
comedy, a turbulent tragedy or a welcome reality show!

All the best CCE!!!

Ms. Priya Elizabeth John 
Academic Supervisor, 

Delhi Public School, Indirapuram, Delhi



What Others say…
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What is the real aim of education- is it the theoretical side of education or its practical side?

In a country of billions, we have to struggle for Olympic medals; there is dearth of scientists and researchers 
and there is deficiency of efficient personnel in Indian Armed Forces. Who is to be blamed for that? It seems that 
we have forgotten the values of ancient Indian educational system.

Swami Vivekananda once said, “Education is the manifestation of perfection already present in man.”

Real education should enable man to find out and exploit the unique in him. What matters in education 
is practical experience, not bookish knowledge.

I believe, one should focus on the applied part of education. We teach theorems and principles in subjects, 
but focus should also be on their applications. 

Is the curriculum imparting those things that are mentioned in the report of the International Commission 
on Education of UNESCO? The Commission specified the following points in its report :

 (i) Learning to live together peacefully with one another.

 (ii) Learning which involves intellectual ability on a continuous basis.

 (iii) Learning to be associated with acquisition of skills including manual ones that enable a person to 
become a creative member of the society.

 (iv) Looking inward to get the strength to behave as responsible and creative citizens.

Education is a threefold process of disseminating knowledge, developing skills and inculcating proper 
interests, attitude and values. Our schools should not be concerned with the first part of the process.

There is hardly any provision for practical activities; rote learning and achievement of bookish knowledge. 
A few suggestions are :

Suggestions:

1. Big focus should be on care and well-being of the child.

2. Focus on the utilitarian values of education. 

3. There is an urgent need for revision of curricular content through ample research. Preparation of textbooks, 
teaching-aids and learning materials also needs research and reforms.

4. A programme of work experience should be made as an integral part of pedagogy at all stages from the 
primary to the secondary level, so that the extremely bookish character of school education may be gradually 
changed.

5. There is no need for differentiating curriculum for boys and girls. Even Home Science, Music and Fine 
Arts should be made available for both boys and girls. 
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CBSE has been working to improve the conditions of the present educational system. If the Continuous 
and Comprehensive (CCE) pattern could be implemented and managed properly the system would be much 
better. 

Mr. Puneet Saraswat 
Co-ordinator Academics,  

Shanti Niketan Public School,  
Agra



Education is important not only for the development of one’s personality but also for the sustained 
growth of the nation. Education has continued to evolve, expand and diversify its coverage since the dawn 
of human history. Every child has its own individual inherent talent which demands proper nurturance and 
appropriate environment to develop. An important aspect which plays a greater role in child’s learning is 
his/her ‘Emotional Intelligence’. Our educational system gives more stress on Intelligence Quotient (IQ) 
and not on Emotional Intelligence (EI). Our students are taught Social Science, Science, Humanities, etc...
but they are not taught how to handle fear, frustration, failure, anxiety, inferior feelings, stress, depression, 
burnout, etc., they are not told how to manage emotions and necessary life skills to cope with the changing 
demands of today’s world.

Emotions are personal experiences that arise from complex interplay among psychological, cognitive and 
situational variables. Emotions if properly used are an excellent tool for successful and fulfilling life. Emotional 
Intelligence is a recent behavioral model rising in prominence with Daniel Goleman's book ‘Emotional Intelligence’ 
where he argued that IQ alone was not a predictor of success.

Goleman (1995) reports that emotional literacy programs improve children’s academic achievement and 
school performance. Children who are able to read and interpret expressive and situational cues are more sensitive 
to other’s feelings and are better able to interact with others. Knowing one’s emotions (self awareness), managing 
emotions, motivating oneself, persistence and social deftness are the key components of Emotional Intelligence 
(EI).

Emotionally intelligent teachers help students with improved motivation, enhanced innovation, increased 
performance, effective use of time and resources, improved leadership qualities and improved team work. 
Studies indicate that student engagement in learning is to be valued above curricular plan and materials. The 
task of creating environment conducive to learning rests heavily on the self-efficacy of teachers (Bandura, 
1995) and its association with a wide range of learning outcomes. These outcomes include teacher’s classroom 
behavior, effort and goal setting, their openness to new ideas and willingness to try new methods, planning and 
organization competencies, persistence, resilience, commitment and enthusiasm for teaching and longevity in 
their chosen career.

Mr. Madhur Bhatia 
JRF Department of Education (IASE) 

Jamia Millia Islamia University,  
New Delhi
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HAIL TO THEE: Miss Rakhi Halder  
Khalsa Model Sr. Sec. School, Kolkata

As soon as The Telegraph highlighted the 
inspiring tale of Ms Rakhi Halder, a weightlifter, winner 
of gold medal at the International level of weightlifting, 
Khalsa Model Senior Secondary School had extended 
its benevolent hand to help her.

Ms Rakhi Halder, an International level weightlifter being felicitated  
by the Khalsa Model Sr. Sec. School, Kolkata

During the assembly, the Principal Mr. Jayant 
Biswas, delivered a lecture to inspire by citing the 
example of Ms. Halder who had given best to bring 
the students  glorify to the nation. On 26 June 2012 a 
ceremonial event was organized by the students of Class 
IX in the school auditorium to felicitate Ms. Halder.
An interactive conference session was arranged by the 
students where she shared her experiences.

She narrated stories of her dedication and struggle 
to reach the International level in weightlifting.

The reminiscence of 26 June would remain 
forever in the minds of the students.The felicitation of 
the golden girl would ignite the mind of the students 
who could proceed with steadfast enthusiasm and 
determination to reach the zenith of success in their 
lives.

Grandparents Day  
Sanjay Ghodawat International School, Kolhapur

The Grandparents Day at Sanjay Ghodawat International School 
mesmerized the grandparents

Grandparents Day was celebrated on 23 June 
2012. A special assembly was conducted on the occasion 
and the grandparents were treated to a wonderful 
performance of songs and dances, highlighting the 
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various roles played by grandparents. A play was enacted 
highlighting the treatment meted out to elders in the 
modern nuclear families. 

The grandparents were nostalgic when they were 
engaged in various games organized by the students 
under the guidance of the teachers. The joy on their faces 
and the sparkle in their eyes said it all. Expressing their 
views the grandparents appreciated the efforts put by 
the school to drive home the point that grandparents 
are the sap from where the younger generation draws 
energy and learns values. 

The Principal thanked all those who had worked 
to make it a special day for the grandparents.

Mother's Day 
Divine Public School, Kurukshetra

Mothers can dance too

The education of children is not confined to the 
school and the teachers. The society and the parents play 
pivotal role. The mother is the first teacher of the child. 
So to honour the mothers, Mother’s Day was celebrated 
in the school on 10 May 2012. A cultural function was 
organized in which about 200 mothers participated in 
different activities such as Cat Walk, Solo Dance and 
Costume Show. The mothers were so excited to perform 
that it seemed as if their childhood had retreated. The 
President,S. Gurdeep Singh Hayer, the Principal, Mrs. 
Rajinder Khubber and all the visitors appreciated this 
commendable event.

Oh! Mother, it is a ‘Costume Show’

Mathematics Festival 
D.A.V. Public School, Thane

Mathematics is very important for life. It plays a 
significant role in civilizations of the world and in the 
perfection of all sciences. Learning of Mathematics 
involves analytical abilities, problem solving, numerical 
aptitude, statistical interpretation, logical thinking and 
correlation with all other subjects.

D.A.V. Public School celebrates the National Year of Mathematics

The Honourable Prime Minister of India 
has declared the Year 2012 as the National Year of 
Mathematics, as a tribute to the Maths Wizard, Srinivasa 
Ramanujan. The Regional Director Dr. K.B. Kushal 
initiated to celebrate the National Year of Mathematics 
by creating a non-competitive environment featuring 
an abundance of inspiring Mathematical challenges 
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that would motivate and expose students, teachers and 
parents to key critical Mathematics topics in a positive 
and creative manner.

Maths Festival was celebrated with great pomp 
and grandeur on the 27 and 28 April 2012. The Chief 
Guest for the inauguration was Honourable Mayor 
of Thane Shri. H.S. Patil,who expressed immense 
satisfaction for being a part of this Festival and 
complimented the school for its achievements and 
development.

Mrs. Hema Nair, Principal, spoke on the 
importance of Mathematics and the objective behind 
organizing such an event. The objective of the 
celebration was to remove the fear of the subject in 
the minds of the children by facilitating them to work 
creatively in small teams creating an innovative work 
environment which was best reflected in the displays 
and projects.

Dr. Sukhwinder Singh, IG Police, Konkan 
Range complimented the programme and said that 
Mathematics is a basic block of education that teaches 
us logic. Models provoke thoughts in the learners which 
in turn help them learn the process in a positive manner 
and also help in the future learning process. 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar, Principal, DAV Airoli 
appreciated the new formats of learning. He spoke on 
the importance of Mathematics in enhancing logical 
reasoning, analytical ability and decision making power 
and spoke on National Year of Mathematics, the story 
of Ramanujan’s genius and the study of Mathematics 
as a subject up to Class X. He spoke on the need to 
engage the students, encourage them to explore more, 
the need to discuss the problem, to explore different 
ways to solve the problem, keeping the criteria simple 
and straight, planning and making low cost and time 
saving models and most importantly appreciating the 
student. He also said that it is essential to record the 
process in creating the model, look at the moral values 
involved in the process and sensitize the students to 
the importance of maths.

Children enjoying a presentation on Mathematics and its importance

A special feature of the Mathematics Festival 
was a Talk on ‘India’s Contribution to Mathematics’ by 
Dr.Sudhakar C. Agarkar, Professor and Head, Homi 
Bhabha Centre for Science Education, Tata Institute 
of Fundamental Research, Mumbai. He spoke on 
the heritage of Mathematics, how Indians have been 
pioneers in number system, the importance of zero and 
the responsibility of Indians to honour Mathematical 
heritage. The students had a wonderful time as they 
interacted with this eminent speaker and clarified many 
of their doubts in Mathematics.

Dr.(Mrs.) Ambujam V. Iyer Education Trainer 
and Consultant appreciated the creative work of the 
students in her interesting and captivating Talk on 
“Significance of Mathematics in Everyday Life”.

Dr. Kalpana Modi in her Talk on ‘Mathematics 
Teaching and Learning’ stressed on the importance of 
Story Telling which is an art, and should be used in the 
explanation of concepts in Maths.

The Pre-Primary students of DAV Public School, 
Thane displayed a number of mathematical concepts 
and presented them in model and chart forms. The 
Primary section students had a variety of exhibits, 
project displays, working models on the importance of 
Mathematics and correlation with many other subjects. 
Some of the themes were the use of Mathematics 
in daily life such as in restaurants, airports, hospitals 
and markets. It is also used to know the importance 
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of proper measurements the need to know the exact 
values. Maths is important in History, Geography and 
Civics. The timeline is used to mark the duration of 
each civilization. The ground marking for games like 
football, basketball, baseball, etc., done with the help 
of formulae and theorems, the throw of a disc, a ball 
into a basket, etc., depends on angle and techniques. 
Mathematical concepts of area, length, money and 
ratio are used in architecture. The history of clocks and 
invention of calendars through centuries was another 
project displayed.

A student displaying charts and models on Mathematical Concepts

The Secondary students focused on the 
importance of Mathematics laboratory which helps 
learn concepts of Maths ‘by doing’, develop abstract 
thinking, provide scope for individual participation, 
build interest and confidence in learning the rules and 
constraints.

The correlation of Maths and Nature was also 
presented in various forms by students. The concept 
of symmetry in honey comb, fractions, segments in 
fruits, parallel lines, angles at leaf axis, etc., were vividly 
described through models.

Correlation of Mathematics with languages, 
poems, Sanskrit (specific dimensions used in making 
a ‘Havan Kund’), the history of civilization-Social 
Science, the geographical concept of seasons related 
to Maths, etc., were depicted through models and 
charts. 

Live demonstration of fundamental concept 
of count in ‘Tal’ in all forms of music and dance, and 
rhythm were showcased by the students.

A model displaying significance of Mathematics in  
everyday life being showcased

Pink Buransh Literary Festival Celebrating 
Hundred Years of St. Thomas' School, Shimla

“Pink Buransh Literary Festival” was held from 
7 to 11 May, 2012 to celebrate the culmination of the 
Centenary Celebrations, which was flagged off on 29 
June 2011 by H.E. Smt. Urmila Singh, Governor of 
Himachal Pradesh. The festival was organized at the 
historic Gaiety Theatre, the YWCA of Shimla and St. 
Thomas’ School.

Welcome to Pink Buransh Literary Festival

The literary festival included workshops on 
film making, puppetry, pottery, ballet dancing, Kangra 
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miniature paintings, Mathematics through stories, doll 
making, sketching and also light and sound production 
sketching the history of the school. The Pink Buransh 
was conceptualized from the bush Pink Rhododendrons 
which embodies the sweetness of nature, the awesome 
beauty of the mountains and respect for the delicate 
environment of the Himalayas. 

The festival gave a platform to children from 
both private and government schools who came from 
Shimla and other states to interact with each other. The 
literary festival was the first of its kind and recorded 
a throng of young readers and participants from all 
walks of life.

 

The kids enjoying the clay art and pottery making at a workshop

The literary festival was inaugurated by Mr. 
Parikshat Sahni, renowned writer, actor and director; 
a first day cover by India Post was released by Mr. 
Ambesh Upmanyu, Director, Postal Services, H.P.  
Circle, Shimla. The book ‘Anyone Can Write’ by Dheera 
Kitchlu was released by Rt. Rev. Pradeep Kumar 
Samanta Roy. Book Fair ‘Panne’ was inaugurated by 
Dheera Kitchlu. A craft exhibition ‘Him-Kriti’ was 
inaugurated by Dadi Pudumjee which exhibited 
handloom and handicrafts of Himachal Pradesh. 
Festival Brochure was released by the Chief Guest 
wherein after, the children of St. Thomas’ presented a 
ballet on the theme “Great Compassion........“Dharini”, 
songs based on Morning Ragas sung by the school choir 
“Shubhashish” and folk dance of Himachal, “Natti” 
added colour to the celebration. 

The inaugural function was presided over by 
Bishop Pradeep Kumar Samantaroy, Chairman, St. 
Thomas’ School, Shimla. 

‘Light and Sound Production’ was by Nandini 
and Shuddho Banerjee. Shuddho Bannerjee is a 
professional theatre Director-Actor-Scriptwriter, who 
is also working in several films and TV serials.

‘Film Making’ by Vivek Mohan, a famous film 
maker and award winning director for his docu-drama 
‘Malana’ in search of….consciously makes efforts to 
create stories based in the hills. ‘Pottery’ by Somnath 
Raha. ‘Doll Making’ a dying art of Himachal was 
conducted by Himachal Handicrafts department. 
‘Illustrations’ by Atanu Roy who has been illustrating 
and designing picture books, magazines and educational 
aids for children for almost four decades was also 
conducted. ‘Sketching’ by Sanjeev Mehta, President 
of Sanjeevni Art Society Shimla (H.P.). ‘Story telling’ 
session by Gowri Palachandran (Katha), Director 
(Kanchi), and ‘Folk tales from Himachal’ by Mr. Manas 
R. Mahapatra of National Book Trust of India and Mr. 
Ghulam Nabi Aatash were part of the festival too.

‘Hansi-Khushi’ a fun event which included Baby 
Show, Fancy Dress Competition, Painting Competition 
and Face Painting, was conducted by Neelima Kanwar, 
Associate Professor of English deptt. Himachal Pradesh 
University. Panel discussion on ‘Children’s Writing in 
India’ by Ghulam Nabi Aatash, a Kashmiri writer and 
poet whose book ‘Nov Kehtsha Mentsha’ has bagged 
the prestigious Sahitya Akademi Award in the best 
children’s literature category; Manisha Chaudhry, an 
experienced editor, translator, writer and currently Head 
of Content Development with Pratham Books, a multi-
lingual children’s publisher; and Gowri Palachandran, 
Director (Kanchi), Katha, pioneer in the field of 
children’s literature who saw a great zeal and activity 
from the children of Shimla.

‘Author Readings and Interaction’ was conducted 
by Shiv Subrahmanyam, a well known theatre veteran 
and screenplay writer of the films “PARINDA” and 
“1942: A LOVE STORY”; Sukrita Paul Kumar 
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researching and teaching literature in Delhi University; 
Helmut Wagner who is working as a lecturer of the 
Justus-Liebig-University of Gissen and prepares 
and trains young teachers in school. Deepa Agarwal, 
Ghulam Nabi Aatash, Arnab Banerjee, language 
consultant for the History Channel , India. Sailabala 
Mahapatra, a well known author, folklorist from 
Odissa; Sangeeta Saraswat, Lecturer, St. Bede’s College, 
Shimla, Hajo Barth, Minakshi Chaudhary, an author 
and formal journalist involved in social welfare activities 
in the state through SEWA Trust and Cheryl Jacob 
gave an impetus to the young readers and children to 
expose themselves more to books, literary fiction and 
non-fiction aspects. 

The students putting the best puppet mask forward 
as a part of puppetry workshop

The festival showcased a book fair where various 
leading publishers like National Book Trust of India, 
Oxford University Press, Katha, Jodogyan, Hatchet, 
Rupa, Pratham, Serene Woods exhibited their books 
which was a big draw not only for children but also 
their parents.

A literary walk was conducted by Raaja Bhasin, 
INTACH’s Co-convenor for Himachal Pradesh and 
Nandini Pathania. The walkers were inundated with 
stories and the importance of heritage buildings and 
environment which exposed them to a broader preview 
of Shimla.

Each evening of the five days festival saw 
presentations by eminent artists who captured their 

artistic skills and kept the audience spell bound. A 
spectacular theatre production ‘Simple Dreams’ by 
Dadi Pudumjee was organized on the first evening. 
On the second day, ‘Himachal Nite’ was organized by 
Department of Art, Language and Culture, Himachal 
Pradesh which showcased folk dance and music. An 
enchanting ‘Musical Evening’ was also organized that 
rendered musical performances by Harpreet Singh, an 
independent musician and Folknotes ‘The Himalayan 
Blues’.

A First Day Cover by India Post released by Mr. Parikshat Sahni and  
Mr. Ambesh Upmanyu, Director, Postal Service, H.P. Circle, Shimla 

along with other dignitaries

The festival also included screening of Award 
Winning Children’s films every evening. “Karamati 
Coat” directed by Ajay Kartik, a renowned director was 
screened on the first day followed by “Hawai Dada”, his 
second film. His interaction with the children desired 
often screening of children’s films in Shimla. Reema 
Sengupta’s film ‘The Tigers, They Are All Dead’ was 
also screened. Finally, the film festival concluded with 
the screening of the documentary film “The Power 
of-1” which was a part of the film making workshop. 
It was released by Narender Chauhan, Chief Electoral 
Officer, Himachal Pradesh. The film highlighted the 
role of young voters.

Coincidentally the festival coincided to mark 
the 150th year Birth Anniversary of Rabindranath 
Tagore and that day was dedicated to Gurudev, where a 
National Seminar on ‘Children’s Tagore’ was organized. 
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‘Shishu’ a Dance Ballet based on Tagore’s ‘Gitanjali’ 
performed by three hundred children of St. Thomas’ 
School and Free School, ISPCK, Delhi, trained by 
Dr. Sandhya Purecha and her team captivated the 
audience. 

The festival concluded with a unique ‘Light 
and Sound’ programme “Salaam-e-Shatak Simla” in 
the premises of St. Thomas’ School which encased 
the history of the school from its inception to its 
present day and showcased the cultural heritage over 
the past hundred years. The programme was graced by 
Ms. Manisha Nanda, Principal Secretary, (Personnel, 
Language, Art and Culture) Himachal Pradesh.

The ‘Light and Sound’ programme enlightened everyone about the 100 
years journey of St. Thomas' School

The vote of thanks was proposed by Prof. 
Meenakshi F. Paul, Honorary Director, Pink Buransh 
Literary Festival. It goes to the credit of the St. Thomas’ 
School family that a festival of this magnitude was 
organized in the State of Himachal Pradesh for the 
first time and met with resounding success. 

Installation Ceremony  
Sarla Chopra D.A.V. Public School, Noida

The school organized Installation ceremony of 
Interact Club members on 1 August 2012 in the school 
premises.

The occasion was graced by the President of the 
Rotary Club, Noida City Ms. Rajeshwari Thyagrajan, 

Sh. Anjag Talwar, Secretary, Rotary Club, Noida City 
Sh. R.V. Thyagrajan, (Rotarian) and other Rotarians. 
The President and the Principal of the School, Ms. I.P. 
Bhatia, along with other guests presented Collars and 
Badges to the new President, Vice President and other 
new members.

The new members of the Interact Club with the President of the  
Rotary Club, Noida City, the Principal of DAV Public School, Noida  

and other Rotarians

The programme started with the dance sequence 
of Nikita Hedge which captivated the audience and 
this was followed by the words of wisdom by the 
revered Principal Ms. I.P. Bhatia. In her speech she 
urged the students to dream big and always be on the 
right track.

The President, Ms. Thyagrajan gave a thought 
provoking speech and enlightened the new interactors 
about the various projects and motto of Interact 
Club.

The motive behind this big organization is to 
work together and in the spirit of true fellowship. The 
programme was a grand success and Ms. IP Bhatia 
thanked Ms. Thyagrajan for her constant support and 
the school Interact Club Coordinator for her efforts.

Independence Day Celebrations  
Homerton Grammar School, Faridabad

Homerton Grammar School celebrated 
Independence Day with colouring the sky with kites 
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as the whole school gathered in the grounds with kites 
in hands and eyes on the sky.

The patriotic songs were the fervor of Independence Day Celebrations

Shri Ganpati Singh, Founder Principal Dayanand 
College for Women, Faridabad was the Chief Guest 
for the Event, who was welcomed very warmly by the 
Founder Principal, Mr. Kuldip Singh.

The programme commenced with the Flag 
hoisting and singing of National Anthem, followed by 
a cultural event, which comprised of patriotic songs and 
speech, presented by students.

The young kids dressed as our National Leaders captivated the audience

The Primary Wing celebrated Independence Day 
with an array of colourful dresses and faces. A Fancy 
dress competition was organized where students dressed 
as famous freedom fighters, people of different States 

of India and as doctors and scientists.

Shri Ganpati Singh Ji, motivated the students 
and made them realize that they have the huge 
responsibility in making India better and as youth of 
the country they need to take this responsibility very 
carefully on their shoulders and this can be done by 
making better choices in life at every step.

The presentation of a dance skit at Crown Interior Mall by students of 
Homerton Grammar School

This Independence Day celebrations were not 
restricted to just their own school premises. Students 
also prepared a Dance Skit and presented it at Crown 
Interior Mall, on 14 and 15 August 2012.

On 14 August, it was presented in a Flash Mob 
Presentation, which took people by surprise as suddenly 
a bunch of young people started dancing on the tunes of 
'Vande Mataram' on the Mall floor, which made every 
passer by stop and watch.

The performance had three short skits 
showcasing diseases in our society that restricts us 
from being free - Drug Abuse, Child Labour and 
Casteism.

The same was presented again on Independence 
Day, to the large crowds gathered at the Mall and was 
very well taken.
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Success... the Felicitation Ceremony 
Bal Vidya Mandir Sr. Sec. School, Moradabad

To encourage the students to do the best a 
felicitation ceremony “SUCCESS” of X and XII 
standard students who brought laureates to School 
in the field of academics on 18 July 2012 was 
arranged in the school Auditorium. Sh. OPN Singh, 
Commissioner Moradabad Division presided over 
the programme. Other dignitaries present on the dais 
were Dr. Akhilesh Mishra, ADM, Sambhal and Sh. 
Sandeep Gupta, SDM, Sambhal. Sh. Harish C Garg, 
the Manager welcomed the gathering. Dr. Shyamesh, 
the Principal, rendered the introductory speech and 
gave a brief description about the school students’ 
performance.

The cultural programme by students kept the audience spellbound

On this occasion, cultural programmes were 
presented, that won the appreciation of the guests. 
Afterwards students, who got highest marks in 
different subjects and secured positions at School 
level, were given cash prizes, Merit Certificates and 
momentoes by Commissioner, ADM and SDM. The 
Scholarship cheques were delivered by Sh. Sandeep 
Gupta, SDM, Sambhal and Dr. U C Saxena, Guest 
of Honour.

In his address Sh. OPN Singh emphasized the 
need to work together towards a conducive atmosphere 
for students, who are the future pillars of the society, 
to study.

Mathematics Expo, Chinmaya International 
Residential School, Coimbatore

The children at the Mathematics Expo - 2012

The Government of India has declared the 
year 2012 as the “National Year of Mathematics” to 
commemorate the 125th Birth Anniversary of the 
country’s most eminent Mathematician Shri Srinivasa 
Ramanujan. The “Mathematics Expo – 2012” was 
organized on 20 and 21 July 2012. Pujya Swami 
Tejomayananda, the Chairman and Head, Chinmaya 
Mission Worldwide, inaugurated the event by lighting 
the lamp. The city’s first of its kind brain boosting 2 
day Expo offered 86 exciting conceptual models, a 
number of mind boggling puzzles and Math riddles, an 
overview of the contribution of Indian Mathematicians 
to the world, a documentary on Ramanujan’s life and 
demonstration on Vedic Mathematics. All the city 
Schools were invited to visit the Expo and about 1000 
students from 15 schools of Coimbatore and around 
visited the Expo with their teachers.

Teaching Discipline through A Novel Way!  
Central Academy School, Udaipur

A novel competition to teach the importance of 
discipline to the students was organized as an endeavor 
to sensitize the students to the increasing indiscipline 
in their life as well as in the society. The classes from 
VI to XII were given a common theme ‘Discipline’ for 
their morning assembly. It was really a neck to neck 
competition in which the students were free to show 
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their talent and express innovative ideas. There were a 
variety of speeches, poems, skits, stories and quotations 
on the given theme.

A poem and story presentation on disciplined 
life of ‘Ants’, discipline in ‘Army’ and an “Oath-Taking 
Ceremony” was conducted by the performers.

Every 'assembly' rendered ample proof for the 
students’ effort and desire to be disciplined in their 
life. Looking at the enthusiasm of the students the 
school plans to give ‘Save Mother Earth’ and ‘Misuse 
of Public Property’ as the themes for the next assembly 
competition.

DISCIPLINE – the ‘Assembly Theme’ of Central Academy School  
had a disciplined performance

Dikshant Samaroh  
Nimawat Public School, Sikar

'Dikshant Samaroh' was conducted with great 
zeal and enthusiasm. Especially for the outgoing 
students of class-XII who were showered with choicest 
blessings and good wishes for their bright future and 
were given “Diksha”. The students vowed to serve the 
society and the motherland with utmost dedication 
and selflessness. It was, indeed, a grand colourful event 
for the entire Nimawatian family leaving everlasting 
memories. NPS offers a wide panorama and activities to 
sharpen the hidden talents and skills to excel, not only in 
academics but in all walks of life. Games and sports too 
are given great importance as a strong mind dwells in a 

strong body. Prizes for various events were awarded to 
the meritorious students by the Chief Guest, Dr. Shakti 
Baijal, Director, Shridhar University, Pilani.

The Dikshant Samaroh’ of Nimawat Public School

Radio Drama Workshop 
Carmel Convent School, Chandigarh

A seven day Radio Drama Workshop on 
Road Safety/ Health Care/ Save Water, sponsored by 
Chandigarh Traffic Police on 30 July 2012 was oriented 
to train, initiate, activate and showcase the creativity 
among students on the given topics. The activities in 
the workshop had covered many of the ten essential 
Life Skills as defined by World Health Organization 
(WHO).

The students enjoying the recording session of ‘Radio Drama’

Students participated in the team of 12 members 
from classes VI to XII, and wrote original dramas on 



Transforming  Pedagogy 

77July-September 2012

the topics in Hindi, English and Punjabi. These dramas 
were recorded and broadcasted on A.I.R. 107.2 and 
103.1 FM on every Monday and Tuesday in the month 
of September 2012.

The workshop ended with the awareness of Road 
safety rules, health care and conservation of water in 
our daily life.

Independence Day Celebrations  
Vishnu School, Bhimavaram, Andhra Pradesh

The colourful performance by the kids marked the  
Independence Day Celebrations

The 66th Independence Day was celebrated 
at Vishnu School, Bhimavaram, Indoor Auditorium. 
Sri K.V. Vishnu Raju, Chairman of Sri Vishnu 
Educational Society hoisted the national flag and he 
urged and advised the students to make use of every 
opportunity that has been provided to them. The 
society is committed to strengthen the educational 
needs in accordance with the global expectations. He 
said that he longed to see his students performing 
well in their future endeavour as the citizens of this 
great country. The event society was attended by the 
Principal, the General Manager teaching and non-
teaching staff. The cultural programmes performed 
by the students of Vishnu School were praise worthy 
and an eye opener as they brought forth the struggle 
for freedom.

Independence Day Celebration and 
Investiture Ceremony, St. Mary's School, Morena

The newly elected Cabinet Student Council of St. Mary’s School, Morena

August 15, 2012 was a colourful and significant 
day at St. Mary’s School with the unfurling of the 
tricolor, followed with a message from the Principal, 
Rev. Fr. Dilip Nanda. The day was doubly momentous 
because of the ceremony of enthronization. The newly 
elected Cabinet Student Council officially swore their 
duties and responsibilities. The Head boy and the Head 
Girl, along with other House Captains promised to 
render their duties with sincerity and commitment. The 
Eco-Club for the year was also inaugurated on that day. 
All the members of the Club brought saplings for the 
school premises. The variety entertainment with tricolor 
brought in the additional delight.

Newspaper in Education  
Mahatma Gandhi Memorial Model School,Varkala

In the 30 years long blazing academic saga of 
the School, “The Hindu”news daily sponsored an 
orientation programme, Newspaper in Education, on 
25 July 2012. The event was inaugurated by Mr.Laxmi 
Narasimhan, the Regional General Manager, of ‘The 
Hindu’, at a colourful function in the school chaired 
by Mrs. Pooja, Principal.

Mr. Narasimhan in his keynote address observed 
that newspapers have a critical role in facilitating 
learning and promoting meaningful education. Apart 
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from being a socio-economic media, the newspaper is 
a powerful educational media too. Almost all dailies 
carry educational columns that provide materials of 
educational values in Science, Humanities, Ecology and 
Environment to help the learners to revolve themselves 
into creative thinking and problem solving citizens of 
the emerging knowledge society of the day. Besides the 
newspaper also serves the purpose of a tool for career 
guidance that enables young and aspirant learners to 
choose the course of study and institutions of their taste 
both at home and abroad.

Newspaper in Education, an orientation programme 
sponsored by ‘The Hindu’

Mams Earns Global Acclaim Maharaja Agrasen 
Model School, Pitampura, Delhi

Bipin Kalra, a student of class IX, who represented 
India as the NATIONAL CHAMPION of Microsoft 
Powerpoint 2007 in the 2012 Certiport Worldwide 
Competition on Microsoft Office at Las Vegas, USA on 
1 August, 2012 was felicitated by his school Maharaja 
Agrasen Model School, Delhi. The contest attracted 
more than 285,000 candidates from 53 countries, who 
competed to demonstrate their mastery and expertise in 
Microsoft Office products. Out of these, 113 contenders 
participated in the final round of the competition.
The most awaited spectacle flashed when Bipin Kalra, 
the technocrat Mamsian displayed his hi-tech skills, 
collaring a Bronze Medal coupled with 500 USD 
and a Merit Certificate. The school congratulates the 
champ for his outstanding victory he won himself and 
his institution and country.

Bipin Kalra being awarded the Bronze Medal, 500 US Dollars and  
a Merit Certificate in the 2012 Certiport Worldwide Competition

A Tribute to Srinivasa Ramanujan 
Little Rock Indian School, Brahmavar, Udupi

The year 2012 is a remarkable year for every 
Indian citizen. It is the 125th birth anniversary of 
the great Mathematical prodigy Srinivasa Iyengar 
Ramanujan.

The prize winners Madhavkripa School, Manipal of Maths Twistor 2012  
at Little Rock Indian School, Bhahmavar. Mr. Vidyavantha Acharya, 

Principal Sharada Residential School gives away the prizes

A week long programme including several 
competitions was held at Little Rock Indian School, 
Bhahmavar to celebrate this special occasion. Every 
section, starting from lower primary to senior secondary 
conducted various programmes. Chart-work depicting 
Ramanujan’s contributions and his life, skits on the 
topics importance of Mathematics, evolution of number 
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system, importance of ‘zero’, seminars and power point 
presentations on various topics, action songs, composing 
songs on the life and contributions of Ramanujan, quiz 
and hands on activities were held.

Maths Twistor-2012 was conducted for the 
students of CBSE and ICSE schools in Udupi and 
Mangalore districts. Twenty-eight schools participated 
in it. Maths Twistor is a series of competitions which 
includes power point presentations, model making and 
quiz competitions on different topics in Mathematics. 
This year the topic for the senior section was ‘Application 
of Mathematics’ in day-to-day life, and for juniors it 
was anything related to Mathematics.

The young Mathematicians at their best

Maths Twistor 2012 can best be described as a 
momentous programme of Little Rock a fitting tribute 
to the legendary Indian Mathematician Srinivasa 
Ramanujan.

Adityan Does It Again!! 
Aditya Academy (Sr.Secondary), Barasat

Neelarnab Raha of Aditya Academy represented 
West Bengal in the National Science Seminar at BITM, 
Kolkata. He topped the District Level Seminar which 
was organized by the National Council of Science 
Museum in collaboration with District Youth Officer. 
The topic of the seminar was Mathematics in India- 
Past, Present and Future. The participants in the State 
level competition were from the 18 districts of West 

Bengal. Neelarnab’s topic and presentation was well 
appreciated. The speakers were judged by Professors of 
Jadavpur University and Kolkata University. His ideas 
about the future of Maths in India was considered to 
be innovative by the eminent panel of judges.

Neelarnab Raha receives the award for being the topper of  
District Level Science Seminar

Quiz Competition 
DBMS Kadma High School, Jamshedpur

The brain is like a muscle – when it is in use we 
feel good as understanding is joyous. With this in mind 
and in order to promote fellowship and friendship 
with the spirit of competition, a Fest was organized 
in DBMS Kadma High School, Jamshedpur as an 
Inter School Event. Fifteen schools participated in 
this event.

The Quiz Master Mr. Tablish Imam conducting the Inter-School quiz
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The Inter School Quiz was conducted by the 
Quiz Master – Mr. Tabish Imam, an IITian, and the 
product of DBMS English School – our sister concern 
he whetted the appetite for knowledge by asking 
interesting questions not only from the participants 
but also from the audience present there.

The four selected teams – Perk, Munch, Five Star 
and Kitkat qualified after written round. It was a tough 
competition with the scores going neck to neck after 
every round. Finally the Perk team emerged as winners.

The winning team of the quiz competition

The questions were a mixed bag – right from 
Science to Literature, personalities and entertainment 
– the facts that enthralled the audience.

VIBGYOR  
Al-Ameen Public School, Ernakulam Dist, Kerala

School as a social organization plays a significant 
role in shaping the life of young people. The child’s 
experiences in the school are important for his/her 
personality development. With this aim, Al-Ameen 
Public School, Ernakulam organized ‘VIBGYOR’- a 
three days inter-house competition on 5, 6 and 7 July 
2012. It was a platform for each and every student to 
nurture their inherent talents.

The fest was inaugurated by Sri Siyad Koker, 
Trustees of Al-Ameen Educational Trust, on 5 July 
2012. The main activities included literary and cultural 
competitions, a talk show, etc.

The talk show was based on the question, ‘Can 
Money power erase all wrong doings?’ To nurture 
the innate talents of the students in anchoring and 
compering, a competition was conducted on ‘Master 
of Ceremonies’, in which the students came out with 
a lot of innovative ideas. Persuasive speech enhanced 
the power in students to establish the ideas with the 
support of strong arguments.

The theme of the group dance was ‘Around 
the World’. It aimed at getting knowledge about the 
existing dance forms in different parts of the world. 
‘Dance to the Music’ was on the spot choreography 
synchronizing music and rhythm simultaneously. 
Irrespective of the gender difference, competitions 
like flower arrangement, khana khazana, etc., were 
conducted. The gala event came to an end on 7 July 
2012. The valedictory function was held on the same 
day. The Chief Guest of the function was Mr. Cochin 
Mansoor and the function was presided over by our 
School Manager Adv. Shri T.P.M. Ibrahim Khan.

Georgeans Salute the Motherland 
St. George's School, New Delhi

The Annual Prize Distribution and Independence 
Day was celebrated on 14 August 2012 to commemorate 
the sacrifices made by a number of Indians irrespective 
of cast, creed and religion.

Mr. V.V. Chaudhary, Additional Commissioner of Police along with  
other dignitaries during the Independence Day Celebrations
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The Guard of Honour was given by the students 
of class IV. The Guest of Honour, Mr.V.V. Chaudhary, 
Additional Commissioner of Police, hoisted the 
National Flag to mark the 66th glorious day of India’s 
Independence. The programme commenced with the 
March Past followed by the oath taking ceremony. The 
welcome speech was given by the Head Girl followed 
by the prize distribution for the academic excellence for 
class XII students and teachers. The Chairman Mr. M. 
G.George Muthoot was felicitated for his outstanding 
achievements in business, religion and social field. Mr. 
V.V. Chaudhary, in his speech, inspired the young 
Georgeans to move ahead in life with a clear focus 
and determination towards their goal. Honourable 
Chairman and Principal, Dr. Sara George addressed 
the gathering in which they motivated the children to 
accomplish their goals.

This year the school is celebrating its 50th year, 
which coincides with the 150th birth anniversary of 
Swami Viveknanda. The cultural programme started by 
the Tiny Tots portraying Vivekananda, the leader of the 
youth followed by a patriotic song, ‘Ham Se Hindustan’. 
Pantomime, a dance drama showcased the fear instilled 
in the hearts of the common people due to terrorism.

Interschool Event - The 'Volksfiesta' 
The Deens Academy, Bengaluru

The swimmers from various schools competing to finish the first

The Deens Academy hosted its first Interschool 
event – the ‘Volksfiesta’- a celebration of student vivacity 

and their spirit of learning. It was about exposing them 
to new experiences, perspectives and opportunities. 
The event provided students with a stage to showcase 
their sporting / cultural/ creative and verbal talents 
and build on their excellence through competition 
with the best.

It was held over two days with a whole range of 
activities for all age groups. The children impressed all 
with their talents in music, dance, swimming, athletics, 
chess and some novel games like ‘robotics’, ‘odyssey of 
the mind’, ‘block and tackle’ which tested their verbal, 
hands-on and thinking skills.

Ms. Sumalatha Ambarish, Chief Guest presenting the Champions Trophy 
to the students of the Deens Academy

The event saw the enthusiastic participation 
from 20 schools around Whitefield. Rastrotthana 
Vidya Kendra and Inventure Academy won laurels 
in swimming, DPS East dominated the chess arena, 
Gopalan National bagged the prizes in the western 
music event, while the host Deens Academy earned 
prizes in the dance, Indian music and kindergarten 
section, thus winning the Champions Trophy. The 
fitting finale to the event was the gracious presence of 
Smt. Sumalata Ambarish- popular South Indian film 
actress, to commend the prize winners in the awards 
ceremony.

The schools enjoyed themselves thoroughly in 
the atmosphere of friendly rivalry, cheering loudly for 
their participants throughout the events. ‘Volksfiesta’ 
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certainly lived up to its name – a true celebration for 
the students!!

National Mathematics Year  
Carmel Convent School, Chandigarh

On the occasion of 125th Birth Anniversary 
of Srinivasa Ramanujan the National Mathematics 
Year at Carmel Convent School, Chandigarh was 
celebrated.

Glimpses of National Mathematics year at  
Carmel Convent School, Chandigarh

The members of the Maths Club (Class VI-X) 
organised a Mathematics Exhibition on 25 August 
2012 where the students exhibited 45 models showing 
use of Mathematics in everyday life such as:-

Parking system, architecture, cooking, astrology, 
solar system, fashion designing, dentistry, sports, 
games, Vedic Maths, city plan and Maths in our 
daily life.

The Class VIII had also prepared a show on 
Magical Kingdom of Mathematics presenting a play 
showing the Maths calculations done from the early 
era to the modern era.

VIBGYOR - A Cultural Extravaganza  
Sarla Chopra D.A.V. Public School, Noida

A two day Cultural Bonanza was hosted by the 
school from 28-29 August 2012. The Chief Guest 
on the occasion was Educationist and the Manager, 
Sh. R.K. Sethi. This cultural fiesta of Art, Music and 
Dance competitions commenced with ceremonial 
lighting of the lamp and chanting of solemn mantras. 
A grand audience of more than 20 schools from Delhi 
and NCR and other distinguished invites witnessed 
the spectacle.

Sh. R. K. Sethi, the Chief Guest of the VIBGYOR event giving away the 
prize to the winner. The Principal and other dignitaries were present too

The Principal of the host school, Ms. I.P. Bhatia, 
welcomed the audience.

The first event of the programme was Abhinandan 
Geet.

Simultaneously in other venues various Art 
Events were in full swing. These events included 
Painting (depicting Indian Epic), Cartoon Making 
(Mobile Mania) and Mural Making (OM, Peace, 
Harmony). The judges were Sh. Raghuveer Singh and 
Vijender Kumar – known names in the field of art 
and craft.

More than 70 students participated in the events 
and showcased their talent. 

Speaking on the occasion, Sh. R.K. Sethi 
encouraged the students to participate in such events.
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The Manager congratulated the Principal, Ms. 
I.P. Bhatia, for her efforts.

International Senior Citizen Day of 
Vatsalya International School, Borsad, Gujarat

Students of class XII at the Jalaram Old Age Home

Students of Class XII were taken to Jalaram Old 
Age Home run by the Jalaram Temple Trust, where 
they put up an entertainment show to entertain senior 
citizens by singing songs and playing games.

The students of all the classes prepared ‘Thank 
You’ cards for their beloved grandparents under the 
guidance of the art and craft teachers, Mr. Bipin 
Chauhan and Mr. Ganesh, on this occasion.

The cards for grandparents show the kids love and compassion

Cultural Exchange Programme, 
Vidya Bal Bhawan Sr. Sec. School, Delhi

Under the Cultural Exchange programme, 
School Principal Dr. S. V. Sharma along with his team 
of teachers visited Thailand from 20 August to 24 
August 2012 to “Demonstration School of Nakhom 
Pathom Rajabhat University, Thailand”. 

The Principal, teachers and the students of 
Demonstration School warmly welcomed the visitors 
from India. This was followed by a wonderful cultural 
performance. The Principal experienced classroom 
teaching, laboratory classes and primary section activity 
classes, had a glance at their books and syllabus. He 
talked to the students about their goals and interests. 
Students were also inquisitive about the business 
opportunities in India and scope of various streams 
offered in secondary classes.

The Principal of Vidya Bal Bhawan Sr. Sec. School amidst Thai Students

While talking to junior students, he observered 
that they had a very scientific approach to education and 
also students were taught with the help of visual aids 
and latest educational aids. The kindergarten was the 
most admirable part of the school where the tiny tots 
enjoyed their schooling with fun and joy. The visit and 
the interactive session with the teachers and students 
of the school gave the glimpses about the Thai culture 
and their traditions which are also influenced by Indian 
culture and tradition.
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Grandparents Day Celebration  
Vedant International School, Ahmedabad

“Family faces are magic mirrors, looking at people 
who belong to us, we see the past, present and future.”

A ‘lemon and spoon race’ for grandparents was fun

If you are one of the lucky ones to be blessed 
with a grandpa and grandma, you probably know how 
comforting it is to be put up with someone who has 
a wealth of experience behind them, someone who 
loves you unconditionally and spoils you with their 
affection.

Grandparents cement the bonds between 
generations and infuse family values and religious 
beliefs in the children. They can be your companion in 
times of solitude, and may even act as mediator, advisor 
and patient audience in times of need.

The winner grandpa receives the certificate and trophy

The Vedant International School celebrated 
Grandparents day on 14 July 2012 and organized the 
following activities :
  Games  fo r  s tudent s  w i th  the i r 

grandparents
  Rights of senior citizens in various areas 

were discussed.
  Prize distributions to winners of games.

The grandparents were happy faces at the end 
of the celebration.

A Ten Days Summer Camp  
DAV Sr. Sec. Public School, Cheeka, Haryana

A ten days summer camp was held during 
the summer vacation at DAV Sr. Sec. Public School, 
Cheeka. Principal, Mr. R.R. Suri said that summer 
camp is a good opportunity where students can 
discover their potentials and rediscover themselves. 
There were activities such as taekwondo, music, dance, 
yoga, drawing, scout camp, etc. Camping enhances self 
confidence, co-ordination, co-operation, leadership 
quality in students. Mr. Suri advised students to 
implement whatever they had gained in the camp in 
their practical life.

The camp ended with a short programme where 
Mr. Samandeep Singh and Miss Pooja Bindal were 
selected as good trainers in taekwondo and dance 
activities respectively. In the end the Principal gave away 
certificates of appreciation to the participants.

Principal R.R.Suri honouring the participants on the closure  
ceremony of ten days summer camp
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On the whole, this camp was amalgamation of 
activities which refreshes mind, soul and body.

Clubs with a Difference 
Delhi Public School, Rewari

Young learners have immense energy which 
has to be given the right direction in order to prepare 
them to face the challenges of modern life. With 
an objective to provide its students the opportunity 
to innovate and experiment, Delhi Public School, 
Rewari had set up different Academic Clubs. The 
prime objective of each club is to empower the 
students with a vision to understand the subject 
thoroughly and to implement the learning in a 
constructive way. English Club celebrated the month 
of April as the English month in which a series of 
activities were conducted like skits, fusion dance, and 
Chinese whisper, etc.

The month of July was full of activities conducted 
by Social Science Club. The students of class VI 
participated in Panchayat Election while class VII made 
beautiful maps on the floor using different materials. 
Similarly, class VIII and IX participated in Social 
Science Quiz and Class X prepared and presented a 
skit on ‘Consumer Awareness’. Hindi Club organized 
many activities like Slogan writing, Hasya Kavita, Doha 
Uccharan, Skit, preparing a Hindi Calendar, Converting 
prose to poetry, etc.

A student participating in mock Panchayat Elections held as a part of 
Social Studies Club activities

Similarly Science Club, Maths Club and IT 
Club (iGnite) will be conducting their specific activities 
in the month of October, November and December 
respectively.

Fun Fridays 
National Public School, Koramangala

The primary kids enjoying their Friday activities

After achieving tremendous success with the 
celebration of Special Weeks in the Primary grades, 
last year, NPS, KRM again approached the new 
academic year with an innovative twist. This year, the 
Primary grades were exposed to a novel idea of “Fun 
Fridays” in order to end the week on a jubilatory note.

The Friday afternoons were converted to a host of 
events complete with learning, experiences, interaction 
and a whole lot of entertainment.

Fun Fridays was effectively flagged in July. 
Aerobics combined with energetic dance workouts, 
shadow puppetry and theatre along with mime exercises 
were a few of the engaging activities in July.

August was packed with a multimedia 
presentation on India at the Olympics, storytelling 
sessions in Hindi and Kannada and a juggling show 
which kept all students in their element. Independence 
Day celebrations were continued with a guest speaker 
elaborating on the importance of our country and 
inculcating citizenship in the young learners.
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Ms Mira Sikand and Mr Nikhil Gambhir 
conducted an extremely engaging session on plant 
awareness, benefits of sprouts and various herbs and 
spices for all primary students. Each child walked away 
with a small ‘goodie bag’ consisting of instructions on 
how to take care of plants, sprouting seeds at home and 
some recipes using herbs and spices in our food.

The renowned State Puppeteer, Mr. Ranganath 
Rao enthralled the audience with a puppet show 
in Kannada. With the help of colourful puppets he 
depicted a few stories from the “Panchatantra Tales” 
and transported the students into a fantasy land.

September was replete with a Radio Jockey 
coming in to engage the students in a mock studio 
session and an intriguing Kathak performance by a 
renowned group of artists.

Thus it was a fulfilling first semester for all 
students of Primary grades and to say that Friday soon 
became a day which no child wanted to be absent in 
school could well be an understatement.

A student trying to smell the herb during a session on plant awareness

To understand it better in the words of Abdi 
Kazeroni, “In designing tasks, the instructor should take 
care to ensure that the task design requires active student 
participation and promotes the acquisition of the task's 
pedagogical goals.”

A Trip to NASA at Good Shepherd Senior 
Secondary English School, Karaikal

The Chairman, Principal and the students at the NASA, Space Centre

An educational trip to NASA was organized 
which was a great opportunity to achieve the best 
learning experience for any Shepherdian. A team of 
19 students were accompanied by the Principal, Mrs. 
Joy Thomas and the School Chairman, Mr. Ranson 
Thomas. The First stop was at the Johnson Space Centre 
in Houston, Texas, for the behind – the – scenes tour 
of the facility and a sneak- peek at some of the latest 
NASA developments. The students had the opportunity 
to get up close and personal with the Saturn five 
rocket, responsible for getting man to the moon and 
then and an all access pass to the floor of Historic 
mission control from where the first and last mission 
was spectacularly rescued. The students were given a 
wonderful opportunity to construct present and launch 
the rockets. Dr. Leroychiao PhD, former Astronaut, 
gave a motivational speech to the team.

The trip continued in Florida, where the students 
visited the Kennedy Space Centre and Astronaut 
Training Experience. The alligator infested rivers were 
not enough to put off the students as they explored the 
launch pad and famous Vehicle Assembly Building at the 
Space Centre, where they were treated to an unexpected 
encounter with the Space Shuttle Endeavour as it was 
being prepared for its new home in California. All the 
students put their knowledge to good use on a visit to 
UNO the General Assembly Building.
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The team then visited New York, Niagara Falls, 
Intrepid Museum of Sea, Air and Space, Sony Wonder 
Technology Lab, Statue of Liberty, Wax Museum 
and Universal – Islands of adventures. The students 
were exposed to new cultures, learnt new languages, 
enjoyed different foods and had fun all through their 
memorable journey.

Freedom Cup Inter-School Debate 
Chanderbala Modi Academy, Anklehshwar

The Annual Inter School Debate competition 
where all the prestigious CBSE schools f rom 
Central – South Gujarat participate was instituted 
to commemorate the golden jubilee year of Indian 
Independence. This year the competition was organized 
on 17 August at the Diamond Children Theatre and 
14 schools participated. The three judges appreciated 
the school's effort for providing children opportunity 
to come together and brainstorm for the cause of 
nation and humanity. They made unanimous appeal 
that schools must organize such competitions where 
students will get opportunity to interact and compete 
and hone their inter-personal skills.

The winning team being presented the Annual Inter-School  
Debate Competition Trophy

Independence Day Celebrations 
Azad Public School, Bulandshahr

It was a fine morning. Breezy and fresh air was 
blowing with students filled with patriotism, tri-color 

in their hands as it was the time to be a part of the 66th 
Independence Day Celebrations.

A panoramic view of the kids of Azad Public School forming  
the Independence Day

School Chairperson unfurled the National 
Flag and the entire school-premises echoed with the 
chorus of the National Anthem. Then began cultural 
programmes (patriot songs, plays and dances) by the 
energetic students. Sadhna Singh delivered the English 
speech, while Gaurav Sharma filled everybody’s heart 
with the feeling of patriotism with his Hindi speech. 
Students of all the classes became a part of the 66th 
Independence day by putting themselves as per the 
numerals and letters of the day. It was a grand sight and 
an exotic moment for everyone. All the students took 
an oath to make INDIA a developed country and make 
it self–sufficient in medicine, technology, education, 
sports, security and much more. They also took an oath 
to make Indians free from corruption and terrorism.

To conclude the memorable programme, the 
Principal, Mr. Nitesh Kumar Singh asked one and all 
to serve the nation with devotion and humility. He 
thanked the School President Mr.Wasiq Azad for 
sharing his valuable time.

Igniting Minds 
Meridian School, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad

Today’s students are the pillars of tomorrow’s 
India. Ensuring education for every child is the 
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call of the day. A unique Rural School Adoption 
Programme has been taken up by Meridian School 
for Boys and Girls, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad. For the 
past three years, Meridian has been organizing special 
programmes for students from the rural schools of 
Mahboobnagar district with the help of the Vande 
Mataram Foundation. Titled ‘Varadhi’ this aims at 
bridging the urban –rural divide between students.

The students of Meridian School performing various activities under  
the Rural School adoption programme

Over 150 students from different village schools 
in Mahboobnagar were hosted by Meridian this August 
for a three day programme. From 14 – 18 August, 
Meridianites were seen mingling with these students 
and ensuring utmost comfort for them on campus. 
The students were given a tour of the city, they visited 
the planetarium and played friendly matches with 
Meridianites. The teachers conducted special classes 
in Maths and Communicative English using novel 
teaching methods and aids. Each session was engaging 
and much loved by the students.

On the 15 August, Meridians shared the stage 
with the rural students in celebrating Independence 
Day. In a befitting tribute to the visionaries of modern 
India, the students displayed fraternity, equality and 
brotherhood reiterating our faith in our motherland 
and its ideals. To demonstrate this in its true sense, 
the Student Council is elected by the students of the 
school. Nominations are filed, campaigns by candidates, 
slogans and posters are seen everywhere to make the 

Meridianites feel the spirit of polling. The year 2012, 
has ushered in a new system of free and fair polls at 
Meridian with the induction of the indigenously created 
electronic voting machine. The brainchild of two 12 
grade IP students and their teacher, this unique IT 
application has taken every Meridianite by surprise.

Held in the last week of June, the 2012 election 
was a much awaited event. Each student was issued 
a unique voter identification number to ensure 
transparency throughout the process.

The glimpses of the selection of the Students’ Council and  
the Investiture Ceremony of Meridian School

A class of 30 students took about fifteen 
minutes to complete the process which was an amazing 
achievement- thirty seconds per student. This EVM 
helped in doing away with manual counting system 
thus eliminating scope for human error. Keeping the 
true spirit of democracy alive, the elected members 
were sworn in at the Investiture Ceremony held on the  
12 July, the Founder’s Day.

Visit to the Crawshaw School, 
Leeds GAV Public School, Kangra, H.P.

A group of seven students and teachers visited 
Crawshaw School Leeds. U.K in July 2012.

The students felt a vast gap between India and 
England in culture, religion, life style and noise free 
environment. They were highly impressed by the traffic 
rules as well as clean and beautiful roads.
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The GAV Public School teachers and students at  
Crawshaw School Leeds, U.K.

It was noticed by teachers that alongwith 
development England is eco-friendly, and women 
empowerment is practised. The laws are made to be 
obeyed. The people are honest and dedicated to their 
work. The civic sense and hospitality is incomparable.

One-day Fest 'Aapno Rajasthan'  
Saint Soldier Public School, Tonk, Rajasthan

The clay modelling and pot making attracted a lot of students during the  
‘Aapno Rajasthan Fest’

Art is the true depiction of one’s talent excellence 
and dexterity. On the beautiful morning of 23 July 2012, 
the Art and Craft club of Saint Soldier Public School 
organised a one-day Fest ‘Aapno Rajasthan’ depicting 
the State’s art and culture. The objective was to create 
awareness and respect among the students for their 
tradition. Everyone in the fest had a fancy for colorful 

rangolis, variant display boards, hands decorated with 
mehndi, pot making, clay modelling and Rajasthani 
folk dances. The feast was also organized by the 
students for the Chief Guest, the Director and other 
staff members. Sitting in rows on the floor they were 
served traditional food ‘Dal, Bati and Churma’. The day 
was made memorable for the students as they not only 
enjoyed it but also went back richer in experience of 
their own culture and tradition.

Activities for Holistic Development 
Prestige Convent Sr.Sec.School, Delhi

The school has been conducting and organizing 
various activities in the past six months that cover all 
aspects of a learner’s holistic development. The activities 
are listed

1. workshop on road safety :

The ‘Road Safety Workshop’

The School participated in a week-long workshop 
on ‘Road Safety’, conducted by Delhi Traffic Police. 
The training which commenced from 13 May 2012, 
educated a group of 32 selected students, under the 
expert guidance of Inspector Seema Sharma, the Chief 
Resource Person. The school’s Physical Education 
teachers were also a part of this endeavour, which 
imparted practical training at Madhuban Chowk and 
familiarized the young trainees with the traffic rules and 
the complexities involved with traffic management in 
big metros like Delhi. The programme concluded on 
19 May 2012, with a specially-organized screening of 
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a short documentary on Traffic Regulations, at Traffic 
Training Park at Punjabi Bagh.

2. VIsIt to ‘BIo dIVersIty park’ :

The school organized an educational trip to the 
Bio diversity Park located in outer Delhi in the month 
of April 2012. The students of class X were accompanied 
by their Science teachers to study the diverse flora 
and fauna in the natural surroundings. Students were 
informed about the scientific names of different flowers 
and told about their medicinal qualities.It was an 
exciting trip that combined thrill with education.

3. earth day CeLeBratIons

The school launched a week long celebrations 
for World Environment Day by conducting a special 
assembly and presentations on 'Global Warming' and 
'Save the Earth' campaign.

Class boards also displayed the theme of saving 
the environment in an artistic manner.

4.  Inter hoUse aCtIVItIes

The school organizes extra-curricular activities 
for its four houses at regular intervals. Recently on 14 
August 2012 a series of competitions were conducted 
at inter house levels with enthusiastic participants:

The Qawwali recital by the students was an ode to the Sufi Music

a) Qawwali Competition: - Donning traditional 
dresses and make-up,12 students from each 
House presented melodious qawwalis which left 
the audience spellbound. The performance was 
applauded and appreciated by one and all. The 

ambience of the traditional genre of Sufi Music 
was re-created.

b) Folk Dance Competition: - The wonderful art 
forms of Kathak, Puppetry, Dandia and Bhangra 
were fantastically presented by students of the 
school for the Inter –House Dance Competition.
The audience was mesmerised by the perfect 
representations of dance cultures.

The folk dance competition had dance performances  
representing various parts of India

Coast Guard Public School, Campbell Bay, 
Andaman and Nicobar Islands

Like every year, this year too the Coast Guard 
Public school organized campaigns and special outdoor 
activities.

Principal and students of Coast Guard Public School,  
Campbell Bay, in Great Nicobar Islands

The Great Nicobar Biosphere Reserve is home to 
a large variety of exotic flora and some endemic fauna. 
The students visited the reserve and closely observed 
how the birds and animals live in harmony with the 
nature. This island is naturally bordered by milky 
white sand beaches. The students under a campaign 
cleaned the wastes from the beach. To understand the 
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ecological niche of forest ‘Tree Planting’ activity was 
organised too.

Investiture Ceremony  
City Public School, Noida

Investiture Ceremony at City Public School, 
Noida was a grand affair which was marked by 
honouring of the students with badges, hence, enabling 
them to fulfill their responsibilities and duties with 
sincerity and dedication.

The Head Boy/ Head Girl Ayush Kedia and 
Anjali Yadav were felicitated by the Chairman and 
Principal respectively. They took a pledge to fulfill their 
responsibilities allotted to them with dexterity and 
determination. Students for Discipline, Sports, Cultural 
– Art and Craft/Dance were elected and nominated 
and were honoured too.

The House Mistresses of Gargi, Valmiki, 
Vashishta and Vyas houses elected the Captain, Vice-
Captain and House Prefects of various houses who took 
the oath to follow and abide by the rules. The students 
painted a delightful picture taking the pledge to carry 
out their responsibilities.

The Principal presented a motivational and 
inspiring speech and urged them to do their best.

The newly constituted Student’s Council of City public School, Noida 
along with their Chairman and  Principal

Integrity Club Activities  
Shri Ram Ashram Public School, Amritsar

The Integrity Club is constituted by 'Young 
Champions of Ethics' - student members from classes 
VI to X. Its motto “Living Values” and its mission of - 
leading ethical lives by the Young Champions of Ethics, 
propagating “human values” -Integrity, Patriotism, 
Tolerance, Secularism, Honesty and Love, not only in 
their families, school, community and society at large 
but strengthening a values based culture in the entire 
country.

The members of the Integrity Club ready to face new challenges

After taking the pledge and singing the integrity 
song the student group leaders discussed with their 
group members the values they find lacking in their 
schoolmates and designed strategies to accomplish 
them - during their weekly club meets.

Regular visits by the club members to Pingalwara, 
(GT Road and Manawala) helped them to reach out a 
helping hand to their less privileged brothers and sisters, 
to spare time to talk to them and to share their feelings, 
thus developing an innate sensitivity and compassion 
for their needs.

The Club invites drama groups frequently to 
enact plays depicting the vices in our society, suggesting 
remedies to the same, leaving behind valuable messages 
to reflect upon and self-introspection in the young 
minds thus igniting a spark of social responsibility in 
them.
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Competitions such as Portrait making, Slogan 
writing and Rangoli making are other multipronged 
efforts made by the club to impress upon their peer 
group the message of integrity.

This group moves along the corridors, picking 
up a toffee wrapper here and a waste paper there, 
maintaining discipline in the walkways during recess 
and at dispersal time, with confident smiles and 
beaming faces, compassion and service emancipating 
from their conduct, they act as wonderful role models 
for their brethren.

U.K. Delegates Visit 
Mount Abu Public School,Rohini, Delhi

Aiming at strengthening the bond between 
Indian and foreign schools by understanding the 
educational system and culture in each school, MAPS 
had the privilege of hosting the delegates Michele Bacen, 
Deputy Head Teacher, Waid Decan High School and 
Philomena Noone, Incharge, Student Council, Waid 
Decan High School, United Kingdom.

Michele Bacen, Deputy Head Teacher and Philomena Noone, Incharge Student 
Council from Waid Decan High School, U.K. at the felicitation ceremony

It was a great opportunity for the students and the 
faculty of the school to learn and share other's system of 
education. The delegates were escorted by the Principal, 
Mrs. Jyoti Arora. After the formal welcome, the guests 
attended a small cultural program that included 
our National Prize Winning Folk Dance of Orissa- 

‘Ranappa', Fashion Show and a dance performance by 
tiny tots. They saw the cultural programme. The school 
felt proud when it received the words of appreciation 
from the Guests for all the efforts and innovation it is 
making in the field of education.

The delegates from Waid Deccan High School, U.K. enjoyed the  
interaction with students

First State Level Rocketry Model Workshop 
Greenwood Public School, Gwalior

Greenwood Public School hosted “First State 
Level Rocketry Model Workshop” for students of 
classes ‘IX to XI’ on 3 and 4 September 2012.

The workshop was conducted by eminent 
Scientists from Vikram A. Sarabhai Community 
Science Centre, Ahmedabad. Around 25 schools from 
in and around of the city participated in the event. 

The workshop covered:
  Theory and practical knowledge about how 

to design a Model Rocket.
  Basic theory about Newton’s Laws of 

Motion and Gravitation, distance, velocity 
and momentum and aerodynamic force.

  Understanding of stability, launching and 
recovery for the model rocket.

  Safety code to be followed during 
fabrication and launching of Model 
Rocket.
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  Theoretical aspects about PSLV and 
GSLV.

The participants and teachers along with eminent Scientists from 
Vikram A. Sarabhai Community Science Centre, Ahmedabad

 The main thrust of the workshop was on “Do it 
yourself activity” with a scientific approach.

The workshop made a real difference in the effort 
to educate, motivate and empower new generation of 
progressives.

SANMUN 2012 Sri Sankara Senior Secondary 
School, Adyar, Chennai

The Chief Guest Mr. N. Kumar, Honorary Council General for Greece 
with the participants of SANMUN-2012

Sankara Model United Nations (SANMUN) 
2012 was held on 10, 11 and 12 August 2012. Mr. 
N Kumar,Honorary Consul General for Greece, 
was the Chief Guest at the inaugural function. 11 
city schools participated in 'Model UN' by sending 

more than 215 delegates, representing 54 countries. 
The delegates discussed and debated upon various 
topics in 7 committees namely: Security Council, 
Environment Program, HRC, DISEC, African 
Union, European Union and Economic and Social 
Committee. Resolutions were passed in all the 
committees. Emergency situation was declared by 
Secretary General. The delegates discussed and debated 
to solve the emergency crisis. SANMUN 2012 was a 
grand success.

VIRASAT 2012 
Sri Sankara Sr Secondary School, Adyar, Chennai

The Interact Club of Sri Sankara Senior 
Secondary School hosted SPIC-MACAY VIRASAT 
2012 at the school premises. The students witnessed 
the Chhau Dance – one of the ancient Indian tribal 
and martial dance forms. The program was organised 
by SPIC-MACAY, an organization which seeks to 
conserve and promote awareness of the rich and varied 
cultural heritage of our country amongst the youth.

The dance recital of Mahishasura Mardhini by Purulia Chhau dance 
group was a part of SPIC-MACAY Virasat 2012

The students witnessed dance recital of 
‘Mahishasura Mardhini’ by the energetic and vibrant 
members of the Purulia Chhau dance group. Apart 
from the music, the masks of the performers, the 
martial practices employing mock combat techniques 
and stylised gaits of birds and animals stunned the 
audience.
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School Fest - OPUS - Euphoria 
The Oxford Senior Secondary School, Bengaluru

OPUS – Euphoria was organized on 27 and 
28 August 2012. The morning of 27 was a great 
opportunity to unearth the multi-faceted talents of the 
students. The inauguration started with an invocation 
by the school choir and a welcome dance. The Chief 
Guest, Mrs. M.D. Pallavi, an eminent singer, actress 
and film-maker expressed her pleasure in being a part 
of the programme. She emphasized on the spirit of 
participation, no matter whether one wins or loses. 
She also mesmerized the audience with her live vocal 
performance.

The Oxford School Band gave a captivating performance during  
school fest OPUS-Euphoria

The programme was presided over by the 
Executive Director, Shri S.N.V.L. Narasimha Raju, 
who declared the Fest open. He further encouraged, 
motivated and appreciated the innovative skills of the 
Oxfordites. He also asked the participating schools to 
carry the experiences and the memories as a part of 
learning process.

Competitions started with final rounds of various 
events. It provided an opportunity to the students of the 
participating schools to be a part of some breath taking 
events like Panorama, Waltz and Whirl, Race to Infinity 
and so on. The events gave a chance to the Oxfordites 
to take inspirations from the ex-Oxfordites who were 
present as judges. The activities conducted by a famous 
Radio Jockey, “Beat Raja” and Band performance by 

the “Diamante” stole the show leaving the audience 
spellbound.

The Chief Guest for the Valedictory function 
was Ms.Radhika Gandhi, a cine artist and fashion-
designer who impressed upon keeping right attitude 
and will to accept the challenges with spirituality. 
The Executive Director of The Oxford Educational 
Institutions, Sri S.N.V.L.Narasimha Raju passed 
the message of spreading the light of knowledge 
everywhere.

Delhi State Teachers' Award - for 
Dr. Sara George St. Georges School, New Delhi

A historic moment for all Georgeans….

Smt. Sheila Dixit  confers the State Teachers’ Award to Dr. Sara George, 
Principal St. George School, New Delhi

On the pious occasion of Teachers’ Day, Smt. 
Sheila Dikshit, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Delhi, in 
the presence of Prof. Kiran Walia, Hon'ble Education 
Minister of NCT; Sh. Amit Singla, IAS, Director of 
Education, Delhi and Dr. R.P. Malik, Chairman of 
the Federation of Public Schools conferred the State 
Teachers’ Award on our Principal, Dr. Mrs. Sara George 
at a glittering function held at Thyagaraja Stadium, 
New Delhi. The award carries a Certificate of Merit, a 
medal, cash award and a shawl.

In her capacity as the Principal, she has been 
making significant contributions towards students’ 
innovative, unique and novel all round development. 
She believes that education must enrich their 
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minds, broaden their horizons and give them ever 
lasting hunger for exploring new ideas and vistas of 
opportunity.

VIRASAT 2012 
Bhavan's Vidyashram, Bhimavaram

On 11 August 2012, the school celebrated 
VIRASAT 2012, under the aegis of SPIC-MACAY 
(Society for Promotion of Indian Classical Music 
and Culture Amongst Youth). A Kuchipudi dance 
programme was performed by an eminent Kuchipudi 
Artist Sri Yeleswarapu Srinivasuylu supported by 
Kum. Ch. Aamani dancer, Sri Kumar Babu on flute, 
Sri P. Harinath on Mrudhanga and Smt. Durga 
Bhavani as Vocalist. Sri Y. Srinivasulu shared the 
nuances of the Kuchipudi dance and the benefits of 
dancing like good physique, lowering blood pressure 
and increase in concentration, which created an 
awareness of learning dance among students. These 
type of programmes sensitize the children about 
our Indian culture and tradition, which is the need 
of the hour.

A Kuchipudi dance performance organized under the aegis of  
SPIC-MACAY

Celebration of the Year of Mathematics  
D.A.V. Public School, Faridabad, Haryana

The Senior Secondary Segment organized 
an Inter-House MATHEMATICS QUIZ for the 
students of Classes XI and XII. This competition was 
held on 30 August 2012 in the Mahatma Hansraj 

Auditorium of the school. The six teams comprised of 
five participants from each house who were selected 
from a gruelling Screening Test in which more than 
150 students had participated. The teams were named- 
ALPHA, BETA, GAMA, DELTA, THETA, and 
PHI. Five rounds of questions were asked in which 
the participants ably and enthusiastically displayed 
their mathematical skills. The Audio-Visual rounds 
and the Buzzer round of the quiz generated particular 
interest among the students. The audience also keenly 
answered the questions passed on to them and were 
awarded for the same.

The ‘Phi’ team all set to answer the questions during  
the Mathematical Quiz

The GAMA team f rom Everest House 
emerged the winner closely followed by the team 
BETA from Kaveri House. The quiz was meticulously 
and successfully organized under the able guidance 
of the Principal of the school, Sh. S.S. Chaudhary 
and by the Mathematics Faculty. The quiz masters, 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar (HOD) and Ms. R. Vidya 
Govindarajan (Senior Faculty Member), conducted 
the quiz.

Teej Celebrations  
Narain Public School, Patiala

N.P.S. Celebrated Teej Festival on 23 July 
2012. All Naranians of Junior Wing Came to school 
in Traditional Punjabi dresses. They were looking 
gorgeous. The ground of N.P.S. was decorated with 
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Fulkari’s, Prandha’s and Swings, etc. Teachers were also 
dressed in Punjabi attire. There were stalls of kheer/
puri’s and sweets; balloon and bangle sellers were also 
a point of attraction.

The little girls performing ‘Gidha’ dance during Teej celebrations

The programme started with Bhangra presented 
by the Little Kids of Prep I and Prep II. After that 
girls of I and II presented Gidha with enthusiasm. 
The atmosphere was like a Teej fair. Songs were sung 
by the teachers. Mehndi competition was also held. 
Principal Mrs. Manjit Kaur Waraich, appreciated and 
encouraged the students.

Celebration of Hindi Divas  
Anandalaya, Anand, Gujarat

A three days programme was conducted from 12 
to 14 September 2012 to celebrate the Hindi Divas.

On 12 September 2012, Principal Mr. Regi 
Oommen, Chief Coordinator Mr. Tejash Kr. Desai 
along with the faculty members formally inaugurated 
the programme by lighting the lamp. On 12 September, 
the students of classes III-V participated in various 
activities like Hindi Song, Riddles, Skit and Couplet 
recitation.

On 13 September 2012, an open discussion 
on the topic “Efforts to Make Teaching of Hindi 
Interesting and Child Friendly" was held. Teachers 
from nearby CBSE schools Shri Shri Ravi Shankar 
Vidya Mandir, Jain Vidyalaya, V and C. Patel School, 
Vrajbhoomi International and Angel Education Centre 

actively participated in the debate and also expressed 
their views.

The ‘Hindi Divas’ was celebrated by the staff and 
students of Anandalaya, Gujarat

The teachers took a pledge to give a new direction 
to the teaching of Hindi Subject from Primary level to 
the Secondary level.

On 14 September 2012, the Senior Students 
from classes VI-XII presented the Special Assembly in 
regard to Hindi Divas. The Chief Guest of the function 
was “Charutar Ratana” and the Vice-Chancellor of 
Dharmasinh Desai University, Hon.Dr. Harsad Desai.
He inspired the students with his speech emphasizing 
the importance and the need for proper planning, 
execution and right thinking for achieving success in 
life. Various competitions like Shloka Recitation, Kavi 
Sammelan and Gyan Ki Kausauti were organized.

Maths Seminar 
CCA School, Gurgaon, Haryana

With the year 2012-13 being celebrated as the 
'National Year of Mathematics' in India, the school 
organized various activities to diminish Maths phobia 
and inculcate love for number magic. The aim was also 
to encourage students to pursue the field of Maths in 
future. With a view to highlighting the new teaching 
pedagogy and professional issues in mathematical fields 
and also to address the advancement in Mathematics, 
seminars, quiz, activities involving puzzles, Maths 
posters, album of Mathematicians, tangram activity, 
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curve stitching activity and various games like 
Mathematical tambola were organized at all the 
levels.

Maths Marathon was organized in which all the 
students were given 100 marks paper of 50 questions of 
varying difficulty level and the time limit was 2 hours. 
The top rankers of each class were awarded and house 
wise position was taken out.

Maths seminar was hosted to focus on combining 
Maths with fun, while engaging youngsters in group 
discussions. Difficulties and challenges were broadly 
discussed and then after brainstorming teachers came 
out with beautiful and possible remedial techniques 
of improving Maths performance. School is also 
planning to release a newsletter under the guidance of 
the Principal, Mrs. Nirmal Yadav, and the Chairperson, 
Col K P Singh.

Ahlcon's Soho Comet 2333 Discoverer Does India 
Proud, Ahlcon Public School, Delhi

Prafull Sharma, a class XII student of Ahlcon 
Public School, Delhi is creating a commendable buzz by 
becoming the first school student in India and the 83rd 
person in the world to discover a SOHO comet 2333.

Prafull Sharma is the first school student in India  
to have discovered a Comet.

Prafull, an avid stargazer, recounts how his 
passion was first kindled as a member of the Ahlcon 
Space Club.

Prafull’s fascination and dedication saw him 
journeying to Patna in 2009 to witness the solar eclipse, 
then to Kerala in 2010 for the ring eclipse.  In 2011, 
he discovered an asteroid as part of a project under All 
India Asteroid Search Campaign in collaboration with 
the La Palma observatory, Spain.

Thereafter, as part of SPACE’s Sun grazer 
project, Prafull observed a SOHO comet on 14 July, 
2012, in the data of SOHO satellite’s LASCO C2 
coronagraph.  The British Astronomical Association 
confirmed the find and included it in their list of newly 
discovered comets.  This kind of discovery is very rare 
and has very irregular characteristics.

It, indeed, is an extremely laudable feat.  
Commending him on the same a SOHO moderator 
mentioned how a lot of time has to be invested in 
such projects as it requires scouring through massive 
data.  He further added, “ Discovers like him are really 
crucial for the scientists to understand the dynamic 
nature of comet populations” and “to help them to infer 
the properties of comets, the left-over debris from the 
building of our Solar System”.

The discovery has won accolades for not only 
Prafull’s alma mater but has also positioned India on 
the world map in the field of astronomy and space 
science.

The school provided every possible help and 
guidance to the members of Ahlcon Space Club with 
the assistance of Delhi based NGO, SPACE.

Spotting his special talent, our Principal Dr. 
R.K. Sharma and Mr. Sanjeev Bansal, Physics Dept., 
specially encouraged him and provided all possible 
facilities like installing a telescope, studying radio waves 
and all other requirements that he sought.

It is a matter of great pride for all of us - CBSE, 
Delhi State, Ministry of Education and the nation as 
a whole that a school student from India has made a 
rare space discovery.  He really deserves honours and 
acknowledgement from everyone.
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Grandparents Day Celebrated Lawrence 
and Mayo Public School Kota

Lawrence and Mayo Public School, Srinathpuram, 
Kota celebrated “Grandparents Day” on 1 September 
2012 in which grandparents (from both maternal 
and paternal side) of students of classes KG to V 
were invited. “Grandparents are the souls of a family 
and should be respected and regarded duly” was the 
purpose of the programme.

The jam-packed auditorium of the school 
dipicted the enthusiasm of the grandparents.

A short programme enraptured the grandparents 
which started with Hanuman Chalisa. Students danced 
to old songs by imitating their grandparents like “Oh 
Meri Johran Jabin, Dadi Amma, Dadi Amma Man Jaon” 
etc. "Personal experiences with grandparents" were 
narrated through short speeches by students which 
moved their hearts.

Some grandparents were honored by being 
the Chief Guests for the prize distribution function. 
Students received prizes for their excellent performances 

in co-curricular activities. The best dressed grandparents 
(theme-Rajasthani Attire) were selected and awarded 
a prize.

A student being awarded prize on the Grandparents Day  
celebrations

Principal Er. Pradeep Singh Gour expressed his 
deep regards for grandparents and also conveyed how 
grandparents are special and are the strong bonds of 
a family.

The highest education is that which does not 
merely give us information, but makes our life 
in harmony with all existence.

 – Rabindranath Tagore
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Earth Day Celebration 
Vishwa Bharati Public School, Dwarka, New Delhi

A special assembly was held on April 23 in the 
school premises to commemorate the 42nd anniversary 
of Earth Day. The crusaders of Mother Earth 
celebrated the day with great enthusiasm voicing their 
environmental concern and love for Nature through 
skits, speech, song and dance. Chief Guest Mr. Sheel 
Kumar, a renowned Environmentalist was accorded a 
warm welcome.

The little students sharing the environmental concern on  
Earth Day Celebrations

The Programme commenced with a speech by 
a student to sensitize the audience about the various 
problems faced by our planet and the need to redress 
them. The primary students dressed as fruits, flowers, 
sun, etc., presented ‘All things bright and beautiful' 

in praise of God’s most beautiful creation - Mother 
Earth. The ecological imbalance created due to the 
ever increasing demands on the natural resources was 
aptly portrayed through the skit ‘Earth then and now’. 
An energizing musical number, ‘Mother Nature needs 
us’ presented by the senior students urged everyone to 
do their bit in saving the planet. It was followed by a 
pledge song to work towards, a cleaner, greener earth. 
A Nukkad Natak performed by class XII students 
drew thunderous applause. Dressed as the 5 elements, 
they proclaimed a final warning to mankind through 
characteristic rhythmic dialogues and folk music. In his 
address, the Chief Guest urged the students to grow 
trees and gave other valuable suggestions.

A musical tribute to Mother Earth

An engrossing Earth Day Quiz ‘Vasundhara’ 
with a good mix of questions on various topics viz. 

Green Page
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famous environmentalists, flora and fauna, wildlife, etc. 
had all the contestants on their toes with the audience 
taking a great deal of interest. Poster and collage making 
competitions on the topic ‘Save Earth’ drew enthusiastic 
participation

Birthdays are Special 
Sanjay Ghodawat International School, Kolhapur

Birthdays are celebrated in a unique way. The 
students are wished during the assembly and later 
during the day the students, together, with the class 
teacher and the classmates, plant saplings. There is no 
distribution of sweets. The students are also encouraged 
to donate books for the class library. The students take 
great pride in tending to their plants and through 
this the school plays a pivotal role in environmental 
protection.

The ‘Birthday Girl’ planting a sapling on her birthday to make it special.

Celebration of Van Mahotsav  
Khalsa Model Secondary School, Kolkata

Nature, the storehouse of all ideas and the 
mother of all inspirational resources, has inspired poets, 
painters, musicians and even scientists for centuries. 
Our environment is the most precious gift of nature 
hence the preservation as well as the protection of our 
mother nature is the need of the hour.

Nature sends us the message of inspiration. The 
burgeoning of a plant from its shoot and the struggle 

of a plant for its existence reminds the truth “Roots of 
success are formed through hard work”. This inspiring 
act of Nature always gets an exotic dimension through 
the celebration of Van Mahotsav in Khalsa Model 
Senior Secondary School.

We will nurture the saplings planted by us-the 
Eco-Club members promised

In this year, on 6 July, a colourful extravaganza 
was organized by the students in the school auditorium 
to remind all against the ominous threat, global 
warming. In order to give a serene beginning, students 
of senior classes presented a religious song. The impact 
of nature on human being, was projected by melodious 
songs. The inaugural speech was delivered by Principal, 
who encouraged the enthusiasm of the students.

The Van Mahotsav celebration at Khalsa Model Sec. School, Kolkata

The school got the opportunity to witness the 
eminent personality, Mr. S. Devdas, Regional Officer, 
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CBSE as the Chief Guest. Eco-club members made 
a beautiful presentation on the usefulness of planting 
trees. The entire auditorium along with classrooms took 
a celebratory look because of the display of charts and 
posters.

The programme concluded with a vote of thanks. 
Students of eco-club with guidance of some teachers 
planted some saplings at the corner of the school 
playground.

Plantation Day 
Navayuga Radiance School, Lucknow

The students pledged a solemn oath to give back 
something to Nature as they celebrated 'Plantation 
Day' on 28 July 2012. The staff and students gathered 
on the Saturday morning at the school grounds 
braving the heat and humidity to strive for a better 
Lucknow under “Making my city greener” drive. the 
event was graced by the august presence of the First 
Citizen of Lucknow, Dr. Dinesh Sharma, the newly 
re-elected Mayor. The purpose of this plantation day 
celebration was to bring the environmental awareness 
amongst the students to grow more and more plants 
and trees for a pleasant and safe environment and 
to combat the environmental pollution. The purpose 
of this activity was also to beautify the school and 
its surrounding areas and spread the awareness on 
the importance of plants and trees and their healthy 
effect on the environment.

The programme was also graced by Mr. K.L. 
Gupta, ex-DGP, President of School, Sri. Sudhir S. 
Halwasiya, the Manager of the school, other important 
dignitaries and respected committee members. Principal, 
Mrs. Farzana Shakeel Ali stressed that, it is very 
necessary that the responsible schools along with their 
staff and students must strive to create and maintain a 
neat and clean environment and surroundings so that it 
becomes a second nature of the children. It is education 
and its enlightenment that can bring in the required 
awareness towards the environment and the resilience 
to make the change. The school being the nursery of 

the future generation takes immense pride when its 
students prove themselves in different fields.

Ms. Farzana Shakeel Ali, Principal, Navayuga Radiance School, 
Jankipuram, Lucknow, Mr. Sudhir Halwasiya, Manager, Chief Guest  
Mr. Dinesh Sharma, Mayor of Lucknow, Ms. Minnie Pandit, Vice 

President of SMC planting Bottle Palm sapling on the occasion of Van 
Mahotsav.

The guests of honour then proceeded to 
planting of saplings followed by the school teachers 
and students.

Environment Day Celebrated With a Difference  
St Xavier' High School, Nagpur

The students of St Xavier’ High School MIDC, 
Nagpur celebrated World Environment Day with 
a difference. About 250 students gathered and held 
various coloured papers to depict the drawing of Earth 
with perfect demarcation of greenery, water bodies 
and the various continents. As the global situation is 
alarming this was a gesture to exhibit their apprehension 
and support to “Go Green Movement”. The students 
passionately expressed their concern with the message 
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“Save Earth” with the human chain and the depiction 
of the globe.

About 250 students with coloured paper recreating the Globe  
to celebrate the Environment Day

Students took active part in competitions such 
as poster making, slogan writing on the theme of “Save 
Environment” in various categories. Later children 
conducted the awareness rally holding placards and 
posters to create awareness about the environment 
protection. 

Environment Month at  
Vagad Gurukul International School, Thane

To spread understanding about the ‘Importance of 
Green Environment’, the School observes ‘Environment 
Month’ annually in the month of June. Vagad Gurukul 
ensures that emphasis is laid on various activities during 
this month like presentation of Special Assemblies on 
Environment Awareness, planting of trees, etc. Students 
strive to make their Assembly apt by performing various 
pictorial skits, reciting self-composed poems, well 
focused pledge to keep the scene green with quotes for 
the day and Go Green songs.

School also has an ‘Eco Club’ which organizes 
Environmental Awareness Activities and looks after 
the plantation of vegetables and flowers at the campus. 

Since Vagad Gurukul is a residential school, the Eco 
Club is on task 24x7 for the whole year with a motto 
to keep Vagad cool and evergreen.

Students performing a Pictorial skit in the Special Assembly titled  
‘Go Green’ which was conducted on the World Environment Day

Green Day Celebration 
Shri Rajendra Vidhya Sanskar Dham, Rajgarh

Plantation Programme was organized on 
Hariyali Mahotsava on 19 July 2012 (Thursday). 
Plants comprising of Neem, Gulmohar, Amaltas, 
Mango, Ashok, etc.were planted by students. Principal 
Mr.Vinod Kanere explained the importance of trees on 
this occasion.

The kids ready to plant a sapling in their school premises
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School founder Sadhvi Shri Vimalyasha Shriji 
and teachers were present and lauded the efforts of 
the students.

Save Mother Earth For Peaceful Co-Existence  
Shree Sarasswathi Vidhyaah Mandheer 

Institutions, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu

Painting on the Canvas for a cause

The need of the hour is to conserve the 
environment for peaceful co-existence. The students 
conveyed the message that “People should not exploit 
nature to satiate their greed and selfishness and saplings 
should be planted for the sake of posterity”.

All four houses with their colourful paintings on the environment themes.

The students of four Houses were given the 
topics (a) India–2050, (b) Alternative Energy, (c) 
Eco-friendly Vehicles and (d) Plastic Free Zone. Each 
House brought out the salient features of the given topic 

through colourful paintings on 10’x10’ canvas. They 
were thought provoking. The Cretaceous House bagged 
the Championship Trophy. The Managing Trustee  
Dr. Manimekalai Mohan and Trustee Mr. Mohandoss 
along with the audience applauded the participants and 
gave away the prizes to the winners, recognizing their 
innovative ways of thinking.

Hariyali Mahotsav  
Army Public School Kandrori, Nangalbhur

The School celebrated Hariyali Mahotsav on 
21 July 2012.Slogan writing and Rangoli making 
competitions were organized. The students prepared 
charts, posters and placards and wrote slogans on them. 
The tree plantation drive was also organized by the 
students of Eco club. Students planted saplings in the 
school premises under the guidance of the Principal 
and the teachers.

Girls making ‘GO GREEN’ Rangoli with vibrant colours

The celebration made the students aware about 
the environment and importance of trees in our life. 
Ms Arati Patel, Principal of the school appreciated 
the students for displaying their concern for the 
environment.

Eco-Club Activities 
St. Mary's Sec. School, Dehradun

The Eco-club entitled “Green Peace Marians” 
was set up in 2008 under the leadership of Rev. Sr. Regi 
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and Mrs. Renu. The members of the Eco-club have been 
conducting various eco-friendly drives every year in the 
school to promote awareness of our environment. The 
school has already been declared as a ‘polythene free 
zone’. Students have come together, put their best foot 
forward, organised various activities, such as cleaning 
the school campus, using waste material for making 
useful products, making paper bags, decorating pots and 
pot holders. The club aspires to make conservation of 
nature and natural resources permanent habit amongst 
the students.

The sapling plantation and nurturing plants is  
an important part of Eco-Club.

Throwing garbage in the dustbin, switching of 
the lights and fans when not in use, conserving water are 
being calculated as moral values in the students as well as 
staff members. On July 30, 2012, Rev. Sr. Sebastina, the 
President of the Institution, was given a hearty welcome 
and various activities were staged in her honour. The 
sapling green peace Marians conducted a plantation 
drive. Sr. Sabestina, Sr. Arti and Sr. Regi planted 
saplings followed by the staff member and the cabinet 
members. The Principal, Rev. Sr. Aarti made the students 
take a pledge to save our environment by planting at 

least one tree on their respective birthdays. The Motto 
for the St. Marians is EACH ONE, PLANT ONE.

Van Mahotsav Celebrations  
Maharaja Agrasen Model School, Pitampura, Delhi

Van Mahotsav was celebrated on Aug 3 and 4, 
2012 with an aim to sensitize children towards the 
dire need to safeguard trees against their unreasonable 
cutting leading to global warming and the deteriorating 
environmental conditions.

 A plethora of activities was scheduled for day 1 
and day 2 respectively which included science – activity 
demonstration, mathematics powerpoint presentation, 
social science skit, english wall graffiti, sugam sangeet, 
computer animated e- greeting, commerce ad-o-mania, 
poster making, Hindi extempore and dance .The various 
competitions saw a great number of participants from 
different schools of the neighbourhood. Children of 
MAMS showcased great vision in creating the Wall 
Graffiti called as ‘Carving Utopia’ which featured the 
excellent fusion of past and present times so as to have 
glorious and prosperous future.

The graffiti called as ‘Carving Utopia’ featuring the fusion of past  
and present created by MAMS students

A Clean and Beautiful City 
Paramekkavu Vidya Mandir, Thrissur, Kerala

War against terrorism has captured the interest 
of the international community. But in small town 
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of Thrissur, in Kerala, the students are on the 
warpath to fight the menace of garbage polluting the 
beautiful, cultural capital of Kerala. On 5 June World 
Environment Day, they took a vow to free the city of 
domestic garbage piled high on the road sides. The first 
confident step was to ensure that wastes generated in 
the school are disposed off hygienically. The PVC Pipe 
Method of composting the wastes was launched in the 
school and a circular was issued to all the students with 
clear instructions to take care of the wastes generated 
in their respective homes.

A follow up questionnaire was given to the 
parents at the Open House and this questionnaire gave 
a clear picture of the inability of apartment owners to 
dispose off their wastes. Most of the high rise apartment 
buildings had no provision to take care of their solid 
waste and this prompted the residents to throw their 
garbage on the road side. Some of the students and their 
parents have taken the initiative to spread awareness 
about the urgent need to install eco-friendly garbage 
disposal units in their apartment blocks and a few 
Residents Associations have already gone ahead with 
the project. Working with single minded devotion, 
the children have roped in the support of the local 
self-government officials and MLA Sri Therambil 
Ramakrishnan and the Councilor, Girish Kumar. A 
clean and beautiful Thrissur is their dream for the not 
too distant future.

World Environment Week 
The Heritage School, Pune

On 19 June the Heritage School started its 
World Environment Week. The teachers in charge were 
Mr. Dnyaneshwar Nikumbh, (Art and Work), Mrs. 
Prathiba Paithankar and Deepali Patil. The students 
took part in various activities which continued till 23 
June. The students showed their appreciation towards 
the environment by making paper bags and posters to 
ban plastic bags.

On the last day of the Environment Week, 
students of class VIII went on a procession to save the 

nature. They were accompanied by Mrs. Jyoti Ghadge. 
They distributed paper bags and also spread awareness 
with their placards. The environmental week ended on 
23 June and was a huge success!

Heritage School, Pune creating awareness through messages on placards

Green Olympiad 
S.D Vidya Mandir, HUDA, Panipat, Haryana

The members of the Environmental Club with the saplings for plantation

Keeping up the spirit of the motto of the school 
"Save Earth and Save Environment" the S.D Vidya 
Mandir, Panipat organized Tree Plantation Day and 
Green Olympiad. The theme of Olympiad was chosen 
specially to spread awareness among students about the 
need to save environment.
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Principal Ms. Sabita Choudhry said on the 
occasion, "Every drop of water is very essential for life 
and these are the trees only which are harbinger of this 
blessing of god."

'He who plants a tree, plants hope' 
Bhavan's Vidya Mandir, Elamakkara

Our nation’s future relies on a well-educated 
public to be wise stewards of the very environment that 
sustains us, our families and communities, and future 
generations. The World Environment Day was observed 
on 5 June 2012. A plethora of activities which focussed 
on the motto of the month ‘Go Green’ were initiated, 
the first being the sapling plantation drive.Students of 
the primary classes wrote poems on nature, narrated 
nature stories and presented the skit, ‘He who plants a 
tree, plants hope’.

The school conducted myriad activities under the Eco-Club

Besides a poster designing, cartooning 
competition, making and distribution of paper and 
cloth bags, a debate on ‘Protecting the environment 
is more important than economic development’ were 
conducted with a view of sensitizing the youth about 
current environmental issues. The Eco Club set up 
the medicinal garden with Tulsi, Aloe Vera and other 
medicinal plants. A workshop on their use was an 
endeavour to limit the use of harmful pesticides and 

chemicals that threaten our environment. Segregation 
of waste, using separate bins for paper and plastic 
and discouraging the use of polythene by declaring 
the campus a ‘plastic free zone’ were enthusiastically 
supported by the student community.

A blog on wikispaces was created to extend 
learning from classrooms to more collaborative and 
interactive forums. The zealous efforts of the students 
to educate and spread awareness received wide 
appreciation.

Greenwood Sprinkle  'Go Green' programme 
Greenwood Public School, Gurgaon

With the mission to sensitize the students 
towards the importance of environment, making 
them more eco-conscious and socially responsible 
towards conserving the natural world, Greenwood 
Public School, Gurgaon started its Eco-club. The 
school tries to organize various projects to help the 
students in developing a deeper understanding of the 
interrelationship of all the strands wearing the febrile 
of life.

•	 Students	 from	 class	VII	 and	VIII	 observed	
‘No Polythene Week’ and raised their voice 
vociferously and companied against the evils of 
plastics.

•	 A	 plethora	 of	 activities	 were	 organized	 
to celebrate Van Mahotsav week from 23-28 
July 2012.

•	 To	 achieve	 conscientious	 involvement	 of	 the	
students in preserving the green cover, the 
students were taken to a park in Sikanderpur 
to plant tiny saplings. The students explored 
indigenous flora and also learned intricate 
ecological facts.

•	 An	Inter-house	Display	Board	Competition	was	
conducted on 4 August 2012 which attracted 
enthusiastic participation from students of class 
IX, X and XI.
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The Principal, Mrs. Jyoti Sharma stressed on the 
importance of trees in our life and the need to protect 
the environment. She instructed students not to waste 
paper and protect the green on Earth.

Mrs. Sarita Kumar, Chairman of the institution 
applauded the students and staff for their active 
initiatives and stupendous effort.

Planting and Taking Care  The Right Way  
Shiv Jyoti Senior Secondary School, Kota

The residential cum day boarding school observed 
a Green Week from 16 to 21 July 2012. Every time with 
the onset of monsoon, children actively participate in 
tree plantation. But this time the major focus was on 
learning the right methods of planting the saplings 
and how to take care of them as they watch them grow. 
After being informed about the need and importance 
of tree plantation by the Principal, there was a session 
of how to plant the trees the right way.

A session on how to plant the sapling is being conducted in the school

Students were made aware of the types of plants 
that they planted. They were encouraged to plant native 
trees. It was highlighted that well drained deep sandy 
loams were best suited for plant growth. They ensured 
to keep the plantation area free of construction waste, 
debris, etc. Hence apart from regular watering, students 
were guided for regular cleaning of surrounding areas 
for healthy growth. In the initial phase of plantation, 
only compost manure was used.

School adopted "One Child One Plant" in the 
day boarding campus where the students are now taking 
care of their own plants.

Activities Conducted Under Eco Club  
BSF Senior Secondary School, Jammu

Eco Club BSF School, Jammu has been working 
tirelessly to add up its contribution to improve the 
challenging environmental conditions. The Eco 
Club has undertaken various environmental friendly 
activities like tree plantation, campaign against noise 
and air pollution and the awareness campaign like 
environmental rally and the most important one the 
celebration of ‘Van Mahotsav’.

(i) VAN MAHOTSAV CELEBRATION

 More than 500 saplings were planted in the 
school campus with Sh. N.S. Jamwal, DIG/PSO 
as the Chief Guest on 25 July 2012. The saplings 
have been properly protected with tree guards 
and responsibilities fixed for proper care.

The Eco-Club members during an awareness programme

(ii) RALLY   ON    ENVIRONMENT   AWARENESS

 Principal Dr. S.S. Khokhar, flagged off a Rally of 
nearly 1500 students on environment awareness 
bearing placards and banners on 25 July as well 
as on 8 August 2012.
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Rally of nearly 1500 students on environment awareness on the streets of Jammu.

(iii) PAINTING COMPETITION

 A Painting competition was held on 11 
August 2012 on the topic ‘SAVE EARTH 
SAVE ENVIRONMENT’. The students 
successfully touched the issues of Global 
Warming, Industrialization and reckless cutting 
of trees.

Painting the thoughts on SAVE EARTH, SAVE ENVIRONMENT on the paper

Environment Conservation  A Necessity For 
Existence at Blue Bells Public School, Gurgaon

With lush green forest,
Snow capped mountains,

And blue umbrella of clouds,
If still you didn’t love,

Do you think you are supposed to be called civilized?
A question – which is to be answered
Blaming everything on development

Now we should think
As it is the matter on which

DEPENDS OUR EXISTENCE!!!

The Environment Club of the school, since its 
inception, has carried on the task of upgrading the 
environment in and around the school by planting 
and nurturing the saplings. The work is ardently 
carried on with zest by the young nature lovers. The 
Blue Bellians uphold the vision of 'Clean Earth, 
Green Earth’ and religiously follow the principle of 
3 R’s – Reduce, Recycle and Reuse. The Environment 
Club of the school is actively involved in sensitizing 
the people on conservation of natural resources and 
environment.

The school celebrated Van Mahotsav on 13 July 
2012 to show their concern for saving ‘MOTHER 
EARTH’. Various activities were planned and organized 
to instill in the students the virtue of working in sync 
with nature. Paper bags were made and distributed 
by the Club members to the shop owners of nearby 
localities to make them aware that plastic bags should 
be discarded and paper bags should be adopted. The 
Blue Bellians pledge to work as an effective team to 
save Earth from being depleted of its greenery and 
precious resources.

Planting and nurturing a sapling is always the first step towards 
environmental conservation
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Earth Day, Every Day 
S.D. Adarsh Vidyalaya, Gurgaon, Haryana

S.D. Adarsh Vidyalaya, Gurgaon, Haryana, has 
been seriously striving to create ‘Green Awareness’ 
among its students right from its inception. Man’s 
unknowing actions on the planet is posing hazards 
and it is the need of the hour to take comprehensive 
measures to nip them in the bud.

Earth Day reminds us that we all share the same 
planet. Sharing Earth means taking responsibility for 
what we use and how we use it. It is a day to think 
of the environmental challenges we face and how 
to solve them. Protecting Earth is every person’s 
responsibility.
I’m the Earth
And the Earth is me
Each blade of grass
Each honey tree
Each bit of mud
And stick and stone
Is blood and muscle
Skin and bone…

Plantation Programme  
New Vision Public School, Ambajogai

Mr. Mandhar Vaidya, Deputy Collector of Ambajogai receives 
Memorandum from School Head Boy

In a bid to make the earth a place worth living for 
the present and future generation, New Vision Public 

School, Ambajogai submitted a Memorandum to the 
Deputy Collector of Ambajogai. It intends to organize 
a mass plantation programme including other schools 
of rural areas to promote greenery. Children carried 
placards which exhibited messages and slogans on the 
ill effects of deforestation in order to express how to 
save the earth. The students along with Principal Mr. 
Sanjay Karanji and teachers planted many trees in the 
school premises and extended the programme to the 
nearest village.

It propagated the message of environmental 
conservation and protection to the masses and 
sensitized the public to keep the city green.

Eco Club Activities   
City Pride School, Nigdi, Pune

'In the end, our society will be defined not only 
by what we create, but by what we refuse to destroy.'  
 – John C Sawhill

Transforming pedagogy to suit the needs of 
the present age is an uphill task but not unachievable. 
Teaching methods have relaxed strain over the mind 
and coupled with technological aid, a learner today 
enjoys the freedom to experience fun moments while 
gaining knowledge. Swami Vivekananda had remarked 
that no child is unintelligent. His mind is dark until 
even a flicker of light brightens his mind. 

Fortunately, CBSE board has taken initiatives 
to ensure that there is no dull moment in schools as 
Formative Assessments can be explored to its limits 
to bring a lot of variety in the teaching – learning 
process. However, one must go beyond the confines of 
the syllabus and give children hands on experience in 
learning values and being responsible citizens of the 
world.

The City Pride school endeavours to sensitize the 
children towards their environment and issues related to 
it. The children were involved in many projects related 
to the topic “Saving Environment”.
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Lantern made with the waste paper

The School came up with innovative ways of 
celebrating festivals. Activities that are being conducted 
in school under the Green Champs Project are :

1. Students of class VI and onwards participated in 
Ganesh Idol Making where Mr. Khare, a keen 
environmentalist, showed children how to make 
idols from shadu- an eco-friendly material. Door 
to door pamphlets were distributed by students 
to bring home the fact that Ganesh festival 
can be celebrated by adopting eco – friendly 
methods. The students urged local residents to 
immerse the Ganesh idols in the municipality 
tanks that were already set up in key areas.

2. As Diwali approached, once again the little 
environmentalists gathered to campaign against 
use of firecrackers. A signature campaign was 
carried out where children voluntarily signed 
against burning firecrackers. Children were 
taught to use waste paper or recycled paper to 
make beautiful lanterns for Diwali.

3. Students of class V demonstrated the use of eco-
friendly colours during the Holi festival. This was 
done by using vegetable colours. Onion peels, 
beetroot, henna, etc. were used to make colours. 
Charts explaining the procedure of extracting 
colours were put up for all to follow.

4. On Naagpanchami, this year, the school arranged 
for a lecture on importance of the snake in our 
lives and to clear all myths that surround the way 
the day is celebrated. The resource person, Mr. 
Dilip Kamat, crusader against superstition and 
blind faiths, explained very enthusiastically how 
the snake is an important element in keeping 
the balance of the food pyramid. It was a very 
interactive session where a lot of doubts and 
superstitions surrounding the celebrations were 
cleared.

Eco friendly theme exhibition under Green Champs conducted  
by Eco Foundation

5. On Valentine’s Day students of class IX 
extended their love for Mother Earth through 
an exhibition on environment.

 In FA activities, too, the students were involved 
in carrying out surveys on water conservation in 
the school.

 The School won a gold medal for making 
eco-friendly bricks. A comparative analysis 
of use of different soils for the preparation of 
brick was made. Children experimented with 
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biodegradable paper pulp, rice husk, cow dung, 
coconut fibre, etc. Thermacol and e-waste was the 
other option. These were then sent for universal 
testing to D.Y. Patil College, to test its porosity, 
tenacity, weight and cost effectiveness. Bricks 
with e-waste were a huge success and widely 
appreciated.

Taru Yatra Compaign 
Indo American Sr. Sec. School, Jhajjar

The Eco Club members of Indo American 
School conducted a “TaruYatra” campaign. The children 
of the School along with their teachers took out an 
Awareness March to pass on the important message 
'Save Earth' by planting trees. Students used self-made 
posters and recited slogans to raise a voice against 
cutting trees and pollution. Trees plantation drive was 
also an effort directed to sensitize children to the critical 
issue of global importance.

The students from class V to class XI participated 
in this campaign.

An awareness March took place to mark the ‘Taru Yatra Campaign’  
by Indo-American Sr. Sec. School

“Each one plant one”
and

“Dharti Bhachao Hariyali lao” etc.

This campaign rally was very well received by 
honourable M.P., Mr. Dependar Singh Hooda and 
Education Minister Mrs. Geeta Bhukal at Jahan Aara 
Bag Stadium, Jhajjar.

Joining Hands for Saving Mother Earth  
Sri Guru Harkrishan Public School, Patiala

We all are a part of the global family and it is 
our duty to save our environment.

A number of successful environmental campaigns 
have been undertaken by the Eco Club of the School. 
A few are enumerated here:

•	 The	club	has	started	a	tree	plantation	drive.

•	 Slogans	writing,	 posters	making	 and	 poetry	
recitation competitions were conducted by Eco- 
club.

•	 Eco	Club	has	 initiated	a	drive	 in	which	every	
student of the School will plant a sapling on his/
her birthday.

Cleanlines Drive 
Dyal Singh Public School, Panipat

Every year DSPS, Panipat undertakes rallies 
to raise awareness among students regarding various 
burning issues. A rally creating awareness about 
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cleanliness and keeping the environment green was 
taken out on 16 August 2012 wherein the students 
of I and II standard participated. A special assembly 
was conducted where the students presented a skit on 
cleanliness, conducted speech and poetry recitation 
and took a pledge to keep the neighbourhood clean 
and green.

The students of classes I and II during a rally on cleanliness, urging 
everyone to keep the environment clean

The Headmistress, Mrs. Vinita Kumar Tomar 
flagged off the rally. They went around the adjoining 
areas shouting slogans. The students expressed a sense 
of enthusiasm and vigour. The passersby praised the 
students’ initiativeness and encouraged them with a 
cheerful face.

Save The Planet - An Initiative  
D.C. Model Sr. Sec. School, Ferozepur Cantt

“Nature saves us, we have to save the Nature!”

From 14 to 31 August 2012 a campaign “Save 
the Planet” was organized at the School Campus in 
which students carried placards and banners raising 
slogans ‘Save Trees’, ‘Save Water, ‘Save Fuels’, ‘Use Solar 
Energy’, ‘Save the Girl Child’ and ‘Control Population’. 
The Campaign aimed at creating general awareness 
among students and the general community about 
environment besides sensitizing them towards various 
social problems. Students showed their knowledge of 
‘Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle’.Colourful charts were 

put up, reading “Go Green”, “Say No to Polybags” and 
“Plant Trees”.

A ‘Green Walk’ for environmental awareness

A green walk was organized and a special 
assembly was held in which the students took pledge 
to safeguard earth. In addition, teachers expressed the 
importance of preserving the planet. A skit enactment 
marked the event.It concluded with the message: 
“When we heal the Earth, we heal ourselves!”

Environment Awareness Campaign 
St. Mary' Academy, Saharanpur

“Van Mahotsav Festival” was conducted by 
Eco Club under the kind guidance of Rev. Fr. Vijay 
Rao (Manager), Sr. Sunitha S.D. (Principal) and Mrs.
Gulshan Jahan the incharge of Eco Club. The members 
of Eco Club participated enthusiastically in this unique 
festival. In this festival each member planted one tree 
taking Oath to protect the earth from different types 
of pollution by taking care of plants for maintaining 
balance by conserving and preserving nature in its 
natural form.

Again the club members, organized a mass rally 
as a part of its “Water Conservation and Protection 
Campaign” making people aware of different types 
of consequences due to water pollution and ways to 
save and conserve water. The rally started from School 
campus passing through the Central Market of Sarsawa, 
chanting slogans with banners in hand.
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Van Mahotsav being celebrated at St. Mary’s Academy, Saharanpur

Their was a drawing competition too on the topic 
Jal Hee Jivan Hai. Best paintings were awarded too.

Eco  Clubs  
Bharatiya Vidya Bhavans Atmakuri Rama Rao 

School, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad

The Bharatiya Vidya Bhavans Atmakuri Rama 
Rao School, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad celebrated ‘Van 
Mahotsav’ in the month of July 2012 by planting 
120 saplings of fruit and avenue trees and creating a 
butterfly garden with 50 flowering herbs and shrubs,50 
ornamental plants.

The ‘Van Mahotsav’ celebrations began on the 
Foundation Day when glowing tributes were paid to 
the Founder of Bharatiya Vidya Bhavans, Shri. K.M. 
Munshiji who had initiated the ‘Van Mahotsav’. The 

students enthusiastically took part in the creation of the 
sacred grove-‘van rai’, an age old traditional practice in 
India. The concept involves leaving an area outside the 
village undisturbed for the growth of natural forests 
and housing the village deity in it. The program spread 
over a week during which the students from LKG to 
class X donated saplings, took part in ‘shramdaan’ and 
spread greenery all around. Pomegranate, guava, mango, 
papaya, jamun, sitaphal, neem, peepul, pongami were 
some of the native species that were planted. Inter 
House Photography contest was also organized. The 
students took part in ENVI – QUIZ 2012 organised 
by AP Biodiversity Board as a part of UNCOP – CBD 
IX programme and Green Olympiad.

‘Can you guess my plant’, the students enjoying during Van Mahotsav

The students learnt that forests are of immense 
value to the mankind not only because of resources 
provided but also due to the planet's ecosystem.

If someone is going down the wrong road, he 
doesn’t need motivation to speed him up. What 
he needs is education to turn him around.

 – Jim Rohn
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International Drug Abuse and Illicit 
Trafficking Day Observed, 

Billabong High International School, Indore

June 26 is observed all over the world as 
International Day against Drug Abuse and Illicit 
Trafficking. In order to create awareness about the topic 
an Inter School Poster Making Competition under 
three different categories was organised. The school 
was honoured with the active participation shown 
by the renowned institutes of the town. 'Around 150 
participants from various prestigious schools of Indore 
displayed their creativity on the topics like ‘Traffic 
Rules and General Mentality’, ‘An Idea can Change 
the World’ and ‘Act Locally, Effect Globally’.

The competition was presided over and judged 
by the great cartoonists Mr. Ismyl Lehri and Mr. 
DeveshVerma. Three best posters under each group 
were awarded with prizes and certificates. This step of 
the institute, to make the youth feel their responsibility 
and their role in making a remarkable society was highly 
appreciated. Principal Mr. Shyam Agrawal proposed the 
vote of thanks and congratulated the winners.

World Red Cross Day  
VSPK International School, Rohini, Delhi

The School organized a special assembly 
to celebrate ‘World Red Cross Day’ and ‘World 

Thalassemia day. This year’s chosen theme is 
‘Together for Humanity’. The students raised awareness 
about the importance of blood donation through their 
poetic compositions and dramatic presentation. The 
play ‘Serve Humanity-Save a Life’ was the highlight 
of the programme. The students also brought forth the 
importance of eating various fruits and enlightened 
everyone about the significance and use of First Aid 
Kit. The programme got fitting finale as the students 
sang ‘We shall overcome’ with the school joining the 
chorus.

Informative and creative display of charts to 
celebrate the World Red Cross Day

The students presented the ‘Red Cross’ symbol, 
badges of benevolence to the Manager, Principal, staff 
members as well as the students. Students also displayed 
beautiful and informative charts prepared by them. 

Health & Wellness Clubs
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The special assembly ended with the words of praise 
by the Principal who felicitated the students for such 
a wonderful presentation. 

YOGA - A Regular Activity 
Alok Public School, Silvassa

Yoga is taken up in Alok Public School on 
a regular basis in the year just after the morning 
assembly. It is a healthy habit to keep students fresh 
and energetic throughout the day. During this session 
Asanas, Surya Namaskar, Pranayams and Meditation are 
conducted. YOGA’s benefits date back to ancient India. 
It is believed that the learners become punctual; their 
concentration level increases and the most important 
aspect is, it enhances the discipline among students.

The students in a Yoga pose (mudra), a regular activity of 
Alok Public School, Silvassa

Seminar on Self-Meditation  
Delhi Public School, Mathura

Present day internet driven world has started 
making rampant use of antibiotics and relies on self-
medication, which is a matter of serious concern. To 
create awareness among the students a seminar on the 
“pros and cons of self-medication” was organized in 
Delhi Public School, Mathura.

The seminar started with the welcome address 
by the Principal, Dr. G.P. Pandey. He stated that now-
a-days students are seen using medicines on their own 

for ailments like common cold, pain and fever which 
results into adverse impact on their health. He stressed 
on the seriousness of the topic and   its relevance. The 
Chief Guest and expert Dr. S.A. Abbas, Dy. General 
Manager (Medical), M.R. Nagar introduced the 
topic.  He said that every medicine/drug has side effects, 
thus, it is the doctor or medical personnel to advice 
the best medicines for any ailment minimizing the 
side effects to achieve optimum benefits/ cure. He also 
pointed out the use and abuse of steroids. Dr. Chitra 
Raju from Mathura Refinery Hospital also emphasized 
on taking the medicines with doctor’s advice and in the 
required doses only.

The ill effects of self medication being explained to the 
students of Delhi Public School, Mathura

The seminar ended on a valuable note that everyone 
should follow the following:-

•	 Take	proper	diet,	avoiding	junk	food.

•	 Work-out	 as	 it	 is	 the	 only	mantra	 of	 good	
health.

•	 Always	 have	 positive	 thinking	 to	 achieve	
growth.

Talk on Cancer and its Treatment  
Al-Ameen Public School, Ernakulam Dist., Kerala

Dr. Gangadharan, Head of the Oncology 
Department, Lakeshore Hospital, gave a talk cum-
power point presentation of this topic on 19 July 2012 
which was a proof that cancer, like most diseases is 
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curable.  He was casual in speech and interaction, and 
often asked questions to the inquisitive children from 
classes IX to XII who eagerly took down notes and 
were spontaneous in their response. The doctor began 
with a question – “Do you think cancer is curable?” A 
lot of hands shot up and a loud and clear “YES” was 
heard. He said that the students were right and such a 
positive attitude should be fostered towards any adverse 
situation may come across in life. He narrated the story 
of Eby, an illustrated artist who had fought the disease 
head – on and finally emerged a winner.

Health and Wellness A Must   
DAV Public School, Delhi

DAV Public School, believes strongly in the 
concept of healthy mind that leads to the wellbeing of 
children thereby creating healthy generations. Various 
activities like hawans, chetna shivir, community services, 
eco club rallies, associations with various NGOs 
were organised to enhance sensitivity and awareness 
amongst our children. The new session of 2012 has 
witnessed chanting of shlokas during morning assembly 
to inculcate good habits in children.

The students interacting with the kids of the orphanage ‘PALNA’ as a part 
of community and health service programme

The school recently took the initiative by visiting 
the orphanage ‘PALNA’, as a part of its community and 
health service programme. Students accompanied by 
their teachers spent three hours at the orphanage on 

11 January 2012 and interacted with the children. The 
visit was planned to increase psycho social competence 
in children and deal effectively with the demands and 
challenges of everyday life.

Health Awareness  
Dayanand Bal Mandir Sr. Sec. School, Agra

Junk food, Go away 
fruits and Vegetables are here to stay

This was one of the messages conveyed by the 
students who showed their excellence in the ‘Inter 
House Slogan Writing Competition’ on ‘Health 
Awareness among Students’. It was organized on 29 
August 2012 in the School Campus. Many innovative 
and informative slogans were written by the participants 
who conveyed the message of staying away from 
tobacco-chewing, smoking, junk food convincingly. 
The slogans were structured to depict the role of a 
healthy life.

The slogans were appreciated by all. Principal, 
Mrs. Kulbir Kaur Bhasin, Vice Principal Mr. Amit 
Bansal lauded the efforts of the participants and 
encouraged them by declaring Nisha Yadav (Shivaji 
House), first, Prince Chaudhary (Pratap House), second 
and Rashmi Chaudhary (Shivaji House), third. All the 
members of the Health Club actively participated in 
directing the programme to the path of success.

A prize winning entry in the ‘Inter House Slogan Writing 
Competition of Health Awareness’
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Food Safety a Must, Bharatiya Vidya Bhavans 
Atmakuri Rama Rao School, Jubilee Hills

The School invited Dr. Ramanjaneyulu (Satyamev 
Jayate fame), Centre for Science and Agriculture, to 
conduct an interactive session on FOOD SAFETY 
for the students of class VI to class X.

The session discussed about organic farming, 
healthy food habits, preservatives in food and junk food. 
The talk raised awareness amongst the children and 
sensitized them towards good eating habits.

Seminar on Food, Diet and Nutrition  
St. Josephs School, Sindhora, Varanasi

A Science Seminar on Food Diet and Nutrition 
was organized on 8 August 2012.

Participants from classes V to X were divided 
into six groups and to instigate the interest of the 

students, groups were named as: - Protein, Fat, 
Carbohydrate,Vitamin, Mineral and Junk Food 
team. 

The whole concept of the Seminar was 
designed in four steps i.e.Introduction, Narration, 
Consequences and Conclusion. The Performances 
of the teams were judged on the basis of these 
categories. 

The most significant goal of the seminar was to 
identify and improve the eating habits of the children 
by taking their opinions on the nutrition and balance 
diet for mental as well as physical health.

The group Vitamin was awarded for its better 
illustration presentation. 

The teams were appreciated for their 
commendable contribution.

No one has yet realized the wealth of sympathy, 
the kindness and generosity hidden in the soul of 
a child. The effort of every true education should 
be to unlock that treasure.

 – Emma Goldman
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1st Inter School Football Tournament-2012 
Kota Sahodaya Schools Complex

Kota Sahodaya Schools Complex organised Inter 
School Football Tournament-2012. The host school was 
Bakshi’s Springdales School, Borkheara, Kota. 10 teams 
of CBSE Schools participated in this tournament.

The tournament was organized from 9-12 
September 2012. The Quarter Final was played among 
the following teams.

The winning team with the Coveted Trophy

Lawrence and Mayo Public School, Springdales 
Children’s School and Central Academy Shikshantar 
School.

The following 8 teams qualified for the Semi-
finals:

Army Public School, Bakshi’s Springdales 
School, Mittal International School, D.A.V. Public 
School, Sir Padampat Singhania School and Guru 
Nanak Public School, Lawrence and Mayo Public 
School, Springdales Children’s School.

The Final Match was played between Army 
Public School and Bakshi’s Springdales School, where 
Bakshi’s Springdale’s School won the match by a score 
of 1-0.

The Winners were congratulated by the President 
of Kota Sahodaya Schools Complex, Er. Pradeep Singh 
Gour and he gave away the Winning trophies to the 
winner and runner up teams. The closing ceremony was 
also witnessed by the Principal- Army Public School 
and Principal, Bakshi’s Springdale’s School.

Winner Bakshi’s Springdale’s School

First Runner up Army Public School

Second Runner up Sir Padampat Singhania 
School

Inter School Activites 
Gurgaon Progressive Schools Council

“Sahodaya” signifies rising together, it identified 
six areas, for collaboration amongst schools of its 
complex, namely Educative Management, Evaluation, 
Human Resource Mobilization, Professional Growth 

Sahodaya Updates
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of Teachers, Values Oriented School Climate and 
Vocationalization of Education.

CBSE Sahodaya School Complexes (Gurgaon 
Chapter) is an executive body of 25 leading schools 
of Gurgaon. Most of these schools have been sending 
out batches of class XII and X Examinations of 
the Board for the past 5 to 10 years or even more. 
Gurgaon Sahodaya was initiated in May 2000 with 
some elite schools as the first members.  As a part 
of its annual feature every member school hosts 
inter-school activities to enhance the creativity of 
the students. CBSE Sahodaya School Complexes 
(Gurgaon Chapter) activities have thus comprised 
a Book fair, Science Exhibition, Debates, Health 
Mela, Sports Meet and such other varied activities, 
which has immensely contributed in providing a 
rich educational landscape to the students. All these 
activities are based on the nine Multiple Intelligences. 
The conferences hosted by Gurgaon Sahodaya 
were the 16th National Sahodaya Conference and 
ACER International Conference in January 2011.  
Principals of all member schools meet once a month 
to brainstorm and discuss the latest in educational 
strategies.

Gurgaon Sahodaya has also been instrumental in 
bringing together all the Sahodayas across the country 
through a common email network, a project initiated 
by CBSE.  This Sahodaya has also been a part of the 
pilot project of CBSE for Accreditation.

To fructify this aim of Sahodaya, the dynamic 
new team of Gurgaon Progressive Schools Council 
(GPSC) Gurgaon Sahodayas has taken over after the 
expiry of the term of the previous team. Each team 
remains into force for a duration of 2 years. The new 
team comprises of :

 1. Mrs. Nirmal Yadav, Chairperson, (Principal, 
CCA School, Gurgaon)

 2. Ms. Gulshan Dewan, Vice Chairperson 
(Principal, Rotary Public School, 
Gurgaon)

 3. Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Khetarpal, Treasurer 
(Principal, Salwan Public School and 
former Chairperson GPSC)

 4. Mrs. N. Bhatti, Secretary (Principal, Blue 
Bells Model School, Delhi)

The newly elected team of GPSC (From L-R) Mrs. N. Bhatti, Secretary 
Gurgaon Sahodaya (Principal, Blue Bells Model School), Mrs. Nirmal Yadav, 
Chairperson Gurgaon Sahodaya (Principal, CCA School), Mrs. Asha Sharma, 
Member Guraon Sahodaya (President SD Adarsh Vidyalaya), Dr. Indu 
Khetarpal, Treasurer Gurgaon Sahodaya (Principal, Salwan Public School), 
Ms. Gulshan Dewan, Vice Chairperson Gurgaon Sahodaya (Principal, Rotary 
Public School, Gurgaon) and Suman Gulati, Member Gurgaon Sahodaya 
(Director Blue Bells Group of Schools).

Gurgaon Progressive Schools Council and 
Sahodaya as a body together aim to enrich the academic 
scenario of the millennium city by quality teaching and 
exposing students to an array of activities, thus enabling 
them to become world citizens.

Cyber-Threats  A Global Problem 
Sahodaya  Group of Schools, Jaipur

A workshop on “Cyber Threats – a global 
problem” was organized by the Sahodaya – Group 
of Schools, Jaipur at Deep Smriti Auditorium in the 
Tagore International School, Jaipur on 10 July 2012. 
Mrs Suniti Sharma, Principal of MGD Girls School 
and President of Sahodaya Schools welcomed the 
audience. Mr Raskhit Tandon, Adviser to the Govt 
of Delhi, UP and Haryana on ‘Cyber Crimes’ was 
the Resource Person. The workshop unified about 
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1800 students with their teachers and some of the 
Principals.

Mr. Tandon, an eminent speaker, in his unique 
style enlightened the audience about various types 
of Cyber Crimes like hacking sites, phishing, tab 
napping, etc. He also warned that youngsters who 
share their personal information on social networking 
sites are easy victims. Cyber criminals not only harm 
people by stealing valuable information for malicious 
purposes but also misuse ATM cards and other credit 
cards.

Mr Rakshit, also advised that the users should 
frequently change e-mail ID passwords and facebook 
passwords as precautionary measures to minimize the 
risk of Cyber Criminals.

The interactive session ended with vote of thanks 
by Mrs Kamal Rathore, Principal, Tagore International 
School, Delhi.

The President of Sahodaya, Jaipur felicitating Mr Raskhit Tandon, 
Adviser Govt. of Delhi, UP and Haryana on Cyber Crimes
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12th Sports Day at Shree Sarasswathi Vidhyaah 
Mandheer School, Mettupalayam

12th Sports Day – 2012 was celebrated on 27 
July 2012. Thiru. M. Karunakaran, I.A.S., District 
Collector, Coimbatore was the Chief Guest. Tmt. Hema 
Karunakaran, I.P.S., Deputy Commissioner of Police, 
Law and Order, Coimbatore was the Special Guest. 
The elegant brass band group of the school welcomed 
the distinguished dignitaries, who were entouraged by 
the Managing Trustee, Dr. Manimekalai Mohan and 
Trustee, Mr. S. Mohandoss. The school choir sang the 
prayer song. The welcome dance was performed by 
the senior students. Mrs. A. Suguna Devi, Principal, 
welcomed the gathering. The Chief Guest graciously 
accepted the guard of honour from the dais.

The brass band of the school welcomed the audience on Sports Day

The National Flag, Sports Flag and School 
Flag were unfurled by the Chief Guest and the other 
dignitaries. Mrs. Lalitha Kasthuri Rangan read the 
Sports Report. The Chief Guest then declared the 
Sports meet open.

The Champions Trophy being awarded by  
the Chief Guest and the Special Guest

The Triassic House bagged the overall 
Championship Trophy. The Chief Guest and the 
Special Guests distributed the awards and certificates 
to the winners. There was an excellent school band 
show which attracted the audience. Then the entire 
ground turned into a riot of colours with children who 
performed games, Horn Drill, March Past Drill and 
Michael Jackson Drill. Mime was also performed by 
the students highlighting the Go-Green concept and 
Anti-Child labour.

Sports Arena
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The Chief Guest in his speech applauded the 
students for their excellent performance. Mrs. D. 
Radhika, Principal, State Board proposed the vote of 
thanks.

Gunning for Glory 
Delhi Public School, Vasant Kunj, Delhi

Seventeen year old Shriyanka Sadangi, who has 
recently passed out of Delhi Public School, Vasant 
Kunj has brought glory for the nation by winning an 
individual Gold Medal and a team Silver medal in the 
10 m air rifle event in the International Junior Shooting 
Championship at Suhl, Germany on 15 June 2012.

Shriyanka Sadangi from DPS, Vasant Kunj, Delhi is gunning for Glory

Shriyanka with a tally of seven international 
medals and numerous national medals to her credit 
and has been selected by and is currently training at the 
Olympic medalist Gagan Narang’s Shooting Academy 
‘Gun for Glory’at Pune.

Yoga Competition at DBMS Kadma High School, 
Jamshedpur, Jharkhand

The mission of the school is to bring about an 
all-round development in students and the school keeps 
organizing various events to fulfill the aim.

Yoga, an ancient form of physical exercise, helps 
to maintain balance between the mind and the body. 

There is an effort to revive this form of physical exercise 
in schools.

The students at their best ‘Yoga Posture’ (mudra)

On 4 August 2012 the school organized an 
inter-school Yoga competition in which 18 schools of 
the steel city participated.

The competition began with the lighting of the 
inaugural lamp by the Chief Guest, accompanied by 
the chanting of ‘Sangachhadwam Sangvaddwam’ by 
the school choir.

The students at the Inter-School Yoga Competition

The competition was at three levels – A, B, C 
according to their age group. It was in two categories 
– boys and girls. There were six judges who gave three 
specific ‘asanas’ to the participants and the fourth 
‘asana’ was by choice. It was a spectacular show and 
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the participants kept everyone spell bound with the 
agility and suppleness of their body. Each category won 
six prizes. The competition ended with the singing of 
school anthem and national anthem.

Central Zone Sainik Schools Sports and  
Co-curricular Activities Championship  

Sainik School, Gopalganj, Bihar

The prestigious Central Zone Sainik Schools 
Sports and Co-curricular Activities Championship 
2012 was conducted at Sainik School Gopalganj 
(Bihar) from 08 to 12 July 2012. The teams of Sainik 
Schools Ambikapur (Chhattisgarh), Bhubaneswar 
(Odisha), Nalanda and Gopalganj (both Bihar) and 
Tilaiya ( Jharkhand) participated in this Annual 
Championship. Over 400 sportsmen of the Sainik 
Schools competed in Hockey, Volleyball, Basketball, 
Football (Sub Junior) and Football ( Junior) events. The 
Championship includes English and Hindi debates, 
Quiz ( Junior and Sub Junior) and Cultural Programmes 
in Co-curricular activities events.

Shri P.K. Shahi, Hon’ble Education Minister of Bihar awarding the 
Overall Championship Trophy to winners

The Championship was inaugurated by 
Major General Pankaj Sachdeva, General Officer 
Commanding, Jharkhand and Bihar Sub Area on 
08 July 2012. Shri Prashant Kumar Shahi, Hon’ble 
Education Minister, Govt. of Bihar was the Chief Guest 
for the Closing Ceremony of the Championship on 12 

July 2012. The Hon’ble Minister gave away trophies to 
winners, runners-up teams and to the individuals who 
excelled in various events of the championship.

Sainik School,Gopalganj was adjudged the 
champion of 2012 in both Sports and Co-curricular 
activities and the team of Sainik School Nalandawas 
adjudged Runners up in both the categories of the 
championship. The final overall and event wise team 
positions in sports are as under:-

Ser Name of 
Sainik School

Events Overall 
Position

Hockey Basket 
ball

Volley 
ball

Football 
(Sub 
Junior)

Football 
(Junior)

(a) Ambikapur – IV IV III V IV

(b) Bhubaneshwar IV V V V IV V

(c) Gopalganj III III I I II I

(d) Nalanda I II II II III II

(e) Tilaiya II I III IV I III

The final event wise positions in Co-Curricular 
Activities is as follows:-

Ser Name of 
Sainik School

Events Position

English 
Debate

Hindi 
Debate

Quiz (Sub 
Junior)

Quiz 
(Junior)

Cultural 

(a) Ambikapur IV III III II V IV

(b) Bhubaneshwar V V V IV IV V

(c) Gopalganj I I I III II I

(d) Nalanda III II II I I II

(e) Tilaiya II IV IV V III III

Nitesh Kumar (SS Nalanda), Piyush Kumar and 
Kamlesh Kumar Kamal (both of of SS Tilaiya) were 
awarded trophies for their outstanding performance 
in Volleyball, Basketball and Hockey respectively. 
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In football event Lokesh Kumar (SS Gopalganj) 
and Praveen Kumar (SS Tilaiya) brought laurels 
for their teams in Sub Junior and Junior categories 
respectively.

In his concluding address the Hon’ble Minister 
lauded the performance of school in both academics 
and sports. He commended the Principal, officers and 
teachers for their dedication to their duties.

'National Sports Day Celebration'  
Bright Day School, Vadodara

Bright Day School, Vadodara celebrated 
National Sports Day on 29 August 2012 in memory 
of the Hockey player Shri Dhyan Chand. Inter School 
Sports Quiz was held in the School Auditorium. The 
renowned schools of the city participated in this event. 
Four schools qualified the elimination round. The 
questions included various sports like football, cricket, 
swimming, etc. Navrachana School was the winner 
and was awarded a trophy and New Era School was 
the first runners up. The winners and runner up teams 
were given prizes in the form of books on Swami 
Vivekanand. The Chairman Shri Jayendrabhai Shah 
and Managing Trustee, Shri Simit Shah felicitated 
the winners. The presence of Administrator Smt. 
Harshaben Shah and Principal Mrs. Neeta Sharma 
motivated the participants.

The Inter –School Sports Quiz being conducted at  
Bright Day School, Vadodara

The school also celebrated ‘Olympic week’ 
with great enthusiasm. The opening ceremony started 
with March Past. Various sports events - basketball, 
volleyball, chess, badminton and throw ball were held 
during the week. The closing ceremony was held on 
13 August 2012. The winners were awarded medals by 
the Managing Trustee Sir Shri Simit Shah. The victory 
ceremony was the heart of the events and provided 
individual sports person the chance to bask in the glory 
of their achievement.

The March Past to mark the Olympic Week Celebrations

Rural Rehabilitation Sports Meet 
Good Shepherd Sr. Sec English School, Karaikal

The school celebrated 4th Rural Rehabilitation 
Sports Meet Day celebrations in the school premises 
with great enthusiasm recently. About 25 rural schools 
took part and displayed their various talents to everyone. 
Nearly 320 students from classes 6 to 12 participated 
with great interest.

The Chief Guest, Mr. Balan, Nedungadu 
Commune Panchayat Commissioner, expressed his 
appreciation for the immense talents of the students. 
He congratulated the school Chairman, Mr. Ranson 
Thomas and the Principal, Mrs. Joy Thomas for 
encouraging underprivileged students to aspire to be 
future champions.
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The athletics events marked the highlight of the  
Rural Rehabilitation Sports Meet

Mrs. Indhumathi, Asian Olympic Gold Medal 
winner graced the function. Special Physical Education 
Training officials conducted athletic events like 100 
mts, 200 mts, 800 mts high jump, long jump, 4X100mts 
relay etc.

Three underprivileged sports achievers were like 
elected every year to be given free education to achieve 
their individual goals in life.

The awards and the trophies are always a big motivational  
tool for students.

The Chief Guest Mr. Balan distributed the 
prizes. The Principal Mrs. Joy Thomas and the School 
Chairman, Mr. Ranson Thomas distributed the overall 
championship prizes.

National Sports Day Celebration 
Chinmaya International Residential School, 

Coimbatore

The National Sports Day was celebrated on 29 
August 2012 in honor of the legendary hockey player, 
Major Dhyan Chand Singh. The first event of the day 
was the motivational speech by students followed by 
the awareness run in which all students and faculty took 
part with great enthusiasm.

The girls of International Residential School, Coimbatore  
during the ‘Awareness Run’ on Sports Day

During the assembly, there was a presentation 
on the greatness of sports and how people persevere to 
go beyond their limits to attain the pinnacle of success, 
thus bringing laurels to their country.

The street play emphasizing the importance of physical fitness in life
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The highlight of the day was the street play 
presented by the students of class XII and witnessed by 
the entire school. The street play emphasized the fact 
that sports is as important as academics for students 
and that being healthy is the foremost requirement 
to achieve success in life. Sports and physical fitness 
cannot be ignored and should be considered as an 
integral part of life.

J.P. Cup State Level Football Tournament  
Hon. Sharad Pawar Public School, Nasik

A football tournament for boys under-16 was 
organised on the occasion of the Birthday Celebrations 
of the Founder, Dr. J.D. Pawar at Hon. Sharad Pawar 
Public School, Manur, Nashik.The event was organised 
for the 8th consecutive year and teams from all over the 
Maharashtra State and outside the state of Maharashtra 
participated in the tournament. 51 teams participated 
in the tournament. The coveted J.P. Cup was lifted by 
Mahindra Vidyalaya, Amravati. The winning team 
and runner up team were awarded trophies and cash 
prizes. Man of the match, Man of the series and Best 
Goalkeeper trophies were also distributed. All the 
participants recieved the certificates.

Other Sports Achievements of the students of 
Hon. Sharad Pawar Public School in the year 2012

 U-17 boys and U-17 girls emerged champions 
at the Divisional Level Subroto Mukherjee 
Football Tournament held at Jalgaon from 9 and 
10 August 2012. 

 U-14 boys emerged as winners at the District 
level Subroto Mukherjee Football Tournament 
held at Nashik, Maharashtra.

 U-17 boys emerged as winners in the Interschool 
Distric level Jawaharlal Nehru Junior Hockey 
Tournament held at Nashik, Maharashtra on  
3 August 2012.

 U-15 boys emerged as winners in the Interschool 
Distric level Jawaharlal Nehru Sub - Junior 
Hockey Tournament held at Nashik, Maharashtra 
on 3 August 2012.

 U-15 boys emerged as winners in the Interschool 
Divisional Level Jawarharlal Nehru Sub Junior 
Hockey Tournament held at Nashik on 12 
September 2012 and qualified for the State Level 
Championship.

A liberal education is at the heart of a civil 
society, and at the heart of a liberal education is 
the act of teaching.

 – A. Bartlett Giamatti
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Students Clear DELF Exam 
MES Indian School, Doha, Qatar

The French language department takes initiatives 
to promote French and motivates its students with the 
introduction of CCE by the CBSE. It has given more 
flexibility in learning, evaluating the four skills namely 
listening, writing, speaking and reading.

The Students 'all smiles' after receiving the certificates

A group of 22 students of class X of both 
National and International Curriculum were made 
to appear for the DELF exam conducted at Lycée 
Bonaparte, organized by the Embassy of France. The 
group of 22 students cleared the DELF A1 level exams 
and a few took one step ahead and completed A2 level 
too. This has motivated the students towards learning 
the language. The group was trained by the Head of 

the Department, Mr. Mohammed Shafi Shariff. The 
students received their cerficates from H.E. Ambassador 
of France to Qatar Jean-Christophe PEAUCELLE.

Scholastic and Co-Scholastic Education  
AECS Magnolia Maaruti Public School, Bengaluru

Very recently golfer Chinnaswami Muniyappa 
visited AECS MMPS. The students of grade III are 
studying about him in their English classes. He is a 
real hero in true sense who has struggled as a caddie 
and has now become a champion golfer. The students 
were excited and thrilled to meet their hero and interact 
with him. Mr. Muniyappa was also very approachable 
who showed the children to 'putt' and also hit few golf 
strokes.

This activity gave an opportunity to the students 
to go beyond their books and get some additional 
knowledge. This is a common feature in the school. The 
AECS staff always tries to emphasise on the practicality 
of the book content which is the most vital factor in the 
education of this generation. In this course, the CCE 
pattern of the CBSE is 100% achieved by the school.

Values Education and Life Skills Pogramme 
Amity International School, Noida

A student's life is an amalgamation of the zest to 
learn and the efforts to take in stride, the various changes 

Academic Updates
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in the formative years with ease – behavioural as well as 
psychological. Amity Noida under the able guidance of 
the Founder President, Dr. Ashok K Chauhan and the 
righteous vision of the Chairperson, Dr. (Mrs.) Amita 
Chauhan assiduously prepare individuals to adapt well 
to the global changes. Their continuous endeavours 
towards Values Based Education has produced well 
nurtured and refined individuals year after year.

Life Skills help in the sensitization of school 
children in adolescence, about relevant psychosocial 
issues like resisting peer pressure, making informed 
decisions and choices in life.

Reinforcement of Life skill concepts

•	 Three	components	of	life	skills	i.e.	thinking	skills,	
social skills and negotiating skills are inculcated 
in the students using real life situations, squiggly 
brain storming and Panchtantra stories.

•	 Inter	 personal	 relationship	 skills	 are	 taught	
through dramatics which enhance and sustain 
friendly relations for a healthy society.

•	 Through	 role	 play	 on	metaphoric	 situations,	
group activities and case studies, the students 
are taught to manage emotions like anger and 
stress. Such role plays are a fundamental part of 
the life skills planner of the school followed by 
interactive sessions.

•	 Educational	 simulations,	 audio	 and	 video	
activities, art, music and class discussions are 
used for rapport formation which enhances 
the students belief about self development and 
confidence.

•	 Conflict	management	and	critical	thinking	help	
the students look beyond the direct experiences. 
Case studies on senior citizens and gender 
stereo types are undertaken at regular intervals. 
The debates on relevant issues of the society are 
conducted as inter house competitions to spread 
wakefulness.

•	 Regular	 visits	 to	 orphanages,	 old	 age	homes	 ,	

slums and celebrating all the festivals with them 
is an integral part of the interact club which 
promotes compassionate values in the students. 
The students of class XI and XII teach the 
students of underprivileged students through 
smart boards and special worksheets.

•	 Educational	 trips	 to	Manesar	 and	Heritage	
Walks are a ritual at Amity Noida through which 
the students imbibe the spirit of patriotism, team 
work and camaraderie.

Evaluation: An Indicator of success

•	 A	significant	transformation	in	the	students	has	
been found as they have become more refined, 
self disciplined and empathetic towards their 
classmates and juniors.

•	 Keen	interest	in	charity	towards	underprivileged	
sections and areas struck by natural calamities, 
has seen a major rise.

•	 The	school	projects	 are	based	on	3	R’s,	which	
highlight the students concern towards 
environment.

•	 Rise	 in	 community	 programmes	 and	 tree	
plantation initiatives.

Focused approach and follow-ups

•	 Levels	of	acquisition	of	10	core	 life	 skills	 and	
values are checked through evaluation checklist, 
portfolios and references to anecdotal records.

•	 Month	wise	regular	planner	on	the	conduction	
of life skills and regular follow-ups has brought 
the desired results.

•	 Formal	Life	 Skills	Education	 is	 divided	 into	
two parts-Junior (children below 12 years) and 
Adolescent section (13 to 16 years).

•	 	Evaluation	and	assessment	is	done	by	observational	
techniques (level of active participation and 
involvement in the discussions) and written test 
sheets (10 marks each worksheet /assignment/
group work is given with FA1, FA2, FA3, FA4 



Transforming  Pedagogy 

129July-September 2012

and SA1) spread over the year for a total of 50 
marks. Therefore, the school Life Skills Planner 
is designed accordingly with a focused approach 
and is followed meticulously.

Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation 
(CCE) has remarkably facilitated the incorporation of 
life skills in the school planner. It has given a wonderful 
platform to the students and the teachers to interact 
and understand the modalities and significance of life 
skills in the life of students.

Second National Conference  
Choithram School and Choithram Institute of 

Educational Research and Training Assessment, 
Indore

Choithram School, Manik Bagh, Indore and 
Choithram Institute of Educational Research and 
Training, Indore embarked on yet another milestone by 
successfully hosting the Second National Conference 
for Educators at Indore on August 10 and 11, 2012 
based on the theme ‘Assessment – A Tool For Learning’. 
Sessions by eminent resource persons witnessed 
empowering of nearly 100 Principals from all over the 
country.

Shri Vineet Joshi, Chairman CBSE expressing his views on Examination 
Reforms including CCE Assessment in schools

‘Assessment is an important tool for students, 
teachers, parents, Principals and management and it acts 
as a great motivator if honest and positive feedback is 
given,’ was echoed by Shri Vineet Joshi, IAS, Chairman, 

CBSE, Delhi. Shri Joshi in his address emphasized that 
all CBSE affiliated schools must implement Continuous  
and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) system in the 
right earnest and not bother how the same is being 
implemented in other schools. Formative Assessments 
should be taken to give feedback to students and 
teachers and should not be converted into weekly tests. 
He accentuated that Formative Assessments diagnose 
the strengths and weaknesses of students and thus play 
a pivotal role in providing diagnostic feedback and 
remedial action. Formative Assessment tasks should 
be inter-disciplinary and must be done in class and not 
given as homework.

He also briefed the gathering about the new 
changes that will be introduced by CBSE from 
this session and the next session. Problem Solving 
Assessment (PSA) will be introduced in class IX and 
XI from the second term of this session. Assessment 
of Speaking and Listening (ASL) skills in English 
language will be introduced from the next session. 
He said that schools must implement Values Based 
Questions in the content of subjects in classes IX, X, 
XI and XII from this session.

While shedding light on ‘Reading and Reporting 
Assessment’, Mr. Rajesh Awasthi, Principal, Choithram 
School, Manik Bagh, Indore and Principal Choithram 
Institute of Educational Research and Training, raised 
an important question whether grades mentioned in 
a student’s report card signify his learning or if some 
form of alternative assessment was required to report 
a student’s performance in detail.

Sharing her views on ‘Developmental Assessment’, 
Ms. Joselyn Cook, Principal, Research Fellow and 
Manager of the Perth office at the Australian Council 
for Educational Research (ACER), highlighted that 
Development Assessment is the process of monitoring 
student’s progress so that decisions can be made about 
the best way to support student learning. Central to the 
concept of developmental assessment is the Progress 
Map that describes the way skills and knowledge 
develop in a particular subject. The progress map is 
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used as the frame of reference for measuring student 
development in a subject.

Ms. Joselyn Cook, Principal, Research Fellow and Manager of the Perth 
office at the Australian Council for Educational Research expressing her 

views on 'Development Assessment'

Dr. Upinder Dhar, Vice Chancellor of J. K. 
Lakshmipat University, Jaipur in his session on 
‘Measuring Student Learning Through Assessment’ 
elaborated on the purpose of assessment as well as 
the different ways of assessment, which means to be 
progressive in nature. It’s not the knowledge acquired 
by students that matters, it ’s more important to 
acquire skills as they are the most essential resource. 
Mr. Dhar propounded that by measuring student 
learning, accurate feedback can be given to the students 
about their progress and direction concerning future 
requirements.

Dr. Upinder Dhar, Vice Chancellor of J. K. Lakshmipat University, Jaipur 
during his session on 'Measuring Student Learning Through Assessment'

Dr. B. K. Passi; Former-Vice Chairman, National 
Council of  Teacher Education felt that children should 
be made to work in groups to foster learning as learning 
takes place easily in an informal set up. He expressed 
that informal learning must be brought about in formal 
teaching and how the formal system of education needs 
to be simplified. Citing the example of Barefoot College 
in Rajasthan, he accentuated that learning is enriched 
when the teacher is the learner and the learner is the 
teacher.

Dr B.K. Passi, Former Vice Chairman, National Council of Teacher 
Education addressing the participants

An interactive session in the form of a Panel 
Discussion witnessed Principals of various schools 
exchanging their views related to ‘Assessment – Today 
and Tomorrow’. In yet another session Principals 
of different schools put forth their ideas related to 
innovative assessment techniques practised by them 
in their respective schools.

The conference encompassing two days made 
everyone realize that ‘Student assessment is an integral 
part of teaching and learning process, its primary 
purpose being to support student learning.’ For teachers, 
assessment answers the question whether students have 
learned or not and enables them to reflect on their 
practice in order to improve student learning.For the 
students, assessment is paramount as it provides timely 
constructive feedback about their understanding.

The two days witnessed camaraderie and 
fellowship among the delegates and served as an 
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excellent platform to share views and expertise for 
enhancing better teaching learning atmosphere. With 
a hope that the manifestation of this interaction would 
bear fruit in actual class room teaching and fortify 
the learning process, the second National Conference 
hosted by the Choithram Group concluded on an 
optimistic note.

Empowering Students with Life Skills  
CRPF Public School, Dwarka, Delhi

Life skills facilitate a complete and integrated 
development of individuals to function effectively as 
social beings.

Complying with the Spiral Model of learning, 
Life Skills books for classes I to X have been designed 
with a curriculum integrating three, core skills with 
a particular emphasis on critical thinking, problem 
solving, self management, effective communication 

and interpersonal skills. The curriculum designed aims 
at developing high moral values, positive attitudes, 
effective interpersonal skills and at the same time 
sensitizing students to various environmental issues 

Teaching Strategies

Life skills education involves a dynamic teaching 
process. The methods used in the school, to facilitate 
active involvement of all the students include the 
following:

 Class discussions  Participation in Morning 
Assemblies  Brainstorming  Demonstration and 
guided practice  Role plays  Audio and visual 
activities, e.g., arts, music, theatre, dance  Group 
Games  Educational games and simulations  
Worksheets  Story telling  Debates  Decision 
making or problem trees  Power Point Presentations 
 Situation Analysis and Case Studies  Conducting 

The students being empowered with Life Skills and Values Education
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Surveys  Decorating Bulletin Boards  Celebrating 
Special Days  Creative Writing

Assessment and Outcome

Assessment is an integral part of instruction, as 
it determines whether or not the goals of education 
are being met.

Feedback from the teachers as well as the peer 
groups has revealed that through the experiential 
learning process, children internalize the knowledge 
and gain the ability to apply the skills appropriately.

In a span of two years, life skills classes have 
been conducted effectively which has empowered the 
students to plan ahead and choose effective solutions to 
problems. Guidance and feedback from the teachers has 
helped the students to acquire a positive self-image, self-
awareness, social and emotional adjustment; increased 
acquisition of knowledge; improved classroom behavior; 
gain in self control and sociability; better handling of 
interpersonal problems and coping with anxiety; and 
improved constructive conflict resolution with peers, 
impulse control and popularity.

Life skill education has taught the pupils to get 
along with other people, adjust with their environment, 
communicate effectively, make responsible decisions 
and be responsible citizens.

“The school aspires to create life skills education 
as the cornerstone of premium education.”

Maps Expression  
Mount Abu Public School, Delhi

regional Level CBse science exhibition

The premises of Mount Abu School resounded 
with the scientific temper when it became the proud 
host of the CBSE Regional Science Exhibition 2012 
for two days i.e 17 and 18 August.The exhibition 
was inaugurated by the Chairman CBSE Sh. Vineet 
Joshi who lighted the lamp and spread the message 
of dissemination of knowledge in every nook and 

corner of the society. Other dignitaries at the inaugural 
ceremony were Addl. Director (Schools), Directorate 
of Education, Govt of Delhi, Dr. Sunita Kaushik, 
Deputy Director, Vimlesh Kumari, Dr B.C. Sabat, 
Senior Scientific Officer Department of Environment, 
Govt of Delhi, Sh R.P. Sharma, Consultant, CBSE and 
Chairman of the School, Sh. D.N. Arora.

The composition of four dances i.e Bihu, 
Rannappa, Dholu Kunutha and Podicherry in the form 
of medley left the audience spellbound. In all around 
hundred schools had participated in which two exhibits 
from each were on display. The theme of the Exhibition 
Science, Society and Environment comprised of six sub 
themes that included, Health, Disaster Management, 
Energy Conservation, Mathematics in Daily Life, 
Environment Issues and Concerns and Food and 
Agriculture.

The eminent Jury Mr. D.K. Bedi, Dr. Suman 
Nath, Ms. Monika Mehan, Dr S.C. Dutta, Dr. Vijay 
Sarda and Dr. Yogesh Kumar assessed the exhibits 
and gave the judgement on the concluding day i.e 
18 August. Out of all, 15 schools were shortlisted for 
the National Level Exhibition to be held in October 
including the host Mount Abu School, Indian School 
From Oman, Kulachi Hansraj Model School Ashok 
Vihar, Goodley School Shalimar Bagh, etc.

The Chairman CBSE Shri Vineet Joshi inaugurating the Regional Level 
CBSE Science Exhibition at Mount Abu Public School, Delhi

Sh. Vineet Joshi, Chairman, CBSE in his speech 
stressed on the need of giving practical touch to the 
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concepts of science and its related areas and emphasised 
on the need to develop a practical attitude towards 
studies.

Values Education Workshop 
Bharatiya Vidya Bhavans Vidyashram, 

Bhimavaram

Bharatiya Vidya Bhavan’s Bhimavaram, in 
collaboration with Shikshan Bharati conducted a 3 
day Values Education Workshop in the Vidyashram, 
guided by Shri Rakesh Saxena, Director Shikshan 
Bharati, directed by Sri Y.V.N. Rao, Education Officer, 
South Zone –A and coordinated by Sri G.S. Negi, 
Dean(Academics) Bhavan’s schools East and West 
Godavari. Around 15 Bharatiya Vidya Bhavan Schools 
from Andhra Pradesh and Karnataka participated in 
it.

The schools should help children to understand 
the foundation and imbibe all fine human values like 
truthfulness, sincerity, kindness, compassion, empathy, 
co-operation, tolerance, freedom, self-respect and 
respect for others etc. through classroom interactions 
and instructional sessions. Similarly co-curricular and 
extracurricular activities present great opportunities to 
the teachers to impart moral and social values among 
the children. Morning assembly activities, celebrations 
of national and religious festivals can be explored to 
inculcate spiritual and religious values among the 
younger generations.

Resource persons like Dr. G.V.V.D.S. Prasad, 
Eminent Gandhian, Secretary, Sarvodaya Madal, 
Andhra Pradesh, spoke on ‘Gandhian Values for 
Development of a Just Society’. Shri Jayshankar 
Krishnamurthy of Vedanta, Hyderabad (Disciple of 
Eminent spiritual Guru Shri Parthyasarathy) spoke on 
‘Values Education – Its Significance and The Role of 
Schools and Teachers’.

Swami Assharatmananda of Ramakrishna 
Mission, Rajahmundry spoke on ‘Values Education 
and Swami Vivekananda’. Professor Subba Raju of 

SRKR Engineering College, Bhimavaram spoke on 
‘Life Skills – Essential for Life’. The Dean Mr. G.S. 
Negi spoke on ‘Religious and Peace Education and 
Mrs. L.V. Rama Devi, Principal of Bharatiya Vidya 
Bhavan’s Vidyashram, Bhimavaram spoke on ‘Practical 
Approaches to Values Education’. Teachers of various 
schools presented their PPTs on various topics based 
on Values Education.

It was a valuable workshop delving on the 
teachers’ responsibility to show the right way to their 
students, helping them to develop themselves into 
balanced human beings, leading a happy and successful 
life.

xq:tuksa us lh[ks f’k{k.k lEca/kh xqj 
us'kuy ,dsMeh

lhch,lbZ dh vksj ls us’kuy ,dsMeh esa 
vk;ksftr uksMy Vhpj Vªsfuax izksxke lQyrkiwoZd 
lEiUu gks x;kA bl dk;Z'kkyk esa lhch,lbZ ls lEc) 
rhl Ldwyksa ls f’k{kd & f'kf{kdkvksa us Hkkx ysdj lanHkZ 
O;fDr;ksa ls csgrj f'k{k.k lEca/kh xqj lh[ksA f'kfoj ds 
lekiu l= ls iwoZ ;gak dk;Z'kkyk esa lEHkkxh f'k{kdksa 
us us'kuy ,dsMeh ds d{kk 9 o 10 ds fo|kfFkZ;ksa ds 
lkFk lh/kk laokn dj mudh i<kbZ lEca/kh dfBukbZ;ksa 
,oa vis{kkvksa ds lEca/k esa tkudkjh izkIr dhA fo|kfFkZ;ksa 
us f'k{kdksa ds fy, vk;ksftr dh xbZ bl dk;Z'kkyk 
dks ljkgkA

lhch,lbZ dh vksj ls lanHkZ O;fDr ds :Ik 
esa vkbZ MkW- ohuk lCcjoky us f'k{kdksa ls dgk fd 
os viuh ;ksX;rk o {kerkvksa dks igpkusas ,oa mudk 
fujarj fodkl djsa rkfd Hkfo"; esa os fo|kfFkZ;ksa dh 
gj 'kadk dk lek/kku dj ldsA f'k{kdksa dks uohure 
f'k{k.k fof/k;ksa dks viukrs gq, ;kstukc) rjhds ls 
f'k{k.k dk;Z djuk gksxk rHkh os ubZ ih<h dks larq"V o 
fu;af=r dj ldrs gaSA
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lanHkZ O;fDr MkW dqeqn JhokLro us lEHkkxh 
f'k{kd&f'kf{kdkvksa ls dgk fd os vius Kku o dkS'ky 
dks c<kdj gh fo|kfFkZ;ksa ds fnyks fnekx ij Nk 
ldrs gSaA f'k{kd dks ges'kk v/;;u djds gh Dykl 
esa tkuk pkfg, rFkk Nk=ksa dh gj ftKklk o iz'uksa 
ds tokc nsus dh {kerk vius vUnj fodflr djuh 
gksxhA izfrLi/ khZ lekt esa ogh f'k{kd viuk vfLrRo 
vkSj lEeku dk;e j[k ldrk gS tks fd fo"k; fo'ks"kK 
vkSj cky euksfoKku dk tkudkj gksxkA

rhu fnolh; dk;Z'kkyk esa lEHkkxh f'k{kd& 
f'kf{kdkvksa us lanHkZ O;fDr;ksa ls vusd iz'u dj 
KkuktZu fd;k vkSj f'k{kdksa dks dkmalfyax ds nkSjku 
dbZ rjg dh ,fDVfoVht nsdj muds Kku dkS'ky dk 
ekiu fd;k x;kA

lhch,lbZ }kjk vk;ksftr uksMy Vhpj Vªsfuax izksxke esa  

izfrHkkxh f'k{kd&f'kf{kdk,a

Ldwy fizalhiy Jherh lfjrk oh- flag us lEHkkxh 
f'k{kdksa ,oa lanHkZ O;fDr;ksa ds izfr vkHkkj O;Dr fd;k 
vkSj vk'kk O;Dr dh fd ;g Vªsfuax izksxzke f'k{kdksa ds Kku 
dkS'ky esa vfHkòf) djsxk ,oa ÅtkZoku f'k{kd ubZ f'k{k.k 
rduhdksa dks viukdj f'k{k.k dk;Z dks csgrj cuk ldsaxsA

Okkbl fizalhiy Jherh eatw ;kno us Hkh dk;Z'kkyk 
esa fopkj O;Dr djrs gq, izHkkoh f'k{k.k ds xqj crk, 

vkSj f'k{kdksa ls dgk fd ;fn ge le;c) vkSj 
;kstukc) rjhds ls ikB ;kstuk rS;kj dj d{kk esa 
f'k{k.k djsaxs rks mudk f'k{k.k dk;Z csgrj vkSj izHkkoh 
cu ldsxkA izHkkoh f'k{k.k ds fy, f'k{kd dks i<+dj 
vkuk t:jh gSA

CBSE Regional Science Exhibition  
Choithram School, Manik Bagh, Indore

Choithram School, Manik Bagh, Indore hosted 
the two day CBSE Regional Science Exhibition 
pertaining to the theme ‘Science, Society and 
Environment’ on 17 and 18 August, 2012. As many 
as 123 students from 36 CBSE affiliated schools of 
Madhya Pradesh showcased 59 innovative exhibits, 
projects and models on six themes of this year’s 
Exhibition, viz., Agriculture and Food Security, Energy 
- Resources and Conservation, Health, Environmental 
Issues and Concerns, Mathematics and Everyday Life 
and Disaster Management.

The students explaining the science concepts to a visitor during  
the CBSE Regional Science Exhibition

The inaugural ceremony on 17 August 2012 
commenced with the lighting of the lamp by Chief 
Guest, Dr. S. L. Garg, Principal, Government College; 
an internationally acclaimed educationist and Mr. 
Rajesh Awasthi, Principal Choithram School, Manik 
Bagh. Paying obeisance to the Almighty and seeking 
his blessings, Ganesh Vandana was performed by class 
VII, VIII and IX girls.
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The Chief Guest in his inaugural address 
underlined the importance of Science for meeting the 
challenges of life. He then declared the Exhibition 
open and lauded the effort of all the participants who 
had toiled to create innovative and creative exhibits, 
models and projects.

The Chief Guest interacting with the students on the concept and 
methodology of their Science Project on display

A panel of six eminent judges judged the 
laborious effort of the participants namely Dr. Sanjay 
Vyas, Dr. Kislay Pancholi, Dr. Vikesh Gupta, Dr. W. 
R. Deshpande, Dr. Norman Sharma and Mr. Amitava 
Saraswati.

Dr. P.K. Chande, Group Director of TRUBA 
Group; a man of great academic acumen was the 

Chief Guest at the closing and prize distribution 
ceremony on 18 August 2012. The valedictory 
programme commenced with a revitalizing Bihu 
dance performance by class VIII and IX girls. Dr. P. 
K. Chande presented the awards to winners of 15 best 
exhibits. In his address Dr. P. K. Chande appreciated 
the efforts of the participants and teachers and 
emphasized on building of scientific temperament 
amongst the students.

The model display at CBSE Regional Science Exhibition  
at Choithram School

The 15 schools that received the awards for best 
exhibits were selected for the National level held in 
New Delhi.

The only person who is educated is the one who 
has learned how to learn and change.

 – Carl Rogers
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Mock drill on Fire Safety  
Richmondd Global School, New Delhi

In recent times a lot of fire incidents have been 
reported causing irreparable loss to many lives and 
property. As an initiative by Directorate of Education 
it has been included in the Disaster Management 
Programme wherein a mock drill on fire safety was 
conducted by Richmondd Global School, PaschimVihar 
on 13 July 2012 to make the students aware of the 
various safety norms to be observed whenever a fire 
breaks out.

A mock drill on fire safety in progress

The students were already briefed about the 
mock drill and the volunteers were given their duties 
a day in advance. As soon as the fire alarm went off, 
the students rushed to the ground and lined up. There 

was artificial smoke which was let out in the building 
to make the experience real. It was ensured that there 
was no student left inside the building and that the 
school was evacuated as soon as possible. The casualties 
were given first aid on the spot. At the same time the 
volunteers used the Fire extinguishers to extinguish fire 
with some sand from the fire safety buckets. During 
the drill the students were also given a presentation on 
how fire can be prevented and the measures which can 
be taken to avoid fire accidents. They were also given 
some tips on quick first aid and the fire equipment to 
manage fire incidents and save lives.

The first-aid being given to a student as part of  
the mock drill on fire safety.

Furthermore, posters were designed by the 
students emphasising on the prevention of fire and 
how negligence could lead to dire consequences. It 

Best Practices
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was an enriching experience for the students and the 
teachers.

To conclude, this mock drill definitely proved 
a major learning experience for everyone and a step 
ahead in avoiding fire disaster and saving lives. One of 
the poster rightly said, “Fire brings tears, safety brings 
cheers!!”

Save the Mother Earth  
VSPK International School, Delhi

VSPKians pay tribute to the bounties of 
great mother earth. The celebration began with an 
enlightening and mesmerizing play on MOTHER 
EARTH and THE IMPORTANCE of MONSOON 
with the message that ‘Earth has enough for our needs but 
not enough for our greeds’. The enactment implored all 
for judicious usage of natural resources and not to over 
exploit them as nature is the reservoir of life on the earth.

The scenes from the play on Mother Earth and  
the importance of monsoon in our life

The agony of earth on felling of trees and 
depletion of natural resources is a warning for mankind 
that “Prevention is Better Than Cure”. The event 
concluded with a pledge by all including Principal Dr. 
Dolly Jaitly, staff members and the students that they 
will all resolve to contain the natural resources and thus 
save Mother Earth.

A Visit to the Underprivileged  
St. Soldier School, Mohali

To serve God is to serve Humanity, propagating 
this noble idea,students of Health and Cookery Clubs 
accompanied by their teachers Mrs. J.P.Kaur and Mrs.
Maninder Kaur visited the construction site of the 
Punjab Sports Complex, Mohali to meet the workers 
and their families and distribute fruits, food items and 
clothes.

The students interacting with workers at Punjab Sports  
Complex construction site

The students interviewed the workers to 
know about their lives of hardships and miseries. On 
interacting with their children, they were startled to 
know that hardly any of them had been vaccinated. 
Going to a school was a far fetched dream. There was 
no source of clean drinking water too.

The students of St. Soldiers School distributing clothes to the 
underprivileged kids
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The teachers and the students sensitized the 
inhabitants about the importance of hygiene and 
sanitation. It was an excellent endeavour on the part 
of the school authorities to organize such a visit which 
enabled the students to have an insight into the world 
of people below poverty line. They were inspired to 
alleviate the sufferings of the underprivileged by 
donating generously.

Load off the Back  
Presidency School, Kasturi Nagar, Bengaluru

Wednesday - A day with 'no bag' for the students of  
Presidency School, Bengaluru

So much is being written about the satchel of 
books that the students have to carry to school. The 
school has taken the lead to bring about an innovation 
and make the experience light at least once a week. 
Every Wednesday is observed as a 'No Bag Day'. So 
how will teachers fill in the hours of study if students 
do not bring any book to school? Field trips, power 
point presentations, declamations, quizzes and debates 
fill the hours and students have started looking forward 
to this one day and believe it or not, are able to learn 
and absorb a lot more this way than by the traditional 
method.

An Initiative by Students for a Noble Cause 
Homerton Grammar School, Faridabad

Three senior students Kamal Singh, Sidhartha 
Arya and Yash Upadhya, inspired by Satyameva Jayate’s 
show aired on 19 June 2012, titled ‘Person With 
Disabilities - Education For All’ and with the guidance 
of Founder Principal -Mr. Kuldip Singh, took a step 
for a noble cause.

These three students collected donation from 
students, teachers and management and donated it 
to AMAR JYOTI – A Charitable Trust for Disabled 
People in New Delhi.

Kamal, Sidhartha and Yash together for a good cause of helping others

The efforts put in by the students were appreciated 
by the Founder Principal Mrs Uma Tulli and Vice 
Principal Mrs Sarita of Amar Jyoti Charitable Trust. 

Disaster Management  
S.J.R. Public School, Bengaluru

The students of ‘SJR ‘held an ‘Awareness Week’ 
on the topic of ‘Emergency Service’ in July 2012. 
Various programmes had been conducted throughout 
the week. Children of std. VIII made pamphlets on 
“Disasters” with its ‘Dos, Don’ts and Precautionary 
Measure. As a part of it Emergency Co-ordinator of 
Disaster Management Advisory Committee, Bengaluru 
(Mr. Pradeep) gave a lecture to high school students 
and also taught them scientific methods to approach 
the problem. High School students presented a skit in 
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the assembly with a message to have “Humanitarianism” 
throughout their life.  A teacher’s talk enlightened the 
children to understand what are Emergency services 
and what is the significance of observing Emergency 
services in schools.

The Awareness Week on Emergency Services was 
celebrated in the SJR Public School

Inter-school power point Competition

An Inter-school power point presentation on 
“Disaster Management” was held where eleven schools 
participated with varied sub-topics like “ Earthquake, 
cloudburst, vector borne diseases, water borne diseases, 
etc. Among the eleven schools S.J.R Public School  
bagged the First Prize and Sindhi High School, 
Kumarakrupa the second. The event was judged by Mrs.
Rossy K, Mrs. Neelam and Dr. Mahendra from N.G.O 
(Disaster Management).

Resisting Child Abuse and Human Trafficking 
Ira International School, Nagpur

Two days Workshop on Resisting Child Sexual 
Abuse and Human Trafficking was organized by 
Ira International School by an eminent High Court 
lawyer from Mumbai, Ms Aileen Marques. She is an 
exceptional communicator –analytical and encouraging, 
with crisis management abilities, creative planning and 
a proactive approach. The workshop was divided into 
four sections as per the different levels of students and 

the last session was conducted for the teachers and 
mother parents.

Ms Marques presented some of the facts and 
Survey reports on Child Abuse. In her workshop, she 
stressed on understanding Child Abuse and Human 
Trafficking, the current scenario and its preventions 
and precautions.

Further, she highlighted the probable reasons 
for Trafficking. Honesty, respect and communication 
are the three strongest pillars of relationship, she said. 
She made the younger kids aware about Good Touch 
and Bad Touch.

Ms. Aileen Margues, eminent High Court lawyer from 
Mumbai speaking on Resisting Child Sexual Abuse and Human Trafficking

In today ’s life style, hectic schedule and 
communication gap are the root cause which silently 
drive us towards these problems. Child-parent 
understanding and strong bonding can up to a large 
extent limit the evil faced by school students,who must 
be encouraged to inform their parents, must never give 
personal information on internet and refrain from 
unknown online friends.

World Population Day  
Tagore Public School, Shastrinagar, Delhi

The students showed their concern towards the 
world population which has edged to more than 7.5 
billion and the need to bring awareness amongst the 
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youth, the future of a nation, towards the population 
boom on 11 July 2012 in the school. Programmes 
organised by the students of Tagore House which 
included slide show, display of effective posters and 
charts and an informative and expressive speeches 
delivered by students. They focussed on the urgency and 
importance of population issues in the context of overall 
developmental plans and programmes and also stressed 
upon the need to find solutions for these issues. In the 
end, the Principal, Mrs. J. Sen, highlighted the threat 
due to population explosion and the need of the hour 
to fight back this challenge unitedly for a developed 
and blissful future.

The 'Tagore House' students speaking on the issue of 
population explosion on 'World Population Day'

Every Drop Counts  
Oakdale School, Hoshiarpur

Water – known as ‘Blue Diamond’ is very 
precious. The students took an oath to save water and 
pledged to stop others from wasting water. Inter house 
skit competition was held in which students exhibited 
their talent in such a way that even the small children 
could understand the importance of saving water. 
Speeches were organized to mark the promise of using 
water carefully.

As the school is situated in the lush green country 
side, the students also visited the houses of the farmers 
to corelate the importance of water and electricity. They 
urged them to sow paddy only during the rains. They 

also made them understand to keep their wells open 
so that rain water collected in that could be used for 
watering the plants. The villages near the School have 
all the modern facilities, still everybody showed keen 
interest and keeping in mind the diminishing water 
levels, took pledge to Save Water.

The 'Save Water' pledge taken by the students of  
Oakadale School, Hoshiarpur

Theatre in Education  
D.A.V. Public School, Faridabad

A two day workshop on ‘Theatre in Education’ 
was conducted on 27 and 28 June 2012 to make the 
educators familiar with the various techniques and 
importance of Theatre in  today’s changing classroom 
teaching styles. The workshop was conducted by the 
experts, Dr. Suwaran Rawat from Srinagar University, 
one of the founders of SANSKAR RANG TOLI (a 
theatre in Education Company formed under the ages 
of National School of Drama), Ms. Priyadarshani and 
Mr. Kapil Sharma from CURIO Institute of Drama, 
Jaipur. The workshop was inaugurated by the Principal 
Mrs. Neelam Gandhi who highlighted the felt need 
of such workshops for integrating the diversity of 
learning style in oversized classrooms, social diversities, 
multi languages and varying learning profiles. About 
50 teachers of 12 DAV Public schools from cluster 4 
attended this workshop.

All these demonstrations exhibited the teachers' 
innovation, spontaneity and creativity, giving direction 
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to the classroom teaching process .The session concluded 
with the expert comments of the resource persons and 
the Principal who were charmed by the spectacular 
thematic displays by all delegates. The workshop was a 
huge success giving all the teachers enough opportunity 
to explore and meet its objectives.

The teachers participating in a workshop on 'Theatre in Education'

Fire Fighting Mock Drill  
Radiant Central Children Academy, Jalalpur

The academy belongs to rural area, situated at 
Jalalpur, 20km. far from Ambedkar Nagar district. 
Students mainly come f rom those areas. The 
students requested their Physical Education teacher 
Mr.Vishwajeet Singh to have training in fire fighting.

A mock fire-drill saw students grappling with fire under the proper 
guidance of Mr. Arvind Kumar Singh, District Fire Officer, Akbarpur 

(Ambedkar Nagar). People admired the training of students.

These days, during harvesting of wheat crop, due 
to fast blowing zephyr, a major portion of these crops 
get burnt. Mr. Arvind Kumar Singh along with his 
firemen organized ten teams comprising of teachers 
and students. The teams conducted a mock drill and Mr. 
Singh taught how to be safe if the building is on fire. 
He also trained the students how to use a ladder in such 
casualties. He gave many tips to the students on how to 
extinguish the fire when a gas cylinder bursts.

The rehearsal gratified all the spectators and 
ended with a thank you speech of the Director of the 
Academy, Mr. Gaurav Kumar.

Celebration With a Difference  
St. Columbus School, Faridabad, Haryana

The School continued with its tradition of 
sending Rakhis to the soldiers of the 4th Rajput 
Battalion. Every year, the students prepare and send 
handmade Rakhis and greeting cards with messages to 
the brave hearts of our country. This practice is to ensure 
that our brethren who are away from their homes are 
remembered and respected for their sacrifices.

The girl students of St Columbus, Haryana tying Rakhis on the Police 
personnel as a token of appreciation for protecting the citizens

This year,the school took the initiative further 
in sending its students to tie the sacred thread to the 
police officers in the nearby areas.
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On the 1 August 2012, a team comprising of the 
Vice-Chairman, Mr. Sumit Choudhary and Principal, 
Ms. Sangeeta Bhati, few students and teachers went 
to Surajkund Police Station wherein the officers were 
tied Rakhis and in reciprocation the officers offered 
gifts to the children. It was a privilege and honour for 
the students to have interacted with  the officers in 
uniform. They had first-hand information about the 
hardships and the sacrifices that the police force faced 
in order to ensure peace. They were given useful advice 
on safety and security.

The Columbians returned with awe and 
admiration for the police force.

‘I sought my soul, but my soul I could not see. I sought 
my God, the protector, but my God eluded me. I sought you, 
my brother and I found all three.’

Service to Humanity is Service to God  
Sarla Chopra D.A.V. Public School, Noida

The school never misses an opportunity to serve 
the underprivileged. This was clearly proved when it 
become one of the 100 schools across Delhi and NCR 
who participated and partnered with Hindustan Times 
in a social initiative, a Book collection drive in the 
month of August (1 to 16 August 2012).

The school donating books for the Hindustan Times Initiative

The students donated more than 5000 books to 
help the poor and unprivileged children. A variety of 
books like textbooks, storybooks, puzzle books, Sudokus 
and many others based on various topics were given to 
the needy children.

The Interact club and volunteers of Tilak House 
(House on Duty) showed a lot of enthusiasm and 
eagerness in this noble cause. Appreciating the sincere 
efforts of the students the Principal Ms. I.P. Bhatia, 
encouraged the students to always do their bit for the 
society and showed her happiness at the roaring success 
of this humane gesture. 

COMFY -Communal Amity through Familial 
Harmony at AL-Ameen Public School, Ernakulam

Communal Amity through Familial Harmony 
(COMFY ) is a novel and one of its kind ideas 
propelled by Al-Ameen group of institutions. It 
aims at uniting the people of different castes and 
community under the humane bond of brotherhood 
and solidarity.

School children are encouraged to visit each 
other with their families, thus inculcating in them the 
culture of hospitality and improving their social skills. 
The COMFY meets also envisage an attempt to get 
together at least twice a year forgetting all barriers of 
caste, community and religion.

The COMFY also envisages building a 
communication network COMNET to instantly 
transmit messages that range from casual greetings 
to SOS.

COMFY has indeed developed as a well-
known reform to unite the fast withering flowers 
f rom their plants. It also gives high priority to 
personality development. As a result, the students 
of Al-Ameen Institutions grow up to become 
individuals who respect and uphold the cultural, 
social and household values that are fast dissipating 
in today’s society.
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PTA Class Library at Padma Seshadri Bala 
Bhavan Sr. Sec. School, Chennai

 “Children are made readers on the laps of their 
parents.” – Emilie Buchwald.

The Parent Teacher Association (PTA) undertook 
to build an avid reading community among the students 
of Pre K.G to class III.

To ensure that these children experience the joy 
of reading on the loving laps of parents / grandparents, 
the PTA decided to create the ‘PSBB PTA Class 
Library’.

The PSBB PTA raised funds through a summer 
camp. Books of different types catering to the readers 
of different reading capabilities were purchased. Some 
were donated by parents.

Parent volunteers visit the school at pre-
determined times weekly and issue books to the 
students.

Students find it fun, interesting and exciting to 
get new, colourful books every week.  Teachers find an 
improvement in the reading fluency, vocabulary, narrative 
and conversation skills and general comprehension of 
the students. Parents find this as a forum for mutual 
interaction as well as an opportunity to be involved 
with the school.

Students with the story books in their folders

Children now discuss which food ‘The Very 
Hungry Caterpillar’ (by Eric Carle) ate, in the same 

breath as they talk about a T.V. show or a computer 
game. They talk about exchanging the latest book in 
the ‘Magic Tree House’ series with as much passion as 
exchanging a video game CD.

This program has been a grand success since 
three years owing to the enthusiasm and combined 
efforts of the ‘golden triangle’ – the school, the parents 
and the students.

Career in Humanities-A Vast Horizon to Explore 
Presentation Convent Sr. Sec. School, Jammu

Preparing a Power Point Presentation and 
a Documentary on the various career options in 
Humanities as a project for Holidays Homework 
proved to be an incredibly rich and knowledgeable 
experience. It opened many doors so that the students 
of Arts could explore the hitherto less travelled road 
to success. The students of the Arts section gathered 
important information on various subjects falling under 
Humanities stream.

The research team collected data from the 
internet, magazines, journals and articles from the 
newspapers. The data was then compiled by the creative 
team and the final product was given the shape of a 
Power Point Presentation. The second group worked on 
a Documentary on Humanities as career options. For 
this the students conducted interviews of the lecturers 
as well as the H.O.Ds’. The projects were successful in 
breaking certain stereotypes associated with opting for 
Arts as a career. Today sky is the limit and the careers 
are as unconventional as the wide variety of subjects 
available.

 ‘Nine is Mine’ campaign is an advocacy initiative 
of the children, by the children, for the children. On 
14 August 2012 the students of class X-A presented a 
special assembly on the same.

‘Nine is Mine’ campaign also finds its voice in the 
young campaigners of  YSM-Young Students Movement 
of the school. Apart from assemblies, workshops were 
also organized by the school in which the students were 
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enlightened about the eight millennium development 
goals by brother Steve Rocha.

The formation of the number nine during the 'Nine is Mine' campaign

In the wake of the same, the school adopted a 
village located on the outskirts of the city and now runs 
EOTO-Each One Teach One Programme regularly. 
The students of class VII regularly visit this place and 
carry out teaching students of ‘Snehashray’- the local 
school run under the aegis of Presentation.

Safety and Awareness Week 
Vedant International School, Ahmedabad

Safety is a core value of our life: - As public 
awareness program educates people with the goal 
of eliminating incidents and protecting the public 
environment and assets, the school celebrated an 
Awareness week from 16 July 2012.

The following activities were conducted :

  Poetr y, s logan and essay writ ing 
competitions

  Traffic awareness 
  Awareness about 108 service

The awareness session on '108' (emergency) service being organized  
at Vedant International School, Ahmedabad

Various house captains were handed over the 
duty to decorate the boards with slogans and poems.

The staff and the students took the oath that 
they will always follow the safety rules and become a 
disciplined citizen.

The traffic personnel instructing the audience on traffic awareness

Alert Today  Alive Tomorrow 
Shivjyoti Convent Sr. Sec School, Kota

A workshop on “Alert Today-Alive Tomorrow” 
was conducted from11 to 14 July 2012. The first day 
started with classroom teaching on road safety through 
smart boards where the teachers made the presentations 
and explained the guidelines and safety measures to 
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students like what constitutes a safe place to cross a 
road where no forms of crossing facilities are available, 
understanding the dangers of busy and multi-lane roads, 
how to correctly use the different forms of road signs, 
importance of giving timely indicators turns, etc.

On the second day, slogan writing competition 
was organized for grades VI,VII and VIII. The students 
wrote slogans on road safety, like “I have brain so I wear 
helmet!”, “Pencils have erasers--mishaps don't!”, “Safety 
comes in cans: I can, you can, we can”, etc. On the third 
day,  the city traffic police ASI Mr. Babulal visited the 
school and addressed the students and explained them 
about the importance of wearing helmet, how the 
reaction time of brain becomes slow due to alcohol, the 
right age for acquiring a learner’s license and permanent 
license, prohibiting the usage of mobile phones while 
driving, etc. The students of std. IX took an initiative 
in designing and distributing road safety pamphlets to 
the students of the entire school on the same day.

The city traffic police ASI, Ms. Babulal addressing the  
students on Road Safety

The workshop ended on 14 July with a stage 
play in which live demonstration of traffic signals and 
observing traffic rules was shown. 

Celebrations Galore 
Star School, Karur, Tamil Nadu

The teacher team of  Star School was entrusted 
with the celebrations of VaralakshmiVratam, 
Gokulashtami, Ramzan, the Independence Day and 

the following activities were taken up :
— Platform is laid for learning.

The in-charges are identified to sequence the 
programme with different segments as per the history 
and characters of the festival.

— Leadership zone is generated.

The in-charges go hunting for information on 
the history and importance of that particular function 
by referring to books and surfing the websites.

— Room for heritage venture.

Once the materials are ready, the teachers get on 
to the next level of choosing the participants on class 
basis keeping in mind that every class and every child 
is given the chance of delivering stuff during a year.

— Student analysis is done.

The practice session is planned out (which 
is pliable) by the in-charge and it is transcended to 
the sub-in-charges who make the participants read, 
understand and comprehend the dialogues. Chances 
are given to children to amend the dialogues with no 
loss to the core meaning.

— Creation of interest among children towards 
the task without compulsion.

The students performing and enjoying the session on experiential learning

Materials needed for the show are made ready 
by the students and sub-in-charges during the practice 
session.
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— Skills of SUPW, drawing and creativity are 
woven into this part.

Rehearsals are done during free hours where the 
performers’ accent, tone, modulation and pronunciation 
are checked.

— P l in th  f o r  impro v i s a t i on  o f  the 
performance.

The correct style of performance is emphasized 
time and again.

— Clarity on the delivery is accomplished.

The in-charge teachers allot students for P.A. 
System arrangement. These children take practice 
to adjust the mike, audio reach and direction of the 
speaker’s position so that no mess is created in sound 
effect.

— Technical knowledge is achieved.

The audience gathers! The performers exhibit 
their talent!

This is how experiential learning is given to 
teacher assistants and students.

Kargil War Heroes Remembered  
DAV Sr. Sec. Public School, Cheeka

Principal R.R.Suri and students saluting Martyrs of  
Kargil operation by illuminating candles.

The students saluted the heroes of Kargil war 
by illuminating candles. An inter house declamation 

contest in English and Hindi was held in honour of 
the martyrs of Kargil operation. Students of all the 
four houses participated in it and presented their views 
with great enthusiasm. Mr. R.R. Suri, Principal told 
how the brave soldiers of our country faught Kargil 
operation and got success. Those great warriors who 
laid down their lives are remembered on 26 July every 
year. He motivated and inspired the students to serve 
their country by joining defence services.

Human Unity Week  
Darshan Academy, Ludhiana

The distribution of clothes by the students during the 
Human Unity Week

To celebrate the Human Unity Week on the 
birthday of Spiritual Saint- Baba Sawan Singh Ji 
Maharaj, was one of the values which the school gave 
to the students. During the celebration of the week the 
students had a special assembly. They started their day 
with the message to the mankind. They sang Shabad, 
Bhajan and presented a beautiful play, in which they 
gave the message of universal brotherhood.

During the celebration of the “Human Unity 
Week”, the students distributed the clothes in the slum 
areas of Ludhiana. They shared their time with the 
children of that area. The students of the junior classes 
had a drawing competition on the theme "Human 
Unity". They made beautiful paintings on the theme. 
During the celebration of the week the students adopted 
the Bhamian Kalan Village. The School decided to plant 
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around 700 saplings in the village. During the week the 
students also went to Mother Teresa Orphanage home 
and distributed fruits and clothes among the children 
in the home.

Oily Heads in Yellow Helmets 
The New Tulip International School, Ahmedabad

India's largest private port and special 
economic zone, was incorporated as Gujarat 
Adani Port Limited (GAPL) in 1998. Some of the 
"Tulipites" from class XI and XII were selected to 
get a wonderful and amazing experience in this 
educational trip organised by The Adani group. A 
group of teachers also accompanied them in order 
to make the understanding better and also get some 
practical examples for the classroom.

A glimpse of the Adani Port set up during the students visit  
organized by the Adani Group

The industrial visits are part of the curriculum 
where the students get a practical exposure of various 
functions. The industrial visits were planned at:

1.  Adani Wilmar Limited,
2.  Adani Mundra Port and
3.  Thermal Power Station

The focus of the industrial visits was on 
logistics, supply chain management, import-export 
documentation and formalities and practical aspects of 
financial management. As informative as the trip was, 
it also focused on the religious and cultural aspects of 

the students, thus making the trip much more than just 
an educational visit.

The members/ employees of the Adani group 
took good care of the students which included a 
yoga and laughter session. They have made a major 
contribution in the development of the students and 
we acknowledge that, because it is not only the theory 
part that builds a successful person but practical 
aspects are the base on which the theory has to be 
laid on.

15 Book Campaign 
Amara Jyothi Public School, Bengaluru

One of the best practices which the school is 
following is the 15 Book Campaign. The Campaign is 
a platform which enables every student to have a flair 
for reading activity.

Thus, under the management of Pearson Schools, 
Amara Jyothi launched its 15 Book Campaign for 
Grade XI students on 23 August 2012. These fifteen 
books were carefully selected to enhance the reading 
skills in the students.

The reading activity being organized during the 15 Book Campaign

These books were then circulated to the students 
to read. Every time a student completes reading a 
book, s/he writes his/her feedback in the ‘Feedback 
Form’ provided. This ensures that the student has read 
the book completely. After this, the student gets an 
opportunity to read another book. The whole idea of 
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this 15 Book Campaign is that every student should 
get an opportunity to read at least 15 books in an 
academic year.

This will not only enhance the students reading 
skills, but also will give an opportunity for the students 
to express themselves. The students can be made to 
describe the story in the class which can improve their 
listening and speaking skills as well.

Flair Fest 
Step by Step High School, Jaipur

The school hosted the Flair Fest 2012-2013 
on 8 and 9 August 2012. Thirty Five reputed schools 
in and around Jaipur participated in the plethora of 
competitions inspired by the themes of "Save the Girl 
Child" and "Love Animals".

A ‘musical flame’ - one of the exhibit during Flair Fest  
of Step by Step High School, Jaipur

The zeal and enthusiasm of the participating 
teams added to the festivities of the Flair-Fest. In 
order to encourage the innovative young minds various 
competitions were conducted. This was done to bring 
out the creativity and talent.

Design a greeting card, fancy dress, poster 
making, poetry recitation, pin-board decoration, GK 
Quiz, What's the good word, eco-friendly jewellery 
competition, nukkad natak, group dance, rock-band, 
debates and business plan were the various competitions 
conducted for the students of classes I to XII.

An artistic expression

The Flair Fest was a grand success; the students 
showcased their creativity and talent. The efforts of the 
students were ardently appreciated by the judges of the 
respective events. It was an extremely fulfilling and 
gratifying experience for the Step by Step family.

The winning team of 'What’s The Good Word' competition

Empowering the Villagers  
Vidyashram Public School, Kota

VPS initiated a program to encourage the role 
of schools in creating high literacy rate among elderly 
people and underprivileged, residing in suburb of 
city (Kota).  It’s a free of cost programme. Classes 
are conducted after school hours, daily for an hour 
by different faculties on rotational basis. The course is 
essentially worthy of usefulness in orientation. Children 
are encouraged to receive elementary education with 
basic education to deal with different life driven 
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activities, such as how to approach government facilities, 
banking, correspondence skills, etc. Illiterate people 
are taken to reading and writing skills. The course 
is scheduled for a month duration and certificate is 
given by VPS Society to one who marks his attendance 
throughout the month. It is an endeavor by VPS to 
make worthwhile contribution in augmenting the spirit 
of better and educated society.

The teachers of Vidyashram Public School, Kota teaching  
the kids of the village

Reaching Out Programme  
St. Mary' Academy, Saharanpur

The visit to Santi Niwas was an enriching experience for the St. Marians

St. Mary’s Academy has organized several 
humanitarian activities to cultivate a compassionate 
attitude in the minds of the young generation. Under 
the guidance of Sr. Jesmy S.D the Social Service Club 
incharge,  students and teachers visited ‘Santi Niwas’ - 
Home for the Orphan children and destitute women 

at Saharanpur on 26 August 2012. It was a unique 
experience for the teachers and students. It helped 
them to develop a deep sense of solidarity with the 
brethren. Children distributed eatables, clothes, soaps, 
and stationeries, etc., for the inmates.

Water Campaign 
The Aditya Birla Public School, Kurnool

Water scarcity is an acute problem that is felt 
all over India in summer. The Rayalseema region of 
Andhra Pradesh is considered as the driest area in the 
State. To make aware the people about this precious 
but unmindfully wasted natural resource the students 
of ABPS, Kurnool along with the teachers conducted 
a SAVE WATER CAMPAIGN in the locality in 
June 2012. Nearly 600 students with more than 200 
placards reverberated the atmosphere with many 
slogans both in Hindi and English. Small street plays 
were also performed at major points to draw more 
public attention. As students actively participated in this 
programme they could learn the judicial use of water.

The Save Water Campaign was undertaken by the students  
and teachers of ABPS, Kurnool

Book-Week  
D.A.V. Public School, Ludhiana

“Your best friends are not only human beings, but 
books. To read books is like going to swim in a sea of wisdom, 
endlessly fascinating.”

–Shimon Peres



Transforming  

Pedagogy 

150 Transforming Pedagogy 

D.A.V. Public School, Pakhowal Road, Ludhiana 
organized a Book-Week from 21 to 25 August 2012. 
The aim was to stimulate students for quality reading. 
Various activities were undertaken to enable students 
to develop an affinity for the books:

•	 The	week	opened	with	discussion	on	“Importance	
of Books” by the class teachers, in their respective 
classes. Voracious readers from each class shared 
with their classmates how reading influenced 
their lives and refined their personalities.

•	 Language	teachers	read	out	stories	from	different	
books to pique interest of the students in fiction 
and acquaint them with the best- known authors. 
Subsequently, they were engaged in writing task 
and scene in enactment from the stories that they 
had heard.

The role play activity was the highlight of the 'Book-Week'  
at DAV Public School, Ludhiana

•	 Classes	III-X	were	initiated	into	reading	with	
the “Book Swap” activity. Students were asked 
to bring a book from home and exchange 
the same with their friends. The books were 
displayed on the tables and students made their 
section.

•	 The	 student	 took	worn-out	 books	 from	 the	
library and prepared book jackets including title 
of the book, authors name, etc. 

•	 Students	from	classes	III-V,	were	dressed	up	as	
famous characters like Snow White, Cindrella, 

and Tenali Rama and they spoke a few lines 
about the character allotted.

•	 Students	from	VI-X	played	the	role	of	famous	
poets and authors.

The students portraying famous poets and authors

•	 A	 wall	 magazine	 was	 put	 up	 and	 a	 power	
point presentation was presented for   students 
to see, wherein they learnt about history of 
English literature, famous books authors, and 
contemporary writers.

•	 A	 quiz	 on	 literary	 works	 and	 awards	 was	
conducted for classes VIII-X.

 On the concluding day, Principal Ms. J.K. Sidhu 
addressed the students and motivated them to 
read books in order to widen their mental and 
intellectual horizons.

Sevadham Ashram : Home for Underprivileged 
Pragya Girls School, Indore

“The greatest joy comes in life, when you invest in 
others.”

With the desire of experiencing the pain and 
sufferings of the downtrodden people and to fill their 
life with a few moments of happiness and enjoyment, 
the entire staff of Pragya Girls School visited the 
Sevadham Ashram, Ujjain on 26 April 2012.

Sevadham Ashram is an interfaith, caring 
organization that assists and supports such abandoned, 
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shelter less, dying destitute who are denied by the 
society. 

During the visit to the ashram, the students and 
teachers were received by the PRO Mr. Shatrughan. 
From here, they were taken for the visit of the different 
segments of the ashram like, children section, women 
section and men section. The overwhelming songs 
and dance performances were the indications of 
the happiness and the contentment of those people 
who have accepted Sevadham as their second home.
Everybody was  amazed to see the hand free and 
hygienic cooking process in the kitchen.

The visitors were guided and informed about the 
functioning of the ashram by Shri Sudhir Bhaiji and 
other members.

All the staff members were moved to see the 
selfless and noble service of Shri Sudhir Bhaiji and 
were reminded of the famous saying, “Service to man is 
service to God.”

The students and teachers of Pragya Girls School during their  
visit to Sevadham Ashram

www.thevisualleap.com
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CBSE and Pearson Foundation Set Up Centre for 
Assessment, Evaluation and Research

"I am delighted to launch CAER (Centre for 
Assessment, Evaluation and Research) - a CBSE and 
Pearson initiative. This is another example of a public-
private partnership moving towards setting up Centers 
of Excellence. This will ensure we match the global 
best practices in education." These were the words 
of Shri Kapil Sibal, Honourable Minister for Human 
Resource Development who announced the formation 
of Centre for Assessment, 
Evaluation and Research 
on 9 August 2012.Shri Sibal 
also inaugurated the Centre’s 
website- www.indiacaer.com 
at the event.

CBSE, India’s largest 
national examining board 
and Pearson Foundation, 
the philanthropic arm of 
Pearson, the world’s largest education services 
enterprise had announced a partnership designed to 
help reshape school education in India. The CAER is 
a not for profit centre of excellence between the two 
organizations uniquely positioned to contribute to the 
reform of learning.

“Setting up this Centre with Pearson Foundation 
is a big step towards improving student learning and 

teaching quality in CBSE schools and we are equally 
stimulated by the prospect of developing and applying 
research that is aligned to global best practices,” Mr. Vineet 
Joshi, Chairman, CBSE, told the audience comprising 
of senior educators and policy makers at the launch.

Speaking at the launch, Khozem Merchant, 
President, Pearson India, said: “Pearson Foundation 
is really proud to be part of a partnership that it 
believes will significantly strengthen CBSE’s status 
as a progressive body singularly focused on improving 

learning outcomes."

CBSE schools and its 
teachers will be significantly 
impacted by the Centre’s 
work in many ways, primarily 
by grass root research and the 
application of its findings. 
Initially, this will focus 
on the impact of recent 
CBSE innovations such as 

‘Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation’ and Life 
Skills Curriculum. The Centre will draw on relevant 
international best practices for improved teaching 
practices and approaches to assessment before 
rolling out an extensive programmme of professional 
development of teachers.

This pioneering public-private partnership will 
develop at its core a high-class research capability, and 

News from Administration
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seek to apply global best practices to school-based 
assessment, teaching techniques and high-stakes 
examinations for CBSE’s more than 13,000 affiliated 
schools.

Shri Kapil Sibal - Hon’ble Minister for Human Resource Development 
lighting the lamp during the launch of Center of Assessment, Evaluation 

and Research (CAER) - A joint initiative of CBSE and Pearson

The aim will be to improve the quality of student 
outcomes at a time when “knowledge skills” are central 
to the aspirations of millions of young people and 
strategic to the growth of India itself. 

Mr. Khozem Merchant - President, Pearson of India and  
Mr. Vineet Joshi - Chairman, CBSE exchanging the MoU announcing the 

setting up of Center of Assessment, Evaluation and Research (CAER),  
a joint venture of CBSE and Pearson. Seen in the picture are (L to R): 

Mr. A. N. Jha, Joint Secretary and Financial Advisor, MHRD,  
Mrs. Anshu Vaish, Former Secretary, Department of School Education & 

Literacy, MHRD, Shri Kapil Sibal, Hon’ble Minister of HRD,  
Govt. of India, Prof. Jim Tognolini, Senior Vice President, (Research & 

Assessment), Pearson and Mr. Apurva Chandra, Joint Secretary,  
School Education & Literacy, MHRD, Govt. of India

Mandarin  
New Language on the Block

In order to cater to the diverse needs of students 
in a globalised world, CBSE offers 34 languages at the 
Secondary and Senior Secondary level out of which 
10 are foreign languages. In view of China emerging 
as one of the major global economies and Mandarin 
being spoken by a large population of the world, the 
Board offers Chinese in class VI from current academic 
session, i.e., 2012-13.

The Board is planning to offer tutor services for a 
limited number of schools situated in the NCR region 
to teach the beginner module at Class VI. The tutor will 
be teaching basics of the Chinese Language (pinyin 
chart, tones and greetings) with the help of software 
and will be encouraging self-study on the Language Lab 
software. Regular assessments will be conducted every 
month and feedback will be given by the tutor. 

The Curriculum and textbooks are being 
developed by eminent practicing scholars in this 
field. The CBSE will also be conducting the training 
programme for teachers to make them understand the 
fundamentals of the pedagogy and contents shortly.

RETIREMENT

July 2012 Shri Arbind Kumar, Assistant
Aug. 2012 Shri N. Nagaraju, Director (CTET) 

Shri Ashwani Kumar, Assistant Secretary 
Shri Rakesh Chawla, Assistant Secretary

Sep. 2012 Shri R.K. Batla, Section Officer

fganh i[kokM+k 
dsekf'kcks] {ks=h; dk;kZy;] vtesj

{ks=h; dk;kZy; vtesj esa fganh i[kokM+s dk vk;kstu 
fd;k x;kA bl nkSjku fuEu izfr;ksfxrk,a ,oa vk;kstu 
djk, x,%

1- i[kokM+k 'kqHkkjaHk ,oa fVIi.kh o izk:i ys[ku 
izfr;ksfxrk] fnukad 03-09-2012 ¼lkseokj½
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2- Jqrys[k izfr;ksfxrk] xzqi Mh] fnukad 05-09-2012 ¼cq/kokj½

3- fucaèk ys[ku izfr;ksfxrk] fnukad 05-09-2012  
¼cq/kokj½

4- fganh dk;Z'kkyk ,oa iz'uksÙkjh] fnukad 11-09-2012 
¼eaxyokj½

5- okn&fookn izfr;ksfxrk o dfork ikB izfr;ksfxrk 
,oa i[kokM+k] lekiu lekjksg] fnukad 13-09-2012 
¼c`gLifrokj½

{ks=h; vf/kdkjh Jherh iq"ik ds- ok/kok ds lkFk fu.kkZ;d eaMy] 
Jherh e/kqfydk jkBkSj ¼jktHkk"kk vf/kdkjh] Mhvkj,e] vtesj½ ,oa 

Jh jes'kpaæ feJk ¼lsokfuo`r jktHkk"kk funs'kd] dksydkrk½

CBSE Awards Teachers and Mentors

The CBSE honoured 15 mentors and 32 teachers 
from across the country on 4 September 2012, for their 
innovation and contribution in the field of education. 
These awards on the eve of Teachers’ Day are a small 
gesture that conveys the message that we care for our 
teachers who play an important role in shaping our 
lives.

CBSE Teachers’ Awards was instituted in the 
year 2000 with the objective of honouring teachers and 
principals who have made significant contributions in 
the field of education and commemorate their efforts. 
Introduced for the first time, the Mentor Award 
was bestowed for the efforts to promote Continuous 
and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE). The awards 

were given away by 
the Minister of State 
for Human Resource 
Development Dr. D. 
Purandeswari. Speaking 
at the awards function, 
Dr. D. Purandeswari said,  
“With 13 crore children 
going to government 
schools , there  i s  a 
challenge to provide not 
just quantity but quality 
education as well. To 
achieve this, the CCE has been implemented to bring 
about a paradigm shift from rote-learning. It aims at 
CCE- child-centric education.” 

Mrs. Anshu Vaish, Former Secretary, Department 
of School Education and Literacy, MHRD, Government 
of India said, “There is a need to build mutual respect 
as the foundation of learning. RTE and CCE together 
make self-learning and thinking possible.” 

The multi-pronged approach of the Mentor-
Monitor framework exercise is based on two core 
objectives, one that the implementation of CCE has 
to be in letter and spirit and not a procedure on paper 
and two, it makes working with teachers and school 
leaders possible. They are the actual resource base who 
can make CCE a worthy initiative.

According to the Chairman CBSE, Mr. Vineet 
Joshi, “Mentors and empowered teachers play an 
important role in CCE. They are the hallmark of 
education. The awards are a token of respect to their 
valuable contribution to the Indian education system.”

The Mentors were identified by the CBSE, who 
helped schools implement CCE effectively. The CBSE 
Mentor Awards were established to recognize efforts 
of principals selected as Mentors to incorporate best 
practices developed by schools and bring together 
successes created in CCE. Moreover, this was the first 
batch to receive the newly constituted award.

The list of awardees :
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teachers awards

S. No. Name Designation School 

 1. Sh. V. Vijaya Kumar Principal BHEL, Vikram Senior Secondary School,
Piplani, BHEL, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh

 2. Sister Daisy (Miss Mary C.D.) Principal St. Francis’ Convent School, 
Agra, Uttar Pradesh

 3. Sushri Indrani Gupta Principal Jagat Taran Golden Jubilee School,
Allahabad, Uttar Pradesh

 4. Sh. Jagdish Chandra Pant Principal Delhi Public School, 
Bulandshahr, Uttar Pradesh

 5. Sh. K. Kamraj Principal Ummat Public School,
Port Blair, Andaman and Nicobar Islands

 6. Smt. Deepika Jaidas Principal Shri Narayana Vidya Mandir Sr. Sec. School,
Talap, Kannur, Kerala

 7. Smt. Padmini Sriraman Principal The Hindu Senior Secondary School, 
Chennai, Tamil Nadu

 8. Sh. Anand Prakash Sharma Principal Apeejay School, 
Sheikh Sarai, Delhi

 9. Sh. Bharat Bhushan Gupta Principal Bal Bhavan Public School, 
Mayur Vihar, Delhi

 10. Dr. Dilip Kumar Pandey Principal N.C. Jindal Public School, 
West Punjabi Bagh, Delhi 

 11. Smt. Mrinalini Kaura Principal Venkateshwar International School,
Dwarka, New Delhi

 12. Smt. Rekha Sharma Principal Bal Bharti Public School, 
Rohini, Delhi

 13. Smt. Neera Sharma Principal DAV Public School, 
Lawrence Road, Amritsar, Punjab

 14. Sh. Puran Chander Belwal Principal Ladakh Public School, 
Leh-Ladhak

 15. Sister Rossamma Thomas Principal Presentation Convent Sr. Sec. School,
Gandhi Nagar, Jammu, Jammu and Kashmir

 16. Dr. Shreesh Bhardwaj Principal G.D. Goenka Public School,
Sikri, Faridabad, Haryana
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S. No. Name Designation School 

 17. Smt. Alka Arvind Kumar Principal Valley View School,
Jamshedpur, Jharkhand

 18. Sh. Anant Sahay Principal   
 

Nikhil Shyama DAV Public School, 
Dumra, Sitamarhi, Bihar

 19. Dr. Ashok Singh Principal Chinmaya Vidyalaya,
Bokaro, Jharkhand 

 20. Sh. Dinesh Bartwal Vice Principal Doon International School, 
Pari Mahal, Dehradun, Uttarakhand

 21. Smt. Brijlata Choubey Senior Lecturer 
(Chemistry)

B.S.P.H.S. School No.-2,
Balod, Chhattisgarh

 22. Smt. Achala Kamlesh Joshi PGT
(Chemistry)

Smt. Sandraben Shroff Gnyandham School,
GIDC, VAPI, Distt. Valsad, Gujarat

 23. Smt. Samita Das Gupta PGT
(Geography) 

Anandalaya, 
NDDB Campus, Anand, Gujarat

 24. Sh. Rajendra Pal Singh PGT (Physical 
Education)

S. D. Public School, 
Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh

 25. Smt. Jayashree Guru PGT
(Maths)

O.P. Jindal School, 
Raigarh, Chhattisgarh

 26. Smt. Ratna Bhatacharya PGT
(English)

Ashok Hall Girls Higher Sec. School, 
Kolkata, West Bengal

 27. Smt. K. Vijaya Lakshmi Senior TGT Brahm Prakash D.A.V. School, Kanchanbagh, 
Andhra Pradesh

 28. Smt. Shashi Batta TGT St. Anne’s Convent School,
Sector-32, Chandigarh

 29. Sushri Anita Kumari Senior Teacher Ramakrishna Sarada Mission Girls School, 
Khonsa, Arunachal Pradesh

 30. Sh. Govinda Raju Raman Senior Teacher Vivekanand Kendra Vidyalaya,
Joram, Lower Subansiri, Arunachal Pradesh

 31. Sh. Mahendra Pal Singh 
Chandel

Master In-Charge 
Education

Rashtriya Military School, 
Ajmer, Rajasthan

 32. Smt. Meena Joshi HOD
(Sports)

Modern School,
Barakhamba Road, Delhi

 33. Smt. D. Alexandra Kalaiselvi Academic  
Supervisor

S.B.O.A. School & Junior College,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu
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Mentors awards

S. No. Name Designation School 

1. Er. Pradeep Singh Gour Principal Lawrence and Mayo Public School, 
Kota, Rajasthan

2. Sh. Jaipal Pareek Principal DAV Centenary Public School,
Anoopgarh Dist., Sri Ganganagar, Rajasthan

3. Sh. Ashok Kumar Singh Principal Maa Durgaji Sr. Sec. Vidyalaya, 
Jaunpur, Uttar Pradesh

4. Sushri Mukta Nain Principal Birla High School,
1 Moira Street, Kolkata, West Bengal

5. Smt. Rita Chatterjee Principal Apeejay School, Park Street,
Kolkata, West Bengal

6. Smt. Manju Arif Principal Delhi Public School, 
Sathanur Village, Bengaluru, Karnataka

7. Dr. Vasanthi Thiagrajan Principal Sishya School,
Thally Road, Hosur, Tamil Nadu

8. Smt. Neeta Jethy Principal Mother Teresa Public School,
Preet Vihar, Delhi

9. Smt. Pallavi Sharma Principal Mamta Modern Sr. Sec. School, 
Vikaspuri, Delhi

10. Sh. Amol Kumar Mishra Principal Delhi Public School,
Dhaligaon, Assam

11. Smt. Jayashree Ghosh Principal Gyan Ganga Vidyapeeth,
Itanagar, Arunachal Pradesh

12. Smt. Aneeta Mankotia Principal Maharishi Vidya Mandir Sr. Sec. School 
Khatehar, Dharamshala, Himachal Pradesh

13. Smt. Sandeep Raikhi Principal Springdales Public School,
Sherpur Road, Ludhiana, Punjab

14. Fr. James George Principal Creane Memorial High School,
Gaya, Bihar

15. Dr. K. N. Singh Principal DAV Centenary Public School,
Siwan, Bihar 
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Gram: CENBOSEC Phone: (011) 23234324
Website: www.cbseacademic.in Email-id: sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17-Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD. /DIR. (TRG)/ 2012 09th July, 2012
Circular No. Acad-30/2012

 Subject: 150th Birth Anniversary Celebrations of Swami Vivekanand.

All the Heads of Institutions 
affiliated to CBSE

Dear Principal,

The country would be celebrating the 150th Birth Anniversary of Swami Vivekanand on 12th January 2013. The Central 
Board of Secondary Education (CBSE) along with all schools affiliated to it must celebrate the event in a befitting manner 
by ensuring the participation of all Educational Institutions in paying homage to this great leader.

Born in 1863, Swami Vivekananda played an important role in introducing Indian philosophies of Vedanta and Yoga to 
the western world. He also played a key role in making Hinduism gain the status of a major world religion during the 
end of the 19th century.

A disciple of spiritual leader Ramakrishna Paramahansa, Swamiji enchanted the European world with his inspiring 
speech at the Parliament of the World´s Religions at Chicago in 1893. Swamiji, as he was called by his disciples, 
founded social welfare body `Ramakrishna Mission’.
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Marking the 150th Birth Anniversary of the monk, the Central Board of Secondary Education (CBSE) has decided 
to commemorate the event in the schools affiliated to the Board. The schools are requested to draw a plan of 
action comprising the following programmes and activities for students of all classes:

 The schools need to draw a year long calendar of programmes and activities on the life and philosophy of 
Swami Vivekanand.

 The schools should integrate the teachings of the saint in various school clubs like debate clubs, literary 
clubs, cultural clubs etc.

 Students from different age-groups can participate in the cultural fiesta like dance, drama, skits, etc. While, for 
the kids, the cultural programme will be an occasion to express their joys, the grown-ups can soak themselves 
into the life and teachings of Swami Vivekanand.

 Creative and literary activities like poster making competition, slogan writing competition and reading and 
writing competitions can be organized at various levels

 Seminars/lecturers by eminent philosophers, educationists, and learners associated with work and life of 
Swami Vivekanand can be organized by the Schools/Societies etc.

 Exhibition on Life and achievements of Swamiji can be held too.

 Film shows followed by students’ evaluation of his relevance in the present time can become a part of the 
celebrations. The Board has decided to involve students’ community of its schools in health and physical fitness 
activities that address age specific concerns at different stages of development as part of the celebration. 
(Refer circular No. Acad-20/2012 dated 24/05/2012)

The CBSE has compiled a few relevant reference materials with links of websites etc. (Annexure 1). The students, 
teachers and various stakeholders can make use of them along with other sources to understand the life, philosophy 
and teachings of this great reformer.

The students could also be assessed as a part of Co-Scholastic Activities. It will be appreciated if the schools sent the 
action plan to the Board followed by a brief report of activities on their conclusion, supported by pictures for reference 
and record.

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (TRAINING)
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 Annexure 1

REFERENCES:

BOOKS BY SWAMI VIVEKANANDA 

Published during his lifetime

 Karma Yoga (1896)

 Raja Yoga (1896 [1899 edition])

 Vedanta Philosophy: An address before the graduate philosophical society (First published 1896)

 Lectures from Colombo to Almora (1897)

 Vedanta philosophy: lectures on Jnana Yoga (1902)

Published posthumously

 Addresses on Bhakti Yoga

 Bhakti Yoga

 Complete works. Vol 5

 The East and the West

 Inspired Talks (First published 1909 )

 Narada Bhakti Sutras - translated by Swami Vivekananda

 Lectures from Colombo to Almora (1904)

 Para Bhakti or Supreme Devotion

 Practical Vedanta

 Jnana Yoga

 Raja Yoga (1920)

 Speeches and writings of Swami Vivekananda; a comprehensive collection

 Vivekavani (1986) - Telugu

 Yoga (1987) - Telugu

ARTICLES BY VIVEKANANDA

 The Ether - New York Medical Times, Feb 1895

 Reincarnation - The Metaphysical magazine March 1895

 Is The Soul Immortal- New York Morning Advertiser (1895)

 On Dr. Paul Deussen- Brahmavadin 1896

 On Professor Max Muller - Brahmavadin 1896

 The education that India needs - Bharati, 1897

 The Problem of Modern India and Its Solution Udbodhan Jan 14, 1899

 The Bengali Language - Udbodhan
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 Knowledge Its Source and Acquirement- Udbodhan Feb 12, 1899

 Modern India - Udbodhan Mar, 1899

 Memoirs of European Travel - Udbodhan 1899

 The Paris Congress of the History of Religions- Udbodhan 1900

 Memoirs of European Travel -Udbodhan 1900

ON RAMAKRISHNA

 Swami Vivekananda - My Master (1901)

 Mahendranath Gupta - The Gospel of Sri Ramakrishna (Translated by Swami Nikhilananda)

 Muller, F Max. Ramakrishna - His life and Sayings (1898)

BOOKS BY BROTHER DISCIPLES

 Swami Brahmananda: Spritual teachings of Swami Brahmananda (1933)

 Swami Abhedananda: How to be a Yogi. 6th edition

 Swami Abhedananda: Vedanta Philosophy. Five lectures on reincarnation

 Swami Abhedananda: Attitude of Vedanta

 Swami Abhedananda: Self-Knowledge (1905)

ARTICLES BY BROTHER DISCIPLES

 Swami Turiyananda Conversations with Swami Turiyananda Vedanta and the West 1957

BOOKS BY DISCIPLES OF SWAMI VIVEKANANDA

 Sister Nivedita: An Indian Study of Love and Death (1908)

 Sister Nivedita: Cradle tales on Hinduism (1907)

 Sister Nivedita: Kali the Mother

 Sister Nivedita: Studies from an Eastern Home

 Sister Nivedita:The Web of Indian Life (1904)

 Swami Paramananda: The Path of Devotion (1907)

BOOKS AND ARTICLES OF HISTORICAL AND BIOGRAPHICAL SIGNIFICANCE PUBLISHED DURING THE 
SWAMI'S LIFETIME

 Barrows, John Henry - The World's Parliament of Religions (1893)

 Review of the World's Religious Congresses Rev. L. P. Mercer (1893)

 Proceedings of the Calcutta Town Hall Meeting regarding Swami Vivekananda (1894)

 Swami Vivekananda and his Guru (1897) (Missionary Citicisms)

 Excerpt from Travel and Talk by Rev H. R. Haweis (1897) on Vivekananda

 Hinduism of Today by Rev. W. Raju Naidu. From the book 'The Gospel in all Lands'  
(Missionary Criticism) (1897)
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 Across India at the dawn of the 20th Century Lucy E Guiness (Missionary Criticism) (1898)

 The Dawn of a New Religious Era Dr. Paul Carus (1899)

BOOKS ON VIVEKANANDA 

Written by people who knew the Swami personally

  Sarat Chandra Chakravarty: Diary of a disciple
  Sister Nivedita: Notes of some wanderings with the Swami Vivekananda
  Sister Nivedita: The master as I saw him
  Eastern and Western Disciples: The life of the Swami Vivekananda vol 3 1915
BOOKS BY LATER AUTHORS - ON VIVEKANANDA

  Swami Gambhirananda: A short biography of Swami Vivekananda
  Swami Nikhilananda: A biography of Swami Vivekananda

BOOKS ON PEOPLE ASSOCIATED WITH VIVEKANANDA

  Nag Mahashay: Life of Nag Mahashay Sarat Chandra Chakravarty
  Swami Nirmalananda: His life and teachings
  Sister Nivedita: The Dedicated. A biography of Nivedita (1953) Lizelle Reymond
  Gauri Ma - Life of Gauri Ma Swami Shivatatvananda
  Emma Calve - My Life (1922)
  Lewis G. Janes (1902)
ARTICLES AND SKETCHES OF PEOPLE ASSOCIATED WITH VIVEKANANDA

  Mahendranath Gupta: A reminiscence of M (Mahendranath Gupta) Paramahamsa Yogananda
  Mahendranath Gupta: Short biography of M (Mahendranath Gupta)
  Gopaler Ma: Death of Gopaler Ma Sister Nivedita
  Gopaler Ma: Gopaler Ma Swami Chetananda
  Ram Chandra Datta: Ram Chandra Datta Swami Chetananda
  Duke of Richelieu: Article in The Modern Review, Kolkata
  MacLeod, Mable: Article in The Vedanta Kesari

RELATED WORKS

  India and Christian Opportunity Harlan P. Beach (1907)
  A History of Missions in India Julius Richter by Translated by Sydney H. Moore (1908)
  Hinduism in Europe and America Elizabeth Reed (1914)
  Modern religious movements in India Farquhar, J.N (1915)

Later books by the Swami's of the Ramakrishna Order of Monks

  The Divine Life Its Practice and Realisation by Swami Yatiswarananda 1939

  Universality of Vedanta by Swami Prakshananda 1915

  The Making of a Devotee Swami Vidyatmananda
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4 | P a g e  
 

 
 External links 

 

  

 Wikimedia Commons has media related to: Swami Vivekananda 
(http://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/Category:Swami_Vivekananda) 

  

 Wikiquote has a collection of quotations related to: Swami Vivekananda 
(http://en.wikiquote.org/wiki/Swami_Vivekananda) 

Note:  

 
The mentioned books, articles, websites, links etc. are not sponsored, associated, 
approved, endorsed nor, in any way, affiliated with Central Board of Secondary 
Education (CBSE). Any mention of trademarked name or other mark is for 
reference purpose only for understanding the great philosopher. Copyright / 
trademark infringements are not intended, or implied. 

 

FAVOURITE BOOKS OF THE SWAMI

  Pickwick Papers Charles Dickens

  Of the Imitation of Christ Thomas Kempis

HINDU SCRIPTURES

  Mundakopanishad

Source: http://www.vivekananda.net/BooksBySwami.html 

Internet references:

 http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Swami_Vivekananda

 Swami Vivekananda by Ramakrishna Math and Ramakrishna Mission (http://www.belurmath.org/
swamivivekananda.htm)

 Swami Vivekananda Foundation (http://www.vivekananda.org/)

 Complete Works of Vivekananda, Belur Math publication (http://cwsv.belurmath.org/)

 External links

 Wikimedia Commons has media related to: Swami Vivekananda  
(http://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/Category:Swami_Vivekananda)

 Wikiquote has a collection of quotations related to: Swami Vivekananda  
(http://en.wikiquote.org/wiki/Swami_Vivekananda) 

Note: The mentioned books, articles, websites, links etc. are not sponsored, associated, approved, endorsed 
nor, in any way, affiliated with Central Board of Secondary Education (CBSE). Any mention of trademarked 
name or other mark is for reference purpose only for understanding the great philosopher. Copyright / 
trademark infringements are not intended, or implied.
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Gram: CENBOSEC Phone: (011) 23234324
Website: www.cbseacademic.in Email-id: sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17-Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/DIR(TRG)/M&M/2012 Dated: 09.7.2012
Circular No. Acad-31/2012

 Sub.:  Important changes in CCE Mentoring and Monitoring Framework– Updation and upgradation of 
Mentoring Corner in the Board's Academic Website i.e. www.cbseacademic.in

Dear Principal,  
Mentor/Mentee schools,

Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) in its strengthened form was initiated by Central Board of Secondary 
Education at Secondary Stage in all schools affiliated to it from the academic session 2009-2010. The CCE scheme 
has been implemented in its schools successfully with the cooperation and untiring efforts of various stakeholders 
in general and that of the Mentors in particular. During the last 2-3 years, the Mentors appointed by the Board have 
significantly contributed positively towards implementation of CCE scheme in CBSE schools. Now we need to 
give further impetus to the implementation of CCE scheme and carry mentoring further through handholding and 
collaboration. Mentors can now access the CBSE Academic Website (www.cbseacademic.in) to reach Mentoring-
Monitoring Framework under the Mentoring Corner.

 In the above website an exclusive corner for Mentoring has been provided in which all documents related to 
Mentoring and Monitoring are available. The Mentoring Corner as on date contains:

 o All about Mentoring and Monitoring
 o Notifications about Mentoring and Monitoring Workshops
 o Circulars regarding Mentoring and Monitoring
 o Mentors Data
 o Contact details
 o User Manual
 The above information is accessible to every user.

 As you are aware the Board started Mentoring and Monitoring exercise in the year 2009-10 and to monitor 
the progress of implementation of CCE in the Board’s affiliated schools, willing principals from across the 
country were trained as Mentor and Monitors and were allotted Mentor Codes to operate online with the 
Board.

 Now, to streamline the process and further automate its Mentoring and Monitoring activities, it has been 
decided that all the Mentor/Mentee IDs allotted earlier and now onwards be named as Mentor/Mentee Code(s). 
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Online interaction with Mentor/Mentee schools has now been made operational through a new Login ID for 
every Mentor/Mentee school.

 This Login ID for any school whether it is a Mentor or a Mentee will be its “School No.” which is allotted by 
the respective Regional Offices of the Board. The guideline for allotting Login IDs and generating Password 
is explained in Annexure-1.

 Each Mentor and Mentee school will also be allotted Mentor/Mentee Code which represents the school 
as a Mentor or as a Mentee and will be used by them after properly logging into the Mentoring Corner for 
accessing specific material related to mentoring. The method for allotting Mentor/Mentee Codes is explained 
in Annexure-2.

 The Mentor Codes will be allotted to only those School Principals who attend the Mentoring and Monitoring 
Orientation Programme and Mentees will also be allotted to these trained Mentors after the Orientation 
Programme only.

 However, the information specific to Mentor school and the Mentee school has been made accessible only 
after entering through Unique Login IDs in the Login window and entering valid Password. Guidelines to login 
as a User school are also given in the home page of Mentoring Corner of Board’s academic website www.
cbseacademic.in which may be read very carefully before logging in.

 All documents to be used by the Mentors such as Appointment letter as Mentor, letter to the Chairman/
Manager of the Mentor school, Mentee list and Mentor Report etc. can be accessed through properly 
Logging in with Login IDs and getting a password and then clicking on latest Mentor Codes. Guidelines 
to login through Login IDs are given in Annexure-1, Points 5,6 & 7-A.

 The format of On-line Report (Handout-3F) which is to be sent to the Board by the Mentor has been 
modified. It has been made more objective and analytical in character. This would enable quality 
monitoring and effective implementation of CCE in the affiliated schools of the Board and help in 
identifying the resourceful and competent Mentors. The outcome analysis of these reports shall be 
one of the criteria for the CBSE Mentor Award selection process.

 All documents to be used by the Mentee schools i.e. i) Mentee letter which contains information about 
the Mentor allotted to them, ii) Self Review Form (SRF) to be downloaded, filled-in and sent to the 
Mentor allotted to their school and iii) Mentee Feedback Form about improvement in implementation 
of CCE after mentoring by the allotted Mentor is also accessible to the Mentee schools which shall 
be submitted online to the Board. Guidelines to login through Login IDs are given in Annexure-1, 
Points 5,6 & 7-B.

 Through this upgraded mentoring website efforts have been made to make Mentoring and Monitoring activities 
transparent and to ensure access to every school and a kind of responsiveness among the schools. Now 
on one hand every school which is a Mentor or a Mentee can get to know online about their Mentor/Mentee 
through Login IDs and Password generated by them and on the other hand the Board also can take stock 
of the Mentee through Mentor Report and about the Mentor through the Mentee Feedback.

 The mentee schools where no new Mentors have been appointed or changed, will continue to take Mentorship 
of old mentors until they are contacted by the New Mentor or receive any communication from the Board about 
change of Mentor. However, their Mentee Codes will now stand changed as per new Method given in 
Annexure-2 and to submit their online Mentee feedback they are requested to follow new guidelines 
as given in Annexure-1.

 Old Mentors who have not been changed or retrained are requested to continue to Mentor as many schools 
as can be mentored by them until they receive any communication following a fresh training programme, if 
any, attended by them or otherwise. However, their Mentor Codes will now stand changed as per new 
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Method given in Annexure-2 and to submit their online reports they are requested to follow new 
guidelines as given in Annexure-1.

 All the Mentors are requested to visit the Mentees allotted to them twice in an academic year with 
one visit performed in each term. After the Mentee schools are visited and mentored, the Mentors are 
requested to submit separate Online Reports at the earliest in respect of each school mentored by them in 
the newly developed format i.e. Handout-3F, available on website. No combined report in respect of all 
the schools mentored should be sent. They may also submit their Bills for token Honorarium and actual 
conveyance/TA/DA as the case may be, duly certified and supported with documents as per guidelines 
contained in appointment letter issued to them. Token Honorarium Form, Conveyance Form and TA/DA Form 
can be accessed through Mentor IDs allotted to the Mentors.

 All the Mentors are requested to undertake the Mentoring work with above information/guidelines into 
perspective and continue to extend their valuable cooperation in the effective implementation of CCE scheme 
in all the schools affiliated to the Board.

 It is important to mention that allotment of Mentors to newly affiliated schools may take some time. 
Therefore, these new schools and those schools which have not been allotted Mentor so far may take 
help of Board appointed neighbouring Mentor schools or from the Experts of CBSE Sahodaya school 
Complex of their area to ensure proper implementation of the CCE in their schools. The Mentor Data 
is available in the Mentor corner of Board's academic website i.e. www.cbseacademic.in.

The Board has appointed about 3000 mentors with each mentor allotted 3 to 5 schools for mentoring in the neighborhood/
nearby cities. Taking cognizance of efforts, hard work and improvement in quality of education through mentoring by 
mentors, the Board has decided to Award such outstanding Mentors w.e.f. academic session 2011-12. The details 
shall be made available on above website soon. For further information, if any, they may kindly contact Mr. Shekhar 
Chandra, Desk Officer (M&M) through e-mail on: cbsemnm@gmail.com or on telefax No. 011-23231667. 

With regards, 

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. Sadhana Parashar)  
Director (Training)



167

Transforming  Pedagogy 

July-September 2012

 ANNEXURE-1

GUIDELINES FOR MENTORS AND MENTEE SCHOOLS FOR LOGGING IN AND ACCESSING VARIOUS 
DOCUMENTS FROM THE CBSE ACADEMIC WEBSITE i.e. www.cbseacademic.in or CBSE MENTORING 
CORNER www.mnm.cbseacademic.in 

The following guidelines may kindly be read by every Mentor/Mentee school very carefully:-

1. As you are aware the Board initiated Mentoring and Monitoring exercise in the year 2009-10 to monitor 
the progress of implementation of CCE in affiliated schools. Willing principals from across the country 
were trained as Mentors and were allotted Mentor Codes to operate online with the Board.

2. Now, to streamline the process and further automate its Mentoring and Monitoring activities, it has 
been decided that all the Mentor/Mentee IDs allotted earlier and now onwards be named as Mentor/
Mentee Code(s). Online interaction with Mentor/Mentee schools has now been made operational 
through a new Login ID for every Mentor/Mentee school.

3. This Login ID for any school whether it is a Mentor or a Mentee will be its “School No.” which is 
allotted by the respective Regional Offices of the Board.

4. Each Mentor and Mentee school will also be allotted Mentor/Mentee Code which represents the school 
as a Mentor or as a Mentee and will be used by them after properly logging into the Mentoring Corner for 
accessing specific material related to mentoring.

5. While accessing Mentoring Corner of the Board’s Website, please remember to login with the correct 
User/Login ID i.e. your school Number.

6. First get your password by clicking on 'Generate your Password' option and follow the steps 
given therein. On completion of given steps you will get your password and you will become a 
Registered User of the Board for Mentoring and Monitoring. You are requested to preserve this 
password and use it for all online interactions related to Mentoring and Monitoring with the Board. 
Until and unless the correct User/Login ID (your school no.) and password is entered, you will not 
be able to access documents related to Mentoring and Monitoring.

7. After the password is generated, as a registered user you will have access to view and download the 
Mentoring documents related to your school as a Mentor or as a Mentee as the case may be. The webpage, 
after entering the User/Login ID and the Password, will show the content as per the status of the school 
as a Mentor as well as Mentee or a Mentee only.

 A) If the school is a Mentor as well as a Mentee the webpage will show the following contents:
Welcome User 'Sch. No.': 'School Name and address'

Details of all Codes allotted so far to User  
(please click on the corresponding Codes for viewing Documents)

Codes as Mentor

Sl. 
No.

Mentor Code Workshop Venue Date of 
Workshop

Report Details 
about Mentee

01 *M_M(RegionCode)_Affln. No. Name of School date Summary of Reports

02 M_M(RegionCode)_Affln. No. Name of School date Summary of Reports
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Codes as Mentee

Sl. 
No.

Mentee Code Code of Mentoring 
School

Venue of Mentor 
Training

Date of 
Training

Feedback Details 
about Mentor

01 M_M(Region Code)_
Sch. No.

M_M (Region Code)_
Affln. No

Name of School date Summary of 
Feedback

02 - - - - -

 Contd…2

As a Mentor you have to follow the guidelines given below:

i) (*) mark at Sl. No.1 as shown in the table above indicates latest Mentor Code and it is be used by the 
Mentor for future online interactions. On clicking on this Mentor code, a Mentor can view and/or download 
various letters and documents used by the Mentors. i.e.

 a) Mentor letter, letter to Chairman of Mentor school, Mentee list and Mentee letter.
 b) Mentoring Tools – M&M checklist, Teacher Interaction Form, Classroom Observation Scale, Self Review 

Form, Mentoring Form and Mentor Report. Mentor Report i.e. Handout 3-F to be submitted online 
to the Board separately for each Mentee school just after visit to the school. All other handouts 
will be kept in safe custody by the Mentor and should be sent to the Board only if demanded 
by the Board.

 c) Process of Mentoring and Monitoring
 d) Collaterals used during the M&M Orientation Program
 e) Claim/Bill Forms
ii) The CBSE has reshuffled the original list where there were about 10 schools given to a Mentor. These 

schools are being reduced to 2-5 schools per Mentor. Kindly bear with us. Changes/additions in the old 
mentor list are also being done where necessary. 

iii) Each school has to fill in the Self Review Form (SRF) for themselves only and not for any other 
school.

iv) The Mentor school will only observe evidence in case of the data filled in by the Mentee School in the 
SRF. 

v) Various tools to be used for the Mentoring & Monitoring of CCE are available to all the schools in Mentoring 
Corner of Board’s Academic website.

vi) CBSE is also addressing the concerns that have been raised by certain Mentee as well as Mentor Schools 
and these are being communicated to them on one-to-one basis.

vii) Mentors are requested to understand and carry out the M&M initiative in the spirit of learning from each 
other as Peer Assessors. It should not be used as a brand building or advertising exercise for one’s own 
Institution. Any Mentor found to be doing so will be disqualified and will not be considered for the 
CBSE Mentor Award.

viii) There are certain procedures for Mentoring, which have to be followed by all the Mentor Schools. These 
have been shared in the various Mentoring Workshops conducted by the Board and are also available 
in the 'Tools for Monitoring & Mentoring of CCE'. These procedures should always be kept in mind while 
mentoring. These are also being reproduced here for reference and perusal.
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ix) The Mentors who have been trained/retrained in the Mentoring workshops organized by the Board 
are requested to extend all possible help to mentor/guide newly affiliated schools of their area 
and other schools which have not been allotted Mentors by the Board as and when approached 
by such schools.

x) Some Mentors who have undergone training in the Mentoring workshops have been kept as Reserve 
Mentors and their services will be utilized as per requirements.

CONVERSATIONAL AIDS TO PROVIDE EFFECTIVE FEEDBACK TO THE MENTEE  
SCHOOL THROUGH THE MENTORING REPORT:

WHAT TO DO WHAT TO SAY
 State your assumptions and describe the data 

that has led to them.
 “Here's what I think, and here's how I got 

there.”
 Explain your assumptions..  “I assumed that….”
 Make your reasoning explicit..  “I came to that conclusion because…”
 Explain the content of your point of view: Who 

will be affected by what you propose; How will 
they be affected, and Why?

 “In my point of view….they will be affected 
like…”

 Give examples of what you propose even if 
they are Hypothetical or metaphorical.

 “To get a clear picture of what I am talking 
about, imagine that you are the student who 
will be affected.”

 As you speak try to picture the other people’s 
perspective on what you are saying.

 “I understand your perspective…"

 Encourage others to explore your models, your 
assumptions and your data.

 “What do you think about what I just said?” or 
“Do you see any flaws in my reasoning?” or 
“What can you add?”

 Reveal where you are least clear in your 
thinking, rather than making you vulnerable. 
It diffuses the force of those who are opposed 
to you and invites improvement.

 “Here's one aspect which you might help me 
thinking through…”

 Even when advocating, listen, stay open and 
encourage others to provide different views.

 “Do you see it differently?”

GROUND RULES FOR THE MENTORS

 Punctuality and time management.

 Do not interrupt the Principal/teacher if they would like to make a point.

 Ask questions one at a time.

 You can ask questions by writing them down on paper and putting them in the question box placed in the 
room.

 Non-judgmental approach – do not laugh at any person.
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 Respect each other’s feelings, opinions and experiences.

 Respect the teacher and always seek permission before entering any class

 During class observation it is best to quietly observe and not raise doubts there and then.

 Maintain confidentiality at all times.

 Under no circumstances should you or any member of the team be critical of the teacher in front of the 
students.

 B) If the school is a Mentee school the webpage will show the following contents:
Welcome User 'Sch. No.': 'School Name and address'

Details of all Codes allotted so far to user  
(please click on the corresponding Codes for viewing Documents)

Codes as Mentee
Sl. 
No.

Mentee Code Code of Mentoring 
School

Venue of Mentor 
Training

Date of 
Training

Feedback 
Details about 

Mentor
01 *M_M(Region Code)_Sch. 

No.
M_M(Region Code)_Affln. 

No
Name of School date Status

02. - - - -

As a Mentee you have to follow the guidelines given below:

i). After logging in, the Mentee school can access and download various letters and documents useful to the 
Mentee schools i.e. 

 a. Mentee letter 
 b. Self Review Form (SRF) to be filled and submitted to the Mentor as and when demanded by him/

her.
 c. Mentee Feedback Form about improvement in implementation of CCE after mentoring done by 

the allotted Mentor is to be submitted online to the Board.
ii). Each Mentee school has to fill in the Self Review Form (SRF) for themselves only and not for any other 

school and filled-in SRF has to be submitted to the Mentor as and when asked for by the Mentor allotted 
to the Mentee school. 

iii). The Mentor allotted to the particular Mentee school will only observe evidence of the data filled in by the 
Mentee School in the SRF. 

iv). Various tools to be used for the Mentoring & Monitoring of CCE are available to all the schools in Mentoring 
Corner of Board’s Academic website. 

v). CBSE is also addressing the concerns that have been raised by certain Mentee as well as Mentor Schools 
and these are being communicated to them on one-to-one basis. Changes in the old mentor/mentee list 
are also being done where necessary. 

vi). While the Mentors are requested to understand and carry out the M&M initiative in the spirit of learning 
from each other as Peer Assessors, the Mentee schools are also requested to cooperate with the Mentors 
allotted to them.
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 ANNEXURE-2

The method for allotting Mentor/Mentee Codes 

i) The allotment method of Mentor/Mentee Code is given in the table below:-

Sl. 
No.

Region/Region 
Code

States covered under the region Mentor Code (Region 
Code_Aff No.*)

Mentee Code (Region 
Code_Sch No.**)

01. AJMER/ M_M01 Rajasthan, Gujarat, Madhya 
Pradesh, Dadra and Nagar Haveli

M_M01_AFF No. M_M01_Sch. No.

02. ALLAHABAD/ 
M_M02

U.P. and Uttaranchal M_M02_AFF No. M_M02_Sch. No.

03. CHENNAI/ M_
M03

Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Andhra 
Pradesh, Karnataka, Maharashtra, 

Goa, Puducherry, Andaman & 
Nicobar Islands, Daman & Diu

M_M03_AFF No. M_M03_Sch. No.

04. DELHI/ M_M04 NCT of Delhi and Foreign Schools. M_M04_AFF No. M_M04_Sch. No.

05. GUWAHATI/ 
M_M05

Assam, Nagaland, Manipur, 
Meghalaya, Tripura, Sikkim, 

Arunachal Pradesh

M_M05_AFF No. M_M05_Sch. No.

06. PANCHKULA/ 
M_M06

Haryana, Chandigarh, Punjab, 
J&K, Himachal Pradesh

M_M06_AFF No. M_M06_Sch. No.

07. PATNA/ M_M07 Bihar & Jharkhand M_M07_AFF No. M_M07_Sch. No.

08. BHUBANESWAR 
/ M_M08

West Bengal, Orissa and 
Chhattisgarh

M_M08_AFF No. M_M08_Sch. No.

* Aff No. is the number allotted by the Board to the school at the time of Affiliation.

** Sch. No. is the number allotted by the respective Regional Offices of the Board for examination 
purposes.

ii) The Mentor Code for any trained Mentor school will be as “Region Code_ School Affiliation Number”. 
(For example: the Mentor Code for a principal of school with affiliation No. 123456 falling in Patna 
Region who has attended Mentor workshop of the Board will be : M_M07_123456). The Mentor Code 
should be quoted in all correspondence to the Board while writing as a Mentor.

iii) The Mentee Code for any particular school will be as “Region Code_School Number”. (For example: 
the Mentee Code for a school with school No. 12345 falling under Patna Region which has been 
allotted a Mentor will be: M_M07_12345). The Mentee Code should be quoted in all correspondence 
to the Board while writing as a Mentee.

*********
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Gram: CENBOSEC Telefax: 011-23234324
Website: www.cbseacademic.in E-mail : sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/DIR(TRG.)/ 2012 Dated : 10th July, 2012
Circular No. Acad-32/2012

All Heads of Independent Schools  
Affiliated to the CBSE

 Subject:  IGNITE 2012: A Nationwide Campaign to harness the creative and innovative spirit of school 
children by National Innovation Foundation (NIF) and Central Board of Secondary Education 
(CBSE).Dear Principal,

Dear Principal,

The CBSE had successfully launched IGNITE in the year 2007 in collaboration with National Innovation Foundation 
and Honey Bee Network with an attempt to harness the creative and innovative talents of school children. This venture 
had a remarkable response from the students, teachers and parents. 

The IGNITE-2011 contest saw participation of students from 25 States and Union Territories of the country. Overall 
4104 entries were received, which ranged from sectors like energy, environment, transport, general household utility 
items etc.

The awards for the competition were given away in an exhibition cum award function by Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam, Former 
President on November 11, 2011 at the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. Ms SM Arthi, Ms S Vinotha and 
Ms. Lailaa Banu of Government Girls High School, Tiruvarur, for an innovative idea of using ‘Helmet as an ignition to 
start two wheelers’, Mr.G Bhrahadees of The Velammal International School, Thiruvallur, Tamil Nadu for developing 
the ‘Healthy Air Machine’ and Mr. Jyoti Ranjan Sahu of DAV Public School, Bhubaneshwar, Orissa for developing a 
‘Device to assist low vision people’ were awarded along with the other creative and innovative brains from different 
schools in the country.

With NIF, the Board has planned to initiate IGNITE 2012 in the academic session 2011-12 with an aim to promote 
creativity among children.
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The schedule for the IGNITE 2012 is as per details given below :

a. Date of announcement of the competition: July, 2012.

b. The last date for submission of entries directly to NIF at the following address or through email at ignite12@
nifindia.org with a copy to anjali.cbse11@gmail.com is August 31, 2012

c. The call for entries from students is as per the following categories:

 i) Technological ideas to solve any problem in day to day life
 ii) Real life technological projects demonstrating innovative ways of solving problems or reducing 

drudgery or generating efficiency or conserving resources (projects demonstrating application 
of known scientific concepts or theories will not be accepted).

 iii) Traditional knowledge practices documented from elders in and around one’s family.
 iv) Information about some other innovators in the neighbourhood
d. Each entry should be accompanied with a certificate from parents and teachers saying that the idea / innovation 

has been developed and documented by the student concerned entirely on his/her own without any guidance 
or support from them.

e. The awards will be announced on October 15, 2012, birthday of Hon’ble former President of India, Dr. A. P. 
J. Abdul Kalam celebrated as Children’s Creativity and Innovation Day. The awards will be given away 
by Dr. Kalam at his convenience at IIM, Ahmedabad soon after.

f. NIF will provide support for patenting and incubating innovative projects into products in all deserving cases. 
For the last two years, NIF has been able to filed patents for first award winner of IGNITE competitions apart 
from facilitating prototype development in all cases. Two award winners of the earlier IGNITE competition 
also won awards in NIF’s National Competition, where Smt. Pratibha Devisingh Patil, Hon’ble President gave 
away the awards. Many student winners have participated in the innovation exhibitions organised by NIF at 
the Rashtrapati Bhavan during March and inaugurated by Hon’ble President. Many have been interviewed 
by leading national print and electronic media.

We request you to give wide publicity to this competition amidst students, teachers and parents so as to activate the 
creative instinct in children to find solutions to the day-to-day problems. 

With best wishes, 

Yours sincerely, 

(DR.SADHANA PARASHAR)  
DIRECTOR (TRAINING)
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Gram: CENBOSEC Telefax: 011-23234324
Website: www.cbseacademic.in sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/DIR(TRG)/BIO/2012 Dated : July 10, 2012
Circular No. Acad-33/2012

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE

Greetings for June Solstice 2012

 Subject:  Transformation of public perception of Biodiversity through sensitization at schools.

Slogan :- Prakruti Rakshati Rakshita, Nature Protects if She is Protected

Dear Principal,

With increasing awareness of need of biodiversity as an esssential natural, national and global resource, the 
government(s) and people have started participating to save life on planet earth.

Biodiversity constitutes the framework in which variety of life forms can coexist. In the past, humans have been living 
in harmony with nature which includes differnt kind of living organsisms.

Development due to technology has influenced life styles of people. This has altered previous patten of harmony with 
nature. As a result, we have experienced disturbances in nature as habitat fragmentation, global warming and imbalance 
in population of different plants and animals.

In this context the Ministry of Environment and Forests (Govt. of India) has taken the initiative to host the Eleventh 
conference of the Parties (CoP-11) to the Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD) and the Sixth conference of the 
Parties serving as Meeting of the Parties (CoP/MoP-6) to the CBD’s Cartagena Protocol on biosafety in Hyderabad 
from 1-19 October, 2012.

In sync with the national event and concern for Biological Diversity, the CBSE considers it important for its schools to 
participate and popularize the awareness through optimum use of formative tasks related to issues and concerns 
about Biological Diversity and India’s role.

Through the Continuous and Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE), the formative aspects of attitude to respect different life 
forms, their protection and nurture can and must be promoted through classroom interactions and co-curricular activities. 
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These may include collaborative activities like bringing out newsletters, role play, slogan drives, and landscaping, 
exchanging and nurturing plants.

Needless to mention, life is a commonly shared concern of all. In this respect biological diversity forms an integral part 
of education that can be discussed through areas such as Science, Social Science, Languages and Mathematics.

In this context, CBSE affiliated schools are required to familiarize students with the logo and slogan prepared by the 
Ministry of Environment and Forests for the conference and adopt it as a motto of the year (see Annexure 1 and 2).

With Regards,

Yours sincerely,

(DR. SADHANA PARASHAR)  
DIRECTOR (TRAINING)

 ANNEXURE 1

India is a recognized megadiverse country rich in biological diversity and associated traditional knowledge. As an 
initiative to address ways to take care of Biodiversity as a resource for life, the main aim of the Ministry of Environment 
and Forests (Govt. of India) hosting the Eleventh conference of the Parties (CoP-11) to the Convention on Biological 
Diversity (CBD) and the Sixth conference of the Parties serving as Meeting of the Parties (CoP/MoP-6) to the CBD’s 
Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety in Hyderabad on 1-19 October, 2012.

Among other concerns,the focus of the conference will be : 

 1. Need to balance
   Economic development
   Demographice pressures
   Environmental conservation
 2. Highlight interdependence of life forms and environment 
 3. Spread awareness for managing interdependence through dignified, intelligent and sustained use of 

resources.
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 ANNEXURE 2

A brief report of the plan and execution along with detail of any one experience and observation must be sent to the 
Board latest by January 31st 2013. 

REPORT FORMAT

NAME OF THE SCHOOL –

ACTIVITY/PROJECT 
UNDERTAKEN

NATURE OF 
PARTICIPATION

OBSERVATIONS OF 
STUDENTS WITH 
PHOTOGRAPHS

EXEMPLARY EXPERIENCE 
ALONG WITH 
PHOTOGRAPHS
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Gram: CENBOSEC Tel: 011- 23231067
CBSE website: www.cbseacademic.in

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
Shiksha Sadan, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi -110002

CBSE/Sci. Exhibition/DIR (TRG)/2012/ 20th July, 2012
Circular No. Acad-39/2012

The Heads of all Institutions

 Subject:  Participating in Regional Level CBSE Science Exhibition-2012

Sir/Madam,

This has reference to your application for participation in Regional Level CBSE Science Exhibition 2012, It is to inform 
you that the said exhibition will be held on the following dates (two days) at the following venue(s) in your region:

Region City Venue School States 
Covered

Dates of 
Exhibition

Ajmer Indore Choitram Public school
Rajesh Awasthi, principal
Manik Bagh Road, Indore (M.P.)
Tel No: 2475252/53/54
Fax No: 2760707
Email: info@choithramschool.com

Madhya 
Pradesh

17th & 18th 
August, 2012

Jaipur Maharaja Sawai Man Singh Vidyalaya 
Sawai Ram Singh Road,  
JAIPUR - 302 004, Rajasthan  
Telephone No: 0141-2560193,  
0141- 2567664, 0141- 2565401  
Fax: 0141-2570865  
Mobile: 09829060760  
Email: msmsv@bsnl.in

Rajasthan &
Gujarat

24th & 25th 
August, 2012

Allahabad Lucknow The Millennium School
Monika Chopra, HM F -Block,  
South City, Rae Bareli Road, Lucknow
Tel No: 0522–6451476
Mobile: 9235556666  
Email: info.lucknow@
themillenniumschools.com

Uttar 
Pradesh and 
Uttaranchal

17th & 18th 
August, 2012
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Bhuwneshwar Bhuwneshwar DAV Public School Unit-8,  
Bhubaneswar, Orissa  
Tel No: 0674-239328  
Fax: O674-2395276  
E-mail : vadun8@sancharnet.in  
Website : www.davunit8.org

List not yet 
received from 

RO

24th & 25th 
August, 2012

Chennai Chennai The PSBB Millennium School
No 9 Multi Nagar Main Road,
Gerugambakkam, Chennai- 602101
Tel No: 044-22323077, 65348441
Mobile: 9940089729
Fax No:
E-mail:  
principal@psbbmillenniumschool.org

Andhra 
Pradesh, 
Kerala, 

Tamil Nadu, 
Puduchery, 
Andaman & 
Nicobar and 

Lakshadweep

13th & 14th 
August, 2012

Mumbai DAV Public School
Plot No 11, Sector 10, Airoli,  
Navi Mumbai, Maharastra-400708
Tel No: 022-27600657, 27698568
Fax No.:
Mobile: 09819856550
Email: info@davairoli.org/ 
rajeevgarg999@gmail.com

Maharashtra, 
Karnataka, 
Goa and 

Daman & Diu

31st August & 
1st September, 

2012

Delhi North Delhi Mount Abu Public School
Ms. Jyoti Arora, Principal
Sector -5,Pocket-B/8, Rohini,
Delhi-110085
Tel No: 011-27041516, 27931819
Fax No:
Mobile: 9868387227
Email: info@mountabuschool.com

North & East 
Delhi

17th & 18th 
August, 2012

South Delhi Bloom Public School
C-8, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi - 110070 
Tel No. : 26897972, 26893422  
Fax No. : 26893422 Mobile: 9871693351 
Email:  
information@bloompublicschool.com

South & West 
Delhi

3rd & 4th 
August, 2012

Guwahati Guwahati GEMS NPS International School
NH-37, Near Lakhra Chariali,
PO-Saukuchi, Guwahati -781034
Tel Nos. 0361-2236624, 2236625, 
2236594
Fax No:
Mobile : 09435194437
Email - gemsnpsadmission@gmail.com
gemsnationalpublicschool@gmail.com

Assam, 
Nagaland, 
Manipur, 

Meghalaya,
Tripura, Sikkim, 

Arunachal 
Pradesh

10th & 11th 
August, 2012
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Panchkula Jalandhar Cambridge International School for Girls
Ms. Deepa Dogra
Urban Estate, Phase II,
Jalandhar, 144003, Punjab
Tel Nos: 0181-3253950
Fax: 0181-2442342
Mobile : 0876954042
deepadogra@gmail.com

Punjab 3rd & 4th 
August, 2012

Manimajra Gurukul Global School
Near IT Park, Adjoining Police station,
Manimajra -160101
Tel Nos: 0172-2736100
Email ID: info@gurukulglobal.com, 
bhardwaj.aruna@gmail.com

Haryana, 
Himachal 
Pradesh, 
Jammu & 
Kashmir, 

Chandigarh

31st August & 
1st September, 

2012

Patna Ranchi Delhi Public School
J.Mohanyt, Principal
SAIL Township, P.O. - Dhurwa,
Ranchi - 834 004 Jharkhand - India
Tel No: 0651-6452405, 0651- 6452406 
0651- 2441176, 0651 – 2440277
Fax No: 0651-2440707
Email - info@dpsranchi.com

Bihar, 
Jharkhand

6rd & 7th 
August, 2012 

Travel schedule of the team may be planned accordingly. You are requested to note the following points in this 
regard.

a) The participating students must be accompanied by one escort teacher.

b) The participating teams will have to make their own travel and stay arrangements at venue city.

c) Travel and lodging/boarding expenses will be borne by the participating team/school.

d) Every team must report to the Principal of the venue school one day in advance (Morning) and ensure the 
space and other facilities required for the display of the exhibit. The model should be arranged and set in all 
respects well in time i.e. one day in advance. The school name and title of the exhibit should also be displayed 
properly. The teams are advised to bring all necessary materials like bed-sheet, markers, cello-tape, all-pins, 
drawing pins, glue stick etc. for proper display of the exhibit.

e) The timings of the exhibition will be from 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on both the days. No team will be allowed 
to leave before 5 p.m. The travel plans may be made accordingly.

f) Your exhibit/model will be evaluated by judges/ team of subject experts for selection for National Level 
Exhibition. Both or at least one of the members of the team should always be present at the exhibit for 
explanation to the visitors. The major parameters of evaluation of exhibits include originality, scientific principle, 
technical skill, utility, economic viability and presentation. The participating students should be well prepared 
for proper explanation and presentation.

g) As far as possible, one exhibit should not require more than 6'X3' (approx.) of space for display. The project/
exhibit must be supported with Charts/Reports and other support materials.
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h) You are required to submit a brief write-up of the model/exhibit displayed by the team. The write-up should 
include the title, objective/aim, scientific principle involved, material used, figure/diagrammatic 
representation, working investigation/findings, approximate cost incurred, utility and further scope 
of the project etc. alongwith the name of the participants of the school with the complete address of the 
school. The write-up is to be submitted to the Principal of Venue School or the organizers on the day of 
reporting at venue/exhibition and should not exceed three typed pages.

i) Host school may take Photographs of each exhibit in close up along with the write up for reporting in the 
CENBOSEC and inclusion in a Monograph which will be brought out after the event. You are advised to 
prepare your exhibits accordingly. Exhibits should be well presentable and documented in a neat and legible 
handwriting.

j) The information/confirmation about participation of your school and your exact requirements for display of 
exhibit should be sent to the Principal of the venue school and should also be intimated to the Regional 
Office well in advance.

In case of any further clarification in this regard, you may contact Ms. Kshipra Verma, Education Officer at Telephone 
No. 011- 23231067 or email at kshipraverma.cbsei@gmail.com or the Regional Officer. This information is also 
available on CBSE website www.cbseacademics.in.

With Regards,

(Dr. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (TRAINING)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR (TRG)/PSA/2012/ Dated: 01.08.2012
Circular No. Acad-40/2012

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  Initiation of Problem Solving Assessment (PSA) for Class IX in the second term  
w.e.f. 2012-2013.

Dear Principal,

It is a widely acknowledged fact that research and analytical skills, ability to apply basic concepts of different subjects, 
solve application based problems in Mathematics and Science, comprehend and analyse written text and effective 
communication are the skills which ensure success in Higher Studies and Professional areas.These dimensions of 
21st Century life skills will greatly assist learners in acquiring higher order thinking skills such as Problem Solving and 
Decision Making.

It is in this connection that the Board is planning to initiate a 'Problem Solving Assessment' (CBSE-PSA) for students 
of Classes IX from the second term of this session 2012-13.

The features of the `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) will be as follows: -

 1. It will be compulsory for all students of Classes IX and carry 90 marks. There will be 60 items of MCQ 
type.

 2. There is no specific syllabus for ̀ Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA). Itwill assess the following 
areas:-

   Quantitative Reasoning 
   Qualitative Reasoning
   Language Conventions
 3. The items will incorporate aspects of 21st Century Skills (Creative Thinking, Decision Making, Critical 

Thinking, Problem Solving, and Communication) that lead to success at Secondary Stage. They 
wouldbe assessing student’s ability to process, interpret and use information rather than assessing 
student’s prior subject matter knowledge.
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 4. The Assessmentin language will contain items that will assess grammar, usage, vocabulary in context 
and passage-completion.

 5. The items in Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA)will be designed in such a way so as to improve 
the generic and higher order thinking skills. This will also result in improving scores within the core school 
subjects.

 6. All items will be prepared in Hindi and English.
 7. The `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) willbe done during the month of January– February 

2013 for students of Class IX.
 8. The `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) will be counted towards FA-4 which is 10% of total 

assessments of Class IX. This assessment will also be carried forward towards the FA-4 in Class X.This 
score will be reflected in one Language (English or Hindi), Mathematics, Science and Social 
Science w.e.f the session 2012-2013 for Class IX and 2013 – 14 for Class X. The same score will 
be reflected in FA-4 for class IX and Class X.

 9. The students will have the option to improve their PSA Score in Class X, as they can sit for the test with 
Class IX students of the Session 2013-2014 in January – February 2014. The best scores will be reflected 
in the final certificatein case of those applying for improvement.

 10. The schools which have already planned their time table and other details regarding FA-4 will take the 
best scores ofFA-3 and FA-4 to count towards the total 10%, now available for FA-3 and FA-4 taken 
together.

 11. There will be no separate time tables or periods for teaching or practice of PSA in schools.
Examples of test items and the Format of the Assessmentthat might be used in the Problem Solving Assessment 
(CBSE-PSA) are attached in the Annexure `A’ & ‘B’ respectively to this Circular.

Registration for this Assessment will be done separately by the Board and detailed circular will be issued before the 
start of the second term i.e. September 2012.

You are requested to disseminate this information to all concerned.

With Regards,

(VINEET JOSHI) 
CHAIRMAN

Encl :  1. Annexure-A 
 2. Annexure-B
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 ANNEXURE 'A'

Problem Solving Assessment – Class IX

 1. Example: Quantitative Reasoning (PSA)

If Lekha can type a page in m minutes, what piece of the page can she do in 10 minutes? 

A. 10/m 
B. m - 10 
C. m + 10 
D. m/10 
E. 1- m + 10 

Questions 2 and 3 refer to the following information:

The shapes on this page are either square or round, white or shaded, and tailed or not tailed.

In the example below, shape Q is square, shaded and not tailed; while shape R is square, white and tailed.

Shape Q   Shape R

In Questions 2 and 3, determine how many of the four shapes shown in each question fit the descriptions given. 

2.  If this shape is white then it is round, if it is shaded then it is round or square.

A 4       C 2

B 3       D 1

3. The shape is shaded, or it is tailed, or it is shaded and tailed
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A 1        C 3

B 2        D 4

The extract is taken from a book written sixty years ago by a British scientist in which he  
considers the relationship between science and society.

The pioneers of the teaching of science imagined that its introduction into education would remove the 
conventionality, artificiality, and backward-lookingness which were characteristic; of classical studies, but they 
were gravely disappointed. So, too, in 
5  their time had the humanists thought that the study of the classical authors in the original would banish at once 

the dull pedantry and superstition of mediaeval scholasticism. The professional schoolmaster was a match for 
both of them, and has almost managed to make the understanding of chemical reactions as dull 

10  and as dogmatic an affair as the reading of Virgil's Aeneid. The chief claim for the use of science in education is 
that it teaches a child something about the actual universe in which he is living, in making him acquainted with 
the results of scientific 

15  discovery, and at the same time teaches him how to think logically of a and inductively by studying scientific 
method. A certain limited success has been reached in the first of these aims, but practically none at all in the 
second. Those privileged members of the community who have been through a secondary or public school 

20  education may be expected to know something about the elementary physics and chemistry of a hundred 
years ago, but they probably know hardly more than any bright boy can pick up from an interest in wireless or 
scientific hobbies out of school hours. As to the learning of scientific method, the whole thing is palpably 

25  a farce. Actually, for the convenience of teachers and the requirements of the examination system, it is 
necessary that the pupils not only do not learn scientific method but learn precisely the reverse, that is, to 
believe exactly what they are told and to reproduce it when asked, whether it seems nonsense to them or 

30  not. The way in which educated people respond to such quackeries as spiritualism or astrology, not to say 
more dangerous ones such as racial theories or currency myths, shows that fifty years of education in the 
method of science in Britain or Germany has produced no visible effect whatever. The only way of learning the 

35  method of science is the long and bitter way of personal experience, and, until the educational or social 
systems are altered to make this possible, the best we can expect is the production of a minority people who 
are able to acquire some of the techniques of science and a still smaller minority who are able to use and 

40 develop them 

Adapted from: The Social Function of Science, John D Bernal (1939) 

1. The author implies that the 'professional schoolmaster' (line 7) has 
A. no interest in teaching science 
B. thwarted attempts to enliven education 
C. aided true learning 

 2. Example: Reading Comprehension
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D. supported the humanists 
E. been a pioneer in both science and humanities. 
2. The author’s attitude to secondary and public school education in the sciences is 
A. ambivalent 
B. neutral 
C. supportive 
D. satirical
E. contemptuous
3. The word ‘palpably’ (line 24) most nearly means 
A. empirically 
B. obviously 
C. tentatively 
D. markedly 
E. ridiculously 
4. The author blames all of the following for the failure to impart scientific method through the education system 
except 
A. poor teaching 
B. examination methods 
C. lack of direct experience 
D. the social and education systems 
E. lack of interest on the part of students 
5. If the author were to study current education in science to see how things have changed since he wrote the piece, 
he would probably be most interested in the answer to which of the following questions? 
A. Do students know more about the world about them? 
B. Do students spend more time in laboratories? 
C. Can students apply their knowledge logically? 
D. Have textbooks improved? 
E. Do they respect their teachers? 
6. Astrology (line 31) is mentioned as an example of 
A. a science that needs to be better understood 
B. a belief which no educated people hold 
C. something unsupportable to those who have absorbed the methods of science 
D. the gravest danger to society 
E. an acknowledged failure of science 
7. All of the following can be inferred from the text except 
A. at the time of writing, not all children received a secondary school education 
B. the author finds chemical reactions interesting 
C. science teaching has imparted some knowledge of facts to some children 
D. the author believes that many teachers are authoritarian 
E. it is relatively easy to learn scientific method.
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 ANNEXURE 'B'

PSA – Class IX - Format

Test Context Domain/ Item 
Type

Target No. per Test Form

No. of Items No. of Passages Total No. of Items

Qualitative 
  Stand-alone MCQs 
  Passage-based MCQs

6
6 2

6
12

SUB TOTAL 18

Qualitative 
  Stand-alone MCQs 
  Passage-based MCQs

10
4 2

10
8

SUB TOTAL 18

Language Conventions 
  Grammar  &  Usage 

MCQs 
  Vocabulary in Context 

MCQs
  Passage-complet ion 

MCQs

8

8

8

8

8

8

SUB TOTAL 24

TOTAL 60
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(TRG)/PSA/2012/ Dated: 01.08.2012
Circular No. Acad-41/2012

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  Initiation of Problem Solving Assessment (PSA) for Class XI in January 2013  
w.e.f. 2012-2013.

Dear Principal,

It is a widely acknowledged fact that research and analytical skills, ability to apply basic concepts of different subjects, 
solve application based problems in Mathematics and Science, comprehend and analyse written texts and effective 
communication are the skills which ensure success in higher studies and professional areas. These dimensions of 
21st Century life skills will greatly assist learners in acquiring higher order thinking skills such as Problem Solving and 
Decision Making.

It is in this connection that the Board is planning to initiate a ̀ Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) for students 
of Class XI from the second term of this session 2012-13.

The features of the `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) are as follows: -

1. It will be compulsory for all students of Class XI and carry 90 marks. There will be 60 items of MCQ type.

2. There is no specific syllabus for PSA. It will assess the following areas:-

  Quantitative Reasoning
  Qualitative Reasoning
  Language Conventions
3. The items will incorporate aspects of 21st Century Skills (Creative Thinking, Decision Making, Critical 

Thinking, Problem Solving, and Communication) that lead to success in University studies. They would 
be assessing student’s ability to process, interpret and use information rather than assessing student’s prior 
subject matter knowledge.

4. The Assessment in language will contain items that will assess grammar, usage, vocabulary in context and 
passage-completion.
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5. The items in Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) will be designed in such a way so as to improve 
generic and the higher order thinking skills. This will also result in improving scores within the core school 
subjects.

6. All items will be prepared in Hindi and English.

7. The `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) will be done during the month of January – February 
2013 for students of Class XI.

8. The Class XI students will get a certificate on the `Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA).

9. There will be no separate time tables or periods for teaching or practice of PSA in schools.

10. The quantitative domain of the CBSE – PSA would make comparatively modest demand on mathematical 
knowledge but would emphasize logical and numerical reasoning and use of basic mathematical 
knowledge.

Examples of test items and the Format of the Assessment that might be used in the Problem Solving Assessment 
(CBSE-PSA) are attached in the Annexure `A’ & ‘B’ respectively to this Circular.

Registration for this Assessment will be done separately by the Board and detailed circular will be issued before the 
start of the second term i.e. September 2012.

You are requested to disseminate this information to all concerned.

With Regards,

(VINEET JOSHI) 
CHAIRMAN

Encl : 1. Annexure-A
 2. Annexure-B
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 ANNEXURE 'A'

Examples for Problem Solving Assessment – Class XI

 I. Example: Quantitative Reasoning

Q 1.  Geeta has 16 beans in her pocket. She has 8 red ones, 4 green ones, and 4 blue ones. What is the minimum 
number of beans she must take out of her pocket to ensure that she has one of each colour?

A. 4
B. 8
C. 12
D. 13
E. 16

Considering the following representation answer question numbers 2 ,3 and 4

Q 2. How many boys attended the 1995 convention? 
A. 358 
B. 390 
C. 407 
D. 540 
E. 716 

Q 3. Which year did the same number of boys and girls attend the conference? 
A. 1995 
B. 1996 
C. 1997 
D. 1998 
E. None 

Q 4. Which two years did the least number of boys attend the convention? 
A. 1995 and 1996 
B. 1995 and 1998 
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C. 1996 and 1997 
D. 1997 and 1994 
E. 1997 and 1998

Q5. A person on Earth has a mass of 100 kg. 
What would their mass be on the moon?
(A) 100 kg
(B) Less than 100 kg
(C) More than 100 kg
(D) This cannot be predicted.

Q6. An aeroplane’s mass will decrease during a flight as it uses fuel in its engine.

Which statement describes the speed of the aeroplane during the flight if the force from the engine remains 
constant?
(A) The speed will increase.
(B) The speed will decrease.
(C) The speed will remain constant.
(D) The speed will decrease, then increase.

Questions 7 and 8 refer to the following information:
The plates in a car number plate scheme must have six characters which can be the letters A to Z or the numerals 
0 to 9. The first four characters of a plate in this scheme must be letters. An example of an allowed plate is shown 
below.

AJAY01

Q 7 Which one of the following number plates would be allowed by this scheme?

A      C

B      D

Q 8  If Mr. Roy wanted to buy all of the number plates in this scheme that commenced with MRROY, how many would 
he would he have to buy?

 A  10     C 36

 B  26     D 260

SHALINI MANOJ77

VIJAY1 AVI310
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Q9 When a wooden beam is used to span a space, its own weight will cause a sag, or deflection, in the middle.

The graph below shows deflection for beams of two types of timber for different spans.

Span(m)

A cedar beam will deflect about 15 mm more than an oak beam for a span of

  A 7.5 m     C 20 m

  B 17.5 m     D 30 m

Questions 10 and 11 refer to the following information:

Chocolate truffles cost Rs.700 per kg for the first 5 kg and Rs.600 per kg for any excess of 5 kg. To compute the cost 
of any given amount of truffles, a program has been written as shown. Unfortunately, some of the steps are out of 
order. Only steps a and g are in their correct positions.

a. If the amount is over 5 kg, skip the next two statements
b. Multiply the weight in kg by (600)
c. Multiply the weight in kg by (700)
d. Add 3500
e. Reduce the weight by 5 kg
f. Skip the next 3 statements
g. Write the result, which is the price in Rupees.

Q10. In correct order, the steps of the program should be

 A a,c,f,b,e,d,g.   C    a,c,f,e,b,d,g

 B a,c,d,b,f,e,g    D    a,c,e,b,f,d,g

Q11.  Suppose the truffles cost Rs.700 per kg for the first 8 kg, then Rs.600 per kg for any amount in excess of 8 kg. 
Which one of the following lists every step in the program that needs to be altered?

 A. a    C    a,d and e
 B  a andc    D    a,c and d.
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In 1949, a study of heart disease included 5,137 adults: 2,292 men and 2,845 women. All the individuals were 49 
to 70 years of age, and none showed any signs of coronary artery disease. After 14-16 years of careful follow-up, 
it was found that: 

I. 151 men and 37 women showed evidence of coronary artery disease that would account for a heart attack. 
II. 102 men and 18 women died of coronary artery disease before they reached the age of 65. 
III. 58 percent of the men and 39 percent of the women died within one hour of having a heart attack. 
IV.  For both men and women, sudden death was more likely if they were under age 55 at the time of the 

attack. 
V.  Not all heart attacks produce symptoms. A considerable number of men and women had a myocardial infarction 

(heart muscle damage) without knowing it. Of those who suffered such "silent coronaries"; 22 percent of the 
men and 35 percent of the women did not know muscle damage had occurred.

1. In the design of this study, the researchers made sure that 
A. some individuals had coronary artery disease 
B. some individuals were in their thirties 
C. the number of men and women was equal 
D. all participants were adults

2. As explained in the study, a person who has a "silent coronary 
A. is unaware of any heart attack symptoms 
B. does not scream in pain while having a heart attack 
C. shows no evidence of heart muscle damage 
D. always dies of a myocardial infarction 

3. A woman who is 53 years old has a heart attack. Compared with a man, she is more likely to 

A. die of coronary artery disease before age 65 
B. have a "silent coronary" 
C. die within an hour of the attack 
D. die as the result of a heart attack after age 65

4. Which conclusion is consistent with the results of the study? 

A. Chances of death within one hour of a heart attack are greater for women than men. 
B. Chances of death from coronary artery disease are less for men than women. 
C. Evidence of coronary artery disease is equal among men and women. 
D. Sudden death is more likely for both men and women if they are under age 55 at the time of the attack. 

5. Based on the results of this experiment, of the people who died of coronary artery disease before age 65 

A. 18 percent were women 
B. 20 percent were women 
C. 85 percent were men 
D. 102 percent were men

6.  A group of 1000 men and 1200 women between the ages of 50 and 65 are to be studied for coronary artery disease. 
Based on the original study, which of the following results could be predicted most reliably? 

A. Eight (8) women will die of coronary heart disease after they reach age 65. 
B. Sixteen (16) women will show significant evidence of coronary artery disease. 
C. Forty-four (44) men will die of coronary artery disease after they reach age 65.
D. Sixty-five (65) men will show no significant evidence of coronary artery disease.

Example: Reasoning in a Science Context
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Q1. ‘delivery‘ (diliv’∂rē) n.

1. The act of saving or rescuing.
2. Something that is handed over.
3. The act or manner of throwing or striking.
4. A manner of performing, speaking or singing.
Which definition best fits the word delivery as it is used in the sentence below?
The delivery of the letter was delayed because the postman had misread the address.
 A. 1
 B. 2
 C. 3
 D. 4

Q2. Ajeet is a better swimmer than Amar.

In which sentence does the word better mean the same thing as in the sentence above?
A. Can you think of a better word?
B. Next year I will better my results.
C. Some things better left unsaid.
D. The task took the better part of a day.

LANGUAGE CONVENTIONS

 ANNEXURE 'B'

PSA – Class XI - Format

Test Context Domain/
Item Type

Target No. per Test Form

No. of Items No. of Passages Total No. of Items

Qualitative 
  Stand-alone MCQs 
  Passage-based MCQs

6
6 2

6
12

SUB TOTAL 18

Qualitative 
  Stand-alone MCQs 
  Passage-based MCQs

10
4 2

10
8

SUB TOTAL 18

Language Conventions 
  Grammar  &  Usage 

MCQs 
  Vocabulary in Context 

MCQs
  Passage-complet ion 

MCQs

8

8

8

8

8

8

SUB TOTAL 24

TOTAL 60
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA”, 2, COMMUNITY CENTRE, 
PREET VIHAR, DELHI – 110 092

CBSE/PO (Voc)/2012 August 03, 2012  
 Circular No. Acad-42/2012
All Heads of Institutions 
Affiliated to CBSE

Sub.:  Revision of Curriculum and Scheme of Studies of Career oriented /Vocational courses

Dear Principal,

Greetings for Independence Day!

In cognizance of shortage of trained professionals and the necessity for development of employability skills among 
the students, the Board has been offering a number of career oriented competency based courses at Senior 
Secondary level. Accordingly, the Board has revised the curriculum of the following courses with revised scheme 
of studies (as appended below) by way of taking inputs from the industry experts and academicians.

 1. Bakery and Confectionery
 2. Dairying
 3. Health and Beauty Studies
 4. Library and Information Sciences
 5. Office Secretaryship
 6. Transport Systems and Logistic Management
 7. Travel and Tourism
 8. Horticulture
In addition, Board has prepared curriculum for the new courses namely

 1. Retail Operations & Services
 2. Medical Diagnostics
 3. Foundry Technology
 4. Front Office Operations
 5. Food Production
 6. Food & Beverage Services
 7. Geospatial Technology
 8. Mass Media studies & Media production
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The schools offering any of the aforesaid courses shall opt the new curriculum from this academic session 
onwards, which may be downloaded from www.cbseacademic.in

It is also to inform you that the following Scheme of studies are proposed to be followed for afore said vocational 
Courses.

S. No. Name of the subject Marks
1. Language I (English ) 100
2. Two Subjects from Academic stream (Science /Commerce /

Humanities )
100 each

3. Two subjects from vocational course options from the list above 100 each
4. One Optional Additional subject from academic stream (Science /

Commerce /Humanities)
100

5. Total 500+100(additional)

Schools, that are interested to start one or more vocational courses from the aforesaid list in class XI 
from the academic year 2013-2014, may fill in the proforma (annex. I). The same may be forwarded to 
the office of the undersigned and can also be mailed to pocbse@gmail.com as early as possible.

Yours sincerely,

Dr. Biswajit Saha 
Programme Officer (Vocational)
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 Annexure – I

Central Board of Secondary Education 
2, Community Center, Preet Vihar, New Delhi-110092

Introduction of Competency based Vocational courses w.e.f-2013-14

1. Name of the Course applied for:  .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
2. Name of the school (complete address)  .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
3. Affiliation No.  .........................................................................
   .........................................................................
4. Name of the Principal…
Phone No. :  .........................................................................
Mobile No. :  .........................................................................
Email :  .........................................................................
5. Infrastructure
No. of Students :  .........................................................................
No. of Teachers :  .........................................................................
Student-Teacher ratio :  .........................................................................
No of classrooms :  .........................................................................
Books in Library :  .........................................................................
Total computers in computer labs :  .........................................................................
Specification of Computers specifically for Geospatial Practices  ........................................................
Details of constructed area for:  .........................................................................
Establishing laboratories for Hospitality and Tourism Courses
6. Teachers who will be taking up this course with their qualifications:
Name:
Qualification
with specialization, if any:
Phone No:
Mobile No:
Email.
Signature & Seal of the Principal: ……………………………………………………………

Note:
The above document complete in all respects may be mailed to.

Programme Officer (Vocational)
Central Board of Secondary Education

2, Community Center, Preet Vihar, New Delhi-110092

For any further query you can contact at 22527183 / 22526580/ 22527184
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA”, 2, COMMUNITY CENTRE, 
PREET VIHAR, DELHI – 110 092

No. F2-1/VOC (PCE)-FMM/CBSE/2012 August 08, 2012  
 Circular no. Acad-44/2012
To

All Heads of Institutions  
Which have introduced 
FMM course

Sub.:  Practical Training through NSE Learn to Trade Software for FMM students

Dear Principal,

The students of Financial Markets Management course have 40 marks each for practical skill development in 
class XI and XII for the vocational paper Introduction to Financial Markets – I and II.

In stock and commodity markets, both speed and accuracy are extremely important. To acquire these skills,without 
losing money in the live market has been always a challenge, particularly for the beginners. This problem has 
been addressed by National Stock Exchange (NSE) by developing a specially designed mock trading software 
to simulate the live market conditions.

This software from NSE is called NSE Learn to Trade (NLT). The objective of NLT is to develop investment and 
trading skills needed in financial markets without financial loss. The NLT isa web based software, and students 
can practice and develop the skills in the financial market simulation labs in the school as well as from the comfort 
of their home using the laptop or personal computer.

The NLT has 9 modules. However,students will learn and practice only 6 of the following modules, 3 each in class 
XI and XII.Remaining modules are for higher classes.

For Class XI – Introduction to Financial Markets - I

 1. Numeric Speed Accelerator (NSA) – Theobjective of NSA is to develop speed and accuracy with numbers 
and basic arithmatical operators, without seeing the key board.

 2. Function Key Accelerator (FKA) – The objective of FKA is to develop familiarity with the name of the 
shares, their symbols, prices and quantity, using most frequently used function keys TAB, ENTER etc.

 3. Trading Skill Accelerator (TSA) – The objective of TSA is to improve both the speed and accuracy in 
punching the buy/sell order, one at a time, graduating from a speed of 15 seconds to 1 second.
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For Class XII – Introduction to Financial Markets - II

 4. Arithmetic Skill Accelerator (ASA) – The objective of ASA is to develop the mental arithmetic calculation 
skills in the quickest possible time so that students can work out profit/loss, quantity bought/sold etc.

 5. NOW Simulation for Equity Shares (NSS) – NOWthe “NEAT ON WEB”is the live trading platform of 
NSE on CTCL (Computer to Computer Link) used by the trading members. The NSS module simulates 
this live trading platform for the equity market as a first step to learn real time trading.

 6. NOW Simulation Equity Derivatives (NSD) – The objective of NSD is to provide virtual trading platform 
to students to develop trading and risk management skills using equity derivatives – Futures & Options 
(F&O).

Minimum Hours for Practical: In supersession of earlier instructions on the subject, the students are required 
to practice on NLT software from NSE at least for 60 hours each in class XI and XII to develop required practical 
skills in financial markets. A student who fails to practice for 120 hours on NLT software shall not be allowed to 
appear for the final practical examination of Introduction to Financial Markets II in class XII.

Management Reports – The Principal, teachers from schools, CBSE as well as NSE can monitor the progress 
of any student / school through various management reports generated by NLT. The reports include practice time 
by students, competency achieved in different module in speed and accuracy, progress etc.

Practical Examination & Skill Testing – The final board exam for practical of 40 marks each will also be 
conducted through the NLT software in the respective schools. The breakup of marks for practical examination 
in Financial Market Management is given below:

S.No. Particulars Marks
1 Continuous & Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) 10
2 Viva Voice / Multiple Choice Questions (Online – on NLT) 10
3 Final Skill Test on NLT Software 20

TOTAL 40

Detailed instructions for conduct of practical examination are being sent separately.

All CBSE schools having FMM course may get the login id and password for NLT software, on or before 12th 
September 2012, for the students who have opted for FMM in class XI and XII by paying @Rs.200/- per student 
per year to NSE at the following address.

Head – Financial Education (Schools & Universities)
National Stock Exchange
4th Floor, JeevanVihar Building
Parliament Street, New Delhi – 110001
Tel no. 011-49393113 (D) / 49393000
Email: fmmhelp@nlt.co.in

The DD should be in favour of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. payable at New Delhi. In addition to 
students, 3 login ids for principal and teachers will be provided free by NSE.

NSE will also organize a free training workshop for FMM schools for skill development through NLT software on 
19th September, 2012 at NSE office in Delhi. FMM schools may send in nomination of at least 2 teachers for 
attending the training through e-mail to voc.cbse@gmail.com preferably by 31st August, 2012.

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. Biswajit Saha) 
Programme Officer (Vocational)
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Email: pocbse@gmail.com

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA”, 2, COMMUNITY CENTRE, PREET VIHAR, DELHI – 110 092

PO (VE)/CBSE/2012 Dated: 8th August 2012  
 Circular No. Acad-45/2012
To

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE 

Subject :  Awareness Workshop and Teachers Training Programme on Geospatial Technology.

Dear Principal,

Demand for Geospatial Practices has skyrocketed over the past few years. Indian Geospatial Market is on the edge of 
remarkable growth. By linking geographic data with demographic information and business intelligence, organizations 
are finding new uses for Geospatial Practices. This needs huge trained Geospatial manpower requirements from 
Geospatial industries (both private and public).

In this context a new competency based career oriented course on Geospatial Technology has been introduced 
by CBSE in collaboration with leading Geospatial Solutions Company “Rolta India Limited” on pilot basis in July 
2010.

This course offers an opportunity for the students to understand the basics of geospatial technology dealing with 
mapping and applications. Students obtain insight into geospatial database concepts, creating and implementing 
databases, GIS theory, supported by extensive practical exercises, spatial analysis (network and surface operations) 
and developing Geospatial Practices skills. The present curriculum would help a large number of youth to acquire 
skills for further studies and to enter the world of professional work for their decent livelihoods and for economic 
growth of the country.

“Geospatial Technology” is offered as single vocational electivein class XI and XII. The students can opt it as an elective 
with any other combination of subjects at senior secondary level or as an additional sixth subjectas per the scheme 
of studies of the Board. The text books and practical manuals have been prepared and published by CBSE with the 
support received from the experts from Rolta and other organizations.

So far Geospatial Technologies (GST) course has been implemented on pilot basis in a few schools effective from 
the session 2010-11. Now the Board is planning to expand the reach of the course across the country from the 
session 2013-14. In this context Board has decided to organize the following Workshop and Teachers Training 
programmes
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S.No. Name of the Programme Participants Dates & Time Venue
1. Awareness Workshop School principals 

and faculty members
31stAugust 2012 10:30 
a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Rolta Tower 'A', 
Rolta Technology Park, 
MIDC - Marol, Andheri (East) 
Mumbai - 400 093, INDIA 
Tel :  +91(22) 2926 6666  

+91(22) 3087 6543 
Fax : +91(22) 2836 5992

2. Teachers Training School teachers 
preferably with 
Geography/IT 
background

September 17 to 21, 
2012

Rolta India Limited  
Rolta Technology Park  
Plot# 187, Phase 1  
Udyag Vihar,  
Gurgaon - 122 002.  
Tel : +91 (124) 439 7000  
Fax : +91 (124) 439 7005

Therefore you are requested kindly to attend the aforesaid Awareness Workshop along with one/two faculty members. 
You are also requested to depute one or two faculty members preferably from Geography /IT background to attend 
the teachers training programme.

You can send the confirmation (as per proforma attached) through email to voc.cbse@gmail.com with a copy toalpana.
bohra@rolta.com preferably by 22nd August 2012.

An early response is highly anticipated.

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. Biswajit Saha) 
Programme Officer & Director I/C (Vocational)

PROFORMA
Registration for Awareness Workshop/ Teachers Training

Name of the School:
Address:
Contact no.:
Email:

Name of the Teachers (with contact details) who will be attending the Awareness Workshop/ Teachers 
Training

1.
2.
3.

Signature________________
Name of the Principal________________
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Email : director@cbseacademic.in Telefax: 011-23212603
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011-23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR (ACAD.&TRG)/SA-I/2012 Dated: 13.08.2012
Circular No. - Acad. 48/2012

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  Conduct of School Based Summative Assessment–I (September, 2012) Classes IX & X–2012

Dear Principal,

As you are aware, the Central Board of Secondary Education has introduced Examination Reforms and Continuous & 
Comprehensive Evaluation (CCE) in its schools since the academic year 2009-10 and the detailed scheme has already 
been intimated to all Heads of schools vide CBSE’s previous circulars.

1. The scheme is in operation in all CBSE affiliated schools. As per the scheme, four Formative Assessments 
and two Summative Assessments would be held in an academic year. The first Summative Assessment 
(SAI) for this term for Classes IX and X is scheduled to be conducted in the second half of September, 
2012.

2. Under the School Based Summative Assessment-I, the students will be tested internally based on the following 
criteria:

 a) Syllabus and design of the Examination Question Papers in different subjects for Classes IX and X 
Summative Assessment(s) will be the same as circulated by the Board and available on the CBSE 
website: www.cbseacademic.in

 b) As was done earlier, the Summative Assessment-I will be in the form of a pen and paper test conducted 
by the schools themselves.

 c) In order to ensure standards, the Question Paper Bank in different subjects would be sent by the Boards 
so as to reach the schools well in time.

 d) Evaluation of answer scripts will be done by the school teachers themselves on the basis of the Marking 
Scheme provided by the Board. The school may use the Sahodaya School Cluster for spot evaluation so 
that teachers from other schools are also involved, if they so wish.

 e) There will be random verification of the assessment procedures of schools by the Board officials/nominees 
appointed by the Board.
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3. It has been decided to provide Question Paper Bank for English Communicative, English Language & 
Literature, HindiA, HindiB, Mathematics, Science, Social Science and Communicative Sanskrit. In 
respect of other subjects/languages, the schools will administer their own question papers.

4. The Board will be sending Compact Disc (CD) containing Question Paper Bank for Classes IX & X and the 
school may:

 i) pick up one question paper for each subject.
   OR
 ii) mix and match the paper by using different questions/sections from different sets of question papers and 

prepare a question paper based on Board’s Sample paper, design and blue print.
   OR
 iii) prepare their own question papers as per syllabus and design available on CBSE’s website (www.

cbseacademic.in). However, in case the school prepares its own question papers, the question 
papers and marking scheme so prepared should be emailed to the Board (email id: summative@
cbseacademic.in) for its verification within a week of conduct of the respective papers.

 iv) The Board plans to dispatch the CDs containing question papers for classes IX and X to all schools so 
as to reach by 10th September, 2012.

 v) Every School, Sahodaya Cluster(s) or City may design their own date sheet for Classes IX and X 
examination accordingly.

5. The schools need to take out the print of the desired question paper (refer para 4 above) and, thereafter, the 
required number of prints/copies may be made at the school level. These question papers must be kept in 
the safe custody carefully.

6. The schools will conduct the SAI for Classes IX and X during the second half of September, 2012.

7. Another CD containing the Marking Scheme of the main subjects would be sent to every school separately 
in due course and will reach the schools well in time.

8. The answer books should be evaluated by teachers as per the marking scheme provided by the Board.

9. Kindly note that answer books of school based SA-I for classes IX and X should not be sent to the 
Board under any circumstances.

 However these must be preserved and kept in the safe custody at the school as per schedule given in C.B.S.E. 
circular dated 28/06/2012 and reproduced below:

REDUCTION IN THE PERIOD OF RETENTION OF THE ASSESSMENTS OF  
CLASSES IX & X AT SCHOOL LEVEL

Vide Circular No. 8/2012 of 19.1.2012 against Sl. No. 10 schools have been instructed to preserve and keep the 
answer books of classes IX and X in the safe custody at the school for at least a period of three years (in case of 
Class IX) and two years (in case of Class X) along with question papers and marking schemes for any verification by 
the Board subsequently. It has, time and again been brought to the notice that with increasing volume it is becoming 
difficult to preserve the record. The Board has, therefore, reduced the retention period of the assessments of classes 
IX and X to be preserved at the school level w.e.f. 2013 examination and the same is as under:

i) Answer books of candidates(both for main and IOP examination) shall be preserved by the School upto 02 
months after declaration of result in respect of such candidates who have not applied for verification of grades or 
sought photocopy of the answer book.
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ii) Schools shall preserve the answer books in cases where mistake has been detected on account of verification 
of grades and those cases seeking photocopy of answer book(s) as under –

  Mistake detected on account of Verification of grades - 01 year from the date of declaration of result
  In case of providing photocopy of answer book(s) – 01 year if no RTI case received and 03 years if RTI 

case received
iii) Schools shall preserve the answer books of sub-judice cases for 01 year after the final judgement

iv) Schools shall weed out the evidence of assessments of classes IX & X alongwith the answer books of class 
X of the relevant examination viz. for 2013 Class X examination the evidence of assessments of class IX session 
2011-2012 and Class X session 2012-2013 be weeded out 02 months after declaration of result of class X.

v) Schools shall weed out the hard copies of the marks data for classes IX and X alongwith the answer books 
of the Class X examination of the relevant year viz. for 2013 Class X examination the evidence of assessments of 
class IX session 2011-2012 and Class X session 2012-2013 be weeded out 02 months after declaration of result of 
class X.

This may be brought to the notice of all teachers, students and parents of Classes IX and X.

For any further clarification please contact the Joint Director (Academics & Vocational), CBSE, Shiksha Sadan, 
17-Rouse Avenue, Institutional Area, New Delhi-110002 on phone no. 011-23211576/23212603 or through E-mail: 
summative@cbseacademic.in

Yours sincerely,

(Ram Shankar) 
Joint Director (Academics & Vocational)



204 Transforming Pedagogy 

Transforming  

Pedagogy 

Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 23211576
Website: www.cbseacademic.in Tele Fax: 011- 23234324
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/ DIR (ACAD.&TRG.)/2012 August 14, 2012
Circular No. Acad-49/2012

All Heads of Institutions  
Affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  ‘Waves of Change’ – Education Beyond Books

Dear Principal,

The CBSE in collaboration with the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Ministry of Urban Development 
(MOUD) and Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit, GmbH (GIZ - formerly known as GTZ) has 
introduced the `National School Sanitation Initiative (NSSI)’ with the aim to inculcate good sanitation habits among 
the school children in order to acquaint, inspire and celebrate excellence towards School Sanitation at the National 
Level.

Under the National School Sanitation Initiative (NSSI), launched on 27th April 2010 it has been made mandatory for 
all schools to focus on the practical aspects of sanitation in its right perspective, laying emphasis on personal hygiene, 
proper sanitation, clean toilet habits, safe drinking water, separate toilets for girl students, disposal of waste water, 
waste water recycling, waterless urinals, waste segregation and composting, food hygiene, creation and conservation 
of green spaces etc.

Accordingly, Online National School Sanitation Ratings were instituted on 7th July 2011 with the purpose of recognizing 
those schools which are taking significant steps towards effective sanitation and improvement in service delivery leading 
to the desired behavioural and attitudinal changes towards hygiene and sanitation.

The CBSE’s Comprehensive School Health Manuals also address the issue of sanitation in schools. Sanitation 
is one of the six areas and themes that have been identified for a school to improve its performance in becoming a 
‘Health Promoting School’.

It is advised that you visit the school sanitation website www.schoolsanitation.com and get your school an online 
Sanitation Rating.

Further, since quite some time, it was being felt that a massive activity oriented awareness generation and internalization 
of the new vistas in education in India is needed and hence in this perspective, the “Waves of Change (WoC)” program 
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has been conceptualized. In this program there will be involvement of schools in such a manner that a wave like pattern 
involving the cities (where the schools are situated) would be made moving apparently towards Delhi.

The Board proposes to launch the ‘Waves of Change’ program in the second week of October 2012.

It is advised that every school dedicates five days in October 2012 to celebrate the Waves of Change program 
with each day being devoted to any one of following five themes:

  Theme 1: Health , Wellness and Sanitation
  Theme 2: National Talent Hunt
  Theme 3: Environment, Culture and Heritage
  Theme 4: Competitive Sports (and National Talent Hunt in sports)
  Theme 5: Ideas and Innovations
Subsequently, the schools may carry on with these activities throughout the year/academic session. They may start or 
conclude an activity as part of this five day event.

The guidelines on the types of activities under each theme are being annexed for reference and perusal.

It will be appreciated if the action plan is sent to the Board followed by a brief report of activities pre and post event, 
supported by pictures for our reference and record, addressed to Mr. R. P. Singh, Assistant Education Officer, Central 
Board of Secondary Education, Shiksha Sadan, 17-Rouse Avenue, Institutional Area, New Delhi-110002.

Further, the Board advises the Sahodaya School Complexes to organise the Inter School Competitions in the 
following areas not later than Oct 2012, and forward the results to the Board.

Should you have any queries in this regard, please do not hesitate to contact Mr. Sandeep Sethi, Education Officer or 
Mr. R. P. Singh, Assistant Education Officer at 011-23217128 or 23231070 or email to aeorps@cbseacademic.in.

Yours Sincerely

(DR. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (ACADEMIC AND TRAINING)

Encl: Guidelines for the schools and theme-wise activities.



206 Transforming Pedagogy 

Transforming  

Pedagogy 

 Annexure A

Waves of Change (WOC): Guidelines for schools
 Participation is open to all schools affiliated with CBSE.
 The schools should participate in the following thematic areas: 
  Theme 1: Health , Wellness and Sanitation 
  Theme 2: National Talent Hunt 
  Theme 3: Environment, Culture and Heritage 
  Theme 4: Competitive Sports (and National Talent Hunt in Sports) 
  Theme 5: Ideas and Innovations
 Note:  Participation in Theme 1 is compulsory. 

The schools can participate in any one or more or all of the remaining four themes.
 Steps for participation: 
 1. The schools should get registered for the Waves of Change Programme by getting the Online National 

School Sanitation Rating done for their schools at the school sanitation website (www.schoolsanitation.
com) and obtain a UIN (Unique ID Number). This UIN is to be quoted in all the future references

 2. Each participating school will constitute two types of committees - one, at the supervisory level called 
WOC Management Committee, and the other at the theme level (one for each theme). It will be called 
the Thematic Task Force for that theme, for example: for theme 1 viz. Health, Wellness and Sanitation 
the Thematic Task Force may be called TTF-1 and so on and so forth. So, there could be Five Thematic 
Task Forces and One School level WOC Management Committee

 3. WOC management committee: The WOC Committee in each school should comprise of 15 members 
(Students, Teachers and Staff). After constituting the WOC Committee, the school should inform 
the CBSE-NIESBUD-GIZ Sanitation and Knowledge Development (CNGSKD) Cell through email at 
neetaswoc@gmail.com or by fax at 011-49495391.

 4. Role of WOC management committee:
   This Committee would supervise the entire programme 
    This Committee would submit an ATR (Action Taken Report) at the end of the programme in respect 

of the theme 1 and also about the other themes chosen by the school 
    This report, in the prescribed format is to be submitted online on the school sanitation website (www.

schoolsanitation.com) or it may be sent in a CD to CBSE-NIESBUD-GIZ Sanitation and Knowledge 
Development (CNGSKD) Cell. No hard copies will be accepted. The packet containing the CD 
should be super scribed ‘WAVES OF CHANGE PROGRAM’ in bold capital letters and should be 
posted in a CD mailer (yellow) to CBSE-NIESBUD-GIZ Sanitation and Knowledge Development 
(CNGSKD) Cell, Central Board of Secondary Education, Shiksha Sadan, 17, Rouse Avenue, 
Institutional Area, New Delhi-110002.

   This Report is very important, as on the basis of this report the performance will be evaluated.
 5. Thematic Task Force (TTF): Schools to form a 15 member TTF for each theme in which the school 

is participating- comprising of 10 students and 5 teachers who have excelled in the desired field/have 
genuine interest in the proposed thematic areas.

 6. Role of Thematic Task Force: 
    They will make a broad action plan for the designated theme and also for the year as prescribed by 

the CBSE-NIESBUD-GIZ Sanitation and Knowledge Development (CNGSKD) Cell. 
    Schools to design and implement action plan for each theme with the parameters sent by CBSE-

NIESBUD-GIZ Sanitation and Knowledge Development (CNGSKD) Cell. 
   Schools to execute the Activity Plan as sent by the CNGSKD Cell.
 Incentives to the Early birds to be given by the GIZ (to be given to the first 2000 schools registering 

for WOC) - Free Posters, Free online Life Skills Programme, Free Infrastructural guidance to the schools, 
Awards and Rewards, Susanex Programme.

Compulsory Theme

Schools to choose at-
least one theme.
Schools may choose 
more than one or all 
themes}
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 Annexure B

Waves of Change (WOC): Theme-wise activities
Theme 1: Health, Wellness and Sanitation

 Compulsory Activities:

  All participating schools should get the Online National School Sanitation Rating done for their schools 
to check if they are a “Health Promoting School” (HPS).

  Sanitation Task Force (STF) formation by each school: Lead to be taken by the Health and Wellness 
Clubs.

  Declaration of School Sanitation Action Plan for the event as well as for the year, along with clearly 
defined time line and its submission online to CBSE.

  Perform the compulsory activities on the Theme Day as prescribed by the CNGSKD Cell.

 Awareness raising for attitudinal and behavioural change:

  Special thematic assemblies- Principal or designated teacher to brief the students about the theme and 
the School Sanitation Action Plan.

  Download the sanitation related posters from the website and paste them at appropriate places/may 
get them distributed among the children.

  School Cleanliness Drive: Award(s) to ‘Clean classrooms’.

 Schools will try to understand and introduce the following, if possible, in their premises:-

  Bio- Dynamic Waste Segregation.
  Taking steps for Water Conservation in Sanitation Practices -
   Waterless Urinals.
   Minimization of Water wastage through Cisterns.
   Water Harvesting Structures.
  Highlighting Sanitation Ambassadors in Indian History.

 Schools can use a Few Technological Options

   Waterless Urinals.
   Zero discharge System.

 Important Points

  Activities can be divided class-wise.
  Parents can be involved as resources.
  Follow-up activities after the event must be scheduled for a period of time.
  The CBSE revised School Health Manuals Vol. I-IV may be referred to while selecting the activities.

Some more suggestive activities:

 1. Awareness campaign: (may start a week before the main Event):

   Special Thematic Assemblies.
   Slogan March.
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   Awareness Posters on school notice board.
   Discussions in Zero periods on the purpose and ideology behind ‘Waves of Change’.
   Wall Newspapers.
   Pre event checklist- Are we a ‘Health Promoting School’?

 2. Main Activities:

   Class Bulletin board competition.
   Cleanliness Drive.
    Talks and Walks (resource persons and students can visit sites where good practices are being 

followed etc.).
   Health and Wellness Camp.
   Pledge and Signature Campaign.
   Lecture-demonstrations by health professionals.
   Email Campaign.
   Facebook Page (Awareness Campaign).
   Performing Art Activities - Songs, Poems, Dance, Skits, Nukkad Nataks.
   Visual Art Activities - Poster Making, Best out of Waste, Bookmark making.
    Literary Activities - Letter to the Editor, Debate, Extempore, Poetry writing, Interviews, Jingle making 

competition, Wall Newspaper.

Theme 2: National Talent Hunt

 PSA to be conducted by CBSE (IX and XI) – It is widely acknowledged that research and analytical skills; 
problem solving in Mathematics and Science; comprehension and analysis of written texts; and, effective 
communication are the skills which ensure success in Higher Studies and Professional areas. It is with 
these considerations in mind that CBSE is planning to initiate a Problem Solving Test (PST) for students 
in Classes IX and XI (vide (Cir. No. Acad- 40/2012 and 41/2012 dated 01.08.2012, respectively). These 
skills will be assessed on the following domains:

  Quantitative, which includes the kinds of reasoning found in Mathematics, Science, and Technology;
  Qualitative, which includes the reasoning seen in the Humanities, Arts, and Social Sciences;
  Written Expression, which includes different aspects of written communication (e.g., grammar, 

vocabulary, etc.).

 The National Talent Hunt competition would be held in the areas mentioned below. The top 100 students 
in each of the following fields would be selected and rewarded with certificates and prizes. Schools are 
requested to send us video bytes (not more than two minutes)/photos of outstanding talent wherever required 
on a CD or these can be uploaded on the school sanitation website (www.schoolsanitation.com).

 Schools can participate in 03 groups – Primary, Middle and Senior:

 1. Business Skills:
   Earn while learn – Students using their entrepreneurial talent to earn.
   Innovative Solutions.

 2. Performing Arts: (Indian, Western and Folk) (max. 2 entries per school in each of the following 
categories-both individual and group- group size ≤ 10 students):
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   Acting/ Theatre/ Street Plays (Nukkad Nataks).
   Singing.
   Instrumental.
   Dancing and choreography.
   Mime.
   Puppetry and shadow art.

 3. Life Skills: Communication Skills (English, Hindi and one local language) (max. 2 entries per 
school in each of the following categories):

   Writing – poetry, prose, drama, journalistic etc.
   Declamation and public speaking.

 4. Visual and Applied Arts (max. 2 names per school in each of the following categories):
   Painting.
   Sculptors.
   Photography and film making.
   Graphic designing (book cover, posters, ad design, etc.).
   Illustration/cartooning.
   Crafts and folk arts.

The Process:

 Each school can send max. 02 entries for each sub-category.

 The entries must be in the form of a video recording, written piece (for section 3 only) or photograph. Each 
entry must carry the name of the student, age, class, school and gender and the category under which 
the application is made (e.g. if the student is applying for mime the entry should mention the category i.e. 
mime).

 Each entry must adhere to the criteria mentioned above i.e. Video bytes (not more than two minutes)/
photos of outstanding talent wherever required – size of the file to be mentioned (xx MB), not more than 5 
photographs (total 1 MB) or 500 words.

 Each entry must carry an authentication/originality certificate that must be ratified by the school principal.

Note: For Operational details and assessment criteria, please refer to the school sanitation website  
(www.schoolsanitation.com).

 Any kind of malpractice will lead to disqualification of the school.

Selection:

  Schools can decide their criteria for each category and send the entry (submission of entries 
will be in the form of CDs or uploading of the content on the school sanitation website –  
www.schoolsanitation.com.

  First level screening is required especially for authenticity (for Visual/Applied art –actual piece will be 
called at an appropriate level).

  Panels of judges at two levels will be formed for each category.
  125 finalists will be called for actual performance at the final forum.
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  Top 100 performers would be selected by a Jury of eminent experts. Winners will be awarded at 
a function at a designated venue.

  Incentives/Awards and Rewards for the winners.

Some more suggestive activities:

  Street plays: Changing values, Dignity of labour, Girl child, Blood donation, eye donation, Road safety, 
Corruption, National Integration.

  Extempore/Talk Show/Debates-intra class: Right to Education Act, Right to Information Act- success/
failure, The cure for everything is world without barriers, Agricultural India was more progressive than 
Technological India.

  Choir songs: Physical Fitness, National Integration, Song on your own city (multi lingual songs).
  Poster making (can be done on school walls/compound walls): Values, Changing values, Dignity of 

labour, Girl child, Blood donation, Eye donation, Road safety, Corruption.
  Performing arts: Dances/Puppet show: water, girl child, peace, five elements etc.

Theme 3: Environment, Culture and Heritage

 The Schools should constitute an Environment and Heritage Task Force to take up the activities. 
Some suggestive activities for this Task Force are:

  The Task Force can find out some oldest/biggest trees in an around their school and take their girth at 
1.37meters from the ground (technically called “breast height”), find their botanical name and put on a 
board. Study their leaves, bark and fruits.

  Make a trip to a heritage place in your city. Write about its real time condition.
  Plant trees in July and August. Grow winter flowers in the right season. Grow Herbs, Medicinal and 

Aromatic plants.
  Prepare an inventory of trees in and around your school area in the given format.

 Create Heritage Club in the school. Make a calendar of the activities.

 Creating CBSE History (and Infrastructure): The schools which have more than 50 years old (buildings/
Campus) can list themselves as part of CBSE History.

  Write a paragraph of 500 words about your school building/campus. You may also add 3-4 
photographs.

 Creation and Conservation of Green Spaces in the Schools

  Plantation of Medicinal and Aromatic Plants by school students: This can be done in August-September 
2012 during rains. If possible this year, else next year.

 Schools to do project on Home Sparrow and take necessary action as advised by CNGSKD Cell for 
Saving the Home Sparrow in the Cities. Some suggestive actions:

  Take steps to save the sparrow
   Have you noticed any sparrow or bird?
   Try to take their photos and identify them
   Declare one bird as your school bird/ one animal as your school animal and write about it.
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 The schools can form a Nature/Wildlife Society. Some suggested activities:

  Have you seen mongoose, etc or any other animal in/around your school apart from dogs? Note their 
names, try to take photos and send them to us.

  Organize a wildlife/trees photography competition in the school. Three entries from each school will be 
uploaded on the website

Theme 4: Competitive Sports (and National Talent Hunt in Sports)

 Schools to form a Thematic Task Force as explained earlier for chalking up an implementation plan

 The schools would be encouraged to participate in the CBSE inter school Sports and Games competitions 
which are organized at the Cluster, Zonal and National levels. At present the CBSE inter school Sports 
and Games competition is being organized in 16 disciplines viz. Athletics, Badminton, Basketball, Carrom, 
Chess, Football, Handball, Hockey, Judo, Kho-Kho, Skating, Swimming, Table Tennis, Taekwondo, Tennis 
and Volleyball. The Sports Calendar has been declared by CBS vide its circular no. Acad-37/2012 dtd. 
19/07/2012

 National Talent Hunt in sports:

  The top 100 students in each of the following fields would be selected:
  Talented Players – Team sports including Cricket (limited to 3 team sports per school: entries and 

names to be decided by schools – max 6 names).
  Athletics and individual sports (max. 6 names per school).
  Martial Arts (max. 2 names).
  Sports journalists and commentators (max. 1 entry each per school).
  Schools are requested to send us video bytes online (not more than two minutes)/photos of outstanding 

talent.
  Process will remain the same as explained earlier.

 Pristine Cup Celebrity Day and Night T 20/Football Match.

Theme 5: Ideas and Innovations

Schools to form a Thematic Task Force as explained earlier for chalking up an implementation plan.

Suggested activities:

 Libraries for All

  In order to enable the libraries to issue books (including text books) to all the needy ones.
  Schools to raise conscience of their students for understanding the value of books so that they can:
   voluntarily donate last years’ books.
   learn to keep their books in good condition.
  Students can also donate any other books of relevance which then could be collected by the Regional 

Offices of CBSE/or any other suitable agency.
  Inventory to be made by the Regional office of the CBSE/ or any other suitable agency.
  Schools will inform the CNGSKD cell through email (neetaswoc@gmail.com) the details of the books 

and the names of the students donating the books.
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  Awards to be given to leading schools.

 Providing real opportunities to excel to the Students, Teachers and the School to excel in different fields

 Over the years, CBSE has grown into an institution of excellence and under it a very talented pool of school 
students exist which need to be harnessed at a young age by giving them due recognition. So, WOC opens 
a new window for such differently talented students.

 Promoting the entrepreneurial attitude as well as development and sharpening of skills in the 
individual areas of interest for the students thereby enhancing the possibilities of creating viable 
career options.

 Development of entrepreneurship skills and creating self-funding/earning scholarship opportunities 
for the school students.

  Strengthening Entrepreneurship and Vocational Education.
  Alternative employment by exploring new ideas through CBSE, NIESBUD and GIZ.
  Launch of some innovative projects by selected schools.

 Disaster Management and Disaster Preparedness

  NIDM to issue guidelines for the schools to follow.
  Schools to participate in the Disaster Management drills.
  Awareness Generation Activities to be reinforced.

Some more suggestive activities:

  Book Reading Activity – Book reading by Author, Teacher, Students.
  Meet the author.
  Story making, enactment, dance, puppets, puzzles, quiz to create awareness to students about social 

issues.
  Community service – support old age homes, differently-abled children, visually challenged children.
  Support/Handholding a less privileged school in any of the 5 themes by a school or NIESBUD.
  Cleanliness drive in slums.
  Improvisation and enhancement of participation in non-competitive sports e.g. participation in school 

marathon/half marathon /quarter marathon.
  Innovative activities in any of the above four themes.
  Any other innovative activity by the school in Scholastic and Co-scholastic areas.
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/SCIENCE QUIZ/ DIR(A&T)/2012/ 16th Aug,2012
Circular No. Acad-50/2012

All Heads of Schools  
Affiliated to the Board

 Subject:  WWF India and TRAFFIC India online Wild Life Quiz-Wild Wisdom in association with CBSE

Dear Principal,

Greetings from CBSE!!!

Our planet earth has the privilege of being the only planet which has beautiful and diverse forms of wildlife on it. We as 
human beings should save and look after and conserve it because humans are intellectually capable of identifying and 
solving the problems using various ways. This beautiful planet should be protected. We must assume responsibility for 
wildlife conservation and make efforts to encourage our present generation to seek solutions through education. Our 
students should be reminded that they can make a difference for the future benefit of wildlife and humans alike.

Wild Wisdom gives students a unique opportunity to delve deeper into this amazing wild life that India has and develop 
knowledge and pride in this natural legacy. To encourage the students in this regard WWF India and TRAFFIC India 
are conducting their 5th edition of the only wild life quiz in the country- Wild Wisdom and CBSE is associated with them 
for the online quiz from this year. The details are as follows-

Wild Wisdom 2012–Online Quiz

  This online version of Wild Wisdom 2012 is a pan India quiz open to all Indians between 11 to 13 years 
of age.

  The quiz has 3 levels. Participants will need to qualify Level I and Level II in order to reach the final 
Level.

  All participants will need to register in order to participate. There are no registration charges.
  Top 10 participants will get exciting prizes.
Who can participate in Wild Wisdom 2012–Online Quiz

  Open to all Indians between the age of 11 to 13.
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Registration

  All participants will need to register on the WWF-India website wwfindia.org All the details of this quiz 
will be posted online at wwfindia.org and http://cbse.nic.in. After registration each participant will get 
a login username and password to enter the online quiz.

  Registration opens on August 20, 2012 at 10 a.m. onwards
  Registration closes on August 25, 2012 at 5p.m.
Format of the Wild Wisdom 2012–Online Quiz

  The quiz will be conducted at three Levels.
  Each level will be on for duration of one week between 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. each day.
  To participate in the quiz students will need to login with their user name and password provided. Once 

the stipulated time limit is over the quiz will be timed out.
Please note: Each participant can register ONLY ONCE. In case a participant attempts a second registration, 
WWF will forfeit their participation in the quiz. Please read Rules and Regulations for more details.

Level 1:

  August 27, 2012 to September 2, 2012
  Time: 10a.m. to 5p.m. each day
  Level 1 will have 20 questions to be completed within a time frame of 10 minutes. Once the stipulated 

time limit is over the quiz will be timed out.
  A participant has to get at least 40% or 8 answers right in order to qualify for the next level.
  Successful participants will be intimated by an email at the address that they have registered from.
Level 2:

  September 10, 2012 to September 16, 2012
  Times: 10 a.m. to 5p.m. each day
  Level 2 will have 20 questions to be completed within a time frame of 10 minutes. Once the stipulated 

time limit is over the quiz will be timed out.
  A participant has to get at least 60% or 12 answers right in order to qualify for the next level.
  Successful participants will be intimated by an email at the address that they have registered from.
Level 3:

  October 1, 2012 to October 7, 2012
  Times: 10a.m. to 5p.m. each day
  Level 3 will have 25 questions to be completed within a time frame of 10 minutes. Once the stipulated 

time limit is over the quiz will be timed out.
  The final winners will be selected on the basis of maximum number of correct answers, in case of a tie – a 

lucky draw will be held to select the final 10 winners.
  Successful participants will be intimated by an email at the address that they have registered from. Their 

goody bags will be sent to the postal address provided during registration. Also, the name and photograph 
of the 10 final winners will be published on the WWF-India website.
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Rules and Regulations

  One participant can make only one entry for the quiz. Multiple entries by a single entrant will result in 
disqualification.

  The final winners will be selected on the basis of maximum number of correct answers, in case of a tie – a 
lucky draw will be held to select the final 10 winners.

  Please ensure that the contact information provided by you during registration is accurate. WWF-India will 
contact the winners via the email address provided during registration. Also, the goody bags will be sent 
to the postal address provided during registration. It may take up to 4-6 weeks (or more) for the prize to 
be delivered after we announce the winner.

  WWF-India reserves the right to cancel the contest at any time without prior notice.
  WWF-India reserves the right to change and update contest rules and also add special prizes during the 

contest. We hence request you to please check our event site to get updated regularly.
  Children of WWF-India’s employees are not eligible to participate in the contest.
  Students who are participating in the School level elimination round of the Wild Wisdom Quiz being 

conducted in their respective schools CANNOT participate in the online version.
We request you to give wide publicity to this competition amidst students, teachers and parents and ensure maximum 
participation so as to inculcate in students at an early age a spirit to protect this beautiful planet of ours and its 
inhabitants.

With best wishes,

Yours sincerely,

DIRECTOR (ACAD &TRG)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/Dir(ACAD &TRG)/2012 August 23, 2012
Circular No: Acad-51/2012

All the Heads of Institution  
affiliated to CBSE,

 Subject:  Sensitization of students about wastage of food at social gatherings.

Dear Principal,

As per the findings of a study on Assessment of Wastage of Food and Ostentatious Behaviour during Social Gatherings 
in National Capital Region Delhi sponsored by Department of Consumer Affairs, Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food 
and Public Distribution, Government of India, it is estimated that 46% of children below three years are underweight, 
79% of children aged 6-35 months have anemia, 23 per cent have a low birth weight and 68 out of 1000 die before 
the age of one year, and 33% of women and 28% of men have a Body Mass Index (BMI) below normal just because 
they do not have enough food to eat.

The recommendations of the above study for controlling food wastage focus majorly on education and awareness. 
The report suggests that people need to be educated about the importance of food. Awareness has to be created about 
the effects of wasting food and how it affects the society where many are malnourished and hungry. The teaching of 
Life Skills has become a mandatory part of school curriculum. The importance of food and the ill effects of wasting 
food should be made a part of the school curriculum so that the children can imbibe the value of food at the young age 
and develop the habit of respecting food”.

The Board has taken several measures which can be cross-linked to address the problem of food wastage. Schools 
may use following activities to sensitize children about the need to avoid wastage of food:

• The Board has recently introduced Value based questions in classes IX-XII (Cir.No Acad 21 and 22 dated June 
19, 2012). The theme of ‘Controlling Wastage of Food’ may be assimilated under it to sensitize students.

• The Board has published Life Skills Manual for teachers of classes IX-X which have been designed to 
inculcate Life Skills in students through the activities in areas of Creative and Critical Thinking, Problem 
Solving, Decision Making, Empathy and Self Awareness, Communication Skills and Interpersonal Skills, 
Coping with Stress and Managing Emotions. Schools may, while designing activities in life skills, stress 
upon the prevention of wastage of food by counseling students to exercise restraint when ordering or taking 
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eatables. They should not feel ashamed in asking to pack leftover food in a restaurant.

• The Board has also published School Health Manuals in four volumes for classes VI-XII. The activities revolve 
around six different themes - Knowing your Body, Food and Nutrition, Personal and Environmental Hygiene, 
Physical Fitness, Being Responsible and Safe and Behaviour and Life Skills. Teachers may emphasize the 
issue of food wastage and ask students to find out the frequently wasted food items and sensitize them as 
well as others to use these items carefully. Students may take part in deciding healthy menus and the required 
quantity of items at their homes or while organizing a social gathering.

• The Board has recommended the establishment of the Eco Clubs and Health and Wellness Clubs in the 
schools. These can be involved in this campaign to help save food by minimizing food wastage. Students 
may be told that by minimizing the wastage of food, apart from moving towards achieving self-sufficiency in 
the food grains, we may also improve our carbon rating.

• In the main curricular areas the theme Food is taught right from class III to class X under 'Environmental 
Studies and Science. The contents related to 'Wastage of Food' have been included in the syllabus on 
Health & Physical Education as a compulsory subject up to Secondary stage (Class XI-XII) and focus has 
been made on avoiding wastage of food. The teachers must discuss the problem of wastage of food while 
discussing these themes.

• Apart from the above areas, the Co-Curricular Activities such as NSS and NCC, Debate, Declamation, Creative 
Writing, Recitation, Poster-Making, Slogan, Theatre etc., which have been made compulsory under School 
Based Assessment, can also be involved in the campaign to reduce food wastage.

Schools are also advised to go through the detailed report of the study conducted by Indian Institute of Public 
Administration, New Delhi available at: http://consumeraffairs.nic.in/consumer

It is requested that schools may direct all the teachers to adapt material from this Report and assimilate it with their 
activities/study material so as to encourage students to avoid wastage of food. This will go a long way in assisting the 
country to contain the problem of food wastage.

Yours Sincerely,

(DR SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (ACAD &TRG)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(ACAD &TRG)/2012 August 24, 2012
Circular No: Acad-54/2012

All the Heads of Institution  
affiliated to CBSE,

 Subject:  Availability of Supplementary Material in Accountancy.

Dear Principal,

In continuation to the Board’s Academic Circular No.13/2012 dated 10th May, 2012 the concerned teachers and 
students of Accountancy are further informed that the Guidance notes regarding adoption of Revised Schedule VI to 
the Companies Act 1956 in Accountancy, Class XII have been uploaded on the CBSE website under the URL address: 
http://cbseacademic.in/web_material/doc/Supplimentary_Accountancy.pdf

The updated Sample Question Papers in Accountancy for Class XII, effective for the Board Examination 2013 have 
been uploaded on the Board’s website www.cbse.nic.in.

For any further queries in this regard, please also contact Mrs. Sugandh Sharma, Education Officer (Commerce) at 
011- 23220155 or email at eo-commerce@cbseacademic.in with a copy to Director (Academic and Training) at email 
id sadhanap.cbse@nic.in.

With best wishes,

Yours Sincerely,

(Ram Shankar) 
Joint Director (Acad. & Voc.)
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Website: www.cbseacademic.in Telefax: 011-23234324
Email-id: sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17-Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD./ DIR (TRG)/ 2012 27th August, 2012
Circular No. : Acad-55/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
Affiliated to CBSE

 Sub.:  Requisition of School Auditorium / Venue for hosting CBSE Workshops / Seminars / 
Conferences.

Dear Principal,

The Central Board of Secondary Education has consistently been striving to establish new benchmarks in secondary 
education through its policies and programmes. In one of its move to strengthen the implementation of CCE scheme 
of evaluation in all of its affiliated schools and bring about other reforms in the education system of the country, CBSE 
has a separate training division that would take care of all training and development needs of teachers and school 
leaders.

In an endeavor to make this initiative a success, CBSE is planning to initiate training workshops for teachers and school 
leaders focusing on new initiatives and implementation of various innovative practices in all aspects of school education 
including the use of ICT, Assessment and Evaluation. In this regard, CBSE would like to collaborate with Independent 
Private Schools including Sahodaya School complexes which have an auditorium with a capacity to accommodate 
approximately 80-100 participants. CBSE would like to use this facility to conduct/organize trainings and workshops on 
various new initiatives. The effort is to involve as many institutes as possible in every Region of the Board.

The auditorium may be used for two consecutive days for which the expenditure of providing lunch, 
refreshments, and stationery to the participants shall be borne by CBSE.

The interested schools / Sahodaya School Complexes may fill in the requisition form attached and e-mail to sadhanap.
cbse@nic.in, cbsecp@gmail.com

This collaboration will go a long way in strengthening and facilitating the smooth functioning of the Training Division 
leading to a wide outreach to the school community.

With warm Regards,

(Dr. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (TRAINING)
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Email: pocbse@gmail.com Phone no.:- 011-22527184
Website: www.cbseacademic.in Fax.:- 011-22527180

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA” 2, COMMUNITY CENTER, PREET VIHAR, DELHI-110092

No. CBSE/PO/2012 August 27th, 2012
Circular No. Acad-56/2012

To

The Heads of the Affiliated Schools

Subject: Orientation Programme for Teachers on Financial Market Management

Dear Principal,

Keeping in view the introduction of latest software based programmes of the Financial Market Management Course, 
the Board in collaboration with National Stock Exchange is organising a free training workshop on NLT Software on 
19th September 2012 for existing schools that are offering FMM course as well as the schools that are planning to start 
this course from the next academic session 2013-14 as per following schedule.

 Venue National Stock Exchange
 4th Floor, Jeevan Vihar Building
 Parliament Street, New Delhi – 110001

 Date: 19th September 2012. Time 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

You are therefore, requested to depute two teachers, who are teaching FMM course (Commerce/IT background) for 
the orientation programme conducted by the NSE, as per the aforesaid schedule.

You are therefore requested to confirm the participation of teachers for this programme within 05.09.2012.by forwarding 
email to voc.cbse@gmail.com with a C.C to gcs.nse@gmail.com as per the proforma attached.

Looking forward to your cooperation.

Yours sincerely

Dr. Biswajit Saha 
Programme Officer (Vocational)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(ACAD&TRG)/HIQ/2012 Dated: 31st Aug, 2012
Circular No: Acad- 57/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
affiliated to CBSE

 Subject: XII CBSE Heritage Education and Heritage India Quiz 2012.

Dear Principal,

Indians have always been proud of their cultural heritage. The tangible (monuments/ artifacts), intangible elements (folk 
traditions/ language) and even natural heritage and its bio-diversity need to be preserved and conserved.

It is important for learners to know about the heritage which enables them to understand the beliefs, values, history 
and socio-cultural context of their country. This helps them to accept and respect the cultural differences given in the 
diversity and leads to developing critical skills.

The Board has therefore initiated a micro site on Heritage Education at http://heritage.cbseacademic.in which will 
help teachers to explore, learn and empower their students with local heritage and connect them to National and World 
Heritage Sites.

Heritage Education in the CBSE also includes the celebration of the Heritage Day on 12th January when school 
children reaffirm their commitment to preserve and protect Heritage monuments of the country. The Board has constantly 
laid emphasis on promoting Heritage Clubs, initiating Heritage Walks and conducting cultural events to enrich every 
learner’s overall experience.

The CBSE Heritage India Quiz, initiated in 2001, is an Inter School Quiz which has been conceptualized by the Board 
with the objective of creating awareness and appreciation in the student community towards the rich cultural heritage 
and diversity of our country.

This year the event is being coordinated with AETN 18 Media Private Ltd. and is going to be conducted in 
multiple phases as:-

Phase 1 - City Chapter – first week of October to mid November, 2012
Phase 2 - Regional Chapter- mid- November to December first week, 2012
Phase 3 - National Semi Finals and National Finals – mid week of December, 2012

Note: Finalised Cities will be decided after Registration.
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Phase 1: City Chapter

The City Chapter will be segmented into One, Two, Three or Six City Chapters depending on the geographical 
diversity and the response from each region. It will be held across a minimum of one location and a maximum 
of 6 locations per region.

1.1 The City Chapter will be conducted tentatively between first weeks of October to mid- November, 2012. It 
will be a single day event comprising two stages. Each school will be represented by three students thus 
forming a team who may be selected from classes IX-XII.

 Stage I: Written Elimination Round

 This round will be in the form of a Power Point where the teams from each school will collectively attempt the 
test. There will be 30 Questions to be answered in 25 minutes where the respective teams of each school will 
have to write the answer. After the culmination of the test the answers will be provided while the evaluation 
happens simultaneously.

 Stage II: On –Stage Round

 In this round with the respective qualifiers of Stage I, an on-stage Round will be conducted which will be of 
60-75 minute duration. This round will be conducted in a prominent school of the city wherein questions will 
comprise of mix of verbal, audio and visual questions.

1.2 The winner from each group will qualify for the Regional finals. The Regional Chapter will comprise of 6 teams.

Phase 2: Regional Chapter

2.1 The Regional Chapter will be held from mid- November to December first week, 2012. The top 6 teams from 
each region rather the respective group winners from the City Chapter will be bracketed in one group in the 
Regional Final. The Regional Chapter will be held in a prominent school of a region and this round will be 
an on stage round with questions comprising mix of verbal, audio and visual questions. The top two teams 
from each region will qualify for the National semi-finals.

2.2 The draw and schedule of the City and Regional Chapter will be intimated to the respective schools in advance 
so that the schools can make their arrangements for travel, lodging and boarding.

Phase 3: National Semi Finals and Finals

3.1 The National Semi Finals and Finals will be held tentatively in the mid-week of December, 2012. The top 16 
teams from across the 8 competing regions will be divided into 4 groups of 4 teams each. The winner from 
each group will progress to the finals. The Semi Finals and the Finals will be held as a televised show in Delhi.

The interested schools need to send in their registration and confirmation for the event on or before 20th September, 
2012 by filling in the online registration form (Annexure A) at www.cbseacademic.in. The schools may register online 
by entering their user-id (affiliation number) and password; the same can be used for online registration. After login, the 
schools are required to fill in requisite details in the registration form by clicking on the submit button. The details related 
to the name of the Principal, mobile number and the choice of city can be edited by the schools. After the submission 
of the form online it may be noted that the details once entered cannot be altered.

The schools are requested to take a print-out of submitted registration form on A-4 size paper and send along with the 
DD of Rs. 600/- towards the registration fee drawn in favour of Secretary, CBSE, Delhi duly signed by the Principal 
of the school. The form can be sent online and also by post. The downloaded registration form duly signed by the 
principal of the school along with the DD in original should be sent to .Mr. Sandeep Sethi, Education Officer, CBSE, 
17 Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110002, immediately by speed post so as to reach the Board by 25th September, 2012 
The online registration will be considered only after receiving the registration fees through the demand draft.
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The last date of online registration is 20th September, 2012.The schools are advised to register at the earliest 
possible to avoid last minute delay.

The participation is open to the students of classes IXth- XIIth. The schools interested to register are requested 
to select and sponsor three students from their schools who as a team will compete with other schools in the 
City Chapter.

Second class rail fare including reservation charges for three students and one school escort will be reimbursed to the 
teams who will be competing in the National finals. There are attractive prizes and trophies for the winners besides 
certificates instituted for the participants. The winning team will walk away with a Trophy and cash prize.

First Prize Rs. 21,000 x 1 team Rs. 21,000
Second Prize Rs. 12,000 x 1 team Rs. 12,000
Third Prize Rs. 7,500 x 1 team Rs. 7,500
Fourth Prize Rs. 4,500 x 1 team Rs. 4,500
Second Position at semi-final Rs. 3,000 x 4 teams Rs. 12,000
Third Position at semi-final Rs. 1,500 x 4 teams Rs. 6,000

The rules and regulations are given with the registration form.

For further information you may contact Mr. Sandeep Sethi, Education Officer, CBSE, 17 Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-
110002 at 011-23217128 or email at eo_ss@cbseacademic.in

Looking forward to your whole hearted cooperation.

With best wishes and regards,

Yours sincerely,

(DR. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (ACAD. & TRG.)

Notification
Extension of last date for submitting forms for CBSE Heritage Quiz

With reference to the Circular No Acad – 57/2012 dated 31st Aug, 2012 the last date for submitting Registration 
form for CBSE Heritage Quiz has been extended. The new deadlines are: 
 For online registration  25th September, 2012 
 For submitting hardcopies  30th September, 2012
Offline form is also available on the website. After filling in the form please send the form to the following 
address: 

Mr Sandeep Sethi 
Education Officer 

Central Board of Secondary Education 
17 Shiksha Sadan, Rouse Avenue, 

New Delhi-110002 
     Contact No. -  011-23217128
     E-mail –   eo_ss@cbseacademic.in

Sd/- 
Director (Acad. & Trg.)
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ANNEXURE A

12th HERITAGE QUIZ-2012
REGISTRATION FORM

Region:

AFFILIATION NO:  ......................................................................................................................................................

SCHOOL NO:  .............................................................................................................................................................

NAME OF THE SCHOOL:  .........................................................................................................................................

NAME OF THE PRINCIPAL:  .....................................................................................................................................

COMPLETE SCHOOL ADDRESS:

  ..........................................................................................................................................................................

  ..........................................................................................................................................................................

EMAIL ID: ....................................................................................................................................................................

TELEPHONE No:  .......................................................................................................................................................

MOBILE No (Principal):  ............................................................................................................................................

Demand draft of Rs 600/- Number: ……..……………………. dated:  ......................................................................

drawn on …………………………………….... Bank, City  ..........................................................................................

We have understood the rules and regulations of this event and would like  

to participate in the right spirit.

(Stamp with Signature of Principal)

Dated: ………..……………………………….
Rules and Regulations
1. Any student from classes IX to XII can participate.
2. There will be three students participating from each school in City Chapter.
3. Schools are requested to register and submit required fees before 20th September, 2012.
4. The online registration window will be opened from 25th August to 20th September, 2012.
5. 36 teams from each region will compete for the City Chapter.
6. The 6 teams qualifying the City Chapter will be placed directly in the Regional Chapter.
7. The National Semi Finals will witness two teams each from across the 8 competing regions. The 16 teams will 

be divided into 4 groups of 4 teams each.
8. The Semifinals and Finals will be held in Delhi in a televised format.
9. All the students participating will be given a participating Certificate and winners will be also given cash prizes.
10. Videography of the rounds should be done to avoid any confusion later.
11. The Audio/Video system should be properly installed.
12. Provision for independent observers should be made.
13. The audience should be drawn from different schools.
14. The venue for the rounds should be in neutral schools.



227

Transforming  Pedagogy 

July-September 2012

Gram: CENBOSEC
Website: www.cbse.nic.in
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/Dir.(A&T)/CBSE/2012 August 30, 2012
Circular No. Acad-58/2012

All Heads of Institutions 
Affiliated to the Board

 Subject:  Conduct of CBSE Group Mathematical Olympiad, 2012

Dear Principal,

Central Board of Secondary Education has been conducting Group Mathematical Olympiad every year with an aim to 
strengthen the knowledge of the students, enhance their innate problem solving skills and to identify talent at a young 
age.

This year the Group Mathematical Olympiad will be held on 2nd Dec, 2012 at selected venues in different parts of the 
country leading to participation in the International Mathematical Olympiad. The enclosed folder gives the detailed 
information about the competition.

Further queries in this regard may be addressed to:

Anjali Chhabra
Assistant Education Officer, CBSE

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002.
Tel.: 23231247,email-anjali.cbse11@gmail.com

You are requested to give wide publicity to the information contained in the folder and encourage participation in large 
numbers.

With best wishes,

Yours Sincerely

Dr. Sadhana Parashar 
Director (Acad & Trg)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
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 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/Dir(A&T)/2012 September 04, 2012
Circular No. Acad – 59/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  VIII Painting Competition on Energy Conservation 2012 – Organised by Ministry of Power 
and Bureau of Energy Efficiency, Government of India

Dear Principal,

In a bid to boost the spirit of energy conservation, the Ministry of Power, Government of India, along with Bureau of 
Energy Efficiency has launched a national awareness campaign, involving children to enable them to inculcate the 
habit of energy conservation. This campaign aims at generating awareness amongst school students for the need to 
conserve energy and thereby indirectly involving their parents, friends along with school teachers and propagate a 
message in the society that energy conservation is a social responsibility.

One of the main activities of the campaign is a Painting Competition for the school students. The competition is being 
organized since the year 2005.The year 2011 saw the participation of 20.72 lakh students from different parts of the 
country participating in the Painting Competition .The winners of the national level painting competition were felicitated 
by Hon’ble Prime Minister Dr Manmohan Singh on National Energy Conservation Day in 2011.

This competition takes place at three levels, namely, School, State and National Level.

Eligibility- The students of classes IV, V and VI are eligible to participate in the competition.

The Ministry of Power will award attractive prizes:

  The cash prizes worth Rs 33,000 per State/UT (Rs.11.55 lakhs for 35 States/UTs) will be distributed to 
the state level winners on 9th November 2012.

  For winners of National Competition, cash prizes worth Rs.7.00 lakhs are proposed to be awarded by the 
Ministry of Power on 14th December, 2012, which is also celebrated as National Energy Conservation 
day in the presence of eminent dignitaries holding very high positions in the Government

You are requested to organize a Painting Competition of two hours duration in your school for students of classes IV, V 
and VI on any working day. The participants can select any one of the following topics for the Painting Competition:
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 1. Bijli Bachao – Unnati Laao (Save Electricity-Bring Progress)
 2. Do the Nation a Favour, Be an Energy Saver
 3. Wind, Water, Sun: Energy for the Long Run
After the completion of the Painting Competition, the Principal of the school may select two best paintings for State/
UT level competition and send the entries along with the information on the total number of participants, percentage 
participation of students in classes IV,V and VI (as applicable) to the Nodal Officer’s address of their State/UT by 4th 
October, 2012. The back page of the paintings should carry the following information:

 a) Name of the student b) Father’s/ Mother’s Name
 c) Class d) Roll No. of the student
 e) Name of the School f) School location (Rural or Urban)
 g) Complete Postal Address h) School Tel. No. /Mobile No
 i) Signature of the Principal
All the participating students will be issued a certificate of participation by Bureau of Energy Efficiency, Ministry of 
Power, Govt. of India. It should be noted once again that the two best entries are to be sent to the Nodal Official of the 
concerned State/UT only. The list of state- wise Nodal officials and scheme is available at: 

www.bee-india.nic.in and www.energymanagertraining.com

The paintings received from the CBSE schools, located outside India, will be considered under a separate category and 
the Certificate of Appreciation will be sent under the signature of Director General, Bureau of Energy Efficiency. These 
schools are requested to send two best paintings directly, along with the details as mentioned above, to the Bureau of 
Energy Efficiency (BEE), Sewa Bhawan, R.K.Puram, Sector-1, New Delhi-110066 (INDIA) office address.

A committee of experts will select up to 50 best paintings out of the total entries received and the selected students 
will be invited at a designated place for State level on-the spot Painting Competition of two hours duration on 9th 
November 2012. The selected students will be paid Rs. 1000/- each in cash by the Nodal Officials on the day of their 
participation of State level Painting Competition. The travel expenses of the participating student and two guardians 
will also be reimbursed as prescribed in the scheme.

PRIZES

Level First Second Third Consolation

State/ UT Level Rs. 10,000/- Rs. 8,000/- Rs. 5,000/- Rs. 1,000/- each(10 prizes)

For the State level Painting Competition, prizes will be distributed in a function organized by the Nodal Officers.

The students winning the 1st, 2nd and 3rd prizes at the States level Painting Competition will be invited to Delhi to 
participate in the National level Competition to be held on 12th December 2012 and the results will be announced on 
14th December 2012. The board and lodging expenses and to-and-fro travel expenses of the student and two adults 
(parents/ teachers/guardians etc.) accompanying will also be borne by the organizers. Besides this an amount of Rs. 
1000/- will be paid to each participant to meet incidental expenses.

PRIZES

Level First Second Third Consolation

National 
Level

Rs.1,00,000/- Rs. 50,000/- each 
(4 prizes)

Rs. 25,000/- each 
(8 prizes)

Rs. 10,000/- each (10 prizes) 

BEE Prizes of Rs. 10,000/- each (10 prizes)
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National level winners will be awarded on National Energy Conservation Day Function to be held in Delhi on 14th 
December, 2012.

It is to be noted that their names of the schools who would record 100% participation in classes IV,V and VI (as 
applicable) at the School level Painting Competition, will be included in the Painting Competition booklet prepared by 
BEE (Bureau of Energy Efficiency).

The active participation of your school in this national activity will be helpful in sensitizing and educating school children, 
parents as well as teachers regarding the importance of energy conservation that would go a long way in carrying 
forward the energy conservation movement in the country

For further information you may contact Ms. Anjali Chhabra, Assistant Education Officer, CBSE, 17 Rouse Avenue, 
New Delhi-110002 at 011-23231247 or email at sadhanap.cbse@nic.in

Looking forward to your whole hearted cooperation.

With best wishes and regards,

Yours Sincerely

Dr Sadhana Parashar 
Director (Academic and Training)
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Website: www.cbseacademic.in
Email: pocbse@gmail.com 
Phone no.:- 011-22527184 
Fax .:- 01122527180

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA” 2, COMMUNITY CENTER, PREET VIHAR, DELHI-110092

No. CBSE/PO/2012 September 06, 2012
Circular No. Acad - 60/2012

To

All Heads of Institutions 
Affiliated to CBSE

Reference: MOU of CBSE with Central Institute of Technology (CIT), Australia 
Subject: Expression of Interest to start Vocational Courses of CIT, Perth, Australia

Dear Principal,

Greetings from CBSE!

You will be pleased to note that aligning with priority agenda of Government of India for skill development in India; the 
Board has signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Central Institute of Technology, Australia.

Central Institute of Technology (CIT) is a registered vocational education institution under the Department of Training 
and Workforce Development, Government of Western Australia and brings strength in curriculum design, state of the 
art delivery and extensive international experience in vocational education and training to individuals and industry alike. 
Central is a leading provider of vocational education and training and a winner of international provider for 2010 and 
2011. Central also successfully provides ‘VET in schools’ programs in Western Australia in a range of learning areas.

As the result of this MoU, Master Trainers of CBSE will be trained at Central’s campus in Australia; and following four 
competency based courses will be offered in CBSE Schools as ‘VET in Schools’ at senior secondary level from the 
academic session 2013-14, and contents of these courses will be taught as distributed in Class XI and Class XII:

 1. Design Fundamental- This course provides students with the ability to create and communicate design 
concepts using various design technologies and techniques.

 2. Business Administration- Administrators are the key to an efficiently run organisation. This qualification 
will provide students with specialist skills of business administration including accounts, keyboard skills 
and word processing.

 3. Music Technical Production - This qualification will provide students with a practical introduction to 
recording processes including, mixing, editing and post-production.

 4. Beauty Services- This qualification starts students’ path to success in beauty therapy. Throughout the 
studies they will gain the knowledge and skills to provide a variety of basic beauty treatments and services 
to clients.
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Curriculum and Resource materials including assessment plans and templates for lesson plans for teachers and 
students, for each of these four courses will be provided by CIT, which will be contexualised by CBSE to Indian 
needs.

Master Trainers will be trained by Central (CIT) in Australia in January 2013.

Teacher training workshops in India will be organized by the board with assistance from Central (CIT).

The CBSE plans to pilot the program by offering the said courses in 100 to 150 schools from the academic session 
2013-14. Based on the response and influence of the pilot phase, reach of these courses will be expanded across the 
nation.

Active participation of your school in this pilot program will be helpful in sensitizing the school population and will 
go a long way to equip students with skills that are globally accepted and of professional standards.

Request to start the courses at your school:
You are requested to introduce at least one or more of the aforesaid new courses in your school under vocational 
stream from academic year 2013-14.

Please send your willingness to start these courses to the undersigned at:

  e-mail address: voc.cbse@gmail.com or
  By post to: Vocational Education Cell 

Central Board of Secondary Education 
Room No. 1002, 10th floor 
Shiksha Kendra, 2, Community Centre, Preet Vihar 
Delhi 110 092

The letter of willingness to start any of the above courses must please reach the office of undersigned by September 
28th, 2012 along with an A/C payee Draft in favour of Secretary, CBSE payable at Delhi of Rs.2000 (for Govt. School) 
/ Rs. 6000 (independent Schools) per course to enable the Board to process the applications on priority basis. 
The process will also include nominating some subject area teachers to participate in the Training of Master 
Trainers by Central in Australia.

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. Biswajit Saha) 
Programme Officer & Director I/C 

(Vocational Education)

Encl:-   Appendix-1 giving an outline of objectives and skills developed through the courses, you are encouraged to 
read the same. 
Appendix-2 Proforma for Registration.
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Appendix- 1: Outline of Objectives and Skills Developed Through the Courses

1. Design Fundamental
 a. This foundation qualification will provide you with basic skills and knowledge in design. You'll learn 

how to create and communicate design concepts; evaluate design solutions using design terminology, 
materials and current technologies.

 b. Upon completion of this course you will have acquired competency in drawing, colour theory and basic 
research skills, together with a basic knowledge of the design industry and an entrance point for further 
studies in Design, Art and Media studies.

 c. Central's design qualifications provide you with skills that are relevant to current industry trends and 
practices. By the end of the course you will be able to:

   create and communicate design concepts
   evaluate design solutions
   use design terminology
   use visual presentation techniques
   choose between materials
   use design technology
 d. This qualification will provide a foundation for careers requiring design skills spread across various 

industries and organisations. You could gain a career as an artist creating public art, an industrial designer 
designing the products we use in everyday life or an interior designer/decorator creating stylish indoor 
spaces for commercial or residential interiors.

 e. Your Certificate III in Design Fundamentals is a great precursor to further study of a Certificate IV at 
Central in design, art or media studies. With a higher qualification in design you open yourself up to a 
whole range of career opportunities and pathways.

2. Business Administration
 a. Administrators are the key to an efficiently run organisation. This qualification will provide you with specialist 

skills in business administration including accounts, keyboard skills and word processing.
 b. This qualification will make you the first point of contact within an organisation as well as being responsible 

for administrative procedures such as processing mail, filing, and diary management, maintaining business 
records and creating documents.

 c. By participating in a simulated work environment you will have the skills to begin your career straight 
away or continue your studies and expand your options.

 d. Central's business qualifications provide you with skills that are relevant to current industry trends and 
practices. By the end of the course you will be able to:

   Complete administrative tasks in varied work contexts
   Manage accounts
   Use the keyboard with competence and pace
   Use word processing applications
   Make spread sheets and presentations
   Organise personal work priorities and schedules or



234 Transforming Pedagogy 

Transforming  

Pedagogy 

    For further study at Central. Further study will provide you with more skills and may improve employment 
opportunities.

 e. Your Certificate III in Business Administration prepares you for career roles such as:
   Assistant accounts clerk
   Receptionist
   Secretary
   Data entry operator
   Admin assistant
   Word processing operator

3. Music Technical Production
 a. This qualification will provide you with a practical introduction to recording processes including, mixing, 

editing and post-production.
 b. Gain skills in recording studios and performance venues and get on track to a career in technical production. 

This qualification will develop the necessary skills to record and produce music as well as live sound 
operation.

 c. Throughout the course you will also have opportunity to participate in recording sessions for bands in the 
studio and follow the production processes through to the completion of a demo recording.

 d. Central's music qualifications provide you with skills that are relevant to current industry trends and 
practices. By the end of the course you will be able to:

   Understand copyright and royalties
   Understand music industry
   Understand and implement OHS
   Understand security practices
   Listen to music critically
   Use midi devices
   Improvise
   Career plan and perform
   Lay sound tracks
   Use AV equipment
   Digitally edit and mix.
 e. Your Certificate III in Technical Production gives you the skills to begin an exciting career in music sound 

production or for further study at Central. Further study will provide you with more skills and may improve 
employment opportunities.

4. Beauty Services
 a. This qualification starts your path to success in beauty therapy. Throughout your studies you'll gain the 

knowledge and skills to provide a variety of basic beauty treatments and services to clients. Central's beauty 
therapy qualifications provide you with skills that are relevant to current industry trends and practices.

 b. By the end of this course you will have skills and be able to:
   Provide effective customer service
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   Communicate effectively
   Demonstrate skincare
   Sell beauty products
   Conduct financial transactions
   Provide lash and eyebrow treatments
   Provide waxing treatments
   Provide manicures and pedicures
   Design and apply make-up
   Apply nail art and extensions
   Establish and operate a small business
 c. Job prospects in this industry are generally positive with a high number of salons, day spas, and department 

and specialist stores. The course will give you the beauty therapy skills to become a beauty therapy 
employee or start your own business. Your Certificate III in Beauty Services prepares you for roles such 
as:

   Beauty Therapist
   Nail Technician
   Retail Cosmetic Consultant
   Make-up Artist
   opens the door for further qualifications at Central such as the Certificate IV in Beauty Therapy

 Annexure – 2

Vocational Education Cell 
Central Board of Secondary Education 

2, Community Center, Preet Vihar, New Delhi-110092

Introduction of Competency based Vocational courses w.e.f-2013-14

1. Name of the Course/s applied for:  ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................

2. Name of the school (complete address)  ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................

3. Affiliation No.  ........................................................................................

   ........................................................................................
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4. Name of the Principal  ........................................................................................
 Phone No. :  ........................................................................................
 Mobile No. :  ........................................................................................
 Email :  ........................................................................................

5. Infrastructure
 No. of Students :  ........................................................................................
 No. of Teachers :  ........................................................................................
 Student-Teacher ratio :  ........................................................................................
 No of classrooms:  ........................................................................................
 Books in Library :  ........................................................................................
 Total computers in computer labs:  ........................................................................................
 Specification of Computers   ........................................................................................

 Details of constructed area for:  ........................................................................................  
 Establishing laboratories for Hospitality and Tourism Courses

6. Teachers who will be taking up this course with their qualifications:

 Name:
 Qualification
 with specialization, if any:

 Phone No:
 Mobile No:
 Email.

7. D.D No……………… Amount ……………..& Date: …..…………………………….

 Name of the issuing Bank ………………………………………………………………..

 Signature & Seal of the Principal: ……………………………………………………………

Note: 
The above document complete in all respects may be mailed to.

Programme Officer (Vocational) 
Central Board of Secondary Education 

2, Community Center, Preet Vihar, New Delhi-110092

For any further query you can contact at 22527183 / 22526580/ 22527184
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Notification
Extension of last date for Expression of Interest to start  

Vocational Courses of CIT, Perth, Australia

With reference to the Circular No Acad – 60/2012 dated 6th September, 2012 the last date for 
submitting letter of willingness to start any of the courses listed in circular has been extended to 
26th October, 2012.

Please send your letter to the undersigned at: 
E-mail address: voc.cbse@gmail.com or 

By post to: Vocational Education Cell 
Central Board of Secondary Education 

Room No. 1002, 10th floor, Shiksha Kendra, 2, Community Centre, 
Preet Vihar, Delhi 110 092.

Sd/- 
Programme Officer & Director I/C
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 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/Dir(Acad.&Trg.)/2012 September 7, 2012
Circular No: Acad - 61/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
affiliated to CBSE

 Subject:  Verification of Evidence of Assessments (EAs) of Class IX/X students for Academic Session 
2012-2013

Dear Principal,

Effective assessment of students is the key to the success of any education system. With the introduction of series of 
education reforms the Central Board of Secondary Education is deeply committed to ensure fair and effective assessment 
of its students which is also feasible, practical and stress free leading to their wholesome personality development. 
Many steps have been undertaken in this direction, such as introduction of grading, issuing uniform certificates to all 
the students appearing in Class X March Examination irrespective of the fact whether they are assessed by the Board 
or by the School in Summative Assessment-II (SA-II) and conduct of Capacity building workshops.

The Board has in the last two years initiated random collection and verification of the ‘Evidence of Assessments 
(EAs)’ conducted at school level under Formative and Summative assessments.

These ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ and the marks awarded are verified by the subject experts/moderators 
appointed and empanelled by the Board at the Regional level. The objective is to assess the ‘Practices of School 
Based Assessment’. The experts would submit their report on these ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ vis-a-vis award 
of marks. Their report will help in verifying the school based assessments as well as provide feedback to the Board 
about implementation of CCE scheme at grass roots level. The CBSE will also inform schools on how the assessment 
can be made more effective.

The schools which will be shortlisted by the Regional Office will be requested to send the Evidence of Assessments 
(EAs)’ for SA-1, FA1 & FA 2 of Classes IX and X (Session 2012-2013). This material (FA tasks and SA answer sheets) 
is being collected initially in five subjects: Hindi, English, Mathematics, Science and Social Science. In addition to 
scholastic assessment, the schools from this session onwards are also being asked to send evidences of co-scholastic 
assessment.

From this term onwards in addition to the Regional Office, the Board has appointed certain City Coordinators in 
different cities where you will be required to send these evidences. The names of these Coordinators will 
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soon be intimated to you. Please ensure that these ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ sent to the designated 
Coordinators comprise of the performance of five students taken from each of the three categories i.e. top, middle and 
bottom levels of achievements. Thus, your school if selected should be submitting fifteen Evidence of Assessments 
(EAs) (FA tasks and SA answer sheets) for every assessment i.e. 15 for FA (FA1, FA2 taken together) and 15 for SAI 
of Classes IX or X. This is applicable only to one subject and one class which will be communicated to you later. (Refer 
to Annexure I for selection of samples)

FORMATIVE ASSESSMENT

The school is required to send details about all the fifteen FA tasks in the subject as directed by Regional Office which 
should include the break-up of marks as well as the parameters for assessment. If the nature of the Evidence of 
Assessments (EAs) is such that it cannot be posted or transported such as oral testing, seminars, group discussion, 
model, chart etc. a brief write-up as already prepared by the teacher on the assignment may please be sent along with 
marks awarded. This should include the details of the task assigned to students individually or in groups as well as the 
strategies adopted and the parameters used for assessment. The schools should send only those tasks that have been 
taken into account for arriving at the grades for FA1 and FA2. (Please refer to para 5 and 8 of Annexure II)

SUMMATIVE ASSESSMENT

Question Paper used and its marking scheme in the subject should also be attached with SA answer sheet irrespective 
of whether you have used the question paper sent by the Board or your own question paper.

CO–SCHOLASTIC ASSESSMENT

The Board from this term has started collecting evidences of co scholastic assessment. So also please send write-ups, 
photographs, anecdotal records, Charts, poems, CDs of the students performance selected by you. A mention may be 
made about the Manuals/Activities being used for imparting Life Skills.

After you are informed by the Regional Office, please ensure that all the ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ in the 
subject indicated by the Regional Officer along with the co-scholastic assessment are sent through speed post or hand 
delivered (at school’s cost) to the concerned Regional Officer/City Coordinator latest by 20th October 2012 along with 
the checklist for collection of evidence (Annexure II).

In case of any queries kindly contact Mrs. Sugandh Sharma, Education Officer (Commerce) at 011-23220155 or email at 
eo-commerce@cbseacademic.in with a copy to Director (Academic and Training) at email id sadhanap.cbse@nic.in.

With regards,

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. Sadhana Parashar) 
Director (Acad. & Trg.)

Encl: Annexure I - Selection of Samples
 Annexure II - Checklist for Collection of Student Data – SBA-Scholastic
 Annexure III - Packing and Despatch Procedure of evidence of assessments
 Annexure IV - Receipt of Delivery of Assessment of CCE- 2012-13
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 Annexure I

CBSE/Dir(Acad&Trg)/2012 Circular No: Acad-61/2012

Subject: Verification of Evidence of Assessments (EAs) of Class IX/X students  
for Academic Session 2012-2013

SELECTION OF THE SAMPLES

Summative Assessment:

i. Arrange all the students of class IX/X (all sections) in incareasing order of marks calculated for SA-I.

ii. Divide the total number of students in three groups as follows:

 a. Top one-third students,
 b. Middle one-third students, and
 c. Bottom one-third students.

 For example: If there are 100 students in Class IX/X in a School, the three groups may consist of 33, 33 
and 34 students after they have been arranged in increasing order of marks.

iii. Pick up the top five students from the first group, the last five students from the third group and any five 
students from the middle group.

iv. This set of fifteen students is your sample for whom ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ are to be sent.

Formative Assessment:

i. Arrange all the students of class IX/X (all sections) in increasing order of marks 
 calculated for FA1 & FA2 taken together.

ii. Divide the total number of students in three groups as follows:

 a. Top one-third students,
 b. Middle one-third students, and
 c. Bottom one-third students.

 For example: If there are 100 students in Class IX/X in a School, the three groups may consist of 33, 33 and 
34 students after they have been arranged in increasing order of marks.

iii. Pick up the top five students from the first group, the last five students from the third group and any five 
students from the middle group.

iv. This set of fifteen students is your sample for whom ‘Evidence of Assessments (EAs)’ are to be sent.

Note: Samples of 15 students selected for Summative Assessment and 15 students selected for Formative 
Assessments may differ depending on the performance of students.
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 Annexure II

CBSE/Dir(Acad.&Trg.)/2012 Circular No: Acad-61/2012

Subject: Verification of Evidence of Assessments (EAs) of Class IX/ X students 
for Academic Session 2012-2013

CHECKLIST FOR COLLECTION OF STUDENT DATA – SBA – SCHOLASTIC 
CLASS IX/X: 2012-13

1. School Details

i) Name of the School (with Complete Address) :  ..................................................................................

 providing samples to the Regional Office  ..................................................................................

ii) School Number:  ..................................................................................

ii) Name of the Principal  ..................................................................................

iii) Phone No. (School):  ..................................................................................

iv) Fax No.:  ..................................................................................

v) Mobile No.:  ..................................................................................

vi) Email Id.:  ..................................................................................

vii) Website, if any:  ..................................................................................

2. Subject/s of which Evidences of Assessments are being sent {Please tick (√)}

i) English
ii) Hindi
iii) Mathematics
iv) Science
v) Social Science

3. Number of students in Class IX/X  ..................................................................................

4. Number of Sections in Class IX/X  ..................................................................................

5. Number of tasks in Class IX (FA-1 and FA-2):

FA-1 FA-2
i) English
ii) Hindi
iii) Mathematics
iv) Science
v) Social Science
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6. Number of tasks in Class X (FA-1 and FA-2):

FA-1 FA-2
i) English
ii) Hindi
iii) Mathematics
iv) Science
v) Social Science

7. Criterion used in awarding final grades under Formative assessments

 FA 1    i) All the tasks         ii) Best of All         iii) Best of Two         

 iv) Any other criterion:                         ..............................................................

 FA 2    i) All the tasks         ii) Best of All         iii) Best of Two          
 iv) Any other         criterion:      .........................................................

8. Type of tasks in FA-1 and FA-2 (Quiz, Book Review, Visit, Field Trip, Survey Project Work (group/
Individual), Models, Unit Test, Group Discussion, Debate, Declamation, Dramatization, Role play, 
Presentation, Seminar, Practicals, Maths Lab Activities, Listening and speaking skills, Map work, etc). 
(Use separate sheets for each of the formative assessments. The evidence sent must include the breakup 
of marks on different rubrics/parameters of each activity undertaken.)

9. Formative Assessment Samples 
Samples provided in case of three categories with names

Names of 
students & Roll 
No. assigned by 
the Board

Total*
Marks obtained 
in 
FA-1 FA-2

Total*
Maximum 
marks in
FA-1 FA-2

Marks obtained 
in Summative 
Assessment I

Types of 
Samples 
enclosed**

Top level of 
Achievement
(Top 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Middle level of 
Achievement
(Mid 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Bottom level of 
Achievement
(Bottom 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
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*  This pertains to the Assessments of FA-1 and FA-2 which have been finally taken into account for arriving at the 
grades. Samples of all assessments used for arriving at grades under FA-1 and FA-2should be sent.

** There should be a variety of tasks / assessments and if samples are not possible, reports be attached.

9. Question Papers for Summative Assessment I (SA-1)

(i) Question Paper sent by CBSE
(ii)  Question Paper Mixed and matched from papers sent by CBSE
(iii) Question Papers framed by the school

  (Tick the correct option and attach relevant SA-1 Question Paper & Marking Scheme. Even if you opt for (i)and 
(ii), attach the Question Paper and Marking Scheme)

10. Summative Assessment Samples 
 Samples provided in case of three categories with names

Names of students 
& Roll No. assigned 
by the Board

Marks obtained 
in Summative 
Assessment

Answer script, 
supplementary 
answer scripts, 
drawing sheet, 
graph paper etc. 
enclosed

Marks obtained 
in Formative 
Assessment

Top level of 
Achievement
(Top 05 students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Middle level of 
Achievement
(Mid 05 students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Bottom level of 
Achievement
(Bottom 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

11. Evidence of Assessment in Co-Scholastic Areas

 a) Report of Activities done (in one page to be attached)

 b) Indicators of Assessment used (in one page to be attached)
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List of Students who have been selected for the study of Evidence of Assessment 
(Formative Assessment)

Names of 
students 
& Roll No. 
assigned by 
the Board

Grades Obtained in Type of 
evidence 
enclosedLife Skills Work 

Education
Visual and 
Performing 
Arts

Attitudes 
and Values

Co- 
Curricular 
Activities

Top level of 
Achievement
(Top 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Middle level of 
Achievement
(Mid 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Bottom level of 
Achievement
(Bottom 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

List of Students who have been selected for the study of Evidence of Assessment 
(Summative Assessment)

Names of 
students 
& Roll No. 
assigned 
by the 
Board

Grades Obtained in Type of 
evidence 
enclosed

Life Skills Work 
Education

Visual and 
Performing 
Arts

Attitudes 
and Values

Co- 
Curricular 
Activities

Top level of 
Achievement
(Top 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Middle level of 
Achievement
(Mid 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
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Bottom 
level of 
Achievement
(Bottom 05 
students)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

I certify that the information given is correct and has been personally verified.

Date: ………………………

 SIGNATURE OF HEAD OF SCHOOL

NAME…………………………….……………
SEAL OF HEAD OF SCHOOL
COMPLETE ADDRESS……………………..
…………….…………………………………….
………………………………………………….

Attachments with the checklist (Please mark √ against those received):

1. Samples of evidences of assessments for 15 students for FA-1 and FA-2 taken together

2. Samples of evidences of assessments for 15 students for SA1 
(Answer Scripts, Supplementary Answer Scripts, Drawing Sheets, Graph Paper etc.)

3. Samples of Question Paper used for SA-1

4. Samples of Marking Scheme used for SA-1

5. Write-up on evidences of Formative Assessments that cannot be sent (if applicable)

6. Write-up and samples on activities done under Co-scholastic areas

7. Write-up on activities and indicators of assessment used for Co-scholastic Activities.

8. Photocopy of the Attendance register highlighting the selected 30 candidates

9. Copy of the Teachers’ Diary/ Notes and Report card

10. Student portfolio/Observation Scale/ Anecdotal Records used for scholastic areas

11. Student portfolio/Observation Scale/ Anecdotal Records used for co- scholastic areas and 
Activities
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 Annexure III

PACKING AND DISPATCH PROCEDURE OF EVIDENCE OF ASSESSMENTS

The Principal shall collect all the evidences of Assessment. These should then be personally checked by him/her with 
the list of candidates whose Evidence of Assessments in assigned subject (Formative Assessment as well as Summative 
Assessment) and Co- Scholastic Assessment are being sent. These shall comprise of the following:

 (a) Packets containing Question papers, Marking Schemes and Answer Books of Summative Assessment-I, 
and Evidence of Assessment for Formative Assessment (FA tasks and write up n tasks that cannot be 
sent) and Co- scholastic assessment must be packed separately, and address on the parcels containing 
these be written with the colour of the ink as under to easily distinguish to which assessment the parcels 
belong to:

  Summative Assessment - Black Colour
  Formative Assessment  - Blue Colour
  Co- Scholastic assessment - Red Colour

 (b) For Formative Assessments 1 & 2 taken together and for Summative Assessment-I in the assigned 
subject, Assessment-wise evidences should be collected and tied separately and placed inside separate 
envelopes with super scribing the following in bold letters on the top of envelop:

Name of the subject (English/Maths/Science etc.)
Assessment Type (Formative Assessment/Summative Assessment)/ 

Co- Scholastic Assessment
Name and Address of the School

 (c) In case of more than one packet, say 5 packets, packet no. should be 1/2, 2/5, 3/5, 4/5 and 5/5.

 (d) Packet containing write-ups on Co-Scholastic Activities and Assessment should be packed and sealed 
separately and marked ‘Co-scholastic’ on the top.

 (e) These packets (Assessment wise) should be packed in cloth, sealed and than packed again in cloth 
parcel(s) to be dispatched to respective Regional Offices.

 (f) To distinguish parcels containing these materials related to CCE from being erroneously opened at the 
Regional Offices, the following should be written in Bold Letters with blue ink:

EVIDENCES OF SCHOOL BASED ASSESSMENT

 (g) The name and address of the School should be written boldly at the Right corner of the Parcel.
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 Annexure IV

RECEIPT OF DELIVERY OF EVIDENCES OF ASSESSMENT 
TO THE COORDINATOR/BOARD’S REPRESENTATIVE

Received the sealed packets said to have following material from Shri/Smt.______________of school 
No.____________________ pertaining to CCE 2012-13.

1 (a) Envelopes containing Question Paper, Marking One packet

  Scheme and Answer Sheets of Summative

  Assessment-II

 (b) Envelopes Containing Evidence of Assessment of One Packet

  Formative Assessment (FA-1 &FA-2)

 (c) Envelope containing write- ups on evidence of FAs that One Packet

  cannot be sent

 (d) Envelope containing write- ups on activities done One packet

  under co-scholastic areas and indicators of assessment

  used for co-scholastic areas

 Signature of Board’s Representative/City Coordinator :____________________________

  Name :____________________________

  Designation :____________________________

  Date :____________________________

  Time :____________________________

NOTE: Receipt to be prepared in duplicate
  First Copy to be handed over/ sent to the School Principal/Representative
  Second copy to be handed over to the concerned RO
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Kendra”, 2, Community Centre, Preet Vihar, Delhi – 110092

CBSE/ PRO/ SGAI/ 2012 21.09.2012 
 Circular No. 62/12
To,

All Heads of Institutions of CBSE Affiliated Schools.

Subject: Registration for Student’s Global Aptitude Index (SGAI) – 2013 reg.

Dear Madam/Sir

Greetings!

The Secondary stage becomes the most defining phase in the school spectrum as it influences higher studies and 
career choices later in life. More often than not, it is seen that the choice of subjects is determined by the marks as also 
by the parental, peer pressure or the role models. In an ideal situation a child should be allowed to choose subjects 
based on his aptitude and interest.

Aptitude Test

The aptitude reflects the inherent capacity, or talent of a child. Aptitude testing is a student friendly, universally accepted 
mode of rating capabilities for a particular activity. Aptitude tests are known to be reliable predictors of future scholastic 
achievements as they provide a profile of the strengths and weaknesses of a student.

CBSE Student’s Global Aptitude Index (SGAI)

CBSE has developed an indigenous assessment tool called Student’s Global Aptitude Index (SGAI) in 2011 which 
is first of its kind in the country. CBSE- SGAI emphasizes upon the fact that each individual is unique. In the interest 
of new schools, it is reiterated that: 

  SGAI is a psychological tool of assessment with the purpose of empowering adolescents with “Self- 
Knowledge” in terms of the Aptitude, Interest and Personality.

  This is an Optional Activity for students and schools designed for class X Students.
  Unlike the conventional Aptitude Tests, which indicate professional orientations the CBSE SGAI attempts 

to indicate subject orientations at + 2 level.
  It has been customized to suit the Indian context and variety of student population in CBSE affiliated 

Private, Government and Aided Schools.
  CBSE- SGAI is not an examination.
  It is a simple paper and pencil test.
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  There are no right or wrong answers, negative marking, pass or fail.
  No syllabus and special preparation is required for CBSE- SGAI.
  Mental preparedness and sincere responses are the only pre-requisites for this test.
  SGAI scores may depend upon child’s environmental stimulus and motivation level.
  The purpose of CBSE SGAI is limited to help the larger population including parents, teachers and students 

to initiate a dialogue on subject choices that lead to effective career planning later in life.
  Final decision on the subject choices may however be taken in consultation with teachers and parents.

Started in the year 2011, the second edition of CBSE SGAI was held in 2012. More than 3, 00,000 students have so 
far opted for CBSE-SGAI in the last two years worldwide. Among the other valuable responses received from schools, 
parents and students, the need for such an assessment has also been highlighted.

CBSE SGAI for Himachal Pradesh Board also

It is a matter of great satisfaction that within one year of inception of SGAI, the CBSE was approached by Himachal 
Pradesh Board of Higher Education to conduct SGAI-2012 for its secondary school students in 12 districts of 
Himachal Pradesh.

Advocacy Material and Orientation

The Board has specially designed Teacher Manual comprising of various activities to be conducted with students and 
parents for sensitisation and climate building. Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ’s) have also been designed for 
facilitation of public. This material is accessible on CBSE website www.cbse.nic.in 

Registration for CBSE SGAI-2013

The third edition of CBSE SGAI will be held on Sunday, 20th January, 2013. Schools have been given online 
registration facility at www.cbse.nic.in till 31st October, 2012. Kindly ensure that registration form is downloaded and 
sent along with fee (` 100/- per student) by 10th November 2012 to: 

Smt. Rama Sharma
PRO & Project In-Charge (SGAI)

Central Board of Secondary Education
Shiksha Kendra, 2, Community Centre, Preet Vihar, Delhi – 110092

It is important to mention here that the Board has been receiving several requests directly from the parents and 
students where schools have not opted for CBSE – SGAI. There is no provision for individual or direct registration of 
such students as of now. Therefore, schools are requested to co-operate with such parents and students and enable 
them to avail the facility of CBSE- SGAI assessment.

Assessment and Score Cards of CBSE-SGAI 2013 by the Board

The assessment and interpretation of scores will be done by the board under the supervision of an expert panel. 
Schools are expected to send the response-booklets after 20th January, 2013 at the above address. The board will 
issue school wise score cards to individual students after analysis and interpretation.

(Vineet Joshi) 
Chairman
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Website: www.cbseacademic.in Phone: 011-23233552
 Email-id: neelimasharma.cbse@gmail.com

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17-Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

No. CBSE/PO/2012 September 13th, 2012
Circular No. Acad-66/2012

To, 
All the schools that are offering Vocational Courses 
Under hospitality and Tourism Sector

 Subject: Introduction of New Vocational Courses in Food Production and Food & Beverage Services 
under Hospitality and Tourism Sector.

Dear Principal,

It is an undeniable fact that national and international boundaries have become seemless. English as a medium of 
communication has acquired an important role in bringing the world together.

The Central Board of Secondary Education (CBSE) envisages that all language skills need to be integrated into the 
English language curriculum at schools. Speaking and listening should be fostered in children to equip them with better 
communication skills. At the onset it has been proposed to introduce formal testing of speaking and listening skills 
in the Summative Assessments in English at Secondary and Senior Secondary levels (Classes IX and XI) from the 
academic session 2012-13 ( Refer circular No Acad -1/2012 dated 28 March2012). 10% weightage has been provisioned 
in the total weightage of SA I and SA II. (Please refer to the examination specifications given in the Curriculum Document 
2014 already uploaded on the CBSE academic website).

However, a number of teachers and principals have expressed the desire to have some guidelines by CBSE for the 
Assessment of Speaking and Listening Skills. Keeping that in mind the Board has formulated the following:

 a.) Guidelines for Assessment of Speaking and Listening (ASL) skills.

 b.) The criteria for evaluation and marking.

 c.) Two set of sample papers for classes IX and XI.

Summative Assessment (SA) - I

Teachers can adapt or adopt samples given or frame their own question papers based on the given guidelines for SA 
- I (to be held in September 2012).

As per the Curriculum Document 2014, the Assessment of Speaking and Listening skills will be carried out by 
schools themselves for Summative Assessment (SA) - I
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Summative Assessment (SA) - II

For Summative Assessment (SA) - II, the CBSE has decided to run a ‘Pilot Project’ in about 120 schools from the 
National Capital Region (NCR) covering Delhi, Allahabad and Panchkula Regions respectively. Schools who would 
like to volunteer for the pilot may fill in the online registration form and send it to CBSE.

The schools which are not a part of the ‘Pilot Project’ would carry out Assessment of Speaking and Listening (ASL) 
Skills in SA - II as per specifications of SA I.

For any further query Consultant (English) may be contacted at:

LL: 011-23233552 or mail at neelimasharma.cbse@gmail.com.

Yours sincerely,

(Neelima Sharma) 
Consultant (English)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD/Dir (A&T)/2012 September 12, 2012
Circular No: Acad-64/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
affiliated to CBSE,

 Subject:  Modified syllabus -2013 , Design of Assessment and sample questions including questions based 
on values in the subjects Hindi (Course A and B), English (Communicative), English(Language 
and Literature), Mathematics, Science, Social Sciences and Sanskrit to be used for Summative 
Assessment- II, March 2013 Class IX.

Dear Principal,

Further to circular number Acad-21 dated June 19, 2012 and circular number Acad-27 dated June 27 regarding 
introduction of ‘Value’ based questions in the design of question papers in all major subjects in classes IX-X in SA-II w.e.f. 
academic session 2012-13 and regarding “discontinuation of the publication of Blue Prints, Sample Question Papers 
and Marking Schemes in all major subjects in class IX w.e.f. academic session 2012-13 Summative Assessment-II” 
respectively, the following information needs to be shared with all teachers, students and parents

 1. ‘Value’ based questions have been added to the extent of only 3 to 5 marks in major subjects given 
above.

 2. Modified syllabus enclosed must be referred to and not Curriculum Document 2014 for above 
mentioned subjects.

As conveyed in the above mentioned circulars, please find enclosed with this circular the following four documents in 
the subjects mentioned above:

Modified syllabus for Class IX Summative Assessment-II, 2013 for above subjects

Design of assessment

Collection of exemplar items and

Sample questions based on values
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S No Subject Code No Annexure
1 Hindi (Course A) 002 ‘A’
2 Hindi (Course B) 085 ‘B’
3 English (Communicative) 101 ‘C’
4 English (Language and Literature) 184 ‘D’
5 Mathematics 041 ‘E’
6 Science 086 ‘F’
7 Social Sciences 087 ‘G’
8 Sanskrit 122 ‘H’

  The Problem Solving Assessment will be conducted for all 
students of class IX in Jan – Feb 2013 and the details are 
available in a separate circular.

  The ̀ Problem Solving Assessment’ (CBSE-PSA) will be counted 
towards FA-4 which is 10% of total assessments of Class IX. 
This assessment will also be carried forward towards the FA-4 
in Class X. This score will be reflected in one Language( English 
or Hindi), Mathematics, Science and Social Science w.e.f the 
session 2012-2013 for Class IX and 2013 – 14 for Class X.

  The same score will be reflected in FA-4 for class IX and Class 
X.

  The students will have the option to improve their PSA Score 
in Class X, as they can sit for the test with Class IX students of 
the Session 2013-2014 in January – February 2014. The best 
scores will be reflected in the final certificate in case of those 
applying for improvement.

  The schools which have already planned their time table and 
other details regarding FA-4 will take the best scores of FA-3 
and FA-4 to count towards the total 10%, now available for 
FA-3 and FA-4 taken together.

You are requested to arrange for wide dissemination in all the subjects among all students, teachers and parents.

You may also take a special staff meeting to ensure that all the teachers have properly understood the changes made 
and plan their teaching accordingly. It is also advised that the content of the circular be displayed at a prominent place 
in the school for the benefit of all students

Yours Sincerely,

(Ram Shankar) 
Joint Director, CBSE
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Email: pocbse@gmail.com Phone no.:- 011-22527184
Website: www.cbseacademic.in Fax.:- 011-22527180

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“SHIKSHA KENDRA” 2, COMMUNITY CENTER, PREET VIHAR, DELHI-110092

No. CBSE/PO/2012 September 13th, 2012
Circular No. Acad-66/2012

To, 
All the schools that are offering Vocational Courses 
Under hospitality and Tourism Sector

 Subject:  Introduction of New Vocational Courses in Food Production and Food & Beverage Services 
under Hospitality and Tourism Sector.

Dear Principal

You might be aware that India offers diverse opportunities for Hospitality &Tourism. Over 5 million foreign tourists 
come to India every year. By comparison, domestic tourism is significantly greater. Recent statistics reveal that India 
is likely to witness a further increase in both domestic and international tourists’ strength. Annual demand for trained 
manpower in hotels and restaurants is approximately 2.03 lakh per year. Huge expansions are envisaged in the fast 
food/café segment as well as hotels.

Keeping in view the acute shortage of trained professionals and the emphasis of Govt of India on development of 
employability skills, the CBSE has introduced two vocational packages under Hospitality and Tourism Sector and the 
packages are

 1. Food Production (Subject codes 734-735)

 2. Food & Beverage Services.(Subject Codes 736-737)

The new course consists of two vocational subjects each in classes XI & XII. Besides these two vocational subjects 
students can take one language and two academic elective subjects relevant to the field. Students also have the option 
to take up any two academic elective subjects besides two

vocational subjects. The students can also opt for sixth additional subject which can either be a language or an academic 
elective subject.

It has been observed that some of the schools are still offering the following vocational packages (old) under H&T 
Sector:

 1. Food Service & Management (Subject codes -675-677)

 2. Hotel Management and Catering Technology (Subject codes-690-692)
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These schools are hereby given the option to take up the revised newly introduced vocational packages (734-735& 736-
737) mentioned above instead of the old vocational packages (675-677 & 690-692) so as to enable the students better 
suitability for the job market under the current scenario. It is advisable that no fresh admissions in the old vocational 
packages are made from the coming academic session (2013-2014).

Successful students of the two vocational streams who wish to make career in hospitality, would be able to find 
ready employment in this sector. The National Council of Hospitality and Catering Technology NCHMCT, which is the 
professional body for the joint certification, is exploring possibilities for providing the students passing out this course 
with an additional weightage in the entrance examination for graduate courses in Hotel Management in the institutes 
of Hotel Management in the country.

Looking forward to continued support and cooperation towards the growth and development of Vocational Education 
in your State.

However, please note that students who have enrolled for the old vocational package in the academic session 2012-13 
may appear for the final examination for Class XII in 2014 under the same old package itself and no further admissions 
be done under the old vocational package w.e.f. the next academic session i.e. 2013-14.

With regards.

(Dr. Biswajit Saha) 
Programme Officer & Director I/C 

(Vocational Education)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(ACAD &TRG)/2012 13th September, 2012
Circular No: Acad-67/2012

All the Heads of Independent Schools 
affiliated to the CBSE

 Subject: Strengthening of Sahodaya Movement

Dear Principal,

The Sahodaya School Complex came into existence in the year 1986 to facilitate synergy of ideas among the schools 
of CBSE aimed at excellence in education. Sahodaya School Complex is a group of neighbour-hood schools voluntarily 
coming to share their innovative practices in all aspects of school education including curriculum design, evaluation 
and pedagogy. It is a unique platform that provides opportunities to all the schools affiliated to CBSE to share their 
experience and to work jointly for scholastic as well as co-scholastic excellence along with the waves of change.

At present there are around 250 active Sahodaya School Cluster across the country with the networking of 4500 
schools. To create a Sahodaya School Complex in your city, you may collaborate with your neighbouring schools and 
the procedure stated below may be followed:-

1. Five to ten schools which are located geographically close to each other can come together. The Principal 
of any one school may convene a meeting of the Principals of all member schools to elect a President, 
Secretary, Treasurer and other office bearers on a rotation basis. They may give a name to their Sahodaya 
Cluster. In one district, there could be more than one Sahodaya Cluster depending on the number of schools 
and geographical locations.

2. The members may draw up a set of bye-laws for the Sahodaya School Complex delineating the aims of the 
voluntary body, the functions, duration of office, etc. of office bearers, list of main activities, periodicity of 
meetings, subscription, etc.

3. An account in a local bank may be opened in the name of the Sahodaya School Complex to be operated 
jointly by any two office bearers. The account should be audited annually and details circulated to all the 
members.

4. An action plan for the whole year may be prepared in consultation with all the members. Duties for carrying 
out different programmes may be allocated among members. The members should meet at least once a 
month to review the activities and to take up for discussion any issue of academic nature.
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5. Once a Sahodaya School Complex has been formed, the Secretary may send the details with names, 
addresses, phone numbers and e-mail ids of the President and Secretary to Director (Academic and Training), 
Central Board of Secondary Education, at the following email id: cbsecp@gmail.com. The details may also 
be sent by post to: Mrs. Archana Thakur, Assistant Education Officer, Central Board of Secondary Education 
"Shiksha Sadan", 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, Delhi-110002.

For consultation with respect to above, you may contact:-

Dr. Indu Khetrapal, Treasurer 
Gurgaon Sahodaya 
(Mob. 9971211193, 0124-4886050, Extn-114, Email Id- mail@sahodayaschools.org)

Mr. Ajith Jain, Secretary 
Chennai Sahodaya 
(Mob. 09940030200, 09444030200, Email Id- brvprincipal@bvbchennai.org)

Ms. S.A. Sridevi, Executive Committee Member 
Bengaluru Sahodaya 
(Mob. 09448087909, Email Id-principal.jv@gmail.com)

To register under Sahodaya you need to fill the registration form given on the home page of www.sahodayaschools.
org. After submitting the registration form, a confirmation mail will be sent to your email id.

Steps to register on this website - click here

In order to unsubscribe you are requested to send an unsubscribe request through email to mail@sahodayaschools.
org. Automatically the name will be unsubscribed.

For further queries related to the above you may contact-

Mrs. Archana Thakur, 
Assistant Education Officer, 
Central Board of Secondary Education, Delhi 
Contact detail: - 011-23230328, email: - cbsecp@gmail.com

The Board looks forward to your active participation in this movement.

With best wishes,

Yours sincerely,

Dr. Sadhana Parashar 
Director (Academic and Training)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/ACAD./ Dir. (Acad. & Trg.)/ KTPI/ 2012 14th September, 2012
Circular no.: Acad-68/2012

All the Heads of Institutions 
Affiliated to CBSE

Complete Modules of Knowledge Traditions and Practices of India 
An Elective Course Code no.: 073 for Class XI

Dear Principal,
It has been an endeavour of CBSE to develop the curriculum in various subjects with a deep focus on values inherent 
in our education system. This focus further takes a shape in facilitating the knowledge of traditional practices through 
the course material developed for students. The newly introduced course titled “Knowledge Traditions and Practices 
of India” for class XI students, has received an overwhelming response from the educationists and the teaching 
community all over India. Introduced as a pilot, it aims to engage students with a sense of exploration and discovery 
at the same time highlighting the concepts and major achievements in various disciplines of knowledge. Through 
its circular no. Acad-7/2012 dated April 30, 2012, CBSE has sent information to all schools regarding the modules 
detailed in the book. In this connection, all twelve modules are being uploaded on the CBSE Academic website at www.
cbseacademic.in. The schools which had offered to introduce this course had already been sent two modules i.e. on 
Astronomy and Metallurgy.
The printed version of the book is under process.
All the head of schools, who have introduced this course, are requested to download the modules and use them for 
teaching. Since, the topics in the course pertain to various disciplines, it is recommended that a collaborative approach 
involving the teachers concerned may be adopted while teaching.
The Hindi version of the modules is also being prepared so that a large number of schools and students benefit from 
the new course.
The examination specifications are also attached with this circular for schools to prepare question paper for the 
course.

In case of any query related to this course, you may contact Ms. Neelima Sharma, Consultant (English) at CBSE, 
Shiksha Sadan, 17-Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110002.

Ph.: 011-23233552     Email: neelimasharma.cbse@gmail.com

Yours sincerely,

(Dr. SADHANA PARASHAR) 
DIRECTOR (Academic & Training)
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
Shiksha Kendra, 2, Community Centre, Preet Vihar, Vikas Marg, Delhi-92

F.23/CBSE/PRO/Almanac 2013/2012 14.09.2012 
 Circular No: Acad-70/2012
All Heads of Schools 
Affiliated to the Board

 Subject: Inviting Young Artists from CBSE affiliated schools

Greetings!

Art is a universally accepted mode of expression which develops creativity, aesthetic sensibilities and sharpens senses 
through keen observation of the environment. Art is a way of discovering space, organization, colours, forms, lines, 
texture, movement; sound etc. A student develops a sense of organization which further inculcates a sense of order 
with regard to their personal appearance, home, school and community.

Central Board of Secondary Education recognize that significance of art lies beyond ‘useful hobbies’ and ‘leisure 
activities’ and therefore Art Education constituents a crucial component of the school curriculum.

Schools are the reservoirs of creative talent, CBSE therefore invites young artists with talent from affiliated schools 
to participate and showcase their creativity through paintings. The Board will generate a pool of art works related to 
themes on education and use it appropriately.

Eligibility Criteria

 The scheme is open to all CBSE affiliated schools across the world.

 Entries from students studying in Class IX to XII may be sent along with details of the students and two 
coloured passport size photos.

 The Principal may authenticate that the art work is original.

 The art work must be related to themes on education, where its content should not hurt sentiments of an 
individual or community and should not be anti-national or communal.

 It should be in A-3 size and done in oil /pastel/ water / poster colours.

 Entries should be packed carefully to ensure intactness of paper and colour.

 Three best art works per school can be sent.

 Online entries may be sent only in JPEG format to rs.procbse@gmail.com
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Selection Process

 CBSE will set up a three member screening committee to select the best entries.

 More than one entry may be selected from one school also.

 Selected entries will be suitably acknowledged by the board giving by-line of the young artist and brief 
profile.

 Selected entries will become the property of the board.

 Schools or participant will not use the same work for any other purpose.

 Entries must be sent by 05th October 2012 either through post to-

Rama Sharma 
Public Relations Officer 

Central Board of Secondary Education 
Shiksha Kendra, 2, Community Centre, Preet Vihar, 

New Delhi-92

 Or by e-mail to rs.procbse@gmail.com

Sd/- 
(Rama Sharma) 

Public Relations Officer 
Tele Fax: 011-22440083
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Website: www.cbse.nic.in Phone: 23220155
 Email-id: sugandh.cbse@live.com

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan ”, 17, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

ACAD/CBSE/DIR(ACAD&T) 2012 Circular No. Acad-73/2012
21st September, 2012

All the Heads of the 
CBSE affiliated schools

 Subject:  Additional information on Adoption of Revised Schedule VI Part I of the Companies Act 1956 in the 
transaction of the Accountancy syllabus of Class XII for the Board Examination 2013.

 Reference:  Circular No. Acad-13/2012 dated 10th May, 2012 and Circular No: Acad- 54/2012 Dated 24th 
August, 2012.

Dear Principal

In continuation with the Circulars cited above, it is further brought to your kind attention that the Board has developed 
additional questions for practice of Class XII Accountancy students and defined the topics affected by the revised 
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. These questions along with the ones given in the Sample Question Paper 
uploaded on the CBSE website www.cbse.nic.in provide a full coverage to the topics of the Accountancy syllabus 
affected by the revision of the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

The material, which has been included as Annexure ‘A’ to this Circular, may kindly be brought to the notice of concerned 
teachers and students. For any further queries in this regard, please also contact Mrs. Sugandh Sharma, Education 
Officer ( Commerce) at 011- 23220155 or email at eo-commerce@cbseacademic.in with a copy to Director ( Academic 
and Training) at email id sadhanap.cbse@nic.in .

With best wishes,

Yours Sincerely,

(Ram Shankar) 
Joint Director (Acad. & Voc.)

Encl. Annexure A
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 ANNEXURE - A

IMPACT OF REVISED SCHEDULE VI ON VARIOUS TOPICS OF THE 
ACCOUNTANCY SYLLABUS

Part A- Accounting for Partnership Firms and Companies: 60 marks.

Units Affected Areas Total marks of 
the Unit/s

Marks 
Affected

1&2Accounting for Partnership Firms Nil 35 Nil
3. Accounting for Share Capital

 Issue of Shares

(a) Presentation of Share Capital in the 
Balance Sheet as per Revised Schedule 
VI.

18 3-4

4. Accounting for Debentures Issue and 
redemption of debentures

(b) Presentation of Debentures issued as a 
collateral security as per Revised Schedule 
VI.

7 3

Part B- Financial Statements Analysis :20 marks.

Units Affected Areas Total marks of 
the Unit/s

Marks 
Affected

5. Analysis of Financial Statements

  Balance Sheet of the Company 
in the prescribed form with major 
headings and sub-headings as 
per Revised Schedule VI to the 
Companies Act 1956.

Tools for Financial Statement 
Analysis:

(a) Comparative Statements

  C o m p a r a t i v e  I n c o m e 
Statement

 Comparative Balance Sheet

Entirely affected

Entirely affected

12

3-4

3-4

(b) Common Size Statements

  C o m m o n  S i z e  I n c o m e 
Statement.

 Common Size Balance Sheet

© Ratio Analysis:
Not affected because it is a managerial 
tool. The information may be presented to 
the management as required by them. The 
elements/ Components of individual ratios 
will be given in the question.

--
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6. Cash Flow Statement Not affected because the information given 
in the 2012-13 examination will be assumed 
to be the same as stated under the head 
in the Balance Sheet. For example- if the 
Debentures are given under the head ‘Long 
Term Borrowings’, they will be treated as a 
Non current Liability.

8 Nil

QUESTIONS

1. From the following Statement of Profit and Loss of Star Ltd., for the years ended 31st March 2011 and 2012, prepare 
a comparative Statement of Profit or Loss.

Particulars Note No. 2010-11 (`) 2011-12 (`)
Revenue from operations Employee benefits  expenses Other expenses 
Tax rate 40%

16,00,000
8,00,000
2,00,000

20,00,000
10,00,000

1,00,000

Solution. Comparative Statement of Profit or Loss
for the years ended 31st March 2011and 31st March 2012

Particulars 2010-11
(`)

2011-12
(`)

Absolute
increase/ 
decrease 

(`)

Percentage 
increase/ 
decrease 

(%)
I

II

Revenue from operations
Less: Expenses:
Employee benefits expenses
Other expenses

16,00,000

8,00,000
2,00,000

20,00,000

10,00,000
1,00,000

4,00,000

2,00,000
(1,00,000)

25

25
(50)

III Profit before tax
Less tax @40%

6,00,000
2,40,000

9,00,000
3,60,000

3,00,000
1,20,000

50
50

IV Profit after tax 3,60,000 5,40,000 1,80,000 50

2. From the following Balance Sheets of Universe Ltd., as on 31st March 2011 and 2012, prepare a Comparative 
Balance Sheet.

Particulars Note No. 2010-11 (`) 2011-12 (`)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
 (a) Share capital
 (b) Reserves and Surplus
(2) Non Current Liabilities
 Long Term Borrowings
(3) Current Liabilities
 Trade Payables

15,00,000
4,00,000

6,00,000

2,00,000

20,00,000
3,00,000

9,00,000

3,00,000
Total 27,00,000 35,00,000
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ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets
 Fixed assets
  (i) Tangible assets
  (ii) Intangible Assets
(2) Current Assets
 (a) Inventories
 (b) Cash and Cash equivalents

15,00,000
6,00,000

4,00,000
2,00,000

20,00,000
9,00,000

3,00,000
3,00,000

Total 27,00,000 35,00,000

Solution.

Comparative Balance Sheet of Star Ltd. 
as on 31st March 2011 and 31st March 2012

Particulars 2010-11
(`)

2011-12
(`)

Absolute
increase/ 

decrease (`)

Percentage 
increase/ 
decrease 

(%)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
 (a) Share capital
 (b) Reserves and Surplus
(2) Non Current Liabilities
 Long Term Borrowings
(3) Current Liabilities
 Trade Payables

15,00,000
4,00,000

6,00,000

2,00,000

20,00,000
3,00,000

9,00,000

3,00,000

5,00,000
(1,00,000)

3,00,000

1,00,000

33.33
(25)

50

50
Total 27,00,000 35,00,000 8,00,000 33.3
ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets
 Fixed assets
 (i) Tangible assets
 (ii) Intangible Assets
(2) Current Assets
 (a) Inventories
 (b) Cash and Cash equivalents

15,00,000
6,00,000

4,00,000
2,00,000

20,00,000
9,00,000

3,00,000
3,00,000

5,00,000
3,00,000

(1,00,000)
1,00,000

33.33
50

(25)
50

Total 27,00,000 35,00,000 8,00,000 33.3

3. From the following Balance Sheets of Sun Ltd., as on 31st March 2011 and 2012, prepare a common size Balance Sheet.

Particulars Note No. 2010-11 (`) 2011-12 (`)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
 (a) Share capital
 (b) Reserves and Surplus

30,00,000
4,00,000

40,00,000
6,00,000
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(2) Non Current Liabilities
 Long Term Borrowings
(3) Current Liabilities
 Short Term borrowings

10,00,000

6,00,000

12,00,000

2,00,000

Total 50,00,000 60,00,000

ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets
 (a) Fixed assets
      (i) Tangible assets
      (ii) Intangible Assets
(2) Current Assets
 (a) Inventories
 (b) Cash and Cash equivalents

30,00,000
6,00,000

10,00,000
4,00,000

40,00,000
2,00,000

12,00,000
6,00,000

Total 50,00,000 60,00,000

Solution.

Common Size Balance Sheet of Sun Ltd. 
as on 31st March 2011 and 31st March 2012

Particulars
2010-11

(`)
2011-12

(`)

Percentage 
of total

2010-11

Percentage 
of total

2010-11

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
 (a) Share capital
 (b) Reserves and Surplus
(2) Non Current Liabilities
 Long Term Borrowings
(3) Current Liabilities
 Short Term borrowings

30,00,000
4,00,000

10,00,000

6,00,000

40,00,000
6,00,000

12,00,000

2,00,000

60
8

20

12

66.7
10.0

20.0

3.3

Total 50,00,000 60,00,000 100 100.0

ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets
 (a) Fixed assets
      (i) Tangible assets
      (ii) Intangible Assets
(2) Current Assets
 (a) Inventories
 (b) Cash and Cash equivalents

30,00,000
6,00,000

10,00,000
4,00,000

40,00,000
2,00,000

12,00,000
6,00,000

60
12

20
8

66.7
3.3

20.0
10.0

Total 50,00,000 60,00,000 100 100.0
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4. Following are the Balance Sheets of Mittal Ltd., as on 31st March 2011 and 2012:

Particulars Note No. 2010-11 (`) 2011-12 (`)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders Funds
 (a) Share capital
 (b) Reserves and Surplus
(2) Non Current Liabilities
 Long term borrowings
(3) Current Liabilities
 Short Term provisions

1

2

3

10,00,000
4,00,000

2,00,000

60,000

14,00,000
5,00,000

6,00,000

80,000
Total 16,60,000 25,80,000
ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets
 (a) Fixed assets
      (i) Tangible assets
      (ii) Intangible Assets
(2) Current Assets
 (a) Inventories
 (b) Trade Receivables
 (b) Cash and Cash equivalents

4
5

9,00,000
2,00,000

2,00,000
3,00,000

60,000

16,00,000
1,40,000

2,50,000
5,00,000

90,000
Total 16,60,000 25,80,000

Note 1

Particulars As on 31.3.2011 
(`)

As on 31.3.2012 
(`)

Reserves and Surplus 
Surplus (balance in Statement of profit and Loss) 4,00,000 5,00,000

Note 2

Particulars As on 31.3.2011 
(`)

As on 31.3.2012 
(`)

Long term borrowings 
(i) 9% Deposits 2,00,000 6,00,000

Note 3

Particulars As on 31.3.2011 
(`)

As on 31.3.2012 
(`)

Short Term provisions 
(i) Provision for tax 60,000 80,000

Note 4

Particulars As on 31.3.2011 
(`)

As on 31.3.2012 
(`)

Tangible assets 
(i) Machinery 9,00,000 16,00,000
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Note 5

Particulars As on 31.3.2011 
(`)

As on 31.3.2012 
(`)

Intangible Assets 
(i) Goodwill 2,00,000 1,40,000

Prepare a Cash Flow Statement after taking into account the following adjustments:

(a) The company paid interest `45,000 on its Deposits.

(b) Depreciation provided on machinery during the year ` 2,00,000.

Solution.

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ending 31st March 2012

Particulars Details
(`)

Amount
(`)

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Add: Depreciation on machinery
 Interest on deposits
 Goodwill written off
Operating Profit before working capital changes
Less: Increase in Inventories
 Increase in Trade Receivables
Cash flows from operations
Less tax paid
Net Cash generated from operating activities
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Machinery purchased
Net Cash used in investing activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Shares
9% Deposits raised
Interest paid
Net Cash generated from financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Add opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

1,80,000
2,00,000

45,000
60,000

4,85,000
(50,000)

(2,00,000)
2,35,000
(60,000)

(9,00,000)

1,75,000

4,00,000
4,00,000
(45,000)

(9,00,000)

7,55,000

30,000
60,000
90,000
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5. The authorized capital of XYZ Ltd is ` 20,00,000 divided into ` 2,00,000 equity shares of ` 10 each. Out of these the 
company issued 1,00,000 equity shares of ` 10 each at a discount of 10%. The amount is payable as follows:

 On application ` 2, on allotment ` 4 and on final call ` 3.

The public applied for ̀  90,000 equity shares and all the money was duly received. How will you show the ‘Share Capital 
A/c’ in the Balance-sheet of the company. Also prepare “Notes to Accounts” for the same.

 (1x3 = 3 Marks)

Solution:

Balance Sheet of XYZ Ltd. 
As at ………………………………..

Particulars Note No. Amount current 
year

Amount previous 
year

I (1) Equity and Liablities 
Shareholder’s Fund 

(a) Share Capital 1 9,00,000

 1 Mark

Note No.1

Share Capital (`)
Authorised Capital
2,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each
Issued Capital
1,00,000 equity shares of ` 10 each
Subscribed & Fully paid
90,000 equity shares of ` 10 each

20,00,000

10,00,000

9,00,000

 (1+3=4 Marks)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
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CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(A&T)/Sci. Exb./2012 27th September, 2012

Circular No.: Acad-76/2012

The Principal

 Subject: Invitation for participation in National Level CBSE Science Exhibition 2012 at Delhi

It gives the Central Board of Secondary Education immense pleasure to inform you that the exhibit/model presented 
by your school team at Regional Level Science Exhibition was selected for participation at the National Level Science 
Exhibition. Heartiest congratulations to you and your school team for this achievement.

The following points may please be taken note of with regard to the participation in the National Level Science 
Exhibition:
a) The proposed exhibition will held at 

St. Xavier's School 
4 Raj Niwas Marg, Civil Lines 

Delhi- 110054
Email - stxaviersdelhi54se2012@gmail.com

Phone –011-23957778, Fax No. – 011-23984152

b) The exhibition will be held on 30th and 31st of October, 2012 (Two days).

c) Only schools/exhibits selected at the Regional Level Science Exhibition are eligible to take part in this 
exhibition. Same exhibit/model may be displayed in the event as displayed at the regional level exhibition.

d) Schools will not be allowed entry for National Level Science Exhibition if they have not qualified the Regional 
Level. All such schools in such case will be travelling at their own risk.

e) Every invitee school must carry this participation letter sent by CBSE (in original) with them. It is required 
to submit a copy of this participation letter received from CBSE Headquarters at the time of registration at 
the venue school. This may be treated as most urgent and essential condition for participation.

f) All participant school teams are requested to report at the venue on29thOctober, 2012 by 12.00 noon.

g) Every team is also required to submit a brief two - page write-up (hand written or typed) of the exhibit/project 
including title, objective, related principle, working, diagram/photo utility, cost and further scope etc. 
at registration table on arrival. This may be treated as important.
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h) The school team should comprise of a maximum of two students and one escort teacher for one exhibit. 
However, in case of two exhibits from the same school, a total of four students and one escort teacher are 
allowed to participate in the event.

i) The participating teams are required to make their own travel arrangements and lodging/ boarding 
arrangements at Delhi at their own cost. The venue school can also be contacted for necessary information 
and guidance in this regard. The venue school has been requested for necessary help related to desired 
information.

j) All expenses for participation in the event will be borne by participating teams/schools only.

k) On reaching the venue school on 29th October, 2012 the school team is required to report to the Principal 
and get registered for participation on submitting a copy of this letter, hard copy of your registration and 
requirement form sent by you through email earlier and the write-up.

l) The exhibit/model should be arranged at the space provided for the same.

m) The confirmation of participation (on the format attached) may be communicated to the Principal of Venue 
School through e-mail latest by 20th October, 2012. This may be treated as urgent.

n) The exact requirement for display Board, space near water supply etc. may be communicated to the Principal 
of Venue School (on the format attached) in advance latest by 20th October 2012. This may be emailed 
to host school. In the absence of any response from the school it may be assumed that the school has no 
requirement. In such circumstances participating school will not demand any object at the time of registration 
or exhibition. This may be treated as urgent.

o) The exhibit will be evaluated by a team of subject experts. Main parameters for assessment of an exhibit 
will include creativity/innovation, scientific thought, technical skill, utility, economic aspect and 
presentation. The school team should remain present at the allotted place for the exhibit for all the time on 
both the days.

p) Judges decision will be final and abiding to all.

q) Twenty best exhibits/teams will be given certificates of Merit and a cash prize of Rs. 3000/- (Rupees 
Three Thousand Only) each.

r) The timings of the exhibition will be from 9.00 a.m.to 5.00 p.m. The teams are required to report at the 
venue at 8.30 a.m. on the first day. The detailed information about the participation in this exhibition 
is also available on CBSE website – www.cbseacademic.in.

You may contact Kshipra Verma, Co-ordinator of science exhibition, CBSE on telephone No. 011-23231067 or 
email at kshipraverma.cbsei@gmail.comfor further information, if any.

With regards,

Yours Sincerely,

(Dr. Sadhana Parashar) 
Director (Academics & Training)

Enclosures:
1. Registration form
2. Requirement form
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CBSE NATIONAL LEVEL SCIENCE EXHIBITION - 2012 
REGISTRATION / CONFIRMATION FORM

1. Name of the School:   __________________________________________________

   __________________________________________________

2.  Complete address of the 
School (with state and Ph. No.):   _______________________________________

    _______________________________________

    _______________________________________

    _______________________________________

3.  Title of Exhibit / Project  __________________________________________________  
(Whatever sent for the  __________________________________________________  
CBSE Regional level science  __________________________________________________  
Exhibition)

4. Sub – theme of the exhibit:  __________________________________________________

   __________________________________________________

   __________________________________________________

5. Name of the students  Exhibit – 1

  1). ________________________________________________

  2). ________________________________________________

  Exhibit – 2

  1). ________________________________________________

  2). ________________________________________________

6. Name of the escort teacher  __________________________________________________

(With Mobile No.)  __________________________________________________

This is to confirm our school’s participation in science exhibition. We will be reporting on Specify date and 
Specify time. a.m/p.m.

Signature of the Principal 
(With office seal)

To be completed at the time of registration by the host school:

1) Copy of Participation letter submitted Yes    No   

2) Write up submitted Yes    No   

3) Registration form in hard copy Yes    No   

Note: breakfast and lunch will be provided on payment and prior intimation.  
(This note may be added by the school if you feel you can arrange the same)
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REQUIREMENT FORM

1. Name of the school with complete address and Phone number:

 _______________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________

 _______________________________________________________

2. Please tick ‘yes’ or ‘no’ for the following requirements (tick as applicable):

 i. Display Board Required Yes    No   

 ii. Water Source Required
  (if you wish to place the exhibit accordingly) Yes    No   

 iii. Open space required
  (if sunlight for the model is needed) Yes    No   

NOTE: Schools must carry their own extension cord, cello tape, all pins, board pins,  
masking tape, scissors, chart papers, markers etc.

Signature of the Principal 
(With office seal)
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Email: director@cbseacademic.in Tel: 011- 23212603, 
Website: www.cbseacademic.in 23211576
 Tele Fax: 011- 23234324

dsUæh; ekè;fed f'k{kk CkksMZ
(Ekkuo lalk/u fodkl ea=kky;] Hkkjr ljdkj] ds v/hu ,d Lok;Rr laxBu)

f'k{kk lnu] 17] bUlfVV~;w'kuy {ks=k] jkmt ,osU;w] fnYyh&110002

CENTRAL BOARD OF SECONDARY EDUCATION
(An autonomous Organisation under the Union Ministry of Human Resource Development, Govt. of India)

“Shiksha Sadan”, 17, Institutional Area, Rouse Avenue, New Delhi-110 002

CBSE/DIR(ACAD & TRG) 2012 29.9.2012

Circular No: Acad-77/2012

All the heads of Institution 
Affiliated to CBSE

 Subject: Availability of Supplementary Material in Business Studies for Class XII

Dear Principal,

The detailed syllabus of Business Studies is available on website www.cbse.nic.in through circular no. 47 August, 2012. 
The supplementary study material to be shared with the students in additions to the topics covered in NCERT book is 
attached as Annexure ‘ A ’ to this circular. The supplementary material consists of the following topics:

1. Planning
2. Staffing
3. Directing
4. Controlling
5. Marketing Management
6. Financial Markets
7. Consumer Protection

This information may be shared with your teachers and students.

For any further queries in this regard, please also contact Mr. Sandeep Sethi, Education Officer (Social Science) 
at 011-23217128 or email at eo_ss@cbseacademic.nic.in with a copy to Director (Academic & Training) at email id 
sadhanap.cbse@nic.in.

With best wishes,

Yours Sincerely,

(Ram Shankar) 
Joint Director (Acad. & Voc.)
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UNIT: PLANNING

PLAN

A plan is a specific action proposed to help the organization achieve its objectives. It is a document that outlines how 
goals are going to be met. The importance of developing Plans is evident from the fact that there may be more than 
one means of reaching a particular goal. So with the help of logical plans, objectives of an organization could be 
achieved easily.

SINGLE USE PLANS

Single use plans apply to activities that do not recur or repeat. Single use plan is one time plan specifically designed to 
achieve particular goal that, once achieved will not recur in the future. Such Plan is developed to meet the needs of a 
unique situation. The length of a singleuse plan differs greatly depending on the project in question, as a single event 
plan may only last one day while a single project may last weeks or months.

STANDING PLANS – KNOWN AS REPEAT USE PLANS

Standing plans are used over and over again because they focus on organizational situations that occur repeatedly. 
They are usually made once and retain their value over a period of years while undergoing revisions and updates. That 
is why they are also called repeated use plans.

OBJECTIVES, STRATEGY, POLICY, PROCEDURE, METHOD, RULE, 
BUDGET AND PROGRAMME (Please look up NCERT book for them)

UNIT: STAFFING

INDUCTION TRAINING

Induction training is a type of training given to help a new employee in settling down quickly into the job by becoming 
familiar with the people, the surroundings, the job and the business. The duration of such type of training may be from 
a few hours to a few days.

UNIT: DIRECTING

STYLES OF LEADERSHIP

Leadership styles refer to a leader's behaviour. Behavioural pattern which the leader reflects in his role as a leader is 
often described as the style of leadership.

A Leadership style is the result of the leader's philosophy, personality, and experience and value system. It also depends 
upon the type of followers and the atmosphere prevailing in the organization.

Different types of leadership style are:

1. Autocratic leadership

2. Participative leadership – Democratic
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3. Free rein leadership – Laissez Faire

A leader may use all styles over a period of time but one style tends to predominate as his normal way of using 
power.

Example Mr. Ulhas, CEO of I Create India, distributes the work for the month. He delegates the work to his staff Ms. 
Ranju, Ms. Anjana, Ms. Geeta and Mr. Dinesh as per his discretion.

(Mr. Ulhas is behaving as an autocratic leader)

Mr. Ulhas has realized that due to absence of Ms. Geeta, the work will not get over as scheduled. He discusses with 
his staff members to meet the dead line. Everybody decided to do over time and planned to stay back accordingly.

(Mr. Ulhas is behaving as a democratic leader)

The staff plans to organize a party in honor of Ms. Geeta as she got promoted. Mr. Ulhas asks the other members of 
staff to fix the venue and the menu for the occasion.

(Mr. Ulhas is behaving as a free rein leader)

Autocratic

Leader

Leader

Employees

Leader

Whole Group

Employees

Leader

Employees

Employees

Participative Free-rein

POWER STYLE

EMPHASIS
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AUTOCRATIC OR AUTHORITARIAN LEADER

An autocratic leader gives orders and insists that they are obeyed. He determines the policies for the group without 
consulting them.

He does not give information about future plans but simply tells the group what immediate steps they must take.

Under this style, all decision making power is centralized in the leader as shown in the diagram. He does not give the 
subordinates any freedom to influence his decision.

It is like “bossing people around.” This style should normally be used on rare occasions.

A

A is the leader – Boss – Centered – Leadership

PARTICIPATIVE OR DEMOCRATIC LEADER

A democratic leader gives order only after consulting the group and works out the policies with the acceptance of the 
group.

He never asks people to do things without working out the long term plans on which they are working. He favours 
decision making by the group as shown in the diagram. This improves the attitude of the employees towards their jobs 
and the organization thereby increasing their morale.

Using this style is of mutual benefit – it allows them (subordinates) to become part of the team and helps leaders 
(seniors) to make better decisions.

A is the leader – Group Centered – Leadership

B D
C
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FREE REIN OR LAISSEZ FAIRE LEADER

A free rein leader gives complete freedom to the subordinates. Such a leader avoids use of power. He depends 
largely upon the group to establish its own goals and work out its own problems. Group members work themselves as 
per their own choice and competence.

The leader exists as a contact man with the outsiders to bring information and the resources the group requires for 
accomplishing the job.

NOTE: This is also known as laissez faire which means no interference in the affairs of others. [French: laissesz means 
to let / allow and faire means to do.]

B

A

D E

C

A is the leader 
Leadership is Subordinate – Centered – Leadership

UNIT: CONTROLLING

NATURE OF CONTROLLING

1. Controlling is a goal oriented function.

2. Controlling is an all pervasive (Top, middle and Operational Level) function.

3. Controlling is both a backward looking as well as forward looking function.

4. Controlling is a continuous function.

UNIT: MARKETING MANAGEMENT

PUBLIC RELATIONS - CONCEPT

The concept of Public Relations involves a variety of programmes to promote and protect a company's image or its 
products. It means to strengthen relations with various stake holders like customers, shareholders, employees, suppliers, 
investors etc. It is done through – news, speeches by corporate leaders, organizing events like sports events, concerts, 
seminars etc.
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'Public Association Relations’ defined public relations as “ The art and social science of analyzing trends, predicting 
their consequences, counseling organizational leaders and implementing planned programme of action which will serve 
both the organization and the public interest.”

“The Chartered Institute of Public Relations” defines Public Relations as "a strategic management function that 
adds value to an organization by helping it to manage its reputation;

Public relations covers a wide range of tactics, usually involve providing information to independent media sources in 
the hope of gaining favorable coverage. It also involves a mix of promoting specific products, services and events and 
promoting the overall brand of an organization, which is an ongoing tact.

Traditional Public Relation Tools include- Press release and Press Kits which are distributed to the media to generate 
interest from the Press.

Other widely known Tools include- Brochures, Newsletters and Annual Reports.

Role: (i) Smooth functioning of business and achievement of objectives.

 (ii) Building corporate image that affects favorably on its products.

  – Up keep of parks, gardens, sponsoring sports activities etc.

 (iii) Build interest in the established product and help in launching Products.

QUALITIES OF A GOOD SALESMAN

1. Physical qualities: Good looking, healthy,

2. Psychological qualities: Sweet natured, Good behavior, mentally healthy,

3. Technical quality: Full technical knowledge about the product,

4. Good communication skills,

5. Honesty,

6. Courtesy,

7. Persistent,

8. Capacity to inspire trust.

UNIT: FINANCIAL MARKETS

TRADING PROCEDURE ON A STOCK EXCHANGE

The procedure for purchase and sale of securities in a stock exchange involves the following steps:

1. Selection of a broker

 The first step is to select a broker who will buy / sell securities on behalf of the speculator/ investor. This 
is necessary because trading of securities can only be done through SEBI registered brokers who are the 
members of a stock exchange. Brokers may be individuals, partnership firms or corporate bodies.
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2. Opening demat account with Depository

 The next step is to open a demat account. Demat (Dematerialized) account refers to an account which an 
Indian citizen must open with the depository participant (banks, stockbrokers) to trade in listed securities in 
electronic form. The securities are held in the electronic form by a depository. "Depository" is an institution / 
organization which holds securities (e.g. shares, debentures, bonds, mutual funds etc.) in electronic form, in 
which trading is done. At present there are two depositories in India: NSDL (National Securities Depository 
Ltd.) and CDSL (Central Depository Services Ltd.) Depository interacts with the investor through depository 
participants. PDS are agents – Stock brokers. Your Depository participant will maintain your securities account 
balances and intimate to you the status of your holding from time to time.

3. Placing the order

 The next step is to place the order with the broker. The order can be communicated to the broker either 
personally or through telephone, cell phone, e-mail etc. The instructions should specify the securities to be 
bought or sold and the price range within which the order is to be executed. Only the securities of listed 
companies can be traded on the stock exchange.

4. Executing the order

 According to the instructions of the investor, the broker buys or sells securities. The broker then issues a 
contract note. A copy of the contract note contains the name and the price of securities, names of the parties, 
brokerage charges. It is signed by the broker.

5. Settlement

 This is the last stage in the trading of securities done by the brokers on behalf of their clients. The mode of 
settlement depends upon the nature of the contract. Equity spot markets follow a T + 2 rolling settlement. This 
means that any trade taking place on Monday gets settled by Wednesday. All trading on stock exchanges 
takes place between 9:55 am and 3:30 pm, Indian Standard Time, Monday to Friday. Delivery of shares must 
be made in decartelized form, and each exchange has its own clearing house, which assumes all settlement 
risk.

UNIT: CONSUMER PROTECTION

AGAINST WHOM A COMPLAINT CAN BE FILED

1. The seller, manufacturer or dealer of goods which are defective. "Defect" means any fault, imperfection or 
shortcoming in the Quality, quantity or purity of goods.

2. The provider of services if they are deficient in any manner. "Deficiency" means any imperfection, shortcoming 
or Inadequacy in the quality, nature and manner of performance of Services.
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